




British American Tobacco Bangladesh has built its 
reputation and corporate image as one of the best 
companies of Bangladesh, since its establishment in 
1910. It has accomplished its glorious centenarian 
journey and continues to endure the celebrated 
voyage. The Company is working very closely with 
the people of this magnificent land for its ‘Crop to 
Consumer’ business. As a responsible business 
organisation, BAT Bangladesh is committed to 
driving the best corporate practices in the country.

As always BAT Bangladesh emphasises on transparent 
business practices and ensures excellence in every 
nook and corner of its operation.The Company 
ensures complete compliance of all the regulatory 
requirements. BATB is also Bangladesh's highest 
corporate contributor to the national exchequer.  The 
Company focuses on the preferences of consumers 
with the interests of society ensuring good 
governance and enables the business to continue to 
prosper which resulted in a number of recognitions 
both in national and international platform. As mark 
of recognition to its drive for excellence, BAT 
Bangladesh has secured one more feather to its crown 
by establishing itself as the most women-friendly 
organisation after being the Country’s preferred 
employer for three  consecutive years.

As you turn these pages, you will experience a 
reflection of our journey towards path of success, 
where we stepped on to a new height of governance 
excellence at every stage as we strive to be a 
constant partner of the progressive Bangladesh.

EXCELLENCE IN GOVERNANCE





The presence of British American Tobacco in this part of the world 
can be traced back to 1910. Beginning the journey as Imperial 
Tobacco 105 years ago, the Company set up its first sales depot at 
Armanitola in Dhaka. 

After the partition of India in 1947, Pakistan Tobacco Company was 
established in 1949. The first factory in Bangladesh (the then East 
Pakistan) was set up in 1949 at Fauzdarhat in Chittagong. In 1965, the 
second factory of Pakistan Tobacco Company went into production 
in Mohakhali, Dhaka. It became Bangladesh Tobacco Company 
Limited in 1972 immediately after Bangladesh's independence. In 
1998, the Company changed its name and identity to British 
American Tobacco Bangladesh (BAT Bangladesh) aligning the 
corporate identity with other operating companies in the British 
American Tobacco Group.

BAT Bangladesh is a part of BAT plc, the world's most international 
tobacco group, with brands sold in 200 markets around the world. 

We make high quality tobacco products for the diverse preferences 
of consumers, spanning the business 'from crop to consumer', and 
we are committed to embedding the principles of corporate social 
responsibility through our responsible business operation .

Our Shareholders
We were among the first companies to be listed on the Dhaka and 
Chittagong Stock Exchanges and currently rank 2nd  in terms of 
market capitalisation. British American Tobacco Group holds 72.91% 
of the shares; 11.45% is owned by Investment Corporation of 
Bangladesh; Shadharan Bima Corporation, Bangladesh Development 
Bank Limited and the Government of the People's Republic of 
Bangladesh while a further 15.64% is owned by other shareholders.

Our Contributions
We continue to contribute approximately two-thirds of the revenue 
derived from the cigarette industry. The 2015 calendar year saw BAT 
Bangladesh contribute over BDT 11,051 crore as taxes to the National 
Exchequer which makes us one of the highest taxpayers to the 
Government. The Company will continue to support Government 
proposals that establish a sustainable level of tax contribution to the 
National Exchequer while ensuring a sustainable growth for the 
industry.

Our Beliefs
At BAT Bangladesh, we strive to be a responsible Company wherever 
we operate - be it to our shareholders, employees, business partners 
or any other relevant internal and external stakeholder. To us, 
responsibility is a way of life and that is why we believe ‘success and 
responsibility go together’.

Our People – Our Strength
Employing more than 1,400 people directly and approximately 
52,000 people indirectly as farmers, distributors and local suppliers, 
we take great pride in saying that BAT Bangladesh is one of the most 
preferred employers in the country. It is the people who bring their 
differences every day that make BAT Bangladesh a great place to work in.

ABOUT US



PARTNERING FOR PROGRESS
A promising journey of progress leads to a shared goal that ties together an organisation with the platform they 
perform in. BAT Bangladesh was established and has been continuing its operations in this country since 1910. 
Then in 1998, the Company changed its name from Bangladesh Tobacco Company to British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh Company Limited . 

The Sustainable Development Goals of the Government of Bangladesh were outlined envisioning a developing 
country. A future Bangladesh, that had gradually solved all of its crises, having implemented, executed, and 
facilitated the very goals, exemplifies one such promising mission dreamt by both the government and the 
organisation alike. The partnership with the Government of Bangladesh and the strength of our ties with the 
land is evident in the number of notable initiatives BAT Bangladesh took towards ensuring sustainable 
development goals over the past few years. 



Indeed, contributing to the social and agricultural fields and developing talents have remained a core and 
consistent goal for BAT Bangladesh. Promising initiatives such as the Afforestation Programme, Water Filtration 
Project and Solar Home System are among the many acclaimed achievements of BAT Bangladesh. Topping the 
market as the highest taxpayer, seconding in market capitalization and ensuring a safe, accident-free and 
diversified work culture only took them to newer heights of national as well as global recognition.
 
Applying global standards and best practices have secured the Company a commendable position both 
nationally and in the global arena. In the coming years also, BAT Bangladesh strives to be a constant partner of 
the progressing Bangladesh. By actively practicing good governance and contributing to the stakeholders, the 
organisation is facilitating to have a beautiful Bangladesh. 
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Our vision is to be world’s best at 
satisfying consumer moments in 
tobacco and beyond.

Our mission is delivering our 
commitments to society, while 
championing informed consumer 
choice. We need to continue to 
ensure that our consumers are fully 
informed about the choices they are 
making when they purchase our 
tobacco products. We recognise 
that we have a responsibility to offer 
a choice of products across the risk 
spectrum, but we will also defend 
their rights to choose and provide 
them with the products they want. 
As society changes, and people’s 
priorities and needs shift, we need to 
be ready to meet new challenges and 
take advantage of new opportunities. 
We are a major international business 
and with this status comes responsibilities, 
from being open about the risks of 
our products to supporting rural 
communities in the developing world.

Our strategic focus areas are the 
foundations upon which our strategy 
is built and they have been in place 
for many years, but we continue to 
concentrate on our activities in all 
four focus areas and constantly 
review our ways of working. Growth 
requires development of brands by 
bringing innovations and new 
products to meet consumers' evolving 
needs. Winning organisations consist 
of great people, great teams and a 
great place to work. Ensuring a 
sustainable business that meets 
stakeholders’ expectations is another 
part of our strategic focus.

(BAT Bangladesh's vision, mission and strategic focus are in line with the BAT group)
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FREEDOM THROUGH RESPONSIBILITY

We always strive to do the right things, exercising our responsibility 
to society and other stakeholders. We use our freedom to take 
decisions and act in the best interest of our consumers.

OPEN MINDED

We are forward looking and anticipate consumer needs, winning with 
innovative, high quality products. We listen to and genuinely consider 
other perspectives and changing social expectations. We are open to 
new ways of doing things.

ENTERPRISING SPIRIT

We have the confidence to passionately pursue growth and new 
opportunities whilst accepting the considered entrepreneurial risk 
that comes with it. We are bold and strive to overcome challenges. 
This is the cornerstone of our success.

STRENGTH FROM DIVERSITY

We respect and celebrate each other’s differences and enjoy working 
together. We harness diversity - of our people, cultures, viewpoints, 
brands, markets and ideas - to strengthen our business. We value 
what makes each of us unique.
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Our business model describes what we do and, more importantly, how we use our unique strengths and employ our resources 
and relationships to deliver sustainable growth in earnings. It is built around meeting our consumers’ evolving needs and is 
driven by our strategy to ensure that we are delivering great results today and investing in our long-term future.

Our business model and strategy delivering value

We have a significant interest 
in tobacco growing and we 
have expert technicians out 
in the field who support 
farmers. We manage our whole 
supply chain responsibly, 
including the sourcing of leaf 
and other materials, and work 
with suppliers to create a 
long-term shared understanding 
of our social, environmental 
and economic impacts. Without 
tobacco leaf and other raw 
materials we would have no 
products. We aim to ensure 
sustainable supply chain and 
bring real benefits to local 
communities, by promoting 
good agricultural practices 
and investing in community 
projects.

Manufacturing tobacco products 
is a large-scale operation and 
we have state-of-the-art 
manufacturing facilities in 
the country. We work to 
ensure that our costs are  
competitive and that we use 
our resources as effectively 
as possible. Our production 
facilities are designed to 
meet the needs of an agile 
and flexible supply chain 
providing a world-class operational 
base that is fit for the future. 
Ensuring leaf and products in 
right place at the right time 
at the right quantity is a 
formidable logistical exercise 
for which BATB is highly 
committed. The nature of 
our business allows us to 
pool resources on a global scale 
and maximise efficiency.

Our well-developed distribution 
channels are critical enablers 
of our growth strategy, 
allowing us to roll out 
innovations on a big scale. 
We continuously review our 
route to market, including our 
relationships with wholesalers, 
distributors and logistics 
providers. A good volume is 
sold by retailers supplied by 
our exclusive distributors. 
We encourage to embed best 
practices at the distributor end 
as well to ensure regulatory 
compliance of the cigarette 
industry as a whole.

We place consumers at the 
heart of our business. We 
invest in world-class research 
to understand changing 
consumer needs and buying 
behaviour. This drives our supply 
chain, product development, 
innovations, brands and 
trade activities. We aim to satisfy 
consumers while addressing 
stakeholder expectations about 
how we should market our 
products. We are developing 
innovative solutions to 
evolve our brand portfolio and 
create more differentiated 
products. This supports our 
aim to champion consumer 
choice and provide a range 
of products across the risk 
spectrum.

Source Produce Distribute Consumers

OUR BUSINESS MODEL
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Essentially, we make and market cigarettes, but 
there is definitely a lot more to it than that. Our 
sustainable approach to sourcing, production and 
distribution helps us to create value for a wide range 
of stakeholders from crop to consumer. They 
include farmers and their communities, other 
suppliers, retail and wholesale trade partners, NGOs, 
governments, regulators and the society at large.

What we do
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What Makes Us Different

Our business operates on a set of core strengths and qualities 
that makes us unique and ensures we can generate value over 
the long term. The quality of our people is a crucial factor in 
delivering this and our presence enables us to leverage the 
value they create on a national level. 

Our Guiding Principles define
how we behave and how we
govern our business:

What guides us

Markets

Brands

We have a successful brand marketing strategy 
based on sound consumer insights. Our renowned  
international brands are – Benson & Hedges, John 
Player Gold Leaf and Pall Mall. Our portfolio of a 
good number of international as well as local brands 
is designed to meet a broad array of consumer 
preferences around the country with the idea of 
delivering today and  investing for tomorrow.

Products

We offer adult consumers a range of products to 
choose from, including: Benson & Hedges, John 
Player Gold Leaf, Pall Mall, Capstan, Star, Derby, 
Pilot and Hollywood. Our range of high-quality 
products covers all segments, from low to 
premium. 

Leading Presence

BAT Bangladesh has been operating for 105 years. 
BAT Bangladesh holds robust market position in 
the cigarette industry. Our brands are leading in 
the respective segments in the country.

Our people

We employ more than 
1,400 people directly and 
approximately 52,000 people 
indirectly as farmers, 
distributors, and local 
suppliers. We take great 
pride in saying that BAT 
Bangladesh is one of the 
most preferred employers 
in the country. It is the 
people who bring their 
difference every day that 
make BAT Bangladesh a 
great place to work in. We 
encourage a culture of 
personal ownership and 
value our employees’ talents. 
Their diverse perspectives 
help us to succeed and we 
recognise their critical role 
in achieving the goals we 
set for our business. We 
value what makes each of 
us unique.

Our Culture
Our people work in harmony with others in a diversified culture free from any 
type of discrimination. We are committed to providing a safe working 
environment for our employees and treat all our colleagues and business 
partners inclusively with dignity and with respect.

Our Contribution to the Society
As a responsible Company, BAT Bangladesh’s CSI (Corporate Social Investment) 
portfolio includes three flagship CSI programmes under the sustainable 
agriculture and environment theme. These are Afforestation, Safe Drinking 
Water and Solar Home Systems. All three projeces are structured in perfect 
alignment with the sustainable Development Goals of the United Nations.

Investment

People & Relationship

Workplace & Society

Innovation
We make significant investments in research and 
development to deliver innovations that satisfy 
or anticipate diverse preferences of consumers 
and generate growth for the business. We also  
research, develop and test new products to 
meet changing consumer needs.

Selected investments
Specific targeted investments in new ventures, 
R&D projects, equipment and services all play a 
role in our short-term success and in the 
long-term development of our organisation. 
They support our strategic ambitions of 
achieving sustainable growth and working more 
productively by opening up new ways of 
working, helping to define new product areas 
and providing new opportunities for our people.

World-class science
We have an extensive scientific research programme. 
Our own laboratory plays a useful role in regular 
quality control and new innovations. We have been 
focusing research on innovative and less risky 
tobacco and nicotine products for adult smokers 
who want a safer alternative to cigarettes. Our work 
with scientists and public health professionals aims 
to secure widespread support for tobacco harm 
reduction, including the regulatory changes needed 
to bring reduced-risk products to market.

Our suppliers

We don’t own tobacco 
farms, but we provide 
agronomy support through 
our extensive services. Our 
Social Responsibility in the 
Tobacco Production 
Programme encourages 
continual improvement of 
the social and environmental 
performance of the 
suppliers we buy tobacco 
leaf from. Through our 
relationship with leaf suppliers 
and farmers, we are 
mitigating the negative 
social and environmental 
impacts that tobacco 
growing can have and helping 
to provide a reliable source 
of income. 

Our wholesalers, 
distributors and retailers

Trade marketing is a large 
part of our activity – managing 
b u s i n e s s - t o - b u s i n e s s 
relationships with the 
retailers our consumers buy 
from. We place a strong 
emphasis on being a 
high-quality supplier to the 
trade. Our distributors are 
a great source of strength 
for us. We work to operate 
in the most efficient and 
effective way so that retailers 
can offer the products our 
consumers want to buy, 
where they want them and 
when they want them.

Our Shareholders

BAT Bangladesh treats  all 
its shareholders with 
honour and respect. In the 
extreme volatile situation 
and economic downturn  
the Company continued to 
deliver for the shareholders. 
The efficiency that the 
management has delivered 
is always in favour of our 
shareholders’ welfare.

Our Stakeholders

BAT Bangladesh tries to 
keep harmony with all of 
its valuable stakeholders. 
We keep contributing to 
our stakeholders sincerely. 
In the last year, we once 
again ensured that our 
contribution to government 
is very significant by being 
the highest tax payer in 
2015. BAT Bangladesh 
contributed two-thirds of 
the revenue derived from 
the cigarette industry in 
2015. BAT Bangladesh 
contributed over 11,051 crore 
as taxes to the National 
Exchequer.

Enterprising spirit
Open minded
Freedom through responsibility
Strength from diversity

O
ve

rv
ie

w
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

R
es

p
o

ns
ib

ili
ty

W
in

ni
ng

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
R

ep
o

rt
s 

an
d

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t

13BAT
Bangladesh



Welcome to our Annual Report 
for 2015. Your Company aims 
at delivering results that will 

ensure sustainable growth for 
the business and and at the 
same time will deliver long 

term value to the shareholders 
and other stakeholders. As an 

industry leader, British 
American Tobacco Bangladesh 

looks towards continuous 
improvement of standards of 

corporate governance by 
incorporating global best 

practices.

CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

Golam Mainuddin
Chairman

British American Tobacco Bangladesh

Board has recommended a total cash dividend of 
BDT 55 per share (i.e. 2.08% of trading share price 
on record date). Sales volume increased by 9% 
with higher growth in the low segment offsetting 
the decline in the upper three segments. Under 
the current market dynamics, the industry 
growth will be driven by Low segment.

Investment
The Company invested in the capacity 
enhancement of our production facilities, safety 
& security of our people, and plant & machinery. 

Contribution to the National Exchequer
The Company contributes about two-thirds of 
the total tax collection to the National Exchequer 
from the cigarette industry. In 2015, the 
Company contributed BDT 11,051 crores as 
supplementary duty; value added tax and other 
levies which make the Company the highest 
taxpayer in Bangladesh. This represents an 
increase of BDT 1,044 crores compared to 
previous year. The Company will continue to 
support Government proposals that establish a 
sustainable level of tax contribution to the 
National Exchequer while ensuring a sustainable 
growth for the Industry. However, this is a matured 
industry and it must not be stretched without 
considering the market dynamics and its ability to 
absorb price increases. It may be noted that leaf 
export volume is continuously facing challenges 
due to 10% export duty in Bangladesh against the 
incentives on export from China and India. 

Taxation Challenges  
Currently, tobacco pricing policies of the 
Government is very much challenging. The indexing 
gap between the low segment and the upper 
segments has further widened which is causing 
down trading to the low segment. This trend 
continues to be a matter of concern as it negatively 
impacts not only BATB but also  Government's 
revenue earning capacity from the cigarette 
industry. Therefore, we continue to engage with 
policy makers to ensure that balanced taxation 
policies are implemented and the down trading is 
reduced for the sustainability of the industry.

Welcome to our Annual Report for 2015. Your 
Company aims at delivering results that will ensure 
sustainable growth for the business and at the 
same time will deliver long term value to the 
shareholders and other stakeholders. As an industry 
leader, British American Tobacco Bangladesh looks 
towards continuous improvement of standards of 
corporate governance by incorporating global 
best practices. 

Your Company continued to perform well during 
2015 despite severe political disturbances in the 
first few months of the year. The management 
handled the supply chain issues effectively and 
efficiently and kept the production in the 
cigarette factory and distribution in market place 
without any shortfall and interruption. The overall 
Company performance was driven by revenue 
growth, increased market share effective cost 
management and productivity initiative across 
the Company. This result was achieved due to 
hard work of our People, guidance of our Board of 
Directors, dedication of our Executive Committee 
members and leadership of our Managing Director 
who led the business to deliver such results. The 
Company is giving top most priority in respect of 
the retrospective claim of VAT and 
Supplementary duty by NBR on our brands Pilot 
and Bristol and the matter is currently awaiting 
outcome from the honorable High Court. 

Business Performance

The Company increased its profit before tax to 
BDT 1,246 Crores, which is up by 14.66% but due 
to changes of corporate tax rates in the budget, 
the profit after tax decreased by BDT 41 Crores 
to BDT 587 Crores. We effectively served all our 
stakeholders even during the unstable period. 
This success continues to deliver for our 
shareholders and is reflected in earnings per share 
for 2015 to BDT 97.43 after taking the impact of 
increase in tax. The share price of the Company 
has recorded new levels in both Stock Exchanges 
of the country (BDT 3,177 highest traded price in 
stock exchange) leading to value addition to our 
Shareholders. Considering business performance, 
cash flow and shareholder’s investment, the 

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 
nine Directors. Out of the nine members in the 
Board, seven are non-executive Directors including 
three independent Directors and most of whom are 
also Secretaries of the Bangladesh Government. Mr. 
Md. Iftikhar-Uz-Zaman, new Managing Director, ICB 
was appointed in our Board in place of Mr. Md. 
Fayekuzzaman effective from 22 February 2016. Mr. 
K. H. Masud Siddiqui, former Secretary of the 
Government was appointed as Non-Executive 
Director effective from 15 March 2016. Mr. 
Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah, Secretary, Ministry 
of Agriculture was re-appointed as Independent 
Director. Mr. Mikail Shipar, Secretary, Ministry of 
Labour & Employment, was also appointed as an 
Independent Director by the Board of Directors 
which would be approved in 43rd Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) of the Company. Throughout 
different Board meetings during the year, your 
Board has considered and approved different 
important business proposals to ensure sustainable 
business growth and played a catalytic role in 
protecting your interests. The Board assessment of 
the key risks and uncertainty, facing the Company 
broadly remains unchanged particularly regarding 
tax rate increase, anti-tobacco campaigns leading to 
illicit trade and regulatory drives. I sincerely thank all 
of our Board Members for their contributions which 
enabled the Management to achieve sustainable 
results during 2015.

Governance Compliance Audit

KPMG Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered 
Accountants, have been appointed by the 
shareholders in last AGM as the new statutory 
Auditor of the Company for the year 2015. Apart 
from that Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered 
Secretaries, carried out the Corporate Governance 
Compliance Audit to certify the fulfilment of the 
requirements of Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission (BSEC) Guidelines. 

Awards and Recognition

I am very pleased to report that, this year BAT 
Bangladesh has won some significant awards 
from different national and international credible 

organisations. In 2015 the Company was awarded 
with ‘ICSB Corporate Governance Excellence 
Award’, ‘Most Female Friendly Organisation’ 
Award, ‘National Productivity and Quality 
Excellence’ Award and ‘Asia Responsible 
Entrepreneurship Awards’ for water filtration 
Project- Probaho. Over the year, the Company 
was also awarded with 19 local Government 
awards (1st prize) for Afforestation. 

Guiding Principles

Our Guiding Principles have long been at the core 
of our culture. They guide our behaviour and 
describe how they align with our vision. The 
Principles also underpin our approach to good 
Corporate Governance, as it is set out in the 
governance section of the Directors’ Report. The 
Standards of Business Conduct guides us in our 
day to day workplace behaviour and work.

Appreciation

2015 has been a successful year despite huge 
external challenges. As for 2016 and beyond, I 
know our management team and our people are 
ready to meet the challenges ahead. I am 
confident that with our proven strategy, well 
drawn plan, powerful brands, talented people and 
continuous focus on efficiency and productivity, 
we will deliver value to our shareholders in the 
short and long-term. The Company is positioned 
to continue to deliver profit and dividend growth 
as well as remarkable contribution to the 
Government’s exchequer for many years to come. 
I would like to express my sincere appreciation to 
you all, our valued Customers, Suppliers, 
Distributors, Members of Board, Members of 
Executive Committee, Managers, Employees of 
the Company, NBR and other relevant authorities 
of the Government of the Peoples’ Republic of 
Bangladesh for their support and cooperation. I 
wish the Company every success in the future.



Board has recommended a total cash dividend of 
BDT 55 per share (i.e. 2.08% of trading share price 
on record date). Sales volume increased by 9% 
with higher growth in the low segment offsetting 
the decline in the upper three segments. Under 
the current market dynamics, the industry 
growth will be driven by Low segment.

Investment
The Company invested in the capacity 
enhancement of our production facilities, safety 
& security of our people, and plant & machinery. 

Contribution to the National Exchequer
The Company contributes about two-thirds of 
the total tax collection to the National Exchequer 
from the cigarette industry. In 2015, the 
Company contributed BDT 11,051 crores as 
supplementary duty; value added tax and other 
levies which make the Company the highest 
taxpayer in Bangladesh. This represents an 
increase of BDT 1,044 crores compared to 
previous year. The Company will continue to 
support Government proposals that establish a 
sustainable level of tax contribution to the 
National Exchequer while ensuring a sustainable 
growth for the Industry. However, this is a matured 
industry and it must not be stretched without 
considering the market dynamics and its ability to 
absorb price increases. It may be noted that leaf 
export volume is continuously facing challenges 
due to 10% export duty in Bangladesh against the 
incentives on export from China and India. 

Taxation Challenges  
Currently, tobacco pricing policies of the 
Government is very much challenging. The indexing 
gap between the low segment and the upper 
segments has further widened which is causing 
down trading to the low segment. This trend 
continues to be a matter of concern as it negatively 
impacts not only BATB but also  Government's 
revenue earning capacity from the cigarette 
industry. Therefore, we continue to engage with 
policy makers to ensure that balanced taxation 
policies are implemented and the down trading is 
reduced for the sustainability of the industry.

Welcome to our Annual Report for 2015. Your 
Company aims at delivering results that will ensure 
sustainable growth for the business and at the 
same time will deliver long term value to the 
shareholders and other stakeholders. As an industry 
leader, British American Tobacco Bangladesh looks 
towards continuous improvement of standards of 
corporate governance by incorporating global 
best practices. 

Your Company continued to perform well during 
2015 despite severe political disturbances in the 
first few months of the year. The management 
handled the supply chain issues effectively and 
efficiently and kept the production in the 
cigarette factory and distribution in market place 
without any shortfall and interruption. The overall 
Company performance was driven by revenue 
growth, increased market share effective cost 
management and productivity initiative across 
the Company. This result was achieved due to 
hard work of our People, guidance of our Board of 
Directors, dedication of our Executive Committee 
members and leadership of our Managing Director 
who led the business to deliver such results. The 
Company is giving top most priority in respect of 
the retrospective claim of VAT and 
Supplementary duty by NBR on our brands Pilot 
and Bristol and the matter is currently awaiting 
outcome from the honorable High Court. 

Business Performance

The Company increased its profit before tax to 
BDT 1,246 Crores, which is up by 14.66% but due 
to changes of corporate tax rates in the budget, 
the profit after tax decreased by BDT 41 Crores 
to BDT 587 Crores. We effectively served all our 
stakeholders even during the unstable period. 
This success continues to deliver for our 
shareholders and is reflected in earnings per share 
for 2015 to BDT 97.43 after taking the impact of 
increase in tax. The share price of the Company 
has recorded new levels in both Stock Exchanges 
of the country (BDT 3,177 highest traded price in 
stock exchange) leading to value addition to our 
Shareholders. Considering business performance, 
cash flow and shareholder’s investment, the 
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 
nine Directors. Out of the nine members in the 
Board, seven are non-executive Directors including 
three independent Directors and most of whom are 
also Secretaries of the Bangladesh Government. Mr. 
Md. Iftikhar-Uz-Zaman, new Managing Director, ICB 
was appointed in our Board in place of Mr. Md. 
Fayekuzzaman effective from 22 February 2016. Mr. 
K. H. Masud Siddiqui, former Secretary of the 
Government was appointed as Non-Executive 
Director effective from 15 March 2016. Mr. 
Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah, Secretary, Ministry 
of Agriculture was re-appointed as Independent 
Director. Mr. Mikail Shipar, Secretary, Ministry of 
Labour & Employment, was also appointed as an 
Independent Director by the Board of Directors 
which would be approved in 43rd Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) of the Company. Throughout 
different Board meetings during the year, your 
Board has considered and approved different 
important business proposals to ensure sustainable 
business growth and played a catalytic role in 
protecting your interests. The Board assessment of 
the key risks and uncertainty, facing the Company 
broadly remains unchanged particularly regarding 
tax rate increase, anti-tobacco campaigns leading to 
illicit trade and regulatory drives. I sincerely thank all 
of our Board Members for their contributions which 
enabled the Management to achieve sustainable 
results during 2015.

Governance Compliance Audit

KPMG Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered 
Accountants, have been appointed by the 
shareholders in last AGM as the new statutory 
Auditor of the Company for the year 2015. Apart 
from that Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered 
Secretaries, carried out the Corporate Governance 
Compliance Audit to certify the fulfilment of the 
requirements of Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission (BSEC) Guidelines. 

Awards and Recognition

I am very pleased to report that, this year BAT 
Bangladesh has won some significant awards 
from different national and international credible 

organisations. In 2015 the Company was awarded 
with ‘ICSB Corporate Governance Excellence 
Award’, ‘Most Female Friendly Organisation’ 
Award, ‘National Productivity and Quality 
Excellence’ Award and ‘Asia Responsible 
Entrepreneurship Awards’ for water filtration 
Project- Probaho. Over the year, the Company 
was also awarded with 19 local Government 
awards (1st prize) for Afforestation. 

Guiding Principles

Our Guiding Principles have long been at the core 
of our culture. They guide our behaviour and 
describe how they align with our vision. The 
Principles also underpin our approach to good 
Corporate Governance, as it is set out in the 
governance section of the Directors’ Report. The 
Standards of Business Conduct guides us in our 
day to day workplace behaviour and work.

Appreciation

2015 has been a successful year despite huge 
external challenges. As for 2016 and beyond, I 
know our management team and our people are 
ready to meet the challenges ahead. I am 
confident that with our proven strategy, well 
drawn plan, powerful brands, talented people and 
continuous focus on efficiency and productivity, 
we will deliver value to our shareholders in the 
short and long-term. The Company is positioned 
to continue to deliver profit and dividend growth 
as well as remarkable contribution to the 
Government’s exchequer for many years to come. 
I would like to express my sincere appreciation to 
you all, our valued Customers, Suppliers, 
Distributors, Members of Board, Members of 
Executive Committee, Managers, Employees of 
the Company, NBR and other relevant authorities 
of the Government of the Peoples’ Republic of 
Bangladesh for their support and cooperation. I 
wish the Company every success in the future.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT



Board has recommended a total cash dividend of 
BDT 55 per share (i.e. 2.08% of trading share price 
on record date). Sales volume increased by 9% 
with higher growth in the low segment offsetting 
the decline in the upper three segments. Under 
the current market dynamics, the industry 
growth will be driven by Low segment.

Investment
The Company invested in the capacity 
enhancement of our production facilities, safety 
& security of our people, and plant & machinery. 

Contribution to the National Exchequer
The Company contributes about two-thirds of 
the total tax collection to the National Exchequer 
from the cigarette industry. In 2015, the 
Company contributed BDT 11,051 crores as 
supplementary duty; value added tax and other 
levies which make the Company the highest 
taxpayer in Bangladesh. This represents an 
increase of BDT 1,044 crores compared to 
previous year. The Company will continue to 
support Government proposals that establish a 
sustainable level of tax contribution to the 
National Exchequer while ensuring a sustainable 
growth for the Industry. However, this is a matured 
industry and it must not be stretched without 
considering the market dynamics and its ability to 
absorb price increases. It may be noted that leaf 
export volume is continuously facing challenges 
due to 10% export duty in Bangladesh against the 
incentives on export from China and India. 

Taxation Challenges  
Currently, tobacco pricing policies of the 
Government is very much challenging. The indexing 
gap between the low segment and the upper 
segments has further widened which is causing 
down trading to the low segment. This trend 
continues to be a matter of concern as it negatively 
impacts not only BATB but also  Government's 
revenue earning capacity from the cigarette 
industry. Therefore, we continue to engage with 
policy makers to ensure that balanced taxation 
policies are implemented and the down trading is 
reduced for the sustainability of the industry.

Welcome to our Annual Report for 2015. Your 
Company aims at delivering results that will ensure 
sustainable growth for the business and at the 
same time will deliver long term value to the 
shareholders and other stakeholders. As an industry 
leader, British American Tobacco Bangladesh looks 
towards continuous improvement of standards of 
corporate governance by incorporating global 
best practices. 

Your Company continued to perform well during 
2015 despite severe political disturbances in the 
first few months of the year. The management 
handled the supply chain issues effectively and 
efficiently and kept the production in the 
cigarette factory and distribution in market place 
without any shortfall and interruption. The overall 
Company performance was driven by revenue 
growth, increased market share effective cost 
management and productivity initiative across 
the Company. This result was achieved due to 
hard work of our People, guidance of our Board of 
Directors, dedication of our Executive Committee 
members and leadership of our Managing Director 
who led the business to deliver such results. The 
Company is giving top most priority in respect of 
the retrospective claim of VAT and 
Supplementary duty by NBR on our brands Pilot 
and Bristol and the matter is currently awaiting 
outcome from the honorable High Court. 

Business Performance

The Company increased its profit before tax to 
BDT 1,246 Crores, which is up by 14.66% but due 
to changes of corporate tax rates in the budget, 
the profit after tax decreased by BDT 41 Crores 
to BDT 587 Crores. We effectively served all our 
stakeholders even during the unstable period. 
This success continues to deliver for our 
shareholders and is reflected in earnings per share 
for 2015 to BDT 97.43 after taking the impact of 
increase in tax. The share price of the Company 
has recorded new levels in both Stock Exchanges 
of the country (BDT 3,177 highest traded price in 
stock exchange) leading to value addition to our 
Shareholders. Considering business performance, 
cash flow and shareholder’s investment, the 

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 
nine Directors. Out of the nine members in the 
Board, seven are non-executive Directors including 
three independent Directors and most of whom are 
also Secretaries of the Bangladesh Government. Mr. 
Md. Iftikhar-Uz-Zaman, new Managing Director, ICB 
was appointed in our Board in place of Mr. Md. 
Fayekuzzaman effective from 22 February 2016. Mr. 
K. H. Masud Siddiqui, former Secretary of the 
Government was appointed as Non-Executive 
Director effective from 15 March 2016. Mr. 
Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah, Secretary, Ministry 
of Agriculture was re-appointed as Independent 
Director. Mr. Mikail Shipar, Secretary, Ministry of 
Labour & Employment, was also appointed as an 
Independent Director by the Board of Directors 
which would be approved in 43rd Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) of the Company. Throughout 
different Board meetings during the year, your 
Board has considered and approved different 
important business proposals to ensure sustainable 
business growth and played a catalytic role in 
protecting your interests. The Board assessment of 
the key risks and uncertainty, facing the Company 
broadly remains unchanged particularly regarding 
tax rate increase, anti-tobacco campaigns leading to 
illicit trade and regulatory drives. I sincerely thank all 
of our Board Members for their contributions which 
enabled the Management to achieve sustainable 
results during 2015.

Governance Compliance Audit

KPMG Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered 
Accountants, have been appointed by the 
shareholders in last AGM as the new statutory 
Auditor of the Company for the year 2015. Apart 
from that Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered 
Secretaries, carried out the Corporate Governance 
Compliance Audit to certify the fulfilment of the 
requirements of Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission (BSEC) Guidelines. 

Awards and Recognition

I am very pleased to report that, this year BAT 
Bangladesh has won some significant awards 
from different national and international credible 

organisations. In 2015 the Company was awarded 
with ‘ICSB Corporate Governance Excellence 
Award’, ‘Most Female Friendly Organisation’ 
Award, ‘National Productivity and Quality 
Excellence’ Award and ‘Asia Responsible 
Entrepreneurship Awards’ for water filtration 
Project- Probaho. Over the year, the Company 
was also awarded with 19 local Government 
awards (1st prize) for Afforestation. 

Guiding Principles

Our Guiding Principles have long been at the core 
of our culture. They guide our behaviour and 
describe how they align with our vision. The 
Principles also underpin our approach to good 
Corporate Governance, as it is set out in the 
governance section of the Directors’ Report. The 
Standards of Business Conduct guides us in our 
day to day workplace behaviour and work.

Appreciation

2015 has been a successful year despite huge 
external challenges. As for 2016 and beyond, I 
know our management team and our people are 
ready to meet the challenges ahead. I am 
confident that with our proven strategy, well 
drawn plan, powerful brands, talented people and 
continuous focus on efficiency and productivity, 
we will deliver value to our shareholders in the 
short and long-term. The Company is positioned 
to continue to deliver profit and dividend growth 
as well as remarkable contribution to the 
Government’s exchequer for many years to come. 
I would like to express my sincere appreciation to 
you all, our valued Customers, Suppliers, 
Distributors, Members of Board, Members of 
Executive Committee, Managers, Employees of 
the Company, NBR and other relevant authorities 
of the Government of the Peoples’ Republic of 
Bangladesh for their support and cooperation. I 
wish the Company every success in the future.
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Golam Mainuddin
Chairman
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BAT Bangladesh aspires to be a leader in every sector the company 
operates – whether it is to the shareholders, employees, business 
partners or any other relevant internal and external stakeholders.  
The organisation continues to contribute approximately 
two-thirds of the revenue derived from the industry. In 2015, BAT 
Bangladesh has contributed over BDT 11,051 crores as taxes to the 
National Exchequer, establishing the title of the highest taxpayer 
to the Government. The company will continue to support 
government proposals that allow for a sustainable level of tax 
contribution to the National Exchequer while ensuring a 
sustainable growth for the industry.



‘Being a partner in sustainable 
development of our country, 
BAT Bangladesh is committed 

to playing the role as a 
responsible corporate citizen 

and contributing to the 
economy with the idea of 

delivering today and investing 
for tomorrow.’

Shehzad Munim
Managing Director

British American Tobacco Bangladesh

MANAGING
DIRECTOR’S
OVERVIEW



believe that government revenue is lagging due 
to the smokers’ down trading to this segment. 
Therefore, Government should find the right 
pricing strategy for optimizing revenue 
considering current dynamics of cigarette 
industry in order to reduce down trading. In order 
to increase the government revenue from the 
cigarette industry, the pricing strategy required 
to be worked out in the next national budget 
which will facilitate the sustainability of revenue 
growth and profitability of the manufacturer.          

We support sound regulations backed by robust 
evidence and thorough research that shows it will 
help achieve the objective of reducing the harm 
resulting from tobacco use. However, measures 
such as excessive taxes increase on tobacco 
products and the tobacco regulations which are 
difficult to implement, do more to disrupt orderly 
markets and little to further their intended aims. In 
fact, they create ideal conditions for counterfeiters 
and smugglers to thrive. We are committed to 
leading our industry and providing an example for 
others by engaging openly on regulatory issues, 
while also working with government’s authorities 
to fight the illegal tobacco trade.

Moreover, any further increase in prices of the 
premium cigarette products is naturally a concern 
for the Company. The price of premium cigarette 
is already approximately 40% higher than the 
Premium duty free cigarettes. Hence any further 
price increase in this category will certainly fuel 
the illegal cigarette problem which has significant 
Government revenue implication. Since, this is a 
matured industry; it must not be stretched 
without considering the market dynamics and its 
ability to absorb price increases.

The Company firmly hopes that the Government 
will reinstate investment-friendly corporate tax 
structures in the upcoming National Budget. 
Cigarettes are highly taxed and there is no 
example of discriminated corporate tax 
anywhere in the world for Tobacco Company 
which is listed with stock exchanges.

On November 2013, the Large Taxpayers’ Unit- 
Value Added Tax (LTU-VAT) authority of National 
Board of Revenue (NBR) claimed BDT 1,924 crores  

Our Business Performance
The Company Management is pleased to report 
another successful year achieving growth in 
volume, market share and turnover despite 
external and competitive challenges in 2015. This 
growth was achieved through a focused business 
strategy that was supported and implemented by 
our employees across all business functions. Sales 
volume increased by 9% with higher growth in 
the low segment offsetting the decline in the 
upper three segments. The indexing gap between 
the low segment and the upper segments has 
further widened which is causing down trading to 
the low segment. This trend continues to be a 
matter of concern as it negatively impacts not 
only BATB but also Government's revenue earning 
capacity from the cigarette industry. Therefore, 
we continue to engage with policy makers to 
ensure that balanced taxation policies are 
implemented and the down trading is reduced for 
the sustainability of the industry. 

On the other hand, the Company also set another 
milestone contributing BDT 11,051 crores in 
Government’s exchequer as taxes which sustains 
our position as the largest taxpayer in the 
country. In last five years, the Company 
contributed over 40,000 crores in taxes.  
However, profit after tax and EPS is down by 
6.49% & 6.94% respectively due to increased 
corporate tax with retrospective effect.

Apart from sustainable business performance, we 
are proud of the external recognition for versatile 
excellences on Good Corporate Governance and 
Corporate Social Responsibilities. 

Our Concern
Unlike other industries, price of cigarettes are 
decided by the government through the four 
price slaps. The Industry share in low segment has 
increased further from 67% to 74% especially 
due to the disproportionate price increase in the 
last national budget. We believe that the growth 
of this segment is driven by the lack of 
continuous price increases in low segment while 
the other segments continue to experience 
consistent price increase. The down trading in 
this segment is a major concern for BATB and we 

+10.43 percent
Increased taxes contribution 

Highlights
to the Government as Taxes
 Paid BDT11,051 crores
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country, we will continue to play our part as a 
responsible corporate citizen and contribute to 
the economy of the country with the idea of 
delivering today and investing for tomorrow.

Our Future Prospect 
With the economic growth in progress, we have 
shown a consistent ability to improve our 
operating margin and to increase our market 
share. However, we see challenges in 2016 and we 
are confident to overcome the challenges through 
our strong brand portfolio, market-leading 
innovations and an outstanding range of 
high-quality products. Regardless of the 
uncertainties that lay ahead, as a Company, we 
will continue to focus on meeting consumer 
expectations through our strengthened brand 
portfolio. We are also committed to our 
communities where we operate by enhancing their 
livelihoods through afforestation programme, by 
providing safe drinking water and solar home 
systems in the off-grid locations. All our efforts 
are complementing government’s continuous 
journey towards newly assigned Sustainable 
Development Goals. Combined with the resilient 
support of our employees, business partners and 
relevant stakeholders, we will navigate the 
business towards excellence and will present 
another successful year for our shareholders.

Our Gratitude 
I express my sincere thanks to all the stakeholders 
of the Company for their confidence in us and 
valuable contribution to the Company 
throughout 2015. The guidance from our Board of 
Directors has always been instrumental in shaping 
the success of the Company. We are grateful to 
millions of our consumers who have been with us 
along with their smart choice and dedication 
towards us and our brands. We believe 
passionately in building value for our consumers 
and Shareholders. 

as retrospective tax demand from the Company 
for the sale of the brands Bristol and Pilot during 
the years 2009 to 2013. The Company 
immediately protested the said claim to the 
Commissioner LTU-VAT as well as the NBR and 
also engaged with the senior relevant officials of 
the Government. The Company also filed two 
writ petitions before the High Court challenging 
the retrospective Tax demand which is currently 
pending. Furthermore, the principle of VAT is to 
collect taxes from the consumers on the basis of 
consumption and it will now be impossible to 
realise the additional taxes from them. As such, 
the Company strongly believes that the demand 
to pay the taxes is devoid of logic and fairness and 
against the VAT law. This has also been confirmed 
by the Ministry of Law’s opinion on this issue. We 
are giving top most priority to resolve the issue.

Our Leadership
We worked together to fight the odds and 
overcame all kinds of challenges. Without the 
support of our respected Board, Shareholders and 
Stakeholders, our continued success would not be 
possible. Our talented people and great leaders  
worked efficiently and effectively in delivering 
remarkable business results. This makes us one of 
the most preferred employers of the country.

Responsible Business Operation
The organisation is committed to environment 
friendly responsible operations for its crop to 
consumer business. BATBs ongoing practice 
towards ensuring environment, health & safety for 
its employees and business partners has been a 
symbol of good governance over the years. In the 
last year, the green leaf threshing plant at Kushtia 
completed a commendable record of 5 years 
accident-free operations, earning the organisation 
the prestigious safety award within the BAT group.

Our Commitment
We have the expertise, the talented people and 
the passion to succeed. The Company passionately 
believes that success and responsibility go together. 
As the number one private-sector taxpayer of the 
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Managing Director
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A LEGACY OF 105 YEARS



Md. Atiqur Rahman
Dewan Rahat Islam
 Tel: +880 2 9842791-5 Ext-394 & 635
 Fax:  +88 2 9842786

AGM Helpline

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
OF BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH

will be held at

Pan Pacific Sonargaon
107 Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue

Dhaka 1215, Bangladesh

on Tuesday 12 April 2016
at 10:30 AM

rd43

AGM

INVITATION
for our Shareholders
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NOTICE OF THE 43rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 43rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of British American Tobacco Bangladesh 
Company Limited will be held on Tuesday, 12 April 2016, at 10:30 am at the Ballroom of Pan Pacific Sonargaon 
Hotel, 107 Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Dhaka 1215, for transaction of the following businesses:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December    
 2015, and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To approve cash Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015.

3. To elect Directors and to approve the appointment of Independent Directors.

4. To appoint the Statutory Auditors for the year 2016 and to fix their remuneration.

                                                                                                                                     By order of the Board 

 

21 March 2016 Md. Azizur Rahman FCS 
  Company Secretary

Notes:

  Shareholders whose names appear on the Members/Depository Register on the Record Date i.e. 14 March 
2016 shall be eligible to attend the 43rd AGM of the Company and to receive the Dividend.

  A Shareholder wishing to appoint a Proxy must deposit the Proxy Form, duly stamped, at the Company’s 
Registered Office by 10:30 am of 10 April 2016.

  Only Shareholders or their validly appointed proxies shall be allowed to have access to the registration 
process to attend the meeting.

  Admission into the auditorium will be allowed strictly on submission of the attendance slip sent with the Notice.

  No children will be allowed at the AGM.



BOARD
OF

DIRECTORS

Seated Left to Right: Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Non-Executive Director; Former Secretary of the Government
 Mr. Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan ndc, Independent Director; Secretary, Ministry of Industries

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Chairman  |  Mr. Shehzad Munim, Managing Director

Standing Left to Right: Mr. Mikail Shipar, Independent Director, Secretary,  Ministry of Labour and Employment | Mr. William 
Francis Pegel, Finance Director  |  Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman, Former Director |  Mr. Jalal Ahmed, Non-Executive Director; Additional 
Secretary, Ministry of Finance | Mr. Md. Iftikhar-uz-Zaman, Non-Executive Director, Managing Director, ICB |  Mr. Mohammad 
Moinuddin Abdullah, Independent Director; Secretary, Ministry of Agriculture |  Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman FCS, Company Secretary



Mr. Golam Mainuddin,
Chairman

Mr. Golam Mainuddin has been the Chairman of British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh since August 2008. After obtaining his Master of science 
degree from Dhaka University, Mr. Mainuddin pursued the first 25 years of 
his career in the Agro-based industry followed by corporate management 
till to-date. He was a Tea Garden Manager at Duncan Brothers 
(Multinational Company) from 1969 to 1982, and then joined BAT 
Bangladesh to soon become the Head of Leaf in 1985. He was appointed to 
the Board of Directors in 1986, and was promoted as Deputy Managing 
Director in 1997. Over the 26 years in BAT Bangladesh as management, he 
was instrumental in achieving self-sufficiency in cigarette production with 
strong focus on quality improvements to meet the international standards 
required for domestic use and export purposes while driving wider 
introduction of Bangladesh Tobacco in the world market. He played a key 
role in popularizing the tree plantation program of BAT Bangladesh,  which 
is greatly recognized throughout the country. He played a leading role in 
the introduction and enforcement of Tax stamp and Bandaroles in the 
Cigarette Industry in order to create level playing field for the 
manufacturers. He was instrumental as Vice-Chairman of BCMA to go for 
industry wise price increase for the sustainability of the business and 
growth in Govt. revenue collection. Mr. Mainuddin also served as an 
Independent Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of 
Advanced Chemical Industries Bangladesh Ltd. (ACI), Independent Director 
and Chairman of Audit Committee of Apex Footwear Ltd. and the Director 
of Infrastructure Investment Facilitation Company (IIFC) at the Ministry of 
Finance, Govt. of Bangladesh. He also served as the Director, Federation of 
Bangladesh Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FBCCI), a Committee 
member of Metropolitan Chambers of Commerce and Industry (MCCI) and 
an Executive Committee Member of Bangladesh Employers’ Federation 
(BEF). Currently, he is the Vice-President of Bangladesh Employers’ 
Federation. He was declared as CIP (Commercially Important Person) by 
the Government  of Bangladesh for the year 2010 and 2012.

Mr. Shehzad Munim joined BAT Bangladesh as Territory Officer in 1997 
after graduating from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) of 
Dhaka University. He worked in different marketing roles within BAT 
Bangladesh before taking up assignments in BAT New Zealand as Group 
Brand Manager in 2003. There he subsequently took over the role of 
Head of Brand Marketing in 2005. In 2006 he took the challenge of 
developing the innovations process in BAT Australasia as Product and 
Packaging Innovations Manager. Mr. Shehzad Munim returned to BAT 
Bangladesh in 2007 as Head of Brand Marketing. In 2008 he assumed the 
role of Head of Marketing Bangladesh and delivered very strong business 
results. After completing a very successful tenure as Head of Marketing 
in Bangladesh, he took over the challenging role of Area Head of 
Marketing, South Asia Area. Mr. Shehzad Munim has been appointed as 
one of the Non-Executive Directors of BAT Bangladesh in October 2010. 
He has been appointed as the Managing Director of BAT Bangladesh in 
2013 and is the first Bangladeshi to become the Managing Director of 
BAT Bangladesh.

Mr. Shehzad Munim
Managing Director
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Mr. Kamrul Hasan
Non-Executive Director
Former Secretary of the Government

Mr. Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan ndc joined the Ministry of Industries as the 
Secretary on October 2014. He started his career as a Civil Servant of 
Bangladesh under BCS : Audit and Accounts Cadre, where he joined on 30 
January, 1981. During the early stages of his service life, Mr Bhuyian worked in 
different offices under the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of 
Bangladesh. After that in 1999 Mr. Bhuiyan was appointed as the Additional 
Director General (Member, Finance) of Bangladesh Water Development 
Board. He held the position of Deputy Secretary, Joint Secretary and 
Additional Secretary of different ministries including the Ministries of 
Commerce, Education and Finance. He was incumbent to the position of 
Secretary in-charge of Bridges Division under the Ministry of Communications 
on February 2010 and promoted as a Secretary in the same Division on July 
2010. In November 2011, he was appointed as the Executive Chairman of 
Bangladesh Economic Zones Authority under Prime Minister’s Office. He also 
served as a member of Privatization Commission under PMO from January 
2014 to October 2014. Mr. Bhuiyan obtained his Honours and Master’s degrees 
in Economics with achievements from the University of Dhaka. He also 
obtained an MA degree in Development Economics from Williams College, 
USA in 1992. In addition, he took part in several significant training courses, 
including ‘Asia-Pacific Course on Security Studies’ in Hawaii, USA, ‘Managing 
at the top (MATT)’ in Dhaka and Singapore and NDC course in National 
Defence College, Dhaka. Alongside his professional responsibilities, Mr. 
Bhuiyan is closely involved with social development activities. He is the 
President of Narsingdi Thana Jonokollyan Somity, President of Benuka 
Institute of Fine Arts, Life Member of Bangladesh Economic Association and 
Bangla Academy. He is also the Secretary General of BCS’81  Forum. Mr. 
Bhuiyan had the opportunity to travel many countries of the world such as 
India, Pakistan, Nepal, Myanmar, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapore, 
Srilanka, Iran, Turkey, UAE, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Japan, China, Hongkong, 
United Kingdom, Belgium, Netherlands, Denmark, Switzerland, USA, Canada, 
Australia, South Africa, Tanzania and Ghana. The pleasant journeys around the 
world prompted Mr. Bhuyian to write two books on his travel experiences 
which were published in 2013 and 2014 respectively from Biddyaprakash. He is 
the father of one son and two daughters. 

Mr.  K  H Masud Siddiqui joined the Bangladesh Civil Service in 1982 after 
completion of his Masters in the University of Dhaka. He has also earned 
MA degree in Economics from the University of Manchester, England.  He  
further received  a  Post  Graduate  Diploma  in  Development  Administration  
and Management  from  UK.  He was appointed as Secretary of the Ministry 
of Industries on September 2010 and then appointed as Secretary of 
Ministry of Liberation War Affairs in 2012.  Before this, Mr. Siddiqui led 
Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation as the Chairman. In his 
around 33 years successful career in civil service he held several 
important positions in both field administration and different Ministries. 
He also worked in the Prime Minister's Office in the capacity of Director. 
Mr. Siddiqui joined the Board of Directors of BAT Bangladesh as 
Independent Director in October 2010 representing Government’s 
shares in the Company. After moving to Ministry of Liberation War 
Affairs, Mr. Siddiqui has been re-appointed in the Company as the 
Independent Director as well as the member of Audit Committee. Mr. 
Siddiqui  is also a  writer. He has got five publications to his credit, such 
as 'Lok Shadhonar Sangskriti', 'Tasauf and Other Contexts',  'Malgooddy 
Days', and 'Behongo Abolokon'.

Mr. Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan,
Independent Director

Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui,
Non- Executive Director
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Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah was appointed as Independent 
Director in the Board of Directors of BAT Bangladesh in October 2012. 
He was appointed in the Ministry of Agriculture in March 2016. Mr. 
Abdullah joined Bangladesh Civil Service (Administration Cadre) in 1983 
and has been serving for nearly 33 years. He was appointed as the 
Secretary of Ministry of Housing & Public Works in 2014, Secretary of 
Ministry of Industries in 2012, Divisional Commissioner of Dhaka in 2010, 
Director General of Prime Minister’s Office as Additional Secretary in 
2009, Joint Secretary of Cabinet Division in 2008. He had been the 
Chairman of KAFCO representing Government share, for more than 2 
years, during his tenure as secretary of Ministry of Industries. Mr. 
Abdullah obtained his Honours and Masters Degree in Soil Science from 
the University of Dhaka. In 1994, he received the International training on 
‘Planning & Appraisal of Rural Development Project’ from UK. He is 
involved with social and educational organisations for the development 
of the country.

Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah,
Independent Director

Mr. Mikail Shipar has been working as Secretary, Ministry of Labour and 
Employment, Government of the People’s Republic of Bangladesh since 
February, 2012. He was appointed as Independent Director of BAT 
Bangladesh in March 2016. He joined the Bangladesh Civil Service, 
Administration cadre in 1983. He possesses vast experience in 
administrative duties including Magistracy, Field Administration and also 
held the post of Director General (Administration) in Prime Minister’s 
Office. Moreover, he has also experience in diplomatic arena as First 
Secretary in the Bangladesh Deputy High Commission in Kolkata, India. 
He was awarded with his MS degree in Agricultural Extension from the 
Institute of Post Graduate Studies in Agriculture, Gazipur, Dhaka. He  
graduated from Bangladesh Agricultural University, Mymensing in 1981. 
He got training on Agricultural Research Management from Hyderabad, 
India and Women in Development from AIT, Bangkok. He was National 
Commissioner of Bangladesh Scouts and also held the position of 
Chairmen of Governing body Dhaka Women’s College, Uttara, Dhaka.

Mr. Mikail Shipar,
Independent Director
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Mr. Jalal Ahmed, born in 1961, has obtained his Honours and Masters in 
Public Administration from the University of Dhaka in 1981-1982. He has 
been in Bangladesh Civil Service (Administration Cadre) for 33 years. He 
was the Vice Chairman of Export Promotion Bureau from August 2010 to 
October 2011. During that period, the Country attained highest export 
growth in the history. He was the Chairman of Bangladesh Oil, Gas and 
Minerals Corporation (Petrobangla) and Chief Metropolitan Magistrate, 
Dhaka, earlier. He served as Deputy Commissioner in two Districts 
Thakurgaon and Faridpur. Mr. Jalal Ahmed joined Ministry of Finance as 
Additional Secretary in September 2012. He represents IFIC Bank Ltd, 
Bangladesh Submarine Cable Company, Bangladesh Telecommunication 
Company and Bangladesh Services Limited as a Director. Currently he is 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of a joint venture Bank, Nepal 
Bangladesh Bank Ltd. (NBBL) in Kathmandu, Nepal. He joined the Board of 
Directors of BAT Bangladesh in October 2012 and then has been 
appointed as a member of Board CSR Committee. Besides, he is an 
ardent nature lover and a bird-photographer.

Mr. Md. Iftikhar-uz-Zaman has been appointed as the Managing Director 
of Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) effective from 4 
February 2016. Prior to this position, he had been Deputy Managing 
Director of Janata Bank Ltd and ICB. Before that he was General Manager 
of ICB. He joined ICB in 1983 as a Senior Officer, enriched with the store 
of expertise of development & investment banking with supervisory and 
managerial capability having served in senior management position for a 
long time. He is a seasoned professional and has strong knowledge on 
Capital Market. He has remarkable expertise in public relations. He has 
reached the pinnacle of his organisation with his outstanding efforts and 
skill.  He has been sharing  his professional expertise as the Chairman of  
ICB Capital Management Ltd. Being Managing Director of ICB, he is now 
serving  as the Director of Linde Bangladesh Limited, GlaxoSmithKline 
Bangladesh Ltd. (GSK), Renata Limited, Bangladesh Krishi Gobeshona 
Endowment Trust (BKGET), Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Ltd. 
(CRAB), Credit Rating Information and Services Ltd. (CRISL), Standard 
Bank Limited, National Tea Company Limited, Apex Tanary Limited, 
Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd. (CDBL), CAPM Venture Capital & 
Finance Ltd. (CVCFL) and some other Directorship.

Mr. Jalal Ahmed,
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Md. Iftikhar-uz-Zaman,
Non-Executive Director
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Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman is a fellow (FCS) of the Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries of Bangladesh and an associate member of Internal Audit 
Institute. After obtaining his Master’s degree in Accounting from the 
University of Dhaka, he completed Chartered Accountancy course at 
ICAB. He then obtained the Chartered Secretary professional degree 
from ICSB. Mr. Rahman joined BAT Bangladesh in March 2002 in 
Company Secretarial functions. In his 23 years of career span, he took 
the challenges of cross functional assignments which developed his 
expertise in areas like corporate affairs, finance, audit, corporate 
banking and records management. He has the credit of developing the 
digitalised records and control of the vast storage of BATB records. 
Apart from his diverse role as Company Secretary, he is also Secretary of 
the Audit Committee, Board CSR Committee and Trust Funds of the 
Company. Mr. Rahman performs as visiting lecturer on corporate affairs 
in different private universities and professional institutes. As a resource 
person, he has also conducted professional management courses at 
various levels. In his capacity as the Director General of Intellectual 
Property Association of Bangladesh (IPAB) and Vice-Chairman of IP 
Committee of FBCCI, he performs with different national and 
international organisations for addressing IPR issues in Bangladesh.

Mr. William Francis Pegel,
Finance Director

Mr. William Pegel joined British American Tobacco Bangladesh as 
Finance Director in 2014. William has over 17 years of experience in 
various BAT companies and successfully performed the role of Finance 
Director in various end markets including New Zealand, PNG and Ghana 
and has held senior finance roles within BAT Australia and BAT South 
Africa since 1996. Prior to joining BAT Bangladesh, William was an 
integral member of the Australasian Finance Leadership Team and 
Supply Chain Leadership Team displaying strong leadership and business 
acumen. William is a certified Chartered Accountant from the South 
African Institute of Chartered Accountancy.

Md. Azizur Rahman FCS,
Company Secretary
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Mr. Shehzad Munim, Managing Director

Mr. Shehzad Munim joined BAT Bangladesh as Territory Officer in 1997 
after graduating from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) of 
Dhaka University. He worked in different marketing roles within BAT 
Bangladesh before taking up assignments in BAT New Zealand as 
Group Brand Manager in 2003. There he subsequently took over the 
role of Head of Brand Marketing in 2005. In 2006 he took the 
challenge of developing the innovations process in BAT Australasia as 
Product and Packaging Innovations Manager. Mr. Shehzad Munim 
returned to BAT Bangladesh in 2007 as Head of Brand Marketing. In 
2008 he assumed the role of Head of Marketing Bangladesh and 
delivered very strong business results. After completing a very 
successful tenure as Head of Marketing in Bangladesh, he took over 
the challenging role of Area Head of Marketing, South Asia Area. Mr. 
Shehzad Munim has been appointed as one of the Non-Executive 
Directors of BAT Bangladesh in October 2010. He has been appointed 
as the Managing Director of BAT Bangladesh in 2013 and is the first 
Bangladeshi to become the Managing Director of BAT Bangladesh.

Mr. William Francis Pegel, Finance Director

Mr. William Pegel joined British American Tobacco Bangladesh as 
Finance Director in 2014. William has over 17 years of experience in 
various BAT companies and successfully performed the role of Finance 
Director in various end markets including New Zealand, PNG and 
Ghana and has held senior finance roles within BAT Australia and BAT 
South Africa since 1996. Prior to joining BAT Bangladesh, William was 
an integral member of the Australasian Finance Leadership Team and 
Supply Chain Leadership Team displaying strong leadership and 
business acumen. William is a certified Chartered Accountant from 
the South African Institute of Chartered Accountancy.
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Mr. Saifuddin Mohammad Khaled, Head of Supply Chain

Mr. Saifuddin Mohammad Khaled joined British American Tobacco in 
Bangladesh as Technical Assistant in 1988 after graduating from Indian 
Institute of Technology, Bombay. Over the years, he has played 
different front line & strategic roles in Supply Chain. Mr. Khaled left 
BAT in 1992 to work for Reckitt Benckiser as Regional Head of Supply 
Chain, West Coast Africa. He re-joined BAT Bangladesh in 2002. He 
was seconded to Ceylon Tobacco Company as Head of Supply Chain 
in 2010 and returned to BAT Bangladesh as Head of Supply Chain in 2012. 

Ms. Rumana Rahman, Head of Human Resources

Ms. Rumana Rahman joined BAT Bangladesh in 2001 as a Management 
Trainee and performed in various roles covering specialist areas like 
reward, talent and generalist streams of business partnering including 
the area of Supply Chain HR. Before taking over the Head of HR role, 
she was posted in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific Regional Office as the 
Regional HR Planning & Reporting Manager. Ms. Rumana Rahman is the 
first Bangladeshi female Top Team member of BAT Bangladesh.
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Mr. Shahed Zubair, Corporate and Regulatory Affairs Adviser

Mr. Shahed Zubair completed his Bachelors in Electrical and 
Electronics Engineering from Bangladesh University of Engineering and 
Technology (BUET), Dhaka and Masters in Business Administration 
from IBA, Dhaka University. He joined BAT Bangladesh in 2007 as 
Corporate Communications Manager. Before that he served in Nestle, 
Unilever and Banglalink, where he gained diverse knowledge and 
experience. He moved to the role of Regulatory Affairs Manager in 
2007 and was then transferred to BAT Australia working as Area 
Internal Communications Manager as well as Strategy and Planning 
Manager in Corporate and Regulatory Affairs (CORA) function. He has 
over 19 years of experience in global FMCG and Telecommunications. 
Mr. Zubair re-joined BAT Bangladesh as Head of Corporate and 
Regulatory Affairs in 2012. In 2015 he has taken up the role of 
Corporate and Regulatory Affairs Adviser.

Mr. Rezaul Islam,  Head of Marketing

Mr. Rezaul Islam joined BAT Bangladesh as Territory Officer in 2000 
after completing his Master’s degree from the Institute of Business 
Administration (IBA) of Dhaka University. Mr. Islam worked in 
different roles within BAT Bangladesh Marketing department before 
being seconded to BAT Iran as Brand Manager-VFM in 2006 and 
subsequently took over the role of Group Brand Manager in BAT Iran 
in 2007, leading the brand team in the most difficult period of Iran 
business. In 2008, he took the challenge as Area Brand Manager in 
PTC. In 2010, he became the Head of Business Development in BAT 
Japan, leading ATSM adaptation there. In 2013, he assumed the role of 
Head of Trade Marketing and Distribution in BAT Japan, delivering 
strong business results. Having played various roles in Marketing 
(Brand and Trade) at an end market/Area level, Mr. Islam has been 
appointed as the Head of Marketing of BAT Bangladesh in 2015.

Ms. Mubina Asaf, Head of Legal & External Affairs

Ms. Mubina Asaf has over 17 years of experience in Legal profession. 
Before joining BAT Bangladesh, she was one of the senior partners of a 
law firm named ‘Maxima Legal’. Prior to that, she worked for Attorney 
General’s Office, Government of Bangladesh as an Assistant Attorney 
General, and then as a Deputy Attorney General of Bangladesh for 
more than 7  years. Before that, she was an associate of ‘Rokanuddin 
Mahmud and Associates’ where she independently rendered legal 
advice and provided assistance to clients from time to time on 
commercial and company matters. Ms. Mubina completed her LL.B. 
(Honours) and LL.M. from University of Dhaka. She also did a Diploma 
in Maritime Law from an Australian University Program. She enrolled 
herself as an Advocate of the Dhaka District Court, High Court 
Division and Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh.
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The Board of Directors of BAT Bangladesh 
acknowledges that the Company, being a listed 
business entity, it has a role to play in upholding 
the interests of all its stakeholders. Strong 
corporate governance works as the backbone of 
an upright organization. The Company and its 
Board of Directors (Board), accordingly, remain 
dedicated in its commitment towards 
maintaining excellence in corporate governance. 
The Board firmly believes that the integrity and 
commitment of its employees, supported by a 
comprehensive framework of policies, guidelines 
and internal controls will further strengthen the 
Company’s sustainability, organisational efficacy 
and drive a high-performance culture within the 
organisation. In this Statement of Corporate 
Governance (Statement) we, therefore, wish to 
provide insights to the shareholders, investors 
and other stakeholders on the corporate 
governance initiatives in the Company.

THE GOVERNING BOARD

The Board of Directors of British American 
Tobacco Bangladesh, being the supreme 
authority in the Company, believes in ensuring 
the highest standards of Corporate Governance 
(CG) as it will serve to strengthen the Company’s 
sustainability, organisational effectiveness and 
foster a high-performance culture within the 
organisation. And that is why the BATB Board is 
constituted by a galaxy of very resourceful 
persons and includes core competencies 
considered relevant in the context of the 
Company. To further ensure a balanced 
representation, the Board also includes 
Independent Directors, who are enlightened 
members of the society. Further details about the 
Board are appended at the appropriate part of 
this statement.

Corporate Governance is a term that refers 
broadly to the rules, procedures and laws by 
which businesses are operated, regulated, and 
controlled in order to ensure the interest of the 

stakeholders of a corporate body. This is central 
to the continued strong performance of business 
in a manner which is sustainable in the long term 
and gains the continued confidence of investors. 
At BATB, we recognise that governance is  a 
three-way traffic - it involves stronger attention 
to business, all operations being transparent and 
invites larger involvement of the stakeholders. 
And then, as we move on, we focus on it further 
by accepting that governance mechanisms are 
established not only to ensure a satisfactory 
return on investment for shareholders, but also to 
contribute positively to the society at large.

The Company is dedicated and committed to 
managing its business responsibly amidst a 
challenging environment for the tobacco industry 
and the awards and achievements that the 
Company has received are testimony of such 
dedication and commitment. In 2015, the 
Company was awarded for Corporate 
Governance, Best Corporate amongst 
multinational Companies and Most Female 
Friendly Organisation, National Productivity and 
Quality Excellence. For details of these awards 
and achievements, please refer to pages 104 to 
108 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

BAT Bangladesh’s Corporate Governance 
framework has been developed and enhanced 
based on the basic principles and best practices 
outlined in the following:

 Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission (BSEC) Notification on Corporate 
Governance;

 The Companies Act 1994 and other applicable 
regulations of Bangladesh; Dhaka and 
Chittagong Stock Exchanges Listing Regulations;

 Laws of the land;

 Standards of Business Conduct, Policies and 
Guidelines of the Company;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - 2015

At BATB, we recognise that governance is a three-way traffic - 
it involves stronger attention to business, all operations being 
transparent and invites larger involvement of the stakeholders

34 Annual Report
2015



and codes to ensure good governance and control.

The Company had fully complied with the above 
mentioned corporate governance principles and 
best practices. This Statement on Corporate 
Governance, together with the Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control, sets out the 
manner how the Company has applied the 
governance principles and best practices.

The corporate governance framework of BAT 
Bangladesh is directed towards achieving the 
Company’s business objectives in a responsible 
manner. Therefore, in order to comply with the 
laws, rules, regulations, corporate governance 
codes, articles of association, policies and 
procedures, the Company constantly exercises 
good Board practices, effective control 
processes, transparent disclosures, well-defined 
shareholders’ rights and Board commitments. The 
manners of adherence to these principles and 
practices are outlined as follows:

BOARD PRACTICES
The Board is responsible to the shareholders for 
overall success of the Company for its strategic 
directions, its values and its governance. It 
provides the leadership necessary for the 
Company to meet its business objectives within 
the framework of its internal controls, while also 
discharging the Company’s obligations to its 
shareholders.

The composition of the Board complies with the 
requirements outlined in the BSEC Guidelines on 
Corporate Governance, the Listing Regulations 
and those of the generally applied codes of best 
practices. The Board comprises an admixture of 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors from 
diverse professional backgrounds with wealth of 
experience, skills and expertise.

BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board of the Company consists of nine 
Directors, comprising four Non-Executive 
Directors, three Independent Directors and two 
Executive Directors which include the Managing 
Director and the Finance Director. Out of the nine 
Directors, seven are non-executive individuals 
who are also senior officials or ex-officials of the 
Bangladesh Government. A qualified Fellow 
Chartered Secretary is entrusted with the role of 
Company Secretary. We believe that BAT 
Bangladesh Board has the optimum level of 
knowledge, composure, skills and understanding 

 Statement of Risk Management Internal 
Control of the Company;

 Statement of Delegated Authorities of the 
Company; and 

 Local and global best practices.

The Board also continuously reviews its 
corporate governance frameworks to ensure its 
relevance, effectiveness and sustainability in 
addressing future business challenges.

The conducts of all employees of the Company, 
including the Board of Directors, are governed by 
the Company’s policies, guidelines and Standards 
of Business Conduct. Each and every employee, 
including Directors, is expected to live up to the 
Standards of Business Conduct and required to 
confirm their commitment and compliance by 
executing a declaration of compliance annually.

The Standards of Business Conduct are 
constantly reviewed by the Board from time to 
time, as part of efforts to enhance application of 
the highest standards of governance in line with 
best global practices. The 'Standards of Business 
Conduct' was last updated and revised by the 
Board in November 2014. In addition to the 
Standards of Business Conduct, the Company is 
also guided by the Company’s Statement of 
Business Principles. The Business Principles cover 
key matters that underpin Corporate 
Responsibility (CR) for a multinational business 
and more particularly, the unique characteristics 
of a tobacco business. The three Business 
Principles are Mutual Benefit, Responsible 
Product Stewardship and Good Corporate 
Conduct, each of which is supported by 
fundamental principles of business behaviours. 
Apart from the Company’s Standards of Business 
Conduct and Business Principles, the Company 
also has in place the Statement of Delegated 
Authorities which outlines respective roles and 
authorities of the management officials. This 
helps governance and control of investment 
management. In the Company’s Statement of 
Delegated Authorities, the Board has specifically 
reserved matters such as establishment of new 
businesses or factories, annual strategic plan, 
approval of major capital expenditure, acquisition 
and disposal of businesses or equity, borrowings 
and any corporate restructuring, for its own 
decision. Additionally, the Company also has in 
place the required internal policies, guidelines 
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about the Company's business and stands as the 
perfect platform to perform and deliver. Please 
refer to pages 25 to 29 for details of the 
Directors on the Board, their profiles, 
backgrounds and their respective memberships.

PRINCIPAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF 
THE BOARD

Formulating the long term strategies of the 
Company and setting the goals and direction 
for the Company. 

Reviewing Company’s risk assessment and 
ensuring implementation of appropriate 
systems to manage those risks. 

Providing the leadership necessary to ensure 
that the business objectives set out by the 
Board are met within the framework of internal 
controls as described in this Statement.

Other key duties for the Board includes 
approving financial statements, appropriation 
of profit, reviewing the adequacy and integrity 
of the Company’s internal control systems and 
ensuring compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, directives and guidelines of 
various regulators.

Pursuant to the Company’s laid down policies 
and guidelines, the Board is also tasked to 
decide on the following business transactions 
and activities:

-  Acquisition, disposal or closure of a business.

-  Establishment of new businesses.

-  Capital investment and disposal of tangible   
 assets. 
-  Purchase or sale of trademarks.

-  Proposal for borrowings or the grant of        
 extended credit facilities.

-  Any corporate restructuring not covered by   
 any of the above paragraphs.

- Appointment of top management and   
 expatriate officials.

In discharging its responsibilities, the Board is 
guided by the regulations contained in the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company, the Companies Act, 1994, Relevant 
applicable regulations, BSEC Codes of Corporate 
Governance, Listing Regulations, Company's 

Standards of Business Conduct, Business 
Principles, Statement of Delegated Authorities, 
and other generally accepted corporate best 
practices.

BOARD COMMITTEES
In order for quicker and efficient flow of 
information and thereby exercising effective 
governance, the Board has also constituted a few 
Committees and has delegated certain 
responsibilities to the Committees to assist the 
Board in discharging of its responsibilities. There 
are three such Committees, to which the Board 
has delegated certain responsibilities. These 
include the Audit Committee, Compensation 
Committee and CSR Committee. Each 
Committee strictly adheres to a set of terms of 
reference (TOR) approved by the Board. Their 
roles, operating procedures and authorities are 
clearly defined in the (TOR) which are frequently 
reviewed by the Board. There is an evaluation 
process regarding performance of Audit and CSR 
committees which facilitates in achieving certain 
governance objectives. The key functions of 
these committees are as follows:

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board has constituted an Audit Committee 
for the Company according to the conditions of 
BSEC guidelines. The committee comprises one 
Independent Director and three Non-Executive 
Directors. The Board has appointed the 
Independent Director as Chairman of the 
Committee under the mentioned guidelines. All 
members of the Audit Committee are 'financially 
literate' as per regulatory requirement and are 
able to analyse and interpret financial statements 
to effectively discharge their duties and 
responsibilities as members of the Audit 
Committee. The Managing Director, Finance 
Director, Internal Auditors of the Company and 
representatives of the external auditors attend all 
the meetings upon invitation by the Audit 
Committee. Other senior members of 
management are also invited by the Audit 
Committee to attend Audit Committee 
meetings. The Audit Committee meets with the 
external auditors whenever necessary and, 
separately, with the internal auditors, on an 
annual basis without any Executive Director being 
present. They met four times during the year 
2015. All members were present in all meetings of 
the Committee. As per BSEC guidelines, the 
Company Secretary functions as Secretary tothe 
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Committee. The key responsibilities of the Audit 

Committee include:

 Monitoring the integrity of the financial reporting   

 process ensuring compliance to accounting policies,   

 standards and principles.

 Monitoring the internal control and business risk   

 management process.

 Overseeing selection and performance of external   

 auditors. Also ensures that the statutory auditors are   

 not engaged in any alongside involvements in the   

 Company which are restricted under the regulatory   

 guidelines. 

 Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the   

 internal audit function.

 Other matters as per terms of reference of the Audit   

 Committee.

BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
The Board Compensation Committee, headed by a 
non-executive Director, makes recommendations to the 
Board on terms of employment of the members of the 
Executive Committee, managers and employees and 
decides their specific remuneration. This Committee met 
once in 2015.The other members include the Managing 

Director and the Finance Director. The Head of Human 
Resources functions as the Secretary of the committee. The 
remuneration policy is designed to ensure that the reward 
and remuneration package is competitive so that high 
quality human resources with proven track record and 
experience can be recruited, motivated and retained. 

CSR COMMITTEE
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the 

‘Responsibility’ strategy of the Company. It is integral to 

the business sustainability and enhancement of long-term 

shareholder value. The Company recognises that it has a 

role to play in helping society to achieve the necessary 

sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental 

protection and social progress. Therefore, the Board of 

Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 11 April 

2012 has established a CSR Committee as sub-committee 

of the Board. The Board has nominated four Directors to 

the Board CSR Committee among whom a Non-Executive 

Director is the Chairman. The purpose of the Board CSR 

Committee is to ensure management of the Company’s 

CSR initiatives in a way that ensures business sustainability 

and creates positive impact on image and reputation of the 

Company amongst the stakeholders and the society at large.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The composition of the Board Committees as of 31 December 2015 and the attendance of Directors at the 
Board and Board Committee meetings held in 2015 are as follows:

Directors Board
Audit

Committee
Board

Compensation
Committee

CSR
Committee

Mr. Golam Mainuddin

Mr. Shehzad Munim
Managing Director

Mr.Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan
(Chairman, Audit Committee)
Independent Director

Mr. K.H. Masud Siddiqui
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kamrul Hasan
Non-executive Director
(Resigned 8 September 2015)

Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah
Independent Director

Mr. Jalal Ahmed
Non-executive Director 

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman
Non-executive Director

Mr. Azizur Rahman FCS
Company Secretary 

Mr.William Francis Pegel
Finance Director

Non-executive Director (Chairman of Board)
12/12

12/12

11/12

11/12

11/12

11/12

10/12

12/12

10/12

10/12

4/4

4/4

4/4

1/4

1/4

4/4

3/4

4/4

4/4

1/4

1/1

1/1

-

-

-

-

1/1

-

-

-

1/1
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1/1
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EFFECTIVE CONTROL PROCESSES

The Board of British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh discharges its responsibilities in 
ensuring effective control processes in the 
organisation through the Board committees. 
Other than the Board committees, there is an 
Executive Committee at the top management 
level which plays a significant role in managing 
the business as per the norms of corporate 
governance and ensures that adequate internal 
controls are in place and supported through a 
robust risk management and MIS process.

LEADERSHIP TEAM (EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE)

In discharging the above mentioned 
responsibilities and duties, the Board is duly 
assisted by the functional heads of the Company, 
namely the Executive Committee (ExCo). The 
Managing Director leads the ExCo which 
comprises of the following heads of 
organizational functions:

 Managing Director
 Finance Director
 Head of Marketing
 Head of Supply Chain
 Head of Legal and External Affairs
 Head of Human Resources
 Corporate and Regulatory Affairs Adviser

The ExCo is vested with the responsibility of 
implementing the policies and decisions of the 
Board, overseeing the operations as well as 
developing, coordinating and implementing 
business and corporate strategies.

Usually, the ExCo meets monthly to implement 
the Company's strategy and ensure effective 
day-to-day operations in line with the Company 
plan. From time to time, when the Board requires 
relevant information or updates, relevant 
members of the ExCo are invited to attend Board 
meetings to provide any such relevant 
information or updates. For details of each ExCo 
member, please refer to pages 30 to 33 of this 
Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board has appointed a Company Secretary in 
order to maintain the necessary link and liaison 
with the internal organs, as well as external 

agencies, and also to ensure effective collection, 
compilation and timely flow of information to 
and from the Board. The Corporate Governance 
Guidelines issued by BSEC also require a listed 
company to appoint a Company Secretary. Being 
a governance official, the Company Secretary 
drives corporate compliance and provides 
support to the Chairman and other members of 
the Board to ensure effective functioning of the 
Board. The Company Secretary organises and 
attends all Board and Committee meetings (Audit 
Committee and CSR Committee), and ensures 
that deliberations on all issues are properly 
minuted, decisions recorded and are duly 
communicated across the respective authorities 
for necessary information/actions. The Company 
Secretary is also responsible for agreement 
signing, policies formulation, protection of the 
Company's land, Records Management, driving 
Standards of Business Conduct, administration of 
seven trust funds and its portfolio investment 
management. The brief roles and responsibilities 
of the Company Secretary, include, inter alia –

Maintaining linkage between the Board, 
Management, Shareholders and other stakeholders 
on matters of corporate interests in a transparent way,

Driving policy compliance awareness among the 
Company employees,

Performing the duties as per power of Attorney and 
Board level stakeholders management facilitating 
Legal and External A�airs (LEX) function especially for 
company secretarial matters. 

Compliance of the Acts, rules, regulations, 
noti�cations, guidelines, orders/directives, etc. as 
issued by BSEC or Stock Exchange(s) applicable to the 
conduct of business activities of the Company so as to 
protect the interests of the investors and other 
stakeholders.

Disclosure of the Company's price sensitive information 
(PSI) and other capital market related issues,

Ensuring that appropriate Board procedures are 
followed as per given guidelines and best practices, 
and advises the Board on matters as such.

INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESS

The Company’s internal control system is 
designed at Board and Management levels to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
achievement of the Company’s 
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objectives in respect of effectiveness and efficiency 
of operations, reliability (completeness and 
timeliness) of financial reporting and management 
information, compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations and the Company’s policies. The 
Company has its own internal auditors who are 
accountable to the Audit Committee. The internal 
control process is further expanded in the Statement 
of Internal Control. Some of the key policies and 
guidelines that govern the internal control process of 
the Company are listed below:

 Standards of Business Conduct
 Procurement Policy & Guidelines
 IT Security Policy
 Finance Policy & Guideline
 International Marketing Standards
 Records Management Policy
 Agreement Policy
 Employment Policy & Principles

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) at 
management level is headed by the Finance 
Director and consists of knowledgeable cross 
functional managers including internal auditors  
who drive an effective risk management 
framework in the Company. The risk controllers 
periodically review the departmental risks and 
report to RMC. The RMC reviews the functional 
risks two times a year, identifies the Company’s 
key risks and ensures that adequate action plans 
are in place to mitigate the risks. The key risks of 
the Company are then endorsed by the Executive 
Committee and then ratified by the Audit 
Committee as far as effective risk management is 
concerned. In order to ensure effective risk 
management within the Company, the RMC is 
responsible for reviewing risks, maintaining an 
appropriate level of awareness throughout the 
Company and ensuring effectiveness of the risk 
management process. The Company maintains a 
risk register where all the associated risks as well 
as action plans are recorded.

STANDARDS OF BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Company has in place the Standards of 
Business Conduct (SoBC) which emphasises on 
high standards of business integrity that is 
required from the employees and Directors of the 
Company. This SoBC covers the policies 
regarding the whistleblowing process, 
declaration of conflicts of interest, bribery and 
corruption, respect in the workplace, human 

rights and our operations, entertainment and 
gifts, charitable contributions, accurate 
accounting and record keeping, protection of 
corporate assets, confidentiality and information 
security, insider dealing and market abuse, 
competition and anti-trust laws, money 
laundering and anti-terrorism, illicit trade, trade 
in the company’s products and sanctions. 

The conducts of all employees of the Company, 
including members of the Board, are governed by 
the Standards of Business Conduct. Each and 
every employee, including the Directors, is 
expected to live up to the Standards of Business 
Conduct and are required to confirm their 
commitment and compliance by executing a 
declaration of compliance annually.

Other Internal Policies and Guidelines

The Company also has other internal policies, 
guidelines, procedures and codes in support of 
the Company’s corporate governance 
framework. Some of the key policies, guidelines, 
procedures and codes are outlined below: 

Procurement Policy and Guidelines outline the 
processes for obtaining the best overall value 
and quality for each amount spent and to 
ensure timely delivery of goods and services to 
meet the Company’s business requirements.

Marketing Policies and Guidelines -which 
include Distributors Policy, Credit Policy, Trade 
Policy, Marketing Communication Guidelines 
and International Marketing  Principles – a 
framework to govern all aspects of responsible 
tobacco marketing.

Company Financial Policies - which include the  
policies and guidelines on Treasury 
Management, Dividend, Vehicle Disposal, 
Dealing Mandate, Fixed Assets Capitalisation, 
Depreciation, Insurance, Inventory, Stock 
Valuation, Delegation of Authority, 
DomesticLeaf Costing, Budgeting, Bill Payment, 
Foreign Currency , Write-off Process etc.

Policy on Environment, Health, Safety and Security.

Information Technology Policies.

Guidelines on Business Information

Security, Risk Management and Business 
Continuity Process.
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Competition Compliance Guidelines –outlines 
the general principles andstandards of 
behaviour in relation to competition laws that 
employees are required to follow and comply 
as good business practice.

Business Security Policies.

Guidelines on Dawn Raid – sets out the 
procedures to be adhered to when there is a 
raid by relevant authorities so that the 
necessary cooperation can be provided.

HR Related Polices – which includes Standards 
of Employment Principles, Working Hours 
Policy, Remuneration policies, Travel policies, 
Sexual Harassment Policy, Employment Policy, 
Disciplinary Procedure, Employee Relations 
Policy, Equal Opportunity & Diversity Policy, 
Grievance Management Policy, Industrial 
Relations Policy, Education Assistance Policy, 
Medical Expenses Re-imbursement Policy, 
Employees Benefit Policies, Retirement Benefit 
Policies, Early Separation Scheme.

Sexual Harassment Policy – to ensure that all 
employees are treated with respect and dignity 
regardless of gender and to outline that any 
form of sexual harassment, which disrupts or 
interferes with the work performance and 
dignity of another will not be tolerated.

Guidelines on managing cases involving 
employees and law enforcement authorities.

Procedures on credit for trade debtors and 
inter-company balances.
 
Tobacco Leaf related policies - Policy on Social 
Responsibility in Tobacco Production, Export  
Pricing Policy, Farmers Registration & Advance 
Crop Input Policy

Climate Change Policy to perform the 
Company activities for tobacco growing and 
green leaf threshing, considering climate 
change and its subsequent impacts and 
Guidelines for Tobacco seed Production 
including field experiment.

Records Management Policy and Central 
Depository System

Agreement Policy and Guidance

Data Protection Policy

Billing Guidelines

Codes of Audit Committee, Compensation 
Committee and CSR Committee

The above mentioned policies, guidelines, 
procedures and codes are made available to all 
our employees and Directors in the Company 
management staff manual.

ASSETS & RECORDS MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of BAT Bangladesh 
recognises its role as trustee of the Shareholders 
funds and accordingly has been investing in 
cutting-edge operational efficiency since its 
inception. Transparency and accountability are 
ensured at all stages from acquisition to disposal 
of assets to protect the interest of Shareholders. 
Safety measures have been implemented and 
periodic physical verification is undertaken on a 
test basis to safeguard the assets and to ensure 
accuracy and authenticity of reported numbers. 
Relevant assets are adequately insured against 
industrial risks with insurance companies. Apart 
from the assets, all records of the Company are 
managed and preserved in an effective way for 
future reference. The Company Secretary is in 
charge of such records management.

STATUTORY AUDIT

Appointment of the Statutory Auditor is 
regulated by the Companies Act 1994 and by 
Securities & Exchange Rules 1987. On the basis of 
suggestion of the Audit Committee, the Board 
recommends appointment of an auditor, which is 
approved by the Shareholders at the Annual 
General Meeting. Along with the appointment, 
the Shareholders also fix the remuneration of the 
auditors. Under the BSEC order, a Statutory 
Auditor can continue in office for maximum three 
consecutive years. From a corporate governance 
perspective, BAT Bangladesh maintains complete 
and thorough independence of the Statutory 
Auditors.  
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The Audit Committee meets with the statutory 
auditors to ensure that the auditors are acting 
independently and reviews the financial 
statements before submission to the Board for 
approval. 

Apart from statutory audit, in order to ensure full 
and complete regulatory discharge, a Compliance 
Certificate is also obtained from a licenced 
practicing professional who certifies, on the basis 
of his audit, that the Company has duly complied 
with all the regulatory requirements as stipulated 
by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission (BSEC). The report is presented to 
the Shareholders and forms part of the Annual 
Report.

TRANSPARENT DISCLOSURE

BAT Bangladesh prepares financial statements 
with adequate disclosures in accordance with the 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), 
International/Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (I/BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the 
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other 
applicable laws and regulations. In order to 
prepare the financial statements, the 
management is responsible for designing, 
implementing and maintaining internal controls 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or 
error; selecting and applying accounting policies 
and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances. These financial 
statements, once prepared, are reviewed initially 
by CFO and CEO and then by the Audit 
Committee on a regular basis. The external 
auditors also attend the Audit Committee 
meetings to review the quarterly financial 
statements as prepared in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS) 
and Company policies. After that, the Board 
reviews the financial statements of the Company 
at the end of every quarter. The quarterly 
financial statements, along with notes are 
published on the two daily newspapers as well as 
the Company’s website. Furthermore, half yearly 
and annual financial statements are also sent to all 
Shareholders in a timely manner. 

On an annual basis, the Directors prepare the 
Directors’ Report as part of the Annual Report 
which discloses the financial performance as well 

as non-financial information regarding Company 
growth, productivity, responsibilities and other 
information in compliance with BSEC 
Notification. The Company also abides by the 
applicable regulations in respect to Price 
Sensitive Information (PSI).

WELL-DEFINED SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

BAT Bangladesh believes that the management of 
a successful and productive relationship with its 
Shareholders must be underpinned by the 
importance of maintaining transparency and 
accountability to its Shareholders. The Board 
ensures through the Company Secretary that all 
the Shareholders of the company are treated 
equitably and ensures that the rights of all 
Shareholders are equally protected. 

In order to achieve good governance, the 
Company Secretary acts as a bridge between the 
Shareholders and the Board of Directors of the 
Company who delivers the standard services to 
its valued Shareholders ensuring the well-defined 
Shareholders’ rights in accordance with 
applicable laws and the Articles of Association of 
the Company. Catering to the continuous 
disclosure requirements, the Shareholders are 
communicated in a routine manner of all major 
developments that involve the business of the 
Company so that they are able to make informed 
decisions. The Company continues to have 
regular communication with Shareholders 
through the Annual General Meeting, Annual 
Report, Quarterly updates on financial 
performance and at any other time in the best 
interests of Shareholders. Also the Company's 
website is there to further cater to the 
information needs of all. In this respect, all the 
best practices are followed by the Company 
which helps investors to keep their trust and 
confidence in the Company.

BOARD COMMITMENTS

Tracing back to origin, it was more than 100 years 
ago when the Company established itself on this 
land of opportunities and possibilities - 
Bangladesh. Since independence, BAT Bangladesh 
has demonstrated an unwavering dedication to 
the country and its people and this commitment 
is what sets the distinction that takes BAT 
Bangladesh apart from any other business entity. 
This uniqueness is reflected through the passion 
and dedication of its 52,000 employees, farmers, 
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distributors, suppliers and business partners that 
has brought BAT Bangladesh across the country 
and to its today’s towering stature. 

The Company is listed on both Dhaka and 
Chittagong Stock Exchanges and is currently 
ranked as number 1 (one) amongst the listed 
companies in Bangladesh in terms of being the 
highest taxpayer. In this year alone the Company 
has contributed Taka 11,051 crores to the 
Government Exchequer. We aspire to continue to 
be the highest tax payer in Bangladesh in the 
coming years too. BAT Bangladesh has always 
cherished and shall continue to value its treasured 
relationship with the Government of Bangladesh, 
esteemed shareholders and other stakeholders of 
the Company by practicing the highest standards 
of corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: BATB'S 
REFINED OUTLOOK

One of the innate issues of the Board room 
practices in recent times has been corporate 
governance. Because of its enormity, mainly due 
to increased regulatory watch and importance, 
the spectrum and texture of corporate 
governance is slowly changing and improving. It is 
no more a mere 'stronger supervision' type 
concept. The Board of Directors of BATB being 
aware of it, accordingly, looks at the issue in the 
newer and a more responsible perspective.

OBJECTIVITY IN BUSINESS OPERATIONS - 
GOOD GOVERNANCE IS GOOD BUSINESS.                  

Business is a commitment and governance is the 
challenge to meet the commitment. At BATB we 

believe that a flourishing company results from a 
competent Board and that good governance is 
good business. We also recognise that it is not 
exactly profit which is the genuine purpose of 
business, rather the core purpose of business is to 
provide a product or service that people need 
and to do it so well that it is profitable. And with 
that aspiring motto, BATB's journey continues to 
establish a sound and ever effective governance 
regime that could serve the best interest of its 
shareholders, countless stakeholders and the 
inseparable community where it operates.

UNIFIED INITIATIVES

With the advent of digitisation worldwide, 
business activities are no more confined in the 
olden individual company concept. Companies 
today are responsible for generating the majority 
of national economic initiatives including welfare 
and employment, being the vital aspect of 
society at large. Global perceptions are slowly 
integrating and so are national economic 
interests. In that perspective, BAT Bnangladesh 
also cherishes to be one of the integral parts of 
the Bangladesh's economic aspirations. We are 
with you together and unified as you march ahead. 

Md. Azizur Rahman FCS 
Company Secretary

Golam Mainuddin 
Chairman 
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reviewing and updating the system of internal 
controls considering the changes in the 
regulatory, business and external environment. 
This process is reviewed by the Board via the 
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s 
responsibilities and duties can be found in the 
Audit Committee Report section of this Annual 
Report. The Company’s Standards of Business 
Conduct underpin our commitment to good 
corporate behaviour, and is an integral part of 
the Company’s system of corporate 
governance. The Standards of Business Conduct 
require all employees to act with the highest 
standards of business integrity, comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations, and ensure that 
business standards are not compromised for the 
sake of results. Our Standards of Business 
Conduct is made available to our stakeholders 
and employees on our corporate website at 
www.batbangladesh.com

Enterprise Risk Management Process

Risk management is firmly embedded in the 
Company’s management system as the 
Company firmly believes that risk management 
is critical for the Company’s sustainability and 
the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

Company’s Enterprise Risk Management 
Objectives

Preserve the safety, security and health of its 
employees. 

Ensure the continuity of its supply of products 
to consumers and customers at all times. 

Protect its assets and reputation. 

Ensure that the Company’s operations do not 
impact negatively on the community in 
which it operates and the environment. 

Protect the interests of all other 
stakeholders. 

Awareness

The Board of Directors recognises the 
importance of sound risk management 
practices and internal controls to safeguard 
shareholders’ investments and the Company’s 
assets. The Board affirms its overall 
responsibility for the Company’s system of risk 
management and internal control which 
includes the establishment of an appropriate 
control environment and framework, as well as 
reviewing its adequacy and integrity. 

The Board is responsible for determining the 
nature and extent of the strategic risks that the 
Company is willing to take to attain its 
objectives, whilst in parallel maintaining sound 
risk management and systems of internal 
control. With the challenging nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates, the 
Board does not consider it prudent to enhance 
the risk-scope too high, and it seeks to 
minimise risks at an optimum level.

The Board tasks the Management to identify 
and assess the risks faced by the Company, and 
thereafter designs, implements and monitors 
appropriate internal controls to mitigate and 
control those risks. There are inherent 
limitations to any system of internal control 
and the system is designed to manage and 
minimise the impact rather than completely 
eliminate risks that may vitiate achievement of 
the Company’s business objectives. 
Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable but 
not absolute assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. The system of internal 
control covers financial, operational and 
compliance controls and risk management 
procedures.

The Company has in place an ongoing process 
(outlined below) for identifying, evaluating, 
monitoring and managing significant risks 
faced by the Company. This process includes 

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT

& INTERNAL CONTROL
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(2) Risk Evaluation

The identified business risks are then evaluated 
to determine their impact on the relevant 
business strategy/objectives and whether the 
risks are likely to occur.

LIKELIHOOD of the risks materializing 

MPACT of the consequence, taking into 
account the degree of internal control and 
risk management measures in place.

Assessment against a set of pre-specified 
criteria on a scale of one to three is completed 
for both Likelihood and Impact, the 
combination of which provides the total risk 
rating on a scale of one to nine. Risks are then 
categorised on the Risk Heat Map which 
measures the significance of the risks to the 
organisation and determines the relative 
prioritisation and focus for risk mitigation.

The outcome of the risk identification and 
evaluation process is both a Risk Heat Map and a 
comprehensive Risk Register which documents 
all identified business risks.

Promote an effective risk awareness culture 
where risk management is an integral aspect 
of the Company’s management systems. 

Ensure compliance with BSEC Codes of 
Corporate Governance and all applicable laws.

The Management operates a Risk Management 
Team comprised of senior managers from all 
functions of the Company and led by the 
Finance Director. It meets formally at least 
twice a year to: 

Review and update the risk register; and 

Assess status of risk mitigation action plans.

The Audit Committee is briefed bi-annually by 
the Enterprise Risk Manager on the Company’s 
Risk Management Programme and its activities 
in the Audit Committee meeting. The 
following are some of the responsibilities of 
the Risk Management Team:

Risk Management Team Responsibilities

Steer the Company’s enterprise risk 
management programme. 

Promote a proactive risk awareness culture 
in the Company.

Conduct an annual review of the business risks.

Coordinate the development and 
implementation of risk mitigation action plans.

Develop and update business continuity 
plans (BCPs) for key business risks.

Plan and coordinate the testing of BCPs.

Organise training and education for employees 
on risk management.

Five Phase Enterprise Risk Management 
Process

(1) Risk Identification

All potential events that could adversely impact 
the achievement of business objectives, 
including failure to capitalise on opportunities 
are identified.

Risk
Identification

Risk
Evaluation

Enterprise
Risk

Management

Risk
Mitigation

Risk
Review

Risk
Monitoring

LIKELIHOOD

Key Focus Area

Risk Heat Map

I
M
P
A
C
T

Low

Medium

High

Low Medium High

3 6 9

2 4 6

1 2 3

Our approach involves immediate formation of 
a Crisis Management Team (CMT), assisted by 
an Incident Response Team (IRT). The roles & 
responsibilities of these teams are outlined below.

Crisis Management Team (CMT)

The role of the CMT is to identify and deal with 
potential risks to employees and business 
operations during times of crisis. After 
considering all the available information, the 
CMT can make informed strategic decisions 
with the aim of minimising any long term 
detrimental effects to the operations, finance, 
employees and reputation of the Organisation.

Incident Response Team (IRT)

The senior manager at the site of the incident 
collects available pertinent information and 
advises the CMT Coordinator. This manager, 
assisted by appropriate local employees will 
assume local control and deal with the incident 
directly until further directed by the CMT.

Key Risks to the Company

The Company views the key risks as being 
prevalent in the tobacco sector and having the 
ability to significantly impact the Company’s 
results. In addition to the above, the Company 
is subject to the ever present risk of 
competitor actions. Steps to anticipate, 
mitigate and neutralise such risks are core to 
our business.

Risk Management Activities in 2015

Review of the Company’s Risks

The Risk Management Team met twice during 
the year, in May and August 2015, to review 
and assess the Company’s risks, and to monitor 
progress of key activities for the year, 
including the progress of the business 
continuity plans. 

In May 2015, the Risk Management Team 
together with senior managers updated the 
risk register and risk mitigation action plans. 
The outcome of the meeting, among others, 
were the identification, evaluation and risk 
mitigation plan for the new risks. The briefing 
included updates on the key risks of the 
Company and the risk mitigation plans, and the 
testing status of business continuity plans.

Promotion of Risk Awareness

Risk communication is equally important and 
forms an integral part of the risk management 

(3) Risk Mitigation

In completing the Risk Register, Risk Owners 
are identified who are responsible for 
identifying action plans to manage and 
mitigate the risks, together with a timeline for 
completion of the actions. The Risk Owners are 
typically senior managers and part of a 
functional leadership team.

(4) Risk Monitoring

Ongoing risk monitoring is conducted by the 
Risk Management Team to assess whether any 
condition associated with a particular risk has 
changed, and to ensure that action and risk 
mitigation plans have been implemented. Status 
of action/mitigation plans are communicated to 
the Audit Committee bi-annually.

(5) Risk Review

Finally, the Company’s Enterprise Risk 
Management process is subjected to periodic 
reviews by Management to ensure that the 
policy and objectives of the programme remain 
applicable and effective under changing 
market and regulatory environments. This is 
complemented by internal control practices 
such as the Statement of Compliance with 
BSEC Codes of Corporate Governance and the 
Key Control Checklist of the Company. 

Business Continuity and Crisis Management 

Business Continuity is defined as the strategic 
and tactical capability of the organisation to 
plan for and respond to incidents and business 
disruptions in order to continue business 
operations at an acceptable pre-defined level in 
order to avoid negative impact on the business.

The Company has 19 Business Continuity Plans  
(BCPs) to manage the various potential 
disruptions which could impact the Company, 
for example, Manufacturing Contingency 
Sourcing Plan and Information Technology 
Disaster Recovery Plan. These plans are reviewed 
and updated for content by the owners of the 
plan on an annual basis. In addition, a desktop 
review/simulation is conducted by the plan 
owners with the support of the crisis response 
team members periodically based on the cyclical 
testing schedule.

In addition, the Company has a structured 
approach to Crisis Management to ensure 
leadership and timely decision in the event of a 
crisis and to manage the situation effectively 
within minimal time.

requirements across all functions in the 
Company. The Company’s SAC process 
requires controls and processes to be assessed 
by responsible managers for effectiveness on 
an annual basis. Where control 
gaps/weaknesses are identified, corrective 
actions and timelines are identified and agreed. 
The findings from the SAC and year-on-year 
trend analysis are reported to the Audit 
Committee annually. Notably in 2015, the 
Company implemented a revised Control 
Navigator process. A new SAP enabled tool was 
deployed, which provided a standardised 
central solution that automates and monitors 
key risks and controls at the business level. The 
new tool allows the business to use a 
combination of automated work flows, 
certification, manual controls and interactive 
reports to monitor and control compliance 
activities across the Company. This has 
resulted in an improved visibility of assessment 
throughout the business, improved transparency 
of issues management and remediation, 
together with streamlining of reporting.

Financial Reporting Controls

The Company has a series of policies, practices 
and controls in place in relation to the financial 
reporting and consolidation process, which are 
designed to address key financial reporting 
risks, including risks arising from changes in the 
business or accounting standards. The Finance 
Director is required to confirm annually that all 
information relevant to the Company audit has 
been provided to the Board of Directors 
through the Audit Committee and that 
reasonable steps have been taken to ensure full 
disclosure in response to requests for 
information from the external auditor.

In addition, it is a standard practice for the 
Finance Director to fully review account 
reconciliations on a bi-annual basis. The 
effectiveness of the Company’s financial 
reporting controls is assessed through 
self-certification as part of the Control 
Navigator exercise described above. The 
integrity of the Company’s public financial 
reporting is further supported by a number of 
processes and steps to provide assurance over 
the completeness and accuracy of the content 
including review and recommendation by the 
Audit Committee and review and approval by 
the Board.

activity as it focuses on the dissemination of 
risk information to appropriate levels of 
employees and stakeholders. Appropriate 
channels are available for employees to 
provide feedback on risk management issues 
and suggestions for improvement. The Risk 
Management Team is responsible for the risk 
awareness induction programme for new 
joiners. The induction programme is aimed at 
educating management staff on the 
Company’s approach to risk management and 
internal controls, and provides a forum to 
enhance the participant knowledge on controls 
and exercising that knowledge on managing 
the Company's risk.

Crisis Management Activation

The Company activated crisis management 
team to manage the situation thus enabling the 
business to continue operation. As a result 
business is saved and financial impacts were 
negligible. The most challenging aspect of the 
situation was recovery once the crisis was 
resolved. This was successfully completed in a 
carefully sequenced and choreographed 
manner, thereby minimising disruption. In 2015, 
Bangladesh experienced a period of external 
challenges. Whilst crisis management was not 
activated, as a preliminary step, management 
met and decided on the challenge of business 
especially relating to industrial relation issues 
where crisis management would be activated. 
At the same time, action plans were further 
reviewed for completeness.

Business Continuity Plan Simulation and Testing

During the year, a desktop review/simulation 
was conducted by the Business Continuity Plan 
(BCP) owners, with the support of Crisis 
Response Team members, across 13 BCPs. The 
review and testing indicated that the existing 
plans were still relevant to the current business 
environment except for the Information 
Technology (IT) Disaster Recovery Plan for 
SAP. The IT Disaster Recovery Plan was 
subsequently amended to take into account 
the new SAP instance and associated architecture.

System of Internal Control

Self-Assessment of Controls (SAC) Process 
Central to the Company’s system of internal 
control is its SAC process and the backbone of 
this process is a key control checklist known as 
the Control Navigator. The Control Navigator 
sets out various key controls and process 

External Audit

In the course of conducting the annual 
statutory audit of the Company’s financial 
statements, the external auditors review and 
where applicable based on judgement, 
highlight to the Board and Audit Committee 
any significant audit, accounting and internal 
control matters which require attention. A 
report on the above is given to the Audit 
Committee and to the management once a 
year after substantial completion of the 
year-end audit. Additionally, the external 
auditors attend the quarterly Audit Committee 
meetings, and where applicable provide views 
on any related matters for the attention of the 
Audit Committee. At least once a year, the 
Audit Committee shall meet the external 
auditors without the Executive Directors and 
management being present. This year, the 
Audit Committee has met twice with the 
external auditors without the Executive 
Directors and management being present. 
During the year, as part of the annual statutory 
audit, the external auditors were involved in 
performing certain reviews over the controls 
and processes affecting financial reporting. 
There is no significant matter with material 
financial impact arising from the review of 
these related controls and processes, although 
certain improvement recommendations were 
highlighted to the Board and Audit Committee.

 

Internal Audit

The role of Internal Audit for the Company is 
designed in line with local laws as well as the 
Global Audit functions of British American 
Tobacco plc. This approach ensures a high level 
of independence and gives access to more 
skilled and specialised resources, particularly in 
respect of Information Technology (IT), that 
would otherwise be available withing the 
company The annual audit planning cycle takes 
direct input from both the risk register 
described above and the Audit Committee. In 
turn, the Audit Committee formally approves 
the scope of work for the year. Furthermore, 
with approval of the Audit Committee, the 
Internal Audit Manager can request assistance 
from Global Audit if required for any matter it 
considers appropriate. Within the Company 
three types of audits exist: Entity Audits, 
Process Audits and Project & Programmes 
Audits. Entity audits are focused on one entity 
or business unit with a scope of more than one 
process. Process Audits have a scope of one 
process covered over one or more entities or 
business units (potentially including the Global 
and Regional management of the process), and 
Project & Programmes audits are focused on an 
ongoing project, programme or portfolio. A 
Company Audit is organised into both central 
and regional teams and also include a 
specialised IT Audit capability.

More details on the audit activities conducted 
during the year can be found in the Audit 
Committee Report in this Annual Report.

44 Annual Report
2015



Our approach involves immediate formation of 
a Crisis Management Team (CMT), assisted by 
an Incident Response Team (IRT). The roles & 
responsibilities of these teams are outlined below.

Crisis Management Team (CMT)

The role of the CMT is to identify and deal with 
potential risks to employees and business 
operations during times of crisis. After 
considering all the available information, the 
CMT can make informed strategic decisions 
with the aim of minimising any long term 
detrimental effects to the operations, finance, 
employees and reputation of the Organisation.

Incident Response Team (IRT)

The senior manager at the site of the incident 
collects available pertinent information and 
advises the CMT Coordinator. This manager, 
assisted by appropriate local employees will 
assume local control and deal with the incident 
directly until further directed by the CMT.

Key Risks to the Company

The Company views the key risks as being 
prevalent in the tobacco sector and having the 
ability to significantly impact the Company’s 
results. In addition to the above, the Company 
is subject to the ever present risk of 
competitor actions. Steps to anticipate, 
mitigate and neutralise such risks are core to 
our business.

Risk Management Activities in 2015

Review of the Company’s Risks

The Risk Management Team met twice during 
the year, in May and August 2015, to review 
and assess the Company’s risks, and to monitor 
progress of key activities for the year, 
including the progress of the business 
continuity plans. 

In May 2015, the Risk Management Team 
together with senior managers updated the 
risk register and risk mitigation action plans. 
The outcome of the meeting, among others, 
were the identification, evaluation and risk 
mitigation plan for the new risks. The briefing 
included updates on the key risks of the 
Company and the risk mitigation plans, and the 
testing status of business continuity plans.

Promotion of Risk Awareness

Risk communication is equally important and 
forms an integral part of the risk management 

(3) Risk Mitigation

In completing the Risk Register, Risk Owners 
are identified who are responsible for 
identifying action plans to manage and 
mitigate the risks, together with a timeline for 
completion of the actions. The Risk Owners are 
typically senior managers and part of a 
functional leadership team.

(4) Risk Monitoring

Ongoing risk monitoring is conducted by the 
Risk Management Team to assess whether any 
condition associated with a particular risk has 
changed, and to ensure that action and risk 
mitigation plans have been implemented. Status 
of action/mitigation plans are communicated to 
the Audit Committee bi-annually.

(5) Risk Review

Finally, the Company’s Enterprise Risk 
Management process is subjected to periodic 
reviews by Management to ensure that the 
policy and objectives of the programme remain 
applicable and effective under changing 
market and regulatory environments. This is 
complemented by internal control practices 
such as the Statement of Compliance with 
BSEC Codes of Corporate Governance and the 
Key Control Checklist of the Company. 

Business Continuity and Crisis Management 

Business Continuity is defined as the strategic 
and tactical capability of the organisation to 
plan for and respond to incidents and business 
disruptions in order to continue business 
operations at an acceptable pre-defined level in 
order to avoid negative impact on the business.

The Company has 19 Business Continuity Plans  
(BCPs) to manage the various potential 
disruptions which could impact the Company, 
for example, Manufacturing Contingency 
Sourcing Plan and Information Technology 
Disaster Recovery Plan. These plans are reviewed 
and updated for content by the owners of the 
plan on an annual basis. In addition, a desktop 
review/simulation is conducted by the plan 
owners with the support of the crisis response 
team members periodically based on the cyclical 
testing schedule.

In addition, the Company has a structured 
approach to Crisis Management to ensure 
leadership and timely decision in the event of a 
crisis and to manage the situation effectively 
within minimal time.

requirements across all functions in the 
Company. The Company’s SAC process 
requires controls and processes to be assessed 
by responsible managers for effectiveness on 
an annual basis. Where control 
gaps/weaknesses are identified, corrective 
actions and timelines are identified and agreed. 
The findings from the SAC and year-on-year 
trend analysis are reported to the Audit 
Committee annually. Notably in 2015, the 
Company implemented a revised Control 
Navigator process. A new SAP enabled tool was 
deployed, which provided a standardised 
central solution that automates and monitors 
key risks and controls at the business level. The 
new tool allows the business to use a 
combination of automated work flows, 
certification, manual controls and interactive 
reports to monitor and control compliance 
activities across the Company. This has 
resulted in an improved visibility of assessment 
throughout the business, improved transparency 
of issues management and remediation, 
together with streamlining of reporting.

Financial Reporting Controls

The Company has a series of policies, practices 
and controls in place in relation to the financial 
reporting and consolidation process, which are 
designed to address key financial reporting 
risks, including risks arising from changes in the 
business or accounting standards. The Finance 
Director is required to confirm annually that all 
information relevant to the Company audit has 
been provided to the Board of Directors 
through the Audit Committee and that 
reasonable steps have been taken to ensure full 
disclosure in response to requests for 
information from the external auditor.

In addition, it is a standard practice for the 
Finance Director to fully review account 
reconciliations on a bi-annual basis. The 
effectiveness of the Company’s financial 
reporting controls is assessed through 
self-certification as part of the Control 
Navigator exercise described above. The 
integrity of the Company’s public financial 
reporting is further supported by a number of 
processes and steps to provide assurance over 
the completeness and accuracy of the content 
including review and recommendation by the 
Audit Committee and review and approval by 
the Board.

activity as it focuses on the dissemination of 
risk information to appropriate levels of 
employees and stakeholders. Appropriate 
channels are available for employees to 
provide feedback on risk management issues 
and suggestions for improvement. The Risk 
Management Team is responsible for the risk 
awareness induction programme for new 
joiners. The induction programme is aimed at 
educating management staff on the 
Company’s approach to risk management and 
internal controls, and provides a forum to 
enhance the participant knowledge on controls 
and exercising that knowledge on managing 
the Company's risk.

Crisis Management Activation

The Company activated crisis management 
team to manage the situation thus enabling the 
business to continue operation. As a result 
business is saved and financial impacts were 
negligible. The most challenging aspect of the 
situation was recovery once the crisis was 
resolved. This was successfully completed in a 
carefully sequenced and choreographed 
manner, thereby minimising disruption. In 2015, 
Bangladesh experienced a period of external 
challenges. Whilst crisis management was not 
activated, as a preliminary step, management 
met and decided on the challenge of business 
especially relating to industrial relation issues 
where crisis management would be activated. 
At the same time, action plans were further 
reviewed for completeness.

Business Continuity Plan Simulation and Testing

During the year, a desktop review/simulation 
was conducted by the Business Continuity Plan 
(BCP) owners, with the support of Crisis 
Response Team members, across 13 BCPs. The 
review and testing indicated that the existing 
plans were still relevant to the current business 
environment except for the Information 
Technology (IT) Disaster Recovery Plan for 
SAP. The IT Disaster Recovery Plan was 
subsequently amended to take into account 
the new SAP instance and associated architecture.

System of Internal Control

Self-Assessment of Controls (SAC) Process 
Central to the Company’s system of internal 
control is its SAC process and the backbone of 
this process is a key control checklist known as 
the Control Navigator. The Control Navigator 
sets out various key controls and process 

External Audit

In the course of conducting the annual 
statutory audit of the Company’s financial 
statements, the external auditors review and 
where applicable based on judgement, 
highlight to the Board and Audit Committee 
any significant audit, accounting and internal 
control matters which require attention. A 
report on the above is given to the Audit 
Committee and to the management once a 
year after substantial completion of the 
year-end audit. Additionally, the external 
auditors attend the quarterly Audit Committee 
meetings, and where applicable provide views 
on any related matters for the attention of the 
Audit Committee. At least once a year, the 
Audit Committee shall meet the external 
auditors without the Executive Directors and 
management being present. This year, the 
Audit Committee has met twice with the 
external auditors without the Executive 
Directors and management being present. 
During the year, as part of the annual statutory 
audit, the external auditors were involved in 
performing certain reviews over the controls 
and processes affecting financial reporting. 
There is no significant matter with material 
financial impact arising from the review of 
these related controls and processes, although 
certain improvement recommendations were 
highlighted to the Board and Audit Committee.

 

Internal Audit

The role of Internal Audit for the Company is 
designed in line with local laws as well as the 
Global Audit functions of British American 
Tobacco plc. This approach ensures a high level 
of independence and gives access to more 
skilled and specialised resources, particularly in 
respect of Information Technology (IT), that 
would otherwise be available withing the 
company The annual audit planning cycle takes 
direct input from both the risk register 
described above and the Audit Committee. In 
turn, the Audit Committee formally approves 
the scope of work for the year. Furthermore, 
with approval of the Audit Committee, the 
Internal Audit Manager can request assistance 
from Global Audit if required for any matter it 
considers appropriate. Within the Company 
three types of audits exist: Entity Audits, 
Process Audits and Project & Programmes 
Audits. Entity audits are focused on one entity 
or business unit with a scope of more than one 
process. Process Audits have a scope of one 
process covered over one or more entities or 
business units (potentially including the Global 
and Regional management of the process), and 
Project & Programmes audits are focused on an 
ongoing project, programme or portfolio. A 
Company Audit is organised into both central 
and regional teams and also include a 
specialised IT Audit capability.

More details on the audit activities conducted 
during the year can be found in the Audit 
Committee Report in this Annual Report.
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Our approach involves immediate formation of 
a Crisis Management Team (CMT), assisted by 
an Incident Response Team (IRT). The roles & 
responsibilities of these teams are outlined below.

Crisis Management Team (CMT)

The role of the CMT is to identify and deal with 
potential risks to employees and business 
operations during times of crisis. After 
considering all the available information, the 
CMT can make informed strategic decisions 
with the aim of minimising any long term 
detrimental effects to the operations, finance, 
employees and reputation of the Organisation.

Incident Response Team (IRT)

The senior manager at the site of the incident 
collects available pertinent information and 
advises the CMT Coordinator. This manager, 
assisted by appropriate local employees will 
assume local control and deal with the incident 
directly until further directed by the CMT.

Key Risks to the Company

The Company views the key risks as being 
prevalent in the tobacco sector and having the 
ability to significantly impact the Company’s 
results. In addition to the above, the Company 
is subject to the ever present risk of 
competitor actions. Steps to anticipate, 
mitigate and neutralise such risks are core to 
our business.

Risk Management Activities in 2015

Review of the Company’s Risks

The Risk Management Team met twice during 
the year, in May and August 2015, to review 
and assess the Company’s risks, and to monitor 
progress of key activities for the year, 
including the progress of the business 
continuity plans. 

In May 2015, the Risk Management Team 
together with senior managers updated the 
risk register and risk mitigation action plans. 
The outcome of the meeting, among others, 
were the identification, evaluation and risk 
mitigation plan for the new risks. The briefing 
included updates on the key risks of the 
Company and the risk mitigation plans, and the 
testing status of business continuity plans.

Promotion of Risk Awareness

Risk communication is equally important and 
forms an integral part of the risk management 

(3) Risk Mitigation

In completing the Risk Register, Risk Owners 
are identified who are responsible for 
identifying action plans to manage and 
mitigate the risks, together with a timeline for 
completion of the actions. The Risk Owners are 
typically senior managers and part of a 
functional leadership team.

(4) Risk Monitoring

Ongoing risk monitoring is conducted by the 
Risk Management Team to assess whether any 
condition associated with a particular risk has 
changed, and to ensure that action and risk 
mitigation plans have been implemented. Status 
of action/mitigation plans are communicated to 
the Audit Committee bi-annually.

(5) Risk Review

Finally, the Company’s Enterprise Risk 
Management process is subjected to periodic 
reviews by Management to ensure that the 
policy and objectives of the programme remain 
applicable and effective under changing 
market and regulatory environments. This is 
complemented by internal control practices 
such as the Statement of Compliance with 
BSEC Codes of Corporate Governance and the 
Key Control Checklist of the Company. 

Business Continuity and Crisis Management 

Business Continuity is defined as the strategic 
and tactical capability of the organisation to 
plan for and respond to incidents and business 
disruptions in order to continue business 
operations at an acceptable pre-defined level in 
order to avoid negative impact on the business.

The Company has 19 Business Continuity Plans  
(BCPs) to manage the various potential 
disruptions which could impact the Company, 
for example, Manufacturing Contingency 
Sourcing Plan and Information Technology 
Disaster Recovery Plan. These plans are reviewed 
and updated for content by the owners of the 
plan on an annual basis. In addition, a desktop 
review/simulation is conducted by the plan 
owners with the support of the crisis response 
team members periodically based on the cyclical 
testing schedule.

In addition, the Company has a structured 
approach to Crisis Management to ensure 
leadership and timely decision in the event of a 
crisis and to manage the situation effectively 
within minimal time.

requirements across all functions in the 
Company. The Company’s SAC process 
requires controls and processes to be assessed 
by responsible managers for effectiveness on 
an annual basis. Where control 
gaps/weaknesses are identified, corrective 
actions and timelines are identified and agreed. 
The findings from the SAC and year-on-year 
trend analysis are reported to the Audit 
Committee annually. Notably in 2015, the 
Company implemented a revised Control 
Navigator process. A new SAP enabled tool was 
deployed, which provided a standardised 
central solution that automates and monitors 
key risks and controls at the business level. The 
new tool allows the business to use a 
combination of automated work flows, 
certification, manual controls and interactive 
reports to monitor and control compliance 
activities across the Company. This has 
resulted in an improved visibility of assessment 
throughout the business, improved transparency 
of issues management and remediation, 
together with streamlining of reporting.

Financial Reporting Controls

The Company has a series of policies, practices 
and controls in place in relation to the financial 
reporting and consolidation process, which are 
designed to address key financial reporting 
risks, including risks arising from changes in the 
business or accounting standards. The Finance 
Director is required to confirm annually that all 
information relevant to the Company audit has 
been provided to the Board of Directors 
through the Audit Committee and that 
reasonable steps have been taken to ensure full 
disclosure in response to requests for 
information from the external auditor.

In addition, it is a standard practice for the 
Finance Director to fully review account 
reconciliations on a bi-annual basis. The 
effectiveness of the Company’s financial 
reporting controls is assessed through 
self-certification as part of the Control 
Navigator exercise described above. The 
integrity of the Company’s public financial 
reporting is further supported by a number of 
processes and steps to provide assurance over 
the completeness and accuracy of the content 
including review and recommendation by the 
Audit Committee and review and approval by 
the Board.

activity as it focuses on the dissemination of 
risk information to appropriate levels of 
employees and stakeholders. Appropriate 
channels are available for employees to 
provide feedback on risk management issues 
and suggestions for improvement. The Risk 
Management Team is responsible for the risk 
awareness induction programme for new 
joiners. The induction programme is aimed at 
educating management staff on the 
Company’s approach to risk management and 
internal controls, and provides a forum to 
enhance the participant knowledge on controls 
and exercising that knowledge on managing 
the Company's risk.

Crisis Management Activation

The Company activated crisis management 
team to manage the situation thus enabling the 
business to continue operation. As a result 
business is saved and financial impacts were 
negligible. The most challenging aspect of the 
situation was recovery once the crisis was 
resolved. This was successfully completed in a 
carefully sequenced and choreographed 
manner, thereby minimising disruption. In 2015, 
Bangladesh experienced a period of external 
challenges. Whilst crisis management was not 
activated, as a preliminary step, management 
met and decided on the challenge of business 
especially relating to industrial relation issues 
where crisis management would be activated. 
At the same time, action plans were further 
reviewed for completeness.

Business Continuity Plan Simulation and Testing

During the year, a desktop review/simulation 
was conducted by the Business Continuity Plan 
(BCP) owners, with the support of Crisis 
Response Team members, across 13 BCPs. The 
review and testing indicated that the existing 
plans were still relevant to the current business 
environment except for the Information 
Technology (IT) Disaster Recovery Plan for 
SAP. The IT Disaster Recovery Plan was 
subsequently amended to take into account 
the new SAP instance and associated architecture.

System of Internal Control

Self-Assessment of Controls (SAC) Process 
Central to the Company’s system of internal 
control is its SAC process and the backbone of 
this process is a key control checklist known as 
the Control Navigator. The Control Navigator 
sets out various key controls and process 

External Audit

In the course of conducting the annual 
statutory audit of the Company’s financial 
statements, the external auditors review and 
where applicable based on judgement, 
highlight to the Board and Audit Committee 
any significant audit, accounting and internal 
control matters which require attention. A 
report on the above is given to the Audit 
Committee and to the management once a 
year after substantial completion of the 
year-end audit. Additionally, the external 
auditors attend the quarterly Audit Committee 
meetings, and where applicable provide views 
on any related matters for the attention of the 
Audit Committee. At least once a year, the 
Audit Committee shall meet the external 
auditors without the Executive Directors and 
management being present. This year, the 
Audit Committee has met twice with the 
external auditors without the Executive 
Directors and management being present. 
During the year, as part of the annual statutory 
audit, the external auditors were involved in 
performing certain reviews over the controls 
and processes affecting financial reporting. 
There is no significant matter with material 
financial impact arising from the review of 
these related controls and processes, although 
certain improvement recommendations were 
highlighted to the Board and Audit Committee.

 

Internal Audit

The role of Internal Audit for the Company is 
designed in line with local laws as well as the 
Global Audit functions of British American 
Tobacco plc. This approach ensures a high level 
of independence and gives access to more 
skilled and specialised resources, particularly in 
respect of Information Technology (IT), that 
would otherwise be available withing the 
company The annual audit planning cycle takes 
direct input from both the risk register 
described above and the Audit Committee. In 
turn, the Audit Committee formally approves 
the scope of work for the year. Furthermore, 
with approval of the Audit Committee, the 
Internal Audit Manager can request assistance 
from Global Audit if required for any matter it 
considers appropriate. Within the Company 
three types of audits exist: Entity Audits, 
Process Audits and Project & Programmes 
Audits. Entity audits are focused on one entity 
or business unit with a scope of more than one 
process. Process Audits have a scope of one 
process covered over one or more entities or 
business units (potentially including the Global 
and Regional management of the process), and 
Project & Programmes audits are focused on an 
ongoing project, programme or portfolio. A 
Company Audit is organised into both central 
and regional teams and also include a 
specialised IT Audit capability.

More details on the audit activities conducted 
during the year can be found in the Audit 
Committee Report in this Annual Report.

46 Annual Report
2015



Our approach involves immediate formation of 
a Crisis Management Team (CMT), assisted by 
an Incident Response Team (IRT). The roles & 
responsibilities of these teams are outlined below.

Crisis Management Team (CMT)

The role of the CMT is to identify and deal with 
potential risks to employees and business 
operations during times of crisis. After 
considering all the available information, the 
CMT can make informed strategic decisions 
with the aim of minimising any long term 
detrimental effects to the operations, finance, 
employees and reputation of the Organisation.

Incident Response Team (IRT)

The senior manager at the site of the incident 
collects available pertinent information and 
advises the CMT Coordinator. This manager, 
assisted by appropriate local employees will 
assume local control and deal with the incident 
directly until further directed by the CMT.

Key Risks to the Company

The Company views the key risks as being 
prevalent in the tobacco sector and having the 
ability to significantly impact the Company’s 
results. In addition to the above, the Company 
is subject to the ever present risk of 
competitor actions. Steps to anticipate, 
mitigate and neutralise such risks are core to 
our business.

Risk Management Activities in 2015

Review of the Company’s Risks

The Risk Management Team met twice during 
the year, in May and August 2015, to review 
and assess the Company’s risks, and to monitor 
progress of key activities for the year, 
including the progress of the business 
continuity plans. 

In May 2015, the Risk Management Team 
together with senior managers updated the 
risk register and risk mitigation action plans. 
The outcome of the meeting, among others, 
were the identification, evaluation and risk 
mitigation plan for the new risks. The briefing 
included updates on the key risks of the 
Company and the risk mitigation plans, and the 
testing status of business continuity plans.

Promotion of Risk Awareness

Risk communication is equally important and 
forms an integral part of the risk management 

(3) Risk Mitigation

In completing the Risk Register, Risk Owners 
are identified who are responsible for 
identifying action plans to manage and 
mitigate the risks, together with a timeline for 
completion of the actions. The Risk Owners are 
typically senior managers and part of a 
functional leadership team.

(4) Risk Monitoring

Ongoing risk monitoring is conducted by the 
Risk Management Team to assess whether any 
condition associated with a particular risk has 
changed, and to ensure that action and risk 
mitigation plans have been implemented. Status 
of action/mitigation plans are communicated to 
the Audit Committee bi-annually.

(5) Risk Review

Finally, the Company’s Enterprise Risk 
Management process is subjected to periodic 
reviews by Management to ensure that the 
policy and objectives of the programme remain 
applicable and effective under changing 
market and regulatory environments. This is 
complemented by internal control practices 
such as the Statement of Compliance with 
BSEC Codes of Corporate Governance and the 
Key Control Checklist of the Company. 

Business Continuity and Crisis Management 

Business Continuity is defined as the strategic 
and tactical capability of the organisation to 
plan for and respond to incidents and business 
disruptions in order to continue business 
operations at an acceptable pre-defined level in 
order to avoid negative impact on the business.

The Company has 19 Business Continuity Plans  
(BCPs) to manage the various potential 
disruptions which could impact the Company, 
for example, Manufacturing Contingency 
Sourcing Plan and Information Technology 
Disaster Recovery Plan. These plans are reviewed 
and updated for content by the owners of the 
plan on an annual basis. In addition, a desktop 
review/simulation is conducted by the plan 
owners with the support of the crisis response 
team members periodically based on the cyclical 
testing schedule.

In addition, the Company has a structured 
approach to Crisis Management to ensure 
leadership and timely decision in the event of a 
crisis and to manage the situation effectively 
within minimal time.

requirements across all functions in the 
Company. The Company’s SAC process 
requires controls and processes to be assessed 
by responsible managers for effectiveness on 
an annual basis. Where control 
gaps/weaknesses are identified, corrective 
actions and timelines are identified and agreed. 
The findings from the SAC and year-on-year 
trend analysis are reported to the Audit 
Committee annually. Notably in 2015, the 
Company implemented a revised Control 
Navigator process. A new SAP enabled tool was 
deployed, which provided a standardised 
central solution that automates and monitors 
key risks and controls at the business level. The 
new tool allows the business to use a 
combination of automated work flows, 
certification, manual controls and interactive 
reports to monitor and control compliance 
activities across the Company. This has 
resulted in an improved visibility of assessment 
throughout the business, improved transparency 
of issues management and remediation, 
together with streamlining of reporting.

Financial Reporting Controls

The Company has a series of policies, practices 
and controls in place in relation to the financial 
reporting and consolidation process, which are 
designed to address key financial reporting 
risks, including risks arising from changes in the 
business or accounting standards. The Finance 
Director is required to confirm annually that all 
information relevant to the Company audit has 
been provided to the Board of Directors 
through the Audit Committee and that 
reasonable steps have been taken to ensure full 
disclosure in response to requests for 
information from the external auditor.

In addition, it is a standard practice for the 
Finance Director to fully review account 
reconciliations on a bi-annual basis. The 
effectiveness of the Company’s financial 
reporting controls is assessed through 
self-certification as part of the Control 
Navigator exercise described above. The 
integrity of the Company’s public financial 
reporting is further supported by a number of 
processes and steps to provide assurance over 
the completeness and accuracy of the content 
including review and recommendation by the 
Audit Committee and review and approval by 
the Board.

activity as it focuses on the dissemination of 
risk information to appropriate levels of 
employees and stakeholders. Appropriate 
channels are available for employees to 
provide feedback on risk management issues 
and suggestions for improvement. The Risk 
Management Team is responsible for the risk 
awareness induction programme for new 
joiners. The induction programme is aimed at 
educating management staff on the 
Company’s approach to risk management and 
internal controls, and provides a forum to 
enhance the participant knowledge on controls 
and exercising that knowledge on managing 
the Company's risk.

Crisis Management Activation

The Company activated crisis management 
team to manage the situation thus enabling the 
business to continue operation. As a result 
business is saved and financial impacts were 
negligible. The most challenging aspect of the 
situation was recovery once the crisis was 
resolved. This was successfully completed in a 
carefully sequenced and choreographed 
manner, thereby minimising disruption. In 2015, 
Bangladesh experienced a period of external 
challenges. Whilst crisis management was not 
activated, as a preliminary step, management 
met and decided on the challenge of business 
especially relating to industrial relation issues 
where crisis management would be activated. 
At the same time, action plans were further 
reviewed for completeness.

Business Continuity Plan Simulation and Testing

During the year, a desktop review/simulation 
was conducted by the Business Continuity Plan 
(BCP) owners, with the support of Crisis 
Response Team members, across 13 BCPs. The 
review and testing indicated that the existing 
plans were still relevant to the current business 
environment except for the Information 
Technology (IT) Disaster Recovery Plan for 
SAP. The IT Disaster Recovery Plan was 
subsequently amended to take into account 
the new SAP instance and associated architecture.

System of Internal Control

Self-Assessment of Controls (SAC) Process 
Central to the Company’s system of internal 
control is its SAC process and the backbone of 
this process is a key control checklist known as 
the Control Navigator. The Control Navigator 
sets out various key controls and process 

External Audit

In the course of conducting the annual 
statutory audit of the Company’s financial 
statements, the external auditors review and 
where applicable based on judgement, 
highlight to the Board and Audit Committee 
any significant audit, accounting and internal 
control matters which require attention. A 
report on the above is given to the Audit 
Committee and to the management once a 
year after substantial completion of the 
year-end audit. Additionally, the external 
auditors attend the quarterly Audit Committee 
meetings, and where applicable provide views 
on any related matters for the attention of the 
Audit Committee. At least once a year, the 
Audit Committee shall meet the external 
auditors without the Executive Directors and 
management being present. This year, the 
Audit Committee has met twice with the 
external auditors without the Executive 
Directors and management being present. 
During the year, as part of the annual statutory 
audit, the external auditors were involved in 
performing certain reviews over the controls 
and processes affecting financial reporting. 
There is no significant matter with material 
financial impact arising from the review of 
these related controls and processes, although 
certain improvement recommendations were 
highlighted to the Board and Audit Committee.

 

Internal Audit

The role of Internal Audit for the Company is 
designed in line with local laws as well as the 
Global Audit functions of British American 
Tobacco plc. This approach ensures a high level 
of independence and gives access to more 
skilled and specialised resources, particularly in 
respect of Information Technology (IT), that 
would otherwise be available withing the 
company The annual audit planning cycle takes 
direct input from both the risk register 
described above and the Audit Committee. In 
turn, the Audit Committee formally approves 
the scope of work for the year. Furthermore, 
with approval of the Audit Committee, the 
Internal Audit Manager can request assistance 
from Global Audit if required for any matter it 
considers appropriate. Within the Company 
three types of audits exist: Entity Audits, 
Process Audits and Project & Programmes 
Audits. Entity audits are focused on one entity 
or business unit with a scope of more than one 
process. Process Audits have a scope of one 
process covered over one or more entities or 
business units (potentially including the Global 
and Regional management of the process), and 
Project & Programmes audits are focused on an 
ongoing project, programme or portfolio. A 
Company Audit is organised into both central 
and regional teams and also include a 
specialised IT Audit capability.

More details on the audit activities conducted 
during the year can be found in the Audit 
Committee Report in this Annual Report.

O
ve

rv
ie

w
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

R
es

p
o

ns
ib

ili
ty

W
in

ni
ng

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
R

ep
o

rt
s 

an
d

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t

47BAT
Bangladesh

The Steering Group who are responsible to drive key business and commercial agendas. 

From left to right: Mr. Naved Manzoor, Mr. Golam Sadek Choudhury, Mr. Zakir Hossain, Mr. Numayer Alam, 
Mr. Jahangir Alam, Mr. Zubayed-Ul Islam, Mr. Affan Siddiqi, Mr. Muhammad Ibrahim, Mr. Syed Mahbub Ali, 

Mr. Irfan Aziz Qureshi, Mr. Zahurul Haque Sarker and Mr. Mehedi Arif Mozammel (Not in the Picture)



AUDIT COMMITTEE

Seated Left to Right: Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Non-Executive Director | 
 Mr. Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan ndc, Independent Director (Chairman, Audit Committee) |

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Chairman.

Standing Left to Right: Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman, former Director |  Mr. Towhid Akbar, Internal Auditor |  
Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman FCS, Company Secretary



Responsibilities and Duties

The responsibilities and duties of the Audit 
Committee are:

Financial Reporting

To review the quarterly and annual financial 
statements of the Company, focusing 
particularly on:

Any significant changes to accounting 
policies and practices;

Significant adjustments arising from the audits;

Compliance with applicable Financial 
Reporting Standards and other legal and 
regulatory requirements; and

The going concern assumption.

Related Party Transactions

To review any related party transactions and 
conflict of interest situations that may arise 
within the Company, including any transaction, 
procedure or course of conduct that may raise 
questions of management integrity.

Audit Reports

To prepare the annual Audit Committee report 
and submit to the Board which includes the 
composition of the Audit Committee, its terms 
of reference, number of meetings held, a 
summary of its activities and the existence of 
internal audit services and summary of the 
activities for inclusion in the Annual Report; and 

To review the Board’s statements on 
compliance with the BSEC Codes of Corporate 
Governance for inclusion in the Annual Report.

Internal Control

To consider annually the Risk Management 
Framework adopted within the Company 
and to be satisfied that the methodology 
deployed allows the identification, analysis, 
assessment, monitoring and communication 

The Audit Committee Report presented under 
condition #3.5 of the BSEC Guidelines provides 
an insight on the functions of the Audit 
Committee during 2015.

As mentioned in the Compliance Statement, the 
Board has formed an Audit Committee, required 
under the codes of Corporate Governance of 
BSEC, with some specific assignments under its 
Terms of Reference. The Committee is 
comprised of Mr. Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan 
ndc (Independent Director & Chairman of Audit 
Committee), Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Mr. Golam 
Mainuddin and Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman. Mr. Md. 
Azizur Rahman, Company Secretary, performs as 
Secretary to the Audit Committee. Mr. Md. 
Iftikhar-Uz-Zaman was appointed as member of 
Audit Committee in place of Mr Md. 
Fayekuzzaman effective from 22 February 2016. 
All members of the Committee are 
non-executives Directors and the Chairman of 
Audit Committee is an Independent Director.  As 
required, all members of the Audit Committee 
are 'financially literate' and are able to analyse 
and interpret financial statements to effectively 
discharge their duties and responsibilities as 
members of the Audit Committee.

Purpose of Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee is to monitor 
the integrity of the financial statements of the 
Company and review and, when appropriate, 
make recommendations to the Board on 
business risks, internal controls and 
compliance. The Committee satisfies itself, by 
means of suitable steps and appropriate 
information, that proper and satisfactory 
internal control systems are in place to identify 
and contain business risks and that the 
Company's business is conducted in a proper 
and financially sound manner. The Audit 
Committee assists the Board of Directors to 
ensure that the financial statements reflect a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company and in ensuring a good monitoring 
system within the business. The Audit 
Committee is responsible to the Board of 
Directors. The duties of the Audit Committee 
are clearly set forth in writing.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 2015
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External Audit

To review the external auditor's audit plan, 
nature and scope of the audit plan, audit 
report, evaluation of internal controls and 
coordination of the external auditor. The 
Audit Committee will consider a 
consolidated opinion on the quality of 
external auditing at one of its meetings;

To review with the external auditor the 
Statement on Risk Management and Internal 
Control of the Company for inclusion in the 
Annual Report;

To review any matters concerning the 
appointment and re-appointment, audit fee 
and resignation or dismissal of the external 
auditor;

To review and evaluate factors related to 
the independence of the external auditor 
and assist them in preserving their 
independence;

To be advised of and decide to or not to 
make significant use of the external auditor 
in performing non-audit services within the 
Company, considering both the types of 
services rendered and the fees, so that its 
position as auditor is not deemed to be 
compromised; and

To review the external auditor’s findings 
arising from audits, particularly any comments 
and responses in management letters as well 
as the assistance given by the employees of 
the Company in order to be satisfied that 
appropriate action is being taken.

Other Matters

To act on any other matters as may be 
directed by the Board.

REPORTING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Reporting to the Board of Directors

The Audit Committee reports on its activities 
to the Board of Directors. The Audit 
Committee immediately reports to the Board 
of Directors on the following findings, if any:

of risks in a regular and timely manner that 
will allow the Company to minimise losses 
and maximise opportunities; 

To ensure that the system of internal control 
is soundly conceived and in place, effectively 
administered and regularly monitored; 

To review the extent of compliance with 
established internal policies, standards, plans 
and procedures including, for example, the 
Company’s Standards of Business Conduct; 

To obtain assurance that proper plans for 
control have been developed prior to the 
commencement of major areas of change 
within the Company; and 

To recommend to the Board steps to 
improve the system of internal control 
derived from the findings of the internal and 
external auditors and from the consultations 
of the Audit Committee itself.

Internal Audit

To be satisfied that the strategies, plans, 
manning and organisation for internal 
auditing are communicated down through 
the Company. Specifically:

To review the internal audit plans and to be 
satisfied as to their consistency with the Risk 
Management Framework used and adequacy 
of coverage;

To be satisfied that the Internal Audit has the 
competency and qualifications to complete 
its mandates and approved audit plans.

To review status reports from the Internal 
Audit and ensure that appropriate actions 
have been taken to implement the audit 
recommendations;

To recommend any broader reviews deemed 
necessary as a consequence of the issues or 
concerns identified;

To ensure that Internal Audit has full, free 
and unrestricted access to all activities, 
records, property and personnel necessary 
to perform its duties; and

To request and review any special audit 
which it deems necessary.
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Reporting to the Shareholders and General 
Investors

Report on activities carried out by the Audit 
Committee, including any report made to the 
Board of Directors under condition 3.4.1 (ii) of 
the BSEC Corporate Governance Notification 
above during the year, shall be signed by the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee and 
disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company.

Authority

The Audit Committee is authorised by the 
Board to review any activity within the 
business as per its terms of reference. It is 
authorised to seek any information or 
attendance it requires from any director or 
member of management at any of its meetings. 
All employees are expected to cooperate with 
any request made by the Committee. The 
Committee is also authorised to have 
information and advice from the Company 
Legal Advisor, Tax Consultant and Statutory 
Auditor if required. The terms of reference of 
Audit Committee may be amended from time 
to time as required for the business in line with 
BSEC notifications subject to approval by the 
Board.

Meeting Attendance

The Audit Committee met four times during the 
year 2015. All the members were present in all 
meetings of the Committee. 

The Managing Director, Finance Director, 
Internal Auditors of British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh Company limited and 
representatives of the external auditors had 
attended the meetings upon invitation by the 
Audit Committee. From time to time, other 
senior members of management have also been 
invited by the Audit Committee to attend 
Audit Committee meetings.

The Audit Committee met with the external 
auditors separately, and with the internal 
auditors, on an annual basis without any 
Executive Director being present. The 
Company Secretary is the Secretary of the 
Audit Committee, who facilitates the 
Chairman and other members for effective 
functioning of the Committee as per its terms 
of reference as well as corporate governance 
notification of BSEC. The details of attendance 
of each member at the Audit Committee 
meetings during 2015 are given overleaf:

Report on conflicts of interests; 

Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or 
material defect in the internal control system;

Suspected infringement of laws, including 
securities related laws, rules and regulations; 

Any other matter that it deems necessary.

In compliance with condition no. 6 of the 
Corporate Governance Guidelines of 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission Notification No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 
07 August 2012, the Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
respectively of British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh Company Limited, have certified 
before the Board that they have thoroughly 
reviewed the Financial Statements of 
theCompany for the year ended 31 December 
2015, and state that:

These statements do not contain any 
materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading,

These statements together present a true 
and fair view of the Company’s affairs and 
are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards and applicable laws, and

To the best of their knowledge and belief, 
the Company has not entered into any 
transaction during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the 
Company’s codes of conduct.

This certificate has been reviewed by the Audit 
Committee before submitting to the Board.

Reporting to the Authorities

The Audit Committee reports to the Board of 
Directors about anything which has material 
impact on the financial condition and results of 
operation. The Committee also discusses with 
the Board of Directors and the management if 
any rectification is necessary. If the Audit 
Committee finds that such rectification has been 
unreasonably ignored, the Committee reports 
such findings to the Bangladesh Securities & 
Exchange Commission upon reporting of such 
matters to the Board of Directors for three times 
or completion of a period of 6 (six) months from 
the date of first reporting to the Board of 
Directors, whichever is earlier.
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TERMS OF REFERENCE CALENDAR 2015

The abridged version of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is mentioned in calendar 2015: 

Attendance at Audit Committee Meetings at Centre

Composition of Audit Committee

Mr. Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan ndc

Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman

Mr. Golam Mainuddin

Chairman, Audit Committee, (Independent Director)

Member, Audit Committee, (Non-Executive Director)

Member, Audit Committee (Non-Executive Director)

Member, Audit Committee (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
Secretary, Audit Committee 

Held Attended

4 4 100%

4 4 100%

4 4 100%

4 4 100%

4 4 100%

%

February April July Oct

Financial Statements

Internal Controls and Business Risks

Internal Audit

External Audit

Monitor the integrity of the financial statements

Review un-audited quarterly accounts

Review the external auditors' representation letter 

Review the draft statement on internal control that is  
included in the Company's Annual Report and Accounts 
Review of accounting policies on a year to year basis

Review risk management framework

Review compliance with policies and processes

Monitor compliance with Standards of Business Conduct

Review control navigator to ensure due process is
available for monitoring effectiveness and efficiency
of internal controls

Monitor procedure for safeguarding assets and ensuring
Company has adequate policies for prevention and
detection of fraud. Gone through loss reporting and
whistle blowing reports

Monitor and discuss with external auditors on the
adequacy of accounting and internal reports

Review the Environment, Health & Safety Report

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company's
internal audit function
Review reports received from Head of Audit

Review & Approve Internal audit plan 

Annually evaluate the performance of the auditors and
recommend their reappointment or change










  


























  

4

3

2

1
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Internal Control

Reviewed the Company’s Risk Management 
Programme, including deep drive into the key 
functional risks for the Company and Risk 
Management Programme work plan.
 
Reviewed and recommended to the Board 
steps to improve the Company's changes to 
accounting policies and practices, 
adjustments arising from the audits. 

Received updates on breaches of the 
Standards of Business Conduct and whistle 
blowing incidents.

Internal Audit

Reviewed internal audit plans as to their 
consistency with the Risk Management 
Framework used and adequacy of coverage. 

Reviewed status reports from internal audit to 
ensure that appropriate actions had been 
taken to implement the audit 
recommendations.
 
Reviewed and enhanced the internal control 
processes. Where appropriate, the Audit 
Committee instructed to rectify and improve 
the internal control processes based on 
internal audit.

February April July Oct

Approve terms of engagement and level of fees payable

Review fees charged by external audit

Review scope of audit and results (year-end / interim)

Review the External Auditors planning memorandum

Review Compliance with BSEC guidelines and other
applicable regulations

Review Terms of Reference of Audit Committee

Private Audience with External Auditors

Private Audience with Internal Auditors

Review the external auditor's management letter
(year-end / interim)

Reporting to the Securities and Exchange Commission

General



























5

Summary of Activities during the Year

In 2015 the Audit Committee reviewed its terms 
of reference in line with requirements of BSEC 
notification on corporate governance. The 
Committee carried out its duties in accordance 
with the terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee. Moreover, an Audit Committee 
effectiveness survey had been carried out for 
the year 2015 which reflected full compliance to 
the effectiveness guidelines. However, the 
Committee emphasised on continuation of the 
tenure of service of the internal audit manager 
for a reasonable time. The Audit Committee 
carried out its responsibilities and duties in 
accordance with the terms of reference and 
carried out the following activities in 2015:

Financial Reporting

Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial 
statements of the Company with the Finance 
Director and Managing Director, focusing 
particularly on significant changes to 
accounting policies and practices, 
adjustments arising from the audit compliance 
with accounting standards and other legal 
requirements before recommending them to 
the Board of Directors for approval, and 
concluded that the financial statements 
presented a true and fair view of the 
Company's financial performance.
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year and recommended to the Board to seek 
shareholders mandated at the upcoming 
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Ethical and Integrity Areas

Deliberated on reports on Whistle Blowing 
and Standards of Business Conduct Breach 
incidents. 

Deliberated on the security and safety matters 
and loss reports. 

Deliberated on the Environmental Health and 
Safety review reports.

Annual Reporting

Reviewed disclosures required by the 
Statement on Corporate Governance, Audit 
Committee Report, Standards of Business 
Conduct, Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control for the financial year ended 31 
December 2015 for inclusion in the Annual 
Report 2015 and recommended their adoption 
by the Board.

Focus Internal Audit

The role of Internal Audit for the Company is 
designed in line with local laws as well as the 
Global Audit function of British American 
Tobacco plc. (British American Tobacco plc. 
Group Internal Audit). This approach ensures a 
high level of independence and gives access to 
more skilled and specialised resources than 
would otherwise be available within the 
Company. The Internal Audit Manager is a 
professional accountant and holds a Masters of 
Business Administration degree, along with nine 
years of cross functional work experience within 
the Company. Within the Company’s Internal 
Audit, three types of audits exist: Entity Audit, 
Process Audit and Project and Programmes 
Audit. Entity audits are focused on one entity or 
business unit with a scope of more than one 
process. Based on the history of a sound control 
environment, the Company is in scope for a full 
entity audit periodically. Process audit has scope 
of one process covered over one or more 
entities or business units (potentially including 
the Global and Regional management of the 
process). Programmes Audit is focused on an 
ongoing project or programme. If required, 
British American Tobacco plc. assists the Audit 

External Audit

Reviewed with the external auditor the 
Company’s quarterly and annual financial 
statements with the Finance Director and 
Managing Director focusing on findings arising 
from audits, particularly comments and 
responses in the management letter as well as 
assistance given by the employees of the 
Company before recommending them to the 
Board of Directors for approval.

Reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan, 
nature and scope of the audit plan, audit 
report, evaluation of internal controls and 
coordination of the external auditor. 

Reviewed the external auditor’s findings 
arising from audits, particularly comments and 
responses in management letters as well as the 
assistance given by the employees of the 
Group in order to be satisfied that appropriate 
action is being taken. 

Exercised its right to hold meetings with the 
external auditor (private audience with 
statutory auditor) without the presence of the 
Executive Directors or management. These 
private sessions help to reinforce the 
independence of the external audit function 
of the Company. 

Reviewed the overall performance of the 
external auditor for the year 2015. 

Related Party Transactions

Reviewed reports of related party 
transactions and possible conflict of interest 
transactions to ensure that all related party 
transactions are undertaken on an arm’s length 
basis and on normal commercial terms, 
consistent with the Company’s usual business 
practices and policies, which are generally not 
more favourable than those generally available 
to the public and other suppliers and are not 
detrimental to the minority shareholders.

Periodically reviewed recurrent related party 
transactions to ensure that they are 
undertaken on an arm’s length basis and on 
normal commercial terms.

Reviewed the estimated recurrent related 
party transactions mandate for the running 
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Undertake special reviews requested by the 
Audit Committee and/or management.

Review the findings and action plans resulting 
from internal audits.

During the financial year, the audits conducted 
by Internal Audit are as follows:

Field Force Management

Health & Safety (Commercial Operations and 
GLT)

Requisition to Pay (Global Process Audit)

Record to Report (Global Process Audit)

This Audit Committee Report is made in 
accordance with the resolution of the Board of 
Directors on 22 February 2016.

Committee in reviewing the effectiveness of 
the Company committee in control systems 
whilst ensuring that there is an appropriate 
balance of controls and risks throughout the 
Company in achieving its business objectives. 
Any inappropriate restrictions on audit scope 
are to be reported to the Audit Committee. 
Internal Audit provides an independent 
assessment on the effectiveness and efficiency 
of internal controls utilising a robust audit 
methodology and tool to support the 
Company and the effectiveness and efficiency 
of inter-efficient and effective risk 
management framework to provide assurance 
over the Company’s strategy delivery and 
change management initiatives. The annual 
audit planning cycle takes direct input from 
both the risk register and the Audit 
Committee. In turn, the Audit Committee 
formally approves the internal audit plan every 
year and reviews the plan on a quarterly basis. 
Any subsequent changes to the internal audit 
plan are approved by the Audit Committee. 
The scope of Internal Audit covers the audits 
of all units and operations. Internal Audit 
adopts a risk-based approach towards the 
planning and conduct of audits which is consistent 
with the Company’s established framework in 
designing, implementing and monitoring its 
control systems. Other main activities performed 
by the Internal Audit are as follows:
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STANDARD OF BUSINESS CONDUCT
BAT Bangladesh employees are governed by the 
Standards of Business Conduct (SoBC) which 
form an integral part of the Company’s corporate 
governance. It is a fundamental policy of the 
Company and the Standards require all 
employees to observe and comply with the laws 
and regulations applicable to them as well as 
operate in accordance with high standards of 
business integrity. Employees must exercise 
honesty, objectivity and diligence in doing their 
work and must ensure that the Standards are 
never compromised for the sake of results. As 
such, the Standards continue to underpin our 
commitment to high standards of corporate 
responsibility. 

The Standards are designed to:

(a) Help employees who are faced with making 
difficult judgements in the course of doing their 
work and ensure that all decisions and 
judgements made by employees are lawful and 
comply with high ethical standards;

(b) Set a tone and culture for the organisation 
which will enable it to be regarded as a good 
corporate citizen; and

(c) Give reassurance to BAT Bangladesh’s 
stakeholders, with whom the Company comes into 
business contact.

The areas covered by the Standards are:

1) Whistle Blowing

2) Conflicts of Interest

3) Bribery and Corruption

4) Entertainment and Gifts

5) Respect in Workplace

6) Human Rights and Our Operations

7) Charitable Contributions

8) Accurate Accounting and Record Keeping

9) Protection of Corporate Assets

10) Confidentiality and Information Security

11) Insider Dealing and Market Abuse

12) Competition and Anti-Trust 

13) Money Laundering 

14) Illicit Trade

15) Sanctions

To ensure compliance, all management 
employees, including the Board of Directors, are 
required to declare their compliance with the 
SoBC and disclose any conflicts of interest on a 
yearly basis. Conflicts of interest to be declared 
in the compliance are in relation to whether the 
employee and/or immediate family have an 
interest in or association with the operations of 
the companies/business which may lead to a 
conflict of interest. Immediate family here 
includes parents, spouses, children, brothers and 
sisters as well as step and adoptive relations.

Compliance with the Standards is monitored 
regularly by the Board of Directors and the Audit 
Committee of the Company. The Legal & External 
Affairs Department/Company Secretary of the 
Company is charged with the responsibility of 
reporting to the Board of Directors on an annual 
basis regardomg the compliance of these 
Standards by BAT Bangladesh and its employees. 
Employees have a duty to report incidences of 
non-compliance with the Standards and any other 
incidences of wrongdoing at work.

We are committed to providing a safe working 
environment for our employees and treat all our 
colleagues and business partners inclusively with 
dignity and with respect. Bullying colleagues is 
strictly prohibited. We do not employ child 
labour which is highlighted in the ‘Human Rights & 
Operations’ segment.  Training sessions in 
different regions including the Head Office have 
been conducted by the Company Secretary & 
Commercial affairs Manager to ensure that our 
employees have precise understanding about the 
Company’s principles and standards covering all 
the sections of SoBC 2014 in their activities and 
behaviour. 

The Standards are made available to our 
employees and Board of Directors at the 
Company’s corporate website at 
www.batbangladesh.com
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Safe drinking water has long been a scarce resource in remote 
areas. Arsenic contamination, salinity intrusion, and ground water 
depletion are among the numerous factors that constrict its 
natural cleanliness. Probaho, an initiative of BAT Bangladesh, 
brought about a significant change across particular districts, 
when the installation of water filtrations saw 350,000 litres of 
pure water and 170,000 healthier lives as the outcome. In 2015, 
‘Probaho’ was titled as the Best CSR Project by the prestigious Asia 
Responsible Entrepreneurship Award (AREA) in Asia Pacific region.



BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

Left to Right: Mr. Shehzad Munim, Managing Director; Ms. Mubina Asaf, Head of Legal & External Affairs, 
Mr. Jalal Ahmed, Non Executive Director; Mr. Mohammad Moinduddin Abdullah, Independent 

Director (Chairman, CSR committee), Mr. Anowarul Amin, Corporate Affairs Manager,
Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman FCS, Company Secretary and Mr. Mikail Shipar, Independent Director



BOARD CSR COMMITTEE REPORT

Purpose Of CSR Committee
The purpose of the Board CSR Committee is to 
ensure management of the Company’s CSR initiatives 
in a way that ensures business sustainability and 
creates and maintains positive impact for the 
reputation of the Company among its stakeholders.

Authority

The Board CSR Committee is authorised by the 
Board of Directors to evaluate activities within 
the business with respect to CSR. The terms of 
reference of the Committee may be amended 
from time to time as required, subject to approval 
by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Committee and its Meetings

The Committee usually meets three timesina year 
ensuring the presence of all members in the 
meeting. Mr. Kamrul Hasan as the chairman of 
Board CSR Committee guided the Company for 
various CSR initiatives. He added great value to 
every dimension in terms of the CSR endeavours 
of BAT Bangladesh during his tenure as Chairman. 
Following the resignation of Mr. Hasan, the Board 
appointed Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah as 
the chairman of this committee. The committee 
is comprised of the following members;

Ms. Mubina Asaf, Head of Legal and External 
Affairs and Mr. Anowarul Amin, Corporate Affairs 
Manager, are the permanent invitees to the CSR 
Committee meetings by their designation. Other 
relevant Managers and stakeholders may attend 
the meeting by invitation.

Activities Summary

In 2015, the CSR Committee highlighted the 
following matters:

BAT Bangladesh CSI (Corporate Social 
Investment) portfolio includes three flagship 
CSI programmes. These are Afforestation, Safe 
Drinking Water and Solar Home Systems.These 
programmes drive the corporate reputation 
based on the sustainable agriculture and 
environment theme.

Water Filtration Project: Recognisingthe 
necessity of water and sanitation, specifically 
in the context of the Sustainable Development 
Goals, BAT Bangladesh has stepped forward 
with a safe drinking water project for its 
community people. So far, 65 water filtration 
plants have been installed ensuring pure 
drinking water for approximately 170,000 
people every day. In 2015, 6 new water 
filtration plants were established in the 
communities. As a result of running this 
particular CSR Programme - Probaho, BAT 
Bangladesh won the ‘Asia Responsible 
Entrepreneurship Awards’ in Asia Pacific for 
best CSR project, in 2015.
 
Solar Home System Project: BAT Bangladesh is 
providing Solar Home Systems in hill tract 
communitiesthose were previously deprived of 
electricity. The solar home system initiative of 
BAT Bangladesh installed 135 units of solar 
home systems in 2015 which totals to 1,801 
units in sixteen remote villages in Bandarban 
and Khagrachari districts, providing about 
11,000 rural people their first access to 
electricity at home.

Afforestation Project: British American 
Tobacco Bangladesh initiated its afforestation 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is core to the ‘Responsibility’ strategy of British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh Company Limited (‘BATB’ or ‘BAT Bangladesh’ or ‘The Company’). It is integral to the business 
sustainability and enhancement of long-term stakeholder value. The Company has a role to play in helping 
society to achieve the necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental protection and 
social progress.

Mr. Kamrul Hasan
Former Chairman
Non-Executive Director (Resigned 8 September, 2015)

Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah
Chairman
Independent Director

Mr. Jalal Ahmed
Member
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shehzad Munim 
Member
Managing Director, BATB

Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
Secretary
Company Secretary, BATB

Mr.Mikail Shipar
Member
Independent Director
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programme in 1980 when the forest 
department of the Government of Bangladesh 
called on the private sector to support its 
endeavour to conserve the forests. So far, BAT 
Bangladesh has contributed around 9 crores 
saplings to the country’s afforestation 
initiative in the last 35 years. Saplings consist of 
fruit, timber and medicine yielding species. In 
2015, as a Company we have participated in 19 
local level tree fairs by the invitation of local 
administrations and won first prizes in all of 
them. This is the highest number of awards 
received from local level administration in 
recent years.

Aligning our CSI with Government and Group 
requirements, its business relevance, and focus 
on contributing to Government’s agenda on 
Sustainable Development Goals(SDGs).

Engaging with local and national level 
stakeholders, highlighting the fact that BAT 
Bangladesh supports many other national and 

local agendas like agricultural advancement, 
people development, and economic 
infrastructural progress which impact 
positively on Nation Building.

A research on ‘Impact Evaluation of CSR 
Initiatives’ has been conducted by an 
independent professional entity. The research 
report includes impact analysis on different 
parameters of all three CSR initiatives as well as 
the annotations of beneficiary communities.We 
believe that the outcome of this impact study 
would add value to our CSR initiatives.

As a responsible Company, British American 
Tobacco Bangladesh believes that the business 
has a key role to play in helping society to achieve 
the necessary sustainable balance of economic 
growth, environmental protection and social 
progress. Therefore, its CSR activities are 
designed to contribute to the economic, social 
and environmental sustainability of the 
community in which it operates.
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Modest investments in electricity and connectivity have always 
inspired notable changes in deprived communities. In Bangladesh, 
about 70% of electricity gets supplied from the national grid, the 
remaining gap is in need of immediate improvement. BAT 
Bangladesh stepped forward to solve the problem, having installed 
1,801 units of solar home systems in 16 villages of the Bandarban and 
Khagrachari districts and benefitting more than 11,000 rural people. 
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tax and EPS was down due to increased corporate 
tax. This growth was achieved through a focused 
business strategy that was supported and 
implemented by our dedicated people across all 
business functions. Our brand portfolio was 
strengthened through consumer relevant 
initiatives and excellence in retail level 
executions. The focus throughout the year was to 
match consumer expectations with the right 
offers across all segments. The entry of Japan 
Tobacco International in the market coupled with  
Phillip Morris International entering High segment 
has further intensified the competitive landscape 
of the industry.

Sales volume increased by 9% with higher growth 
in the low segment offsetting the decline in the 
upper three segments. The price indexing gap 
between the low segment and the upper 
segments has further widened which is causing 
down trading to the low segment. This trend 
continues to be a matter of concern as it 
negatively impacts not only BATB but also 
Government’s revenue earning capacity from the 
cigarette industry. Therefore, we continue to 
engage with policy makers to ensure that 
balanced taxation policies are implemented and 
the down trading is reduced for the sustainability 
of the industry. A review on the performance of 
each of the cigarette segments follows:
 
Premium Segment: 

Once again Benson & Hedges faced tough 
challenges in the market with high price increases 
in 2013, 2014 and 2015 resulting in a gradual 
volume decline. The Company continues to focus 
on building the equity of Benson & Hedges and 
has made consumer-centric investments which 
have strengthened the brand. This segment is 
facing competition due to the increased 
availability of the smuggled cigarette in the 
market due to the price differentiation between 
local cigarettes and duty free foreign cigarettes. 
We are closely watching the activities of the 
global players of this segment in order to 
maintain sustainability of our brand.  

John Player Gold Leaf delivered a good 
performance in first half of 2015 driven by the 
launch of the new variant John Player Gold Leaf 
Special. However, the brand suffered sharp 
decline in volume after price increase was 

It is a pleasure and privilege on the part of the 
Board of Directors to present herewith the 
Directors' Report and Auditors' Report together 
with the audited financial statements of British 
American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited 
(BATB) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Key Strategic Pillars of Business

2015 was a prolific business year for BATB. 
Despite cut-throat competition and political 
turmoil associated with various other market and 
regulatory uncertainties, the Company continued 
to enhance the value for its shareholders' 
investments. Continuing with previous practice, 
the Company was governed under the strategic 
pillars of Growth, Productivity, Sustainability and 
Winning Organisation as the main driving force 
for its outstanding attainments. The notable 
achievements of the business under each pillar, 
together with the salient features of such 
performance are described and depicted in the 
succeeding parts of this report.

GROWTH

Economic & Industry Outlook

The year 2015 registered a modest turn around 
and performance revival in most sectors after the 
nationwide blockade in first quarter of 2015. The 
overall cigarette industry recovered from the 
turmoil in first quarter of 2015 and started 
growing in the later part of 2015; however, on a 
full year basis,  the industry had a marginal 
growth over same period last year. The growth 
dynamics of the industry varied across the 4 price 
segments. Low segment experienced the highest 
growth in 2015 while Medium and High segment 
has declined driven by the abnormal price 
increase dictated in the National Budget in June 
2015. The Premium segment also remained under 
pressure as the declining trend of the last few 
years continued in 2015. Under the current market 
dynamics due to pricing policies, the industry 
growth will be driven by Low segment. 

Company Performance

Amidst the external and competitive challenges 
in 2015, BATB has achieved growth in volume, 
market share and turnover.  However profit after 
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Segment and we are paying higher taxes for the 
brand Star Filter despite being a medium segment 
brand to the consumers.

Low Segment: 

The Industry share in this segment has increased 
from 67% to 74% (on calendar year basis). If we 
look at the first half of the current fiscal year 
(2015-2016), low segment share has reached 
almost 80% level, We believe that the growth of 
this segment is driven by the lack of proportionate 
price increases in low segment while the other 
segments continued to experience consistent 
price increase. The massive growth in this segment 
is a major concern for BATB and we believe that 
government revenue is also lagging due to the 
down trading to this segment. Government should 
find the right pricing strategy to maximize their 
revenue by minimizing the down trading. The 
pricing strategy need to be worked out in the next 
national budget to facilitate a stable revenue 
growth of the government and profitability of the 
manufacturer.

imposed in this segment during the national 
budget in June 2015. Consistent investment and 
consumer-relevant innovation has continued 
behind this brand to hold the strong brand equity 
and to retain its leading brand status within this 
segment. An innovative 12’s pack was introduced 
to optimize the pricing benefit to consumers, but the 
brand still struggles to regain its pre-budget base.

High Segment: 

The current High segment has declined in volume 
as consumers are moving down to Low segment 
brands. Despite the decline in volume, Star Filter 
has performed well to strengthen its position in 
the segment. We have continued regular market 
investment behind this segment’s brands by 
consistently improving quality to meet consumer 
preference.

Medium Segment: 

Due to change in pricing structure dictated by 
National Budget in June 2015, our previously Medium 
segment brand Star Filter has been placed at High 

Segment share (Volume) of the cigarette industry for the full year is shown below:

2014 (Jan to Dec)

Volume contribution Govt. Revenue contribution

2015 (Jan to Dec)

Premium

High

Medium

Low

5%

13%

8%

74%

Premium

High

Medium

Low
67%

5%
10%

18%

The following chart also shows the low segment’s volume contribution vis-à-vis its revenue contribution to govt.

Premium

High

Medium

Low

Premium

High

Medium

Low

2015 (Jan to Dec) 2015 (Jan to Dec)

74%

5% 8%

13%
41%

19%

19%

21%
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The Company recognizes the Government’s 
revenue growth targets and the industry has been 
working with the National Board of Revenue 
(NBR) over the years to ensure sustainable 
revenue growth from the cigarette industry. 
While listed companies of all other industries 
enjoy a privileged corporate tax rate, the same 
privilege has been withdrawn by the Govt. for 
listed Cigarette companies. Company strongly 
feels that by targeting the corporate tax 
structure of a listed cigarette manufacturer, it 
significantly impacts the shareholders’ return 
(which includes the Government of Bangladesh as 
well as the local shareholders) and also takes 
away the incentives for other tobacco companies 
to get listed and thus boost up the capital market. 
The Company believes that the Government will 
reinstate investment-friendly corporate tax rate 
structures while considering the upcoming 
National Budget. Cigarettes are already highly 
taxed (in the form of Supplementary duty) and 
there is no instance of discriminated corporate 
tax anywhere in the world for Tobacco Company 
despite being listed. We will apprise the 
regulators to correct the position in the next 
national budget.

It is very clear from the above chart that while 
low segment contributes 74% of the total 
volume, this segment contributes only 41% of the 
total revenue of the govt. from the cigarette 
industry. Thus, govt. has a huge opportunity to 
increase the revenue from cigarette industry by 
just correcting the pricing and tax structure of 
low segment.

BATB’s Contribution to National Exchequer

In 2015, the Company contributed BDT 11,051 
crores as Value added tax, Supplementary Duty, 
Health Development Surcharge (HDSC), Income 
Tax & Customs duty. This represents an increase 
of BDT 1,044 crores. BATB contributed 68% of 
the total VAT, SD & HDSC collected from the 
Cigarette industry. The Company will continue to 
support Government proposals that help to 
establish a sustainable level of tax contribution to 
the National Exchequer while ensuring a 
sustainable growth for the industry and 
promoting a level playing field among market 
players. Since this is a matured industry, it must 
not be stretched too far without considering the 
market segment dynamics and its ability to 
absorb price increases.

2011
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2012 2013 2014 2015

VAT+SD+HDSC Income tax Customs Duty
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As a result of all these efforts, the Company’s 
operating margin has marginally improved from 
32% in 2014 to 33% in 2015. 

SUSTAINABILITY

Climate and environmental conservation has 
always been an issue of intense importance for 
Bangladesh. This is more so, as according to 
various naturalists reports, Bangladesh will 
remain a vulnerable nation to the impacts of 
climate change in the decades ahead. With that in 
consideration, BATB believes that business has a 
key role to play in helping society to achieve the 
necessary sustainable balance of economic 
growth, environmental protection and social 
progress in ways that will build value for all our 
stakeholders. 

The flagship activity of the Company, the 
Afforestation Program, began in 1980.  So far, 
your Company has distributed approximately 9 
crores free saplings in and around our operational 
areas including 4 million saplings alone in 2015.  
This continued effort makes the program the 
largest private sector driven afforestation 
programs in the country. The Company is 
committed to continue this program to support 
the Government initiative to combat the adverse 
effects of climate change. Over the years, the 
Company received a number of national and 
international awards and accolades for the 
afforestation drive across the country. Your 
Company received Asia’s top rank business award 
‘Asia Responsible Entrepreneurship Award for 
Green Leadership’ from Enterprise Asia for the 
largest afforestation project in the private sector 
of Bangladesh. 

Millions of people in Bangladesh face scarcity of 
safe drinking water due to arsenic contamination.  
Responding to this need BATB has taken up a 
project that provides approximately 350,000 
litters of arsenic and other impurities free safe 
drinking water to arsenic-prone rural 
communities every day. This program is aligned 
with the Government’s aim to achieve the 
Sustainable Development Goals of securing 
access to safe drinking water. So far, 65 water 
filtration plants have been installed, using 
government approved water filtration technology 
in Jhenaidah, Chuadanga, Meherpur, Kushtia, 
Tangail, Manikganj, Satkhira, Gopalganj, 
Lalmonirhat, Kurigram, Jamalpur, Madaripur and 
Natore ensuring pure drinking water for nearly 
170,000 people every day. 

To complement Bangladesh Government’s efforts 
in the renewable energy sector, BATB has 

Financial Results

BATB’s gross turnover for the year was BDT 14,371 
crores, up by BDT 1,699 crores from the previous 
year. This increase was driven by volume growth 
and Government led price increase offset by 
massive downtrading. The higher profit before 
tax reflects higher volumes and increased prices, 
coupled with cost savings and productivity 
initiatives driven across the Company. However, 
due to removal of 5% concessional corporate tax 
rate (40% to 45%) on a retrospective basis, 
Profit after Tax has reduced by 6.8%, from BDT 
628 crores in last year to BDT 585 crores in 2015.

PRODUCTIVITY

In line with 9% growth in sales volume, the overall 
supply chain has been challenged to deliver 
on-time in full production. As a result, 
manufacturing capacity was scaled up and also 
modified to cater to different pack formats. This 
required significant investment and meticulous 
planning so that the growing diverse market 
demand could be met with minimum disruption in 
the manufacturing process. A series of 
productivity initiatives were undertaken not only 
to improve machine efficiency but compensating 
for the disruption in production while scaling up 
the factory. The year 2015 also marks the highest 
ever buying and processing of green leaf. Our leaf 
growing area was also revamped through various 
productivity initiatives to process this 
incremental leaf volume while not increasing the 
land area used. 

Cost of Goods Sold and Profit Margins

In spite of various challenges beyond company 
control, which threatened to disrupt our supply 
chain in the year, we could manage logistics and 
other involved contingencies, which ensured that 
our ability to manufacture and supply cigarettes 
to the market was not compromised. These 
eventualities increased the costs of production 
and sales resulting in upward pressure on our cost 
base. However, your Company was able to 
mitigate this through delivering a number of cost 
control initiatives that resulted in minimisation of 
cost of goods sold per unit in 2015. 

Furthermore, your Company continued its 
company-wide smart cost management program 
and analysed and explored all opportunities to 
reduce costs structures. This program has helped 
to optimize the operating expenses of the 
Company and focused resources on areas that 
were required to fuel growth and sustainability. 

farming communities aware of the importance of 
different elements in nature and their 
contribution in the eco-system. The biodiversity 
corners are located in Kushtia, Meherpur, 
Chuadanga, Jhenaidah, Rangpur, Manikganj, 
Bandarban, Khagrachari and Cox’s Bazar districts.
The Company supports sensible tobacco 
regulations that balances the preferences of 
consumers with the interests of society and 
enables the business to continue to compete and 
prosper. The Company is conducting all its 
activities in line with the amended Smoking and 
Tobacco Products Usage (Control) Act, 2013.All 
of the marketing activities are governed by the 
Smoking and Tobacco Usage (Control) Act, 2005 
and Amendment Act, 2013 and their subsequent 
rules along with the BAT Group’s own 
International Marketing Principles. A 
collaboration of the Tobacco Laws and 
International Marketing Principles combines the 
Company’s Marketing Communications 
Guideline. These principles symbolize the 
commitment to marketing the company products 
appropriately and only to adult users in 
compliance with local laws and regulations. 
Therefore, BATB is fully conscious of its 
standpoints and responsibilities.

The tobacco industry has an economic impact 
both in terms of revenue generation for the 
Government and employment generation by 
employing 1,400 direct employees, and 52,000 
indirect employees in the form of farmers, 
distributors and suppliers and over 1.3 million 
retailers. The Company therefore, seeks that the 
Government takes an inclusive and participative 
approach about tobacco regulations, so that the 
regulatory policies reflect the views of all relevant 
stakeholders and are practical and enforceable.

WINNING ORGANISATION

The year-end attainments of the Company in 
2015, even with so many challenges confronted, 
demonstrates the resolves and determination of 
the Board, Management and overall the peoples 
of BATB. The outstanding performance of the 
year is the ultimate achievement of its 
hardworking people and the efficiency of the 
teams. The people of BATB are ever committed in 
driving the business with passion to win in an 
ever-changing business environment. The rapid 
success and growth of the company is powered 
through providing employees with an amazing 
work environment and involving the employees 
within the core business strategies. Peoples’ 
constant resilience to tackle all the challenges has 
transformed BATB into an organisation that is 
energetic and catapults it to success. 

undertaken a project to install solar home 
systems in village homes that are in remote, 
off-grid areas of Chittagong Hill Tracts. The solar 
home system initiative of BATB supplied 135 units 
of solar home systems in 2015 (which totals to 
1,801 units since inception of this program) in 
remote villages in Bandarban and Khagrachari 
districts, giving about 11,000 rural people their 
first access to electricity at home.

BATB has had a fruitful partnership with farmers 
across the country through its various programs 
dedicated to improving agricultural practices and 
standards. The Company’s Leaf function starts 
with the hard works of around 35,000 registered 
farmers within the village community. BATB’s 
contract farming model has been a proven and 
renowned model for years. The Company ensures 
that the sources are sustainable by proactively 
setting high standards of agricultural practices. 
The initiatives include green manuring with 
Dhaincha (Sesbania Aculeata) - an effective 
approach to enrich soil health and fertility. 
Dhaincha is also promoted as an alternate fuel in 
leaf growing areas. In 2015, the Company 
distributed nearly 250 metric tons of free 
Dhaincha seeds amongst farmers. Moreover, 
Integrated Pest Management Clubs have also 
been expanded in collaboration with the 
Department of Agricultural Extension to educate 
the farmers about the adoption of good 
agricultural practices. As a result of this 
continuous education program farmers became 
more cautious and conscious about the use of 
chemical pesticide in farming and adopted the 
use of neem in different forms as an alternative to 
chemical pesticide. 

Improving soil fertility and conserving water are 
integral elements of good agricultural practices. 
The Company provides the know-how and bears 
the full cost to install compost pits in the 
homesteads of our registered farmers. This 
significantly reduces dependence on the use of 
chemical fertilizers and also reduces the cost of 
production and increase the organic matter 
content in the soil resulting improved fertility in 
the cultivation area. As a water management 
program, proper irrigation systems have been 
introduced which ensures that, only the required 
level of water is used and there is no wastage. 
The Company acknowledges its impact as well as 
dependence on biodiversity, through the 
business operations and use of eco-system 
services, such as forest products, soil and water. 
So far, 64 biodiversity corners including 8 new 
corners have been established in 2015 with the 
help of the registered farmers in order to make 
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As a result of all these efforts, the Company’s 
operating margin has marginally improved from 
32% in 2014 to 33% in 2015. 

SUSTAINABILITY

Climate and environmental conservation has 
always been an issue of intense importance for 
Bangladesh. This is more so, as according to 
various naturalists reports, Bangladesh will 
remain a vulnerable nation to the impacts of 
climate change in the decades ahead. With that in 
consideration, BATB believes that business has a 
key role to play in helping society to achieve the 
necessary sustainable balance of economic 
growth, environmental protection and social 
progress in ways that will build value for all our 
stakeholders. 

The flagship activity of the Company, the 
Afforestation Program, began in 1980.  So far, 
your Company has distributed approximately 9 
crores free saplings in and around our operational 
areas including 4 million saplings alone in 2015.  
This continued effort makes the program the 
largest private sector driven afforestation 
programs in the country. The Company is 
committed to continue this program to support 
the Government initiative to combat the adverse 
effects of climate change. Over the years, the 
Company received a number of national and 
international awards and accolades for the 
afforestation drive across the country. Your 
Company received Asia’s top rank business award 
‘Asia Responsible Entrepreneurship Award for 
Green Leadership’ from Enterprise Asia for the 
largest afforestation project in the private sector 
of Bangladesh. 

Millions of people in Bangladesh face scarcity of 
safe drinking water due to arsenic contamination.  
Responding to this need BATB has taken up a 
project that provides approximately 350,000 
litters of arsenic and other impurities free safe 
drinking water to arsenic-prone rural 
communities every day. This program is aligned 
with the Government’s aim to achieve the 
Sustainable Development Goals of securing 
access to safe drinking water. So far, 65 water 
filtration plants have been installed, using 
government approved water filtration technology 
in Jhenaidah, Chuadanga, Meherpur, Kushtia, 
Tangail, Manikganj, Satkhira, Gopalganj, 
Lalmonirhat, Kurigram, Jamalpur, Madaripur and 
Natore ensuring pure drinking water for nearly 
170,000 people every day. 

To complement Bangladesh Government’s efforts 
in the renewable energy sector, BATB has 

Financial Results

BATB’s gross turnover for the year was BDT 14,371 
crores, up by BDT 1,699 crores from the previous 
year. This increase was driven by volume growth 
and Government led price increase offset by 
massive downtrading. The higher profit before 
tax reflects higher volumes and increased prices, 
coupled with cost savings and productivity 
initiatives driven across the Company. However, 
due to removal of 5% concessional corporate tax 
rate (40% to 45%) on a retrospective basis, 
Profit after Tax has reduced by 6.8%, from BDT 
628 crores in last year to BDT 585 crores in 2015.

PRODUCTIVITY

In line with 9% growth in sales volume, the overall 
supply chain has been challenged to deliver 
on-time in full production. As a result, 
manufacturing capacity was scaled up and also 
modified to cater to different pack formats. This 
required significant investment and meticulous 
planning so that the growing diverse market 
demand could be met with minimum disruption in 
the manufacturing process. A series of 
productivity initiatives were undertaken not only 
to improve machine efficiency but compensating 
for the disruption in production while scaling up 
the factory. The year 2015 also marks the highest 
ever buying and processing of green leaf. Our leaf 
growing area was also revamped through various 
productivity initiatives to process this 
incremental leaf volume while not increasing the 
land area used. 

Cost of Goods Sold and Profit Margins

In spite of various challenges beyond company 
control, which threatened to disrupt our supply 
chain in the year, we could manage logistics and 
other involved contingencies, which ensured that 
our ability to manufacture and supply cigarettes 
to the market was not compromised. These 
eventualities increased the costs of production 
and sales resulting in upward pressure on our cost 
base. However, your Company was able to 
mitigate this through delivering a number of cost 
control initiatives that resulted in minimisation of 
cost of goods sold per unit in 2015. 

Furthermore, your Company continued its 
company-wide smart cost management program 
and analysed and explored all opportunities to 
reduce costs structures. This program has helped 
to optimize the operating expenses of the 
Company and focused resources on areas that 
were required to fuel growth and sustainability. 

farming communities aware of the importance of 
different elements in nature and their 
contribution in the eco-system. The biodiversity 
corners are located in Kushtia, Meherpur, 
Chuadanga, Jhenaidah, Rangpur, Manikganj, 
Bandarban, Khagrachari and Cox’s Bazar districts.
The Company supports sensible tobacco 
regulations that balances the preferences of 
consumers with the interests of society and 
enables the business to continue to compete and 
prosper. The Company is conducting all its 
activities in line with the amended Smoking and 
Tobacco Products Usage (Control) Act, 2013.All 
of the marketing activities are governed by the 
Smoking and Tobacco Usage (Control) Act, 2005 
and Amendment Act, 2013 and their subsequent 
rules along with the BAT Group’s own 
International Marketing Principles. A 
collaboration of the Tobacco Laws and 
International Marketing Principles combines the 
Company’s Marketing Communications 
Guideline. These principles symbolize the 
commitment to marketing the company products 
appropriately and only to adult users in 
compliance with local laws and regulations. 
Therefore, BATB is fully conscious of its 
standpoints and responsibilities.

The tobacco industry has an economic impact 
both in terms of revenue generation for the 
Government and employment generation by 
employing 1,400 direct employees, and 52,000 
indirect employees in the form of farmers, 
distributors and suppliers and over 1.3 million 
retailers. The Company therefore, seeks that the 
Government takes an inclusive and participative 
approach about tobacco regulations, so that the 
regulatory policies reflect the views of all relevant 
stakeholders and are practical and enforceable.

WINNING ORGANISATION

The year-end attainments of the Company in 
2015, even with so many challenges confronted, 
demonstrates the resolves and determination of 
the Board, Management and overall the peoples 
of BATB. The outstanding performance of the 
year is the ultimate achievement of its 
hardworking people and the efficiency of the 
teams. The people of BATB are ever committed in 
driving the business with passion to win in an 
ever-changing business environment. The rapid 
success and growth of the company is powered 
through providing employees with an amazing 
work environment and involving the employees 
within the core business strategies. Peoples’ 
constant resilience to tackle all the challenges has 
transformed BATB into an organisation that is 
energetic and catapults it to success. 

undertaken a project to install solar home 
systems in village homes that are in remote, 
off-grid areas of Chittagong Hill Tracts. The solar 
home system initiative of BATB supplied 135 units 
of solar home systems in 2015 (which totals to 
1,801 units since inception of this program) in 
remote villages in Bandarban and Khagrachari 
districts, giving about 11,000 rural people their 
first access to electricity at home.

BATB has had a fruitful partnership with farmers 
across the country through its various programs 
dedicated to improving agricultural practices and 
standards. The Company’s Leaf function starts 
with the hard works of around 35,000 registered 
farmers within the village community. BATB’s 
contract farming model has been a proven and 
renowned model for years. The Company ensures 
that the sources are sustainable by proactively 
setting high standards of agricultural practices. 
The initiatives include green manuring with 
Dhaincha (Sesbania Aculeata) - an effective 
approach to enrich soil health and fertility. 
Dhaincha is also promoted as an alternate fuel in 
leaf growing areas. In 2015, the Company 
distributed nearly 250 metric tons of free 
Dhaincha seeds amongst farmers. Moreover, 
Integrated Pest Management Clubs have also 
been expanded in collaboration with the 
Department of Agricultural Extension to educate 
the farmers about the adoption of good 
agricultural practices. As a result of this 
continuous education program farmers became 
more cautious and conscious about the use of 
chemical pesticide in farming and adopted the 
use of neem in different forms as an alternative to 
chemical pesticide. 

Improving soil fertility and conserving water are 
integral elements of good agricultural practices. 
The Company provides the know-how and bears 
the full cost to install compost pits in the 
homesteads of our registered farmers. This 
significantly reduces dependence on the use of 
chemical fertilizers and also reduces the cost of 
production and increase the organic matter 
content in the soil resulting improved fertility in 
the cultivation area. As a water management 
program, proper irrigation systems have been 
introduced which ensures that, only the required 
level of water is used and there is no wastage. 
The Company acknowledges its impact as well as 
dependence on biodiversity, through the 
business operations and use of eco-system 
services, such as forest products, soil and water. 
So far, 64 biodiversity corners including 8 new 
corners have been established in 2015 with the 
help of the registered farmers in order to make 
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and posed even tougher challenges for the 
participants. The talent brand that celebrates the 
endeavours of the employees was launched 
alongside Battle of Minds. The total number of 
participants exceeded over 2500 this year as 
BATB is determined to leave a footprint in the 
nation-building process with the help of its Battle 
of Minds and the success stories of its employees 
through the talent brand.

The people of BAT are the reason for its success 
and BATB tries continuously to provide a work 
environment and culture that motivates people 
and helps them achieve their full potential. BATB 
takes on multiple initiatives in order to create a 
workforce that is highly engaged and strives to 
bring the people together in achieving the 
organisational objective. We work constantly in 
involving people to make sure that they 
corroborate with the mission and vision of the 
company as well as their individual missions and 
vision. We also work to ensure that they believe 
in what they are doing will take BATB toward 
growth. 

In order to ensure that the values of the 
organisation touch the employees’ lives, the 
Company organizes events such as Family Day; 
Kid’s Carnival and encourages its people to take 
part in various sports and games that make up the 
events. All in all, BATB remained steadfast and 
ready to face the constant challenges that came 
in our way in 2015 and at the same time meet the 
goals of the Company and deliver results for our 
shareholders. 

BATB focuses on the learning and growth of its 
people with the aim of developing leadership 
abilities to assist the people realize their full 
potential. This is done by supplying the right 
opportunities to learn from their leaders and 
applying BAT’s globally recognized learning and 
development platforms. The organisation 
continues to provide the people with an 
environment that listens to their queries and that 
nurtures the talent. More than 240 managers have 
been trained through programs that helped them 
unleash their full potential. BATB focuses on 
building functional skills and also provides 
hands-on experiences to develop individuals as 
leaders. With the aim of sustaining the present 
agenda for talent, 101 employees were 
transferred to other roles and 71 were promoted. 
International assignments were given to 18 
Bangladeshi managers in countries such as UK, 
Singapore, Cambodia, Poland, Japan, Korea and 
Pakistan. On top of that, 450 employees were 
provided with leadership and functional skills training. 

The vigorous assessment tools and techniques 
that BATB implements help bring in the best 
talent that add to the sustainable performance of 
the Company. The 12th edition of “Battle of 
Minds”, the flagship talent promoting program of 
the Company was launched for universities all 
over Bangladesh. Battle of minds provides 
students with fantastic exposure and a platform 
to showcase their talent. Every year Battle of 
Minds comes up with new ways to be more 
challenging as was the case this time around. 
Battle of Minds 2015 was bigger than ever before 

KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The key operating and financial information for the year 2015 along with the preceding four years are
presented below:

Financial & Operational Performance Summary 2015

Operational Results               (financials in million BDT)

Gross Turnover 143,712

39,895

12,460

5,846

600

97.43

1,400

110,505

2014

126,725

35,562

10,866

6,282

600

104.70

1,353

100,070

Net Turnover

Profit before Tax

Profit After Tax

Share Capital

EPS in BDT

No of Employees

Total Contribution to National Exchequer in million BDT

2013

109,582

31,225

9,104

4,924

600

81.14

1,251

84,402

2012

90,174

27,471

6,501

3,942

600

65.59

1,119

66,969

2011

75,357

23,269

4,914

2,551

600

42.51

1,146

57,266

68 Annual Report
2015



DIRECTORS PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION

K. H. Masud Siddiqui and Mr. Md. Iftikhar-Uz-Zaman who 
were appointed to the Board after the last Annual General 
Meeting shall retire in the ensuing meeting. Mr. Jalal Ahmed 
shall also retire from the Board by rotation at the 43rd 
Annual General Meeting.  All the retiring Directors, being 
eligible, are proposed for re-election at the 43rd Annual 
General Meeting. 

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Mr. Golam Mainuddin having reached the age 
above 65 years shall retire at the upcoming General 
Meeting. However, being eligible, he is also proposed for 
re-election at the Meeting for one year i.e. until the 
conclusion of the 44th Annual General Meeting.

Appointment of Independent Directors

Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah was re-appointed as 
Independent Director and Mr. Mikail Shipar was also 
appointed as an Independent Director by the Board of 
Directors in its meeting dated 15 March 2016. As per the 
notification of BSEC the appointment of Mr. Mohammad 
Moinuddin Abdullah and Mr. Shipar would be placed for 
approval at the 43rd Annual General Meeting.

Board Subcommittees:
There are currently three functional sub-committees of the 
Board, namely: Audit Committee, Compensation Committee 
and CSR Committee, the details of which are as follows :

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

As per stipulations of the Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission (BSEC) Guidelines, the Board has 
constituted an Audit Committee which is mentioned in the 
Compliance Report enclosed herewith. The Committee 
comprises of Mr. Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan ndc 
(Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee), 
Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui, Mr Md. Fayekuzzaman and Mr. 
Golam Mainuddin. However, effective 22nd February 2016, 
Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman has been replaced by Mr. Iftikhar Uz 
Zaman. All the members of the Committee are 
non-executives Directors 

Mr.Golam Mainuddin
Chairman, Board of Directors

Mr.Shehzad Munim
Managing Director

Mr. Kamrul Hasan
No-Executive Director & Chairman CSR Committee
(Resigned w.e.f. 8 September 2015)

Mr. Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan ndc
Independent Director & Chairman, Audit Committee

Mr. K. H. Masud Siddiqui
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah
Independent Director

Mr. Mikail Shipar
Independent Director
(Appointed w.e.f. 15 March 2016)

Mr. Jalal Ahmed
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman
Non-Executive Director
(Resigned w.e.f. 22 February 2016)

Mr. Md. Iftikhar-Uz-Zaman
(Appointed w.e.f. 22 February 2016)

Mr. William Francis Pegel
Finance Director

Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman FCS
Company Secretary

Mr. Kamrul Hasan and Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman  resigned from 
the Board with effect from 8 September 2015 and 22 
February 2016 respectively. The Board of Directors would 
like to put on record the excellent contributions towards 
the continuous improvement of the Company by them 
during their tenure as Non-Executive Directors and wish 
them every success in the future.

DIVIDEND

In view of the performance of the Company and the current liquidity position, the Board recommends a 
final cash Dividend of BDT 55 per share i.e. amounting to BDT 3,300,000,000 for the year 2015, translating 
into 56.45% of Profit after Tax, to be approved in the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

After approval of the above mentioned proposed final dividend, the summary of the total dividend paid 
in 2015 is represented below:

Amount in Million BDT

Profit after Tax

Interim Cash Dividend

Final Cash Dividend @ Tk 55 per share

Retained Profit for Reinvestment

2012

600

3,120

942

3,942

2013

600

3,120

1,204

4,924

2014

600

2,700

2,982

6,282

2015

-

3,300

2,546

5,846

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of nine Directors. Out of the nine members in the Board, 
seven are non-executive Directors including three independent Directors and most of whom are also 
senior officials of the Bangladesh Government. The composition of the Board during 2015 was as follows: 
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THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board of Directors assures its Shareholders that the 
Company has a S risk management process to ensure that 
the system of internal control is sound in design and has 
been effectively implemented and monitored. Although it 
is possible that all risks to the business are not known at 
present The Company takes reasonable steps to identify 
material risks that may hamper business results and 
systematically reviews these risks in light of the changing 
internal and external environment in order to assess that 
controls that are in place are adequate to address these 
risks. This report further encloses a detailed discussion on 
the internal control framework under the Statement of 
Internal Control.

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION AS TO FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the governance of the 
Company, and as part of preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements, the Directors confirm, to the best 
of their knowledge that:

The financial statements, prepared by the Management 
of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the 
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in 
equity;

Proper books of account of the Company have been 
maintained;

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently 
applied in preparation of the financial statements and 
that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable 
and prudent judgment;

The International Accounting Standards, as applicable in 
Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the 
financial statements and any departure therefrom has 
been adequately disclosed;

The system of internal control is sound in design and has 
been effectively implemented and monitored;

There is no doubt, whatsoever, upon the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern;

As required under the BSEC directives, the Directors 
further confirm that:

The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they 
have reviewed the financial statements and affirmed 
that these statements do not contain any materially 
untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading.

The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board that they 
have reviewed the financial statements and affirmed 
that these statements together present a true and fair 
view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards and applicable laws.  

The CEO and CFO have further certified to the Board 
that there are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
no transactions entered into by the company during the 
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the 
company’s codes of conduct.

and the Chairman of Audit Committee is an Independent 
Director. The Audit Committee met four times during the 
year 2015. All the members were present in all meetings of 
the Committee. Mr. Md. Azizur Rahman, Company 
Secretary served as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. 
Our Internal Audit Manager, Mr. Towhid Akbar, had 
presented the audit findings to the Audit Committee in the 
meetings. The key performances of the Audit Committee 
during the year were as follows:

Reviewed and recommended to the Board the quarterly 
and annual financial statements.

Considered and recommended to the Board the 
appointment and remuneration of the Statutory 
Auditors and Compliance Auditor of the Company.

Reviewed and appraised the performance of the internal 
control system.

Reviewed and recommended to the Board the Internal 
Audit Plan and monitored the progress about the same.

Discussed the Internal and External Audit Report and 
findings therein with the auditors, members of 
Management and monitored the status of 
implementation of recommendations therein.

Reviewed and considered the report on matters as 
required under the BSEC Guidelines.

Reviewed the Loss and write-off report.

BOARD COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Board Compensation Committee makes 
recommendations to the Board on terms of employment of 
the members of the Executive Committee, managers and 
employees. This Committee met two times in 2015, and is 
headed by a Non-Executive Director. The other members 
include the Managing Director and the Finance Director. 
The Head of Human Resources functions as the Secretary 
to the Board Compensation Committee.

BOARD CSR COMMITTEE

The Board Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee is comprised of four Directors, of which, an 
Independent Director is the Chairman. The constituents of 
the Committee are Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah 
(Chairman of CSR Committee), Mr. Mikail Shipar, Mr Jalal 
Ahmed and Mr. Shehzad Munim. The purpose of the Board 
CSR Committee is to ensure long term sustainability of 
Company aspirations and management of the Company’s 
CSR initiatives. The initiatives are managed in a way that 
secures business stability and creates positive image and 
reputation of the Company amongst the stakeholders and 
establishes the Company’s commitment to the nation at 
large. The CSR committee met 1 (one) time in 2015.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company is a 
going concern. Accordingly, Financial Statements are 
prepared on a going concern basis.
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consumption and it will now be impossible to 
realise the additional taxes from them. Moreover, 
LTU-VAT authority has not alleged or shown any 
evidence to the effect that the Company had 
collected price differential of Low and Medium 
segments from the customers. As such, the 
Company strongly believes that the demand to 
pay the taxes is devoid of logic and fairness and 
against the VAT law. This has also been confirmed 
by the Ministry of Law’s opinion on this issue.

OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES:

The Company is aware of its various risks and concerns, 
mainly from the policy and regulatory fronts, and is 
prepared to meet those by systematic control. Financial 
risk management has been disclosed under note 33 of 
the financial statements 

All transactions with related parties have been made on 
a commercial basis and the basis was the principle of 
"Arm's Length Transaction". Details of related party and 
transactions have been disclosed under note 34 of the 
financial statements.

The Company’s IPO was made during inception. No 
further issue of any instrument was made during the year.

From inception, the financial results of the Company 
have continued to grow as reflected in the yearly 
financial statements of the Company.

As per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, no 
items of income and expense are to be presented as 
‘extraordinary gain or losses in the financial statements. 
Accordingly, no extraordinary gain or loss has been 
recognized in the financial statements.

No significant variations have occurred between 
quarterly and final financial results of the Company 
during 2015.

During the year, the Company has paid a total amount of 
BDT 80,250 as Board meeting attendance fees. The 
remuneration of Directors has been mentioned in Note 
34 of the Financial Statements. 

All significant deviations from the previous year in 
operating results of the Company have been highlighted 
and reasons thereof have been explained.

The key operating and financial data for the last five 
years have been disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

The Company has proposed both interim and final 
dividends for the year 2015.

During 2015, a total of 12 (twelve) Board meetings were 
held, which met the regulatory requirements in this 
respect. The attendance records of the Directors are 
shown in Annexure-1 to this report.

Shareholding patterns of the Company as on 31 
December 2015 are shown in Annexure-1 to this report.

The Directors’ profiles have been included in the Annual 
Report as per BSEC Guidelines.

RETROSPECTIVE TAX DEMAND BY LTU- NBR

On November 2013, the Large Taxpayers’ 
Unit-Value Added Tax (LTU-VAT) authority of 
National Board of Revenue (NBR) claimed BDT 
1,924 crores, as retrospective tax demand from 
the Company for the sale of the Company brands 
Bristol and Pilot during the years 2009 to 2013.The 
Company immediately protested the said claim to 
the Commissioner LTU-VAT as well as the NBR and 
also engaged with the senior relevant officials of 
the Government. The Company also filed two writ 
petitions before the High Court challenging the 
retrospective Tax demand by the NBR. 
Accordingly, the High Court stayed the 
retrospective tax demand along with a Rule upon 
the concerned VAT Authorities. However, the 
VAT Authorities appealed against the stay orders 
and after several hearings at the Appellate 
Division as well as the High Court, the matter was 
sent back to the Commissioner, LTU-VAT for 
adjudicating the same on merit taking into 
consideration the Company’s objections raised in 
the writ petitions. Subsequently, the NBR 
authority, the Honourable Finance Minister and 
the Honourable Law Minister had a meeting 
together to redress our grievances. As an 
outcome of the meeting, the Law Ministry was 
entrusted to give their opinion within the purview 
of the VAT Law. The Law Ministry gave a clear 
opinion by which it was confirmed that the VAT 
authorities’ retrospective VAT demand from the 
Company was not within the purview of law, 
hence illegal. Despite the Law Ministry’s clear 
opinion, the Commissioner, LTU-VAT finalized the 
demand against the Company without taking into 
consideration the said opinion. BATB challenged 
the demand in the High Court which is currently 
pending. In the meantime the Company continues 
to engage with the relevant stakeholders to try 
and reach an out of court resolution.      

The Company always obtained price approvals of 
Bristol and Pilot from the LTU-VAT authority of 
NBR on the prescribed price declaration form every 
year just after the national budget declaration. As 
such it is totally unjustified and against the 
principles of natural justice to put the blame of 
wrong declaration and demand of such huge claim 
on the Company and to ask to pay the amount. 

On the other hand, the Company sold Bristol and 
Pilot to millions of consumers in different parts of 
the country at the approved price of LTU-VAT 
and duly paid taxes to the Government Exchequer 
as per the rate of taxes in each respective year. 
Furthermore, the principle of VAT is to collect 
taxes from the consumers on the basis of 
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statutory auditors of the Company for the year 2016 
and for continuation up to the next AGM at a fee of 
Tk. 8,00,000 (Taka Eight lac) only and requests the 
Shareholders to approve the appointment. 

BUSINESS COMMITMENT  

As always, the Board of Directors of the Company 
stands firm in its commitment towards discharging 
its patrician responsibilities towards the 
innumerable stakeholders. And the Board has been 
quite alert on this from the very inception. Tracing 
back to origin, it was more than 100 years ago, when 
the Company established itself on this land of 
opportunities and possibilities - Bangladesh. Since 
independence, BATB has demonstrated an 
unwavering dedication to the country and its people 
and this commitment is what sets the distinction 
that takes BATB apart from any other business 
entity. This uniqueness is reflected through the 
passion and dedication of its employees and 
business partners that has brought of BATB across 
the country and to its today's height. BATB is listed 
on both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and 
is currently the highest taxpayer. In this year alone 
we have contributed Taka 11,051 crores to the 
Government exchequer in the form of 
supplementary duty & value added tax and other 
levies. We aspire to continue to be the highest tax 
payer in Bangladesh in the coming years too. BATB 
has always cherished and shall continue to value its 
treasured relationship with the Government of 
Bangladesh, esteemed shareholders and other 
stakeholders of the Company.

RESPONSIBLE TOBACCO CULTIVATION 

In order to meet both of our domestic and export 
requirement around 35,000 registered BATB 
farmers are involved in production and supply of 
high quality tobacco. Our partnership with these 
farmers has been a win win situation. The farmers 
grow a portfolio of crops round the year and 
tobacco crop takes only 3-4 months in the main field 
during winter season. It helps in crop rotation which 
is one of the best practices for improving soil health 
and crop productivity. Moreover, farmers have been 
replicating the Good Agricultural Practices into the 
other crops which they commonly used for tobacco 
cultivation; hence they could improve their overall 
farm productivity. Tobacco is a high value crop and 
grown mostly on demand through contract growing 
system. Hence the farmers have a guaranteed 
market with no middlemen in the system. Tobacco 
sales proceeds is transferred to farmers' bank 
account directly. The cash flow from tobacco crop is 
a good source of funds for buying the crop inputs - 
seeds, fertilizer, etc, for the other crops and hence 
the farmers can avoid the high interest borrowing 
from the conventional rural credit system. 
Sustainability is the key area of focus for improving  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE 
STATEMENT

BATB believes that enriched corporate governance 
contributes to the long term success of a company 
and creates trust and engagement between the 
company and its stakeholders. Accordingly,  the 
Board of Directors and Management are committed 
to continuously strive for the highest standards in 
governance to ensure that the business and its 
affairs are in strict adherence to the doctrine and 
principles of proper governance such as integrity, 
transparency, accountability and responsible 
business conduct to safeguard the interests of its 
shareholders and stakeholders. It is the responsibility 
of the Company Secretary, being a governance 
official in the Company, to ensure effective 
compliance of rules and regulations in this respect.

As part of its corporate policy, BATB always strives 
to maximize its shareholders’ value. In doing so, the 
Company has always been committed to 
maintaining high standards of Corporate 
Governance. The Company’s Corporate Governance 
framework is directed towards achieving its 
business objectives in a manner which is responsible 
and in accordance with its high standards of 
honesty, reliability, transparency and accountability. 
The essential elements that define effective 
corporate governance in the Company are outlined 
in the Corporate Governance Statement which is 
appended in the Annual Report. The contents in the 
statement further expand on the broad practices in 
BATB. All the employees are expected to live up to 
these principles and guidelines which are 
communicated regularly throughout the Company 
in the form of various training and awareness 
programmes.  

In this respect, we have the pleasure to confirm that 
the Company has, complied with all the necessary 
guidelines under BSEC Notification No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 
August 2012. The Compliance Report along with the 
necessary remarks and disclosures is appended in 
this Annual Report for the year 2015. Further, a 
Certificate of Compliance required under the said 
Guidelines, as provided by M/s. Al-Muqtadir 
Associates, Chartered Secretaries, is also annexed to 
this report.

AUDITORS

As per requirements of law, the current statutory 
auditors KPMG Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered 
Accountants, will retire at the 43rd Annual General 
Meeting. They have expressed their willingness to 
be re-appointed for the year 2016 at the same fees. 
Based on suggestions of the Audit Committee, the 
Board recommends the re-appointment of KPMG 
Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants as the 
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support in whatever form that it could. This 
recognizes the Company's utmost urge and 
aspirations to be at the service and utility of the 
people and society where it operates. Now, looking 
ahead in 2016 and far beyond, BATB cherishes to go 
ahead with the same zeal that it had started even 
100 years ago, to be the number one Company in 
turnover, in partnering with the national exchequer 
and in assisting the people in success, so as to 
operate as a social responsible Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors firmly believes that BATB 
has the necessary strengths, resources and 
commitments to further propel the Company to 
newer heights. The performance in 2015 is indeed a 
tribute to the pledge, promise, energy and hard 
works of our Directors, Management and 
employees together. And keeping that in mind, the 
Members of the Board would like to place on 
record their high appreciation to the valued 
Shareholders and all other Stakeholders of the 
Company for their persistent support and 
guidance. The Board would also like to thank each 
and every customer for their continued support 
and for making Company brands their preferred 
choices. The Board also recognises that its journey to 
accomplishments during the year was possible 
because of the cooperation, positive support, and 
guidance that it had received from the Government 
of Bangladesh, particularly the Ministry of Finance, 
Ministry of Commerce, Ministry of Agriculture, 
Ministry of Forest & Environment and Ministry of 
Housing & Public Works, National Board of Revenue, 
Board of Investment, Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission, Stock Exchanges and other 
stakeholders. The Board would like to appreciate the 
support from BATB’s bankers, insurers & financial 
institutions, vendors, the Press & Media, business 
partners and all of our employees. Accordingly, the 
Board offers its utmost gratitude to them. 

We also extend to the management and employees 
our warmest thanks for being the essential part of 
BATB during the year. It was their unrelenting 
commitment, dedication and diligence throughout 
the year that led to the Company achieving the 
results, awards and accolades in 2015. 

We are proud of you all and look forward to your 
continued support as we march ahead to take 
BATB forward as a leading player within the 
Bangladesh business community.   

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Golam Mainuddin            Shehzad Munim
Chairman               Managing Director
22 February 2016

the livelihood of the farming community while we 
work together with our farmers. It is worth 
mentioning that average yield of tobacco crop has 
been improved from 700 kg/ha (1980) to 2200 
kg/ha (2015). Hence, our farmers are catering our 
demand of quality tobacco by using relatively less 
land than any time before. Currently, tobacco 
cultivation occupies around 0.61% only of the total 
cultivable land in Bangladesh. Tobacco is the crop 
that belongs to the family Soalnacae (like Potato, 
etc) and required a normal dose of fertilisers. In 
fact, fertiliser requirement to tobacco crop 
significantly lower than Potato, Sugarcane and 
Maize which are commonly grown crops in 
Bangladesh. Tobacco farmers use balance dose of 
fertilisers for the better production maintaining 
soil health. Moreover, tobacco farmers 
implemented soil health management best 
practices like Green Manuring through Dhaincha 
(Sesbania sp) cultivation and use of farm manure & 
compost. In every year, the Company purchased 
Dhaincha seeds to distribute among the farmers at 
free of cost. In the year 2015, the Company 
brought over US $ 26 million in the country from 
tobacco leaf export which supports government 
export drive. In conclusion, the Company is highly 
committed to ensure social responsibilities in 
tobacco leaf cultivation.

AWARDS & ACHIEVEMENTS

Our stupendous performance and management, in 
the year 2015 has led us achieve some prestigious 
awards from different credible organisations. In 
2015 the Company was awarded with the 
following recognitions:

ICSB Corporate Governance Excellence Award 

Most Female Friendly Organisation Award

Asia Responsible Entrepreneurship Awards for 
water filtration Project- Probaho

National Productivity and Quality Excellence 
award from Government

Best Employer Award 

19 Local Government Awards (1st Prize) for 
Afforestation in different districts

(Details of these awards are mentioned in the 
achievements section of this Annual Report)

EXPECTATIONS IN 2016

British American Tobacco Bangladesh had an 
ambition to provide to its countless brand users 
with quality products, to its numerous 
stakeholders of trusted business relationship and 
to the Bangladesh society at large with sustainable 
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors met twelve times during the year 2015. The Company Secretary and Chief Financial 
Officer (Finance Director) were present in the Board meetings. The attendance by each Director is 
mentioned below: 

Present Directors’ Name No. of Attendance   
         

Mr. Golam Mainuddin 12 
Mr. Shehzad Munim 12
Mr. Kamrul Hasan 10 (Resigned on 8 September 2015)  
Mr. Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan ndc 11
Mr. Mohammad Moinuddin Abdullah 11
Mr. K.H. Masud Siddiqui 10
Mr. Jalal Ahmed 11
Mr. Md. Fayekuzzaman 11
Mr. William Francis Pegel 10

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Name Of Shareholder % Of Holding

Annexure -1

Names of the shareholders along with their position of shares are listed below:

i)   Parent/subsidiary/associate/related parties:
      Raleigh Investment Co. Ltd.
ii)  Directors/CEO/CS/CFO/Audit Head and   
      their spouses and minor children
iii)  Executives (HOD)
iv)  Shareholders, who hold 10% or more:
v)   Others Shareholders, who hold less than 10%

• Investment Corporation of Bangladesh
• Sadharan Bima Corporation 
• Bangladesh Development Bank Limited
• President People’s Republic of Bangladesh
• Others

Shares Held

43,745,358

4,591,742
1,694,047

197,376
386,824

9,384,653

100

nil
nil

72.91%

7.65%
2.82%
0.33%
0.64%

15.65%

0.00016%

nil
nil
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Condition
No

1.1

1.2 (i)

1.2 (ii) a)

1.2 (ii) b)

1.2 (ii) c)

1.2 (ii) d)

1.2 (ii) e)

1.2 (ii) f)

1.2 (ii) g)

1.2 (ii) h)

Title Status

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Remarks

Annexure -2

Status of compliance with the conditions set out by the BSEC Notification
on Corporate Governance

(Report under Condition No. 7.00)

Board Size: The number of the Board members
of the Company shall not be less than 5 (five)
and more than 20 (twenty)

Independent  Directors:
At least one fifth (1/5) of the total number of 
Directors in the Company’s Board shall be
Independent  Directors.

Independent  Director does not hold any share
or holds less than 1% shares of the total
paid-up capital

Independent  Director or his family members
are not connected with the Company's any
sponsor or  Director or Shareholder who holds
1% or more shares

Does not have any other relationship, whether
pecuniary or otherwise, with the Company or
its subsidiary/associated companies

Independent Director is not a member, Director
or officer of any Stock Exchange

Independent  Director is not a shareholder, 
Director or officer of any member of Stock
Exchange or an intermediary of the capital market

Independent Director is not a partner or an
executive or was not a partner or an executive
during the preceding 3 (three) years of any
statutory audit firm

Independent  Director shall not be an
Independent  Director in more than 3 (three)
listed companies

Independent  Director has not been convicted
by a court of competent jurisdiction as a
defaulter in payment of any loan to a bank or a
Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI)

The BATB Board is comprised
of 9  Directors.

There are three Independent 
Directors in the BATB Board,
namely: Mr. Md. Mosharraf
Hossain Bhuiyan ndc , Mr. 
Mohammad Moinuddin
Abdullah and Mr. Mikail Shipar 

The Independent  Directors
have declared their
compliances.

DO

DO

Complied DO

Complied DO

Complied DO

Complied DO

Complied DO
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Condition
No

1.2 (ii) i)

1.2 (iii)

1.2 (iv)

1.2 (v)

1.2 (vi)

1.3 (i)

1.3 (iii)

1.4

1.5

1.5 (i)

1.5 (ii)

1.5 (iii)

Title Status

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Not
Applicable

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

The appointments are duly
approved at AGM

No vacancy occurred

The Company has laid down 
a detailed code of conduct
for all known as 'Standards
of Business Conduct' which
is applicable for the Directors
as well. Every Director has
signed a confirmation as to
its compliance. 

Remarks

Independent  Director has not been convicted
for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude

The Independent  Director(s) shall be appointed
by the Board of Directors and approved by the
shareholders in the AGM

The Post of Independent  Director(s) can not
remain vacant for more than 90 (ninety) days

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct of
all Board members and annual compliance of
the code to be recorded

The tenure of office of an Independent Director
shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which
may be extended for 1 (one) term only

Independent  Director should be a Business
Leader/Corporate Leader/Bureaucrat/University
Teacher with Economics or Business Studies or
Law background/Professionals like Chartered
Accountants, Cost & Management Accountants
Chartered Secretaries. The Independent Director
must have at least 12 (twelve) years of corporate
management/professional experiences

In special cases the above qualifications may
be relaxed subject to prior approval of the
Commission

Chairman and CEO shall be filled by different
individuals. Chairman shall be elected from
among the Directors. The Board of Directors
shall clearly define respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO. 

The  Directors’ Report to Shareholders on:

Industry outlook and possible future
developments in the industry

Segment-wise or product-wise performance

Risks and concerns

The Directors' report complies
with the guideline. 

The Directors' report complies
with the guideline

Discussed at 'System of
Internal Control' and 'Other
Regulatory Disclosures'.

Chairman of the Board and
CEO are different individuals
and Chairman is elected from
amongst the Directors. The
roles and responsibilities of
the Chairman of the Board
and the CEO are approved in
Board meeting. 

The Independent Directors
(IDs) are in their regular term
of office.

Existing Independent
Directors are  bureaucrats
with more than 12 years
of experience. 

DO
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1.5 (vi)

1.5 (vii)

1.5 (viii)

1.5 (ix)

1.5 (x)

1.5 (xi)

1.5 (xii)

1.5 (xiii)

1.5 (xiv)

1.5 (xv)

Condition
No

1.5 (iv)

1.5 (v)

Title Status

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Remarks

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross
Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin

Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary
gain or loss

Basis for related party transactions- a statement
of all related party transactions should be
disclosed in the annual report

Utilization of proceeds from public issues, rights
issues and/or through any others instruments

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate
after the Company goes for Initial Public Offering
(IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights 
Offer, Direct Listing, etc

If significant variance occurs between Quarterly
Financial performance and Annual Financial
Statements the management shall explain about
the variance on their Annual Report

Remuneration to  Directors including
Independent  Directors

The financial statements prepared by the
management of the issuer Company present
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity

Proper books of account of the issuer Company
have been maintained

Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of th
financial statements and that the accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment

The system of internal control is sound in
design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored

International Accounting Standards (IAS)/
Bangladesh Accounting Standards
(BAS)/International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)/Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standards (BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh,
have been followed in preparation of the
financial statements and any departure
there-from has been adequately disclosed

The Directors' report
complies with the guideline

Discussed at 'Financial
Performance' and 'Other
Regulatory Disclosures'.

Mentioned at 'Other Regulatory
Disclosures'. A statement of
all related party transactions
are disclosed under Notes to
the Financial Statements no. 34 

Mentioned at 'Other Regulatory
Disclosures'. 

Mentioned at 'Other Regulatory
Disclosures'. 

Mentioned at 'Other Regulatory
Disclosures'. 

Stated under section
"Directors' Declaration as to
the Financial Statements" in
the Directors Report.

DO

Complied DO

Complied

Complied
Stated under section 'The
System of Internal Control '
in the Directors Report. 

DO

Discussed at 'Financial
Performance' and 'Other
Regulatory Disclosures'.
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Condition
No

1.5 (xvi)

1.5 (xvii)

1.5 (xviii)

1.5 (xix)

1.5 (xx)

1.5(xxi)

1.5 (xxi) a)

1.5 (xxi) b)

1.5 (xxi) c)

1.5 (xxi) d)

1.5 (xxii)

Title Status

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

DO

DO

Complied DO

Complied DO

Complied

Complied

DO

Remarks

There are no significant doubts upon the issuer
Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If the issuer Company is not considered
to be a going concern, the fact along with
reasons thereof should be disclosed

Significant deviations from the last year’s
operating results of the issuer Company shall
be highlighted and the reasons thereof should
be explained

Key operating and financial data of at least
preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized

No Declaration of Dividend

The number of Board meetings held during the
year and attendance by each  Director shall
be disclosed

The pattern of shareholding shall be reported
to disclose the aggregate number of shares
(along with name wise details where stated
below) held by:-

Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and
other related parties (name wise details);

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit and their spouses and minor
children (name wise details)

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or
more voting interest in the Company
(name wise details)

The Directors' Report
complies with the Guidelines
as stated at "Board
Composition Section' in the
Annual Report.

In case of the appointment/re-appointment of
a  Director the Company shall disclose the
following information to the shareholders:-

a) a brief resume of the  Director;
b) nature of his/her expertise in specific
functional areas;
c) names of companies in which the person
also holds the  Directorship and the membership
of committees of the Board

Executives

Stated under section 'Going
Concern' in the Directors
Report. 

Discussed in the Directors
Report under section
"Growth Pillar".

The Directors' Report
complies with the guideline.  

Final dividend
declared. The Directors'
report complies with the
guideline .

Stated in Annexure -1 of the
Directors' report which
comply with the guideline . 
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Condition
No

2.1

2.2

3 (i)

3 (ii)

3 (iii)

3.1 (i)

3.1 (ii)

3.1 (iii)

3.1 (iv)

3.1 (v)

Title Status

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

In practice

Already in place. The TOR is
available.

In practice.  The TOR is
available.  

In practice. The duties are
clearly written in the TOR of
Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee is
comprised of 3 (three)
members.

The members of the Audit
Committee are appointed by
the Board who are Directors
and which includes  three
Independent Directors.

Based on the academic
qualifications and professional
experiences, the Board
reviewed and considered 
that all the existing members
of the Audit Committee are
'financially literate' and they
have 'related financial
management experience' as
per BSEC notification.

The Board appointed AC
member in due time and no
vacancy occurred.

In practice.

Remarks

The Company shall appoint a Chief Financial
Officer(CFO), a Head of Internal Audi
(internal Control and Compliance) and a
Company Secretary (CS). The Board of
Directors should clearly define respective roles
responsibilities and duties of CFO, the Head of
Internal Audit and the CS. 

Attendance of CFO and the Company Secretary
in the Board meeting

The Company shall have an Audit Committee as
a sub-committee of the Board of Directors

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of 
Directors in ensuring that the financial
statements reflect true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and in ensuring
a good monitoring system within the business

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to
the Board of  Directors. The duties of the Audit
Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at
least 3 (three) members

The Board of  Directors shall appoint members
of the Audit Committee who shall be Director
of the Company and shall include at least 1 (one)
Independent  Director

All members of the Audit Committee should be
“financially literate” and at least 1 (one) member
shall have accounting or related financial
management experience: The term Financially
literate means the ability to read and understand
the financial statements i.e. Balance Sheet,
Income Statement and Cash Flow Statementand
a person will be considered to have accounting
or related financial management expertise if
(s)he possesses professional qualification or
Accounting/finance graduate with at least 12
(twelve) yeasr of corporate management/
professional experiences.  

Casual vacancy in Audit Committee shall be
Filled by the Board

The Company secretary shall act as the
secretary of the Committee

The Company has appointed
CFO, CS and Head of Internal
Audit. There are clearly
defined roles, responsibilities
and duties which have been
approved by Board as per
requirement of BSEC
notification. 
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Condition
No

3.1 (vi)

3.2 (i)

3.2 (ii)

3.3 (i)

3.3 (ii)

3.3 (iii)

3.3 (iv)

3.3 (v)

3.3 (vi)

3.3 (vii)

3.3 (viii)

3.3 (ix)

3.3 (x)

3.4.1 (i)

Title Status

Complied

Complied

Complied

Remarks

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting
shall not constitute without at least 1 (one)
Independent  Director

The Board of  Directors shall select 1 (one)
member of the Audit Committee to be
Chairman of the Audit Committee, who shall
be an Independent  Director

Chairman of the audit committee shall remain
present in the Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Role of Audit Committee:
Oversee the financial reporting process

Monitor choice of accounting policies
and principles

Monitor Internal Control Risk management
process

Oversee hiring and performance of external
auditors

Review along with the management, the annual
financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval

Review along with the management, the
quarterly and half yearly financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval

Review the adequacy of internal audit function

Review statement of significant related party
transactions submitted by the management

Review Management Letters/ Letter of Internal
Control weakness issued by statutory auditors.

When money is raised through Initial Public
Offering IPO)/Repeat Public Offering
(RPO)/Rights Issue the Company shall disclose
to the Audit Committee about the
uses/applications of funds by major category
(capital expenditure, sales and marketing
expenses, working capital, etc), on a quarterly
basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of
financial results. Further, on an annual basis, the
Company shall prepare a statement of funds
utilized for the purposes other than those
stated in the offer document/ prospectus

The Audit Committee shall report on its
activities to the Board of  Directors

In practice.

In practice.

Complied In practice.

Complied In practice.

Complied In practice.

Complied In practice.

Complied In practice.

Complied In practice.

Complied In practice.

Complied In practice.

Complied

Not
Applicable

Complied

In practice.

There was no IPO/RPO/Rights
Issue in 2015 or in recent past.
Stated in the Directors' Report
under the section 'Other
Regulatory Disclosure'. 

Audit Committee informs the
Board periodically through its
minutes which are placed at
Board Meetings

Md. Mosharraf Hossain
Bhuiyan ndc  has been
appointed as Independent
Director and  Chairman of
the Audit Committee  



Condition
No

3.4.1 (ii) a)

3.4.1 (ii) b)

3.4.1 (ii) c)

3.4.1 (ii) d)

3.4.2

3.5

4 (i)

4 (ii)

4 (iii)

4 (iv)

4 (v)

Title Status

Complied

Complied

Complied DO

Complied

Complied

Complied

DO

None DO

Remarks

Report on conflicts of interests to the Board
of  Directors

Will report any suspected or presumed fraud
or irregularity or material defect in the internal
control system to the Board

Will report any suspected infringement of laws
including securities related laws, rules and
regulations to the Board

Will report any other matter which shall be
disclosed to the Board of  Directors immediately 

Reporting to the Authorities: If the Audit
Committee has reported to the Board of
Directors about anything which has material
impact on the financial condition and results
of operation and has discussed with the Board
of Directors and the management that any
rectification is necessary and if the Audit
Committee finds that such rectification has
been unreasonably ignored, the Audit
Committee shall report such finding to the
Commission, upon reporting of such matters
to the Board of Directors for three times or
completion of a period of 6 (six) months from
the date of first reporting to the Board of
Directors, whichever is earlier.

Reporting to the Shareholders and General
Investors: report on activities carried out by
the Audit Committee, including any report
made to the Board of Directors under
condition 3.4.1 (ii) above during the year,
shall be signed by the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and disclosed in the annual
report of the issuer Company

Non-engagement of external/statutory
auditors in appraisal or valuation services
or fairness opinions

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors
in financial information systems design and
implementation

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors
in Book-keeping or other services related to the
accounting records or financial statements

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors
in Broker-dealer services

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors
in Actuarial services

The Audit Committee report
is disclosed in the Annual
Report and signed by the
Chairman of the AC

In practice

Complied In practice

Complied In practice

Complied In practice

Complied In practice

The Directors have declared
their compliances.

There was no such case in
the year.
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Condition
No

4 (vi)

4 (vii)

4 (viii)

4 (ix)

5 (i)

5 (ii)

5 (iii)

5 (iv)

5 (v)

6 (i) a)

6 (i) b)

Title Status

Complied

Remarks

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors
in Internal audit services

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors
in any other service that the Audit Committee
determines

No partner or employees of the external audit
firms shall possess any share of the Company
they audit at least during the tenure of their
audit assignment of that Company

Non- engagement of Auditor in
audit/certification services on compliance of
corporate governance as required under clause
(i) of condition no. 7  

Provisions relating to the composition of the
Board of  Directors of the holding Company shal
be made applicable to the composition of the
Board of  Directors of the subsidiary Company

At least 1 (one) Independent  Director on the
Board of  Directors of the holding Company
shall be a  Director on the Board of  Directors
of the subsidiary Company

The minutes of the Board meeting of the
subsidiary Company shall be placed for review
at the following Board meeting of the holding
Company

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of
the holding Company shall state that they have
reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary
Company also

The Audit Committee of the holding Company
shall also review the financial statements, in
particular the investments made by the
subsidiary Company

The CEO and CFO will certify to the Board that
they have reveiwed the financial statements
and believe that these statements do not
contain any materially untrue statement or omit
any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading 

The CEO and CFO will certify to the Board that
they have reveiwed the financial statements
and believe that these statements together
present a true and fair view of the Company’s
affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards and applicable laws

In practice.

Complied

Complied

In practice.

Complied

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Complied

Complied

In practice.

BATB does not have any
subsidiary Company

BATB does not have any
subsidiary Company

BATB does not have any
subsidiary Company

BATB does not have any
subsidiary Company

BATB does not have any
subsidiary Company

CEO and CFO have certified
to the Board during finalisation
of Financial Statement which
is stated in the 'Directors
declaration as to financial
statements' in the Directors
Report.       

CEO and CFO have certified
to the Board during finalisation
of Financial Statement which
is stated in the 'Directors
declaration as to financial
statements' in the Directors
Report.       

The audit firm has declared
as such that none of them
holds any share in the
Company. 
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Condition
No

6 (ii)

7 (i)

7 (ii)

Title Status

Complied

Complied

Complied

Remarks

There are, to the best of knowledge and belief,
no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or
violation of the Company’s code of conduct

The Company shall obtain a certificate from a
Professional Chartered Secretary/Accountant
(Chartered Accountant/Cost & Management
Accountant/Chartered Secretary) regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance Guidelines of the Commission and
shall send the same to the shareholders along
with the Annual Report on a yearly basis

The  Directors of the Company shall state, in
accordance with the Annexure attached, in the
Directors' report whether the Company has
complied with these conditions

CEO and CFO have certified
to the Board during finalisation
of Financial Statement which
is stated in the 'Directors
declaration as to financial
statements' in the Directors
Report.   

Required certification has
been obtained from
M/s Al-Muqtadir Associates,
Chartered Secretaries, for
the year 2015 which is
published as Annexure -4 to
the Directors' Report.

Status of Compliance is
published with the Directors'
Report as required.
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BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO BANGLADESH COMPANY LIMITED
CERTIFICATE OF DUE DILIGENCE BY CEO & CFO

(As required under the BSEC Guidelines)

To the Board of Directors of
British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited

In compliance with condition no. 6 of the Corporate Governance Guidelines of Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 07 August 
2012, we the undersigned, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
respectively of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited, do hereby certify before the 
Board that we have thoroughly reviewed the Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended 31 December 2015, and state that :

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or   
 contain statements that might be misleading,

b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in   
 compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws, and

c) to the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company has not entered into any transaction   
 during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s codes of conduct.

  

      Shehzad Munim                                                                                          William Francis Pegel
Chief Executive Officer                                                                          Chief Financial Officer

Dhaka
22 February 2016

Annexure 3
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Annexure 4

AL-MUQTADIR ASSOCIATES
Chartered Secretaries & Consultants

Cell: +8801730 340 340
e-mail: akamuqtadir@gmail.com
   muqtadir@muqtadirbd.com
www.muqtadirbd.com
VAT Reg: 19041063900

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited

(As required under the BSEC Guidelines)

We have examined compliance to the BSEC guidelines on Corporate Governance by British American 
Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited for the year ended 31st December 2015. These guidelines 
relate to the Notification no.SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7th August 2012 of 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) on Corporate Governance.

Such compliance to the codes of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company. Our 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the 
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance. This is a scrutiny 
and verification only and not an expression of opinion or audit on the financial statements of the 
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us, 
we certify that, subject to the remarks and observations as reported in the attached Compliance 
Statement,  the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated 
in the above mentioned guidelines issued by BSEC. 

We also state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, 
nor a certification on the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. This is also no endorsement about quality of contents in the Annual Report 
of the Company.

                AL-MUQTADIR ASSOCIATES
                        Chartered Secretaries & Consultants 
Dhaka
22 February, 2016

Business Office:
Rania Avenue, Apurba Gardenia 
Block-F, House # 530, 5th Floor 
Bashundhara R/A
Dhaka-1229, Bangladesh
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minimize impact on environment. We expect our 
people inside our premises to stay safe so that 
they can get back home safe and sound. To 
remain safe while carrying out various business 
activities it is extremely important for all of us to 
be aware of the risks associated with any activity 
and act/behave safely. 

To capture defects or near misses, a ‘Near Miss 
Reporting’ campaign has been arranged and there 
after we have been capturing near misses on 
regular basis. Near miss is an early indication of 
hazards/risks which are not under absolute 
control and can result into accident anytime. 
Capturing those, investigating and taking 
corrective actions proactively will eliminate the 
risks. The campaign was inaugurated by Managing 
Director Mr. Shehzad Munim.

British American Tobacco as a group believes in 
creating an inspiring, motivating and high 
performing working environment for all  of its 
employees across the world. As a socially 
responsible organisation BAT puts lot of efforts 
and resources in maintaining a world class 
standard of Environment, Health and Safety 
practices. As BAT Bangladesh’s market is growing 
impressively, the betterment of Environment, 
Health and Safety standard is even more important 
for the welfare of its employees and sustainability 
of environment. During the period of 2015, several 
initiatives were taken to further improve the 
facilities and build awareness level of EHS among 
the employees and improve the work practices.

British American Tobacco Bangladesh is fully 
committed to ensuring safety and health of its 
people who come into BATB premises as well as 

Before

To minimize risk from fall from height, all roof ends have been fitted with standardized railing. People who 
will work on roof can easily hook body harness and safely carry out the work.

After

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH & SAFETY
The Journey Continues
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To keep our people aware we carried out various kinds of communications and awareness programs for 
managers, employees, and contractor people throughout the year. We arranged week long campaign 
titled ‘EHS Awareness Week’ focusing on safe work practices in production floor, warehouses, and offices. 
Employees interacted through various interactive games conveying safety messages (solving puzzles, 
playing bagatelle)

For office based managers, we arranged the ‘Who Wants to be Safety Champ’ competition where 
managers participated and through question and answer pointed risks in office areas.

Stress relieved session for office based people were conducted. A smile Booth in canteen was set-up to do
basic health check-up like blood pressure, blood sugar level, weight.

Massive training program had been arranged during the week to refresh knowledge on key issues.
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reducing 5% energy consumption. We have 
installed 11 kw capacity solar panel to run office 
lights and ACs. All these initiatives have 
contributed in reducing energy consumption as 
well as saved lot of money.

BATB has been the pioneer in practicing 
biodiversity. Our leaf and team are continuously 
doing afforestation and green manuring 
programs. We have established a sanctuary in 
Kushita where rare species of plants are being 
nurtured. 

British American Tobacco Bangladesh will 
continue to spread out EH&S among its suppliers 
in the future and will continuously improve the 
awareness and work standards while growing 
with less environmental impact.

On environmental front several initiatives were 
taken to reduce energy, water and waste 
consumption. New and efficient compressor was 
installed with frequency inverter. Chiller 
automation and synchronization will help in 

EHS Messages from the management displayed around the premise.

“It is we who can keep us safe”
- Shehzad Munim,

Managing Director

“Our core remains the same -
Our people” 

- S. M. Khaled,
Head of Supply Chain

“It's an integral part”
- Rumana Rahman,

Head of HR

“Being safe is caring for each other”
- Jahangir Alam,

Project Manager –Area Head of Services

Our job is to see that EHS is visible everywhere
and that nothing ever goes wrong”

- William Pegel,
Finance Director

“We don't just deliver, 
we do it with care for the people”

- Mubina Asaf,
Head of Legal & External A�airs

“We encourage right behaviors that 
identify and mitigate risks

in the workplace”
- Irfan Aziz Qureshi,

Manufacturing Manager

“We will always be closing the gap to zero”
- Farhad Alam,

Production Engineering Manager
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Implementing globally recognised health and safety measures has 
always unfolded new heights of success for BAT Bangladesh. BATB's 
ongoing practice towards ensuring Environment Health and Safety 
for its employees and factory workers has been a symbol of good 
governance over the years. In 2014, the Green Leaf Threshing Plant at 
the factory of Kushtia broke all records by managing accident-free 
operations for 5 successful years, bringing the organisation the 
glorious recognition of receiving the Safety Award.



0.61%
tobacco cultivation

occupies around

of the total cultivable
land in Bangladesh.

Average yield of tobacco crop
has been improved from

700 kg/ha (1980) to 

2200kg/ha
(2015)

registered farmers.

Around

35,000
from tobacco leaf export

Company brought over

US $ 26million

In order to meet both of our domestic and export requirements 
around 35,000 registered BATB farmers are involved in 
production and supply of high quality tobacco. Our partnership 
with these farmers has been a win-win situation. The farmers 
grow a portfolio of crops round the year and tobacco crop takes 
only 3-4 months in the main field during winter. It helps in crop 
rotation which is one of the best practices for improving soil 
health and crop productivity. Moreover, farmers have been 
replicating the Good Agricultural Practices (GAP) into the other 
crops which they commonly used for tobacco cultivation; hence 
they could improve their overall farm productivity. Tobacco is a 
high value crop and grown mostly on demand through contract 
growing system. Hence the farmers have a guaranteed market 
with no middlemen in the system. Tobacco sales proceeds is 
transferred to farmers' bank account directly. The cash flow 
from tobacco crop is a good source of fund for buying the crop 
inputs - seeds, fertilizer and therefore the farmers can avoid the 
high interest borrowing from the conventional rural credit 
system. Sustainability is the key area of focus for improving the 
livelihood of the farming community while we work together 
with our farmers. It is worth mentioning that the average yield of 
tobacco crop has been improved from 700 kg/ha (1980) to 2200 
kg/ha (2015). As such our farmers are catering our demand of 
quality tobacco by using relatively less land than ever before. 
Currently, tobacco cultivation occupies around 0.61% only of the 
total cultivable land in Bangladesh. Tobacco is the crop that 
belongs to the family Soalnacae (like potato, etc) and required a 
normal dose of fertilisers. In fact, fertiliser requirement to 
tobacco crop significantly lower than potato, sugarcane and 
maize which are commonly grown crops in Bangladesh. Tobacco 
farmers use balanced dose of fertilisers for the better production 
maintaining soil health. Moreover, tobacco farmers implemented 
soil health management best practices like Green Manuring 
through Dhaincha (Sesbania sp) cultivation and use of farm 
manure & compost. Every year, the Company purchases 
Dhaincha seeds to distribute among the farmers at free of cost. 
In the year 2015, the Company brought over US $ 26 million in the 
country from tobacco leaf export which supports government 
export drive. In conclusion, the Company is highly committed to 
ensuring social responsibilities in tobacco leaf cultivation.

RESPONSIBLE
TOBACCO

CULTIVATION



To pioneer the environment friendly farming for the farmers, BAT 
Bangladesh has been introducing sustainable agricultural practices 
from the very beginning. To embed the concept of IPM among the 
farmers, BATB has been running Farmers Field School (FFS) in these 
IPM clubs in partnership with Department of Agricultural Extension 
(DAE). The FFS approach to drive IPM has made the IPM clubs as a 
power house for disseminating knowledge on pest management 
through non-chemical alternatives. IPM clubs are now contributing 
to create trained resources for IPM education and training. So far 
till 2015, we have established 70 IPM clubs, organized 64 FFS 
sessions, distributed 7,510 Personal Protective Equipment sets and 
5,000 agro-chemical boxes among our registered farmers. 



time, insects are able to detect pheromones using 
their highly specialized antennae. 

Tobacco budworm, Heliothis virescens 
(Fabricius) is one of the major pests of tobacco & 
can be effectively monitored and controlled by 
using sex pheromone traps. The Spodo lure 
(pheromone) is hung with a small thread or string 
and is kept inside a plastic container, half-filled 
with soap or detergent water. The pheromone 
lure attracts adult moths of budworms that flock 
to the container and drown in sticky 
soap/detergent mix water. The approach has 
become very popular in the farming community 
and its application has been continuously 
increasing.

BAT Bangladesh is pioneer in IPM approaches in 
collaboration with Department of Agriculture 
Extension, bringing in new and innovative 
approaches on pest management to our farmers. 
These approaches are world renowned and have 
created a positive impact in the farming 
community, both locally and globally. One such 
approach is the ‘Sex Pheromone Trap’. With the 
aim to reduce the use of agrochemicals by 
popularizing biological approaches of pest 
management, BATB has introduced ‘sex 
pheromone trap’ in the fields and has achieved 
phenomenal results.

Farmers in the Leaf growing areas are producing 
agrochemical residue free tobacco& vegetable 
using ‘sex pheromone trap’ instead of harmful 
pesticides. This method better protects human 
health as well as the environment in the area 
while ensure better crop production. It has 
reduced farmers cost of agrochemical use as 
pheromone traps are cheaper than pesticide.

Pheromones are produced naturally by a variety of 
animals, and they serve as chemical messengers. 
Insect pheromones are synthesized inside the 
body of insects and released in small amounts by 
specific organs. Despite numerous odors that may 
be present in the surrounding air at any given 

Tobacco Field with Pheromone traps, bird perch
& yellow board (to monitor insect)

Trapped Budworm Moths of Tobacco

Pheromone Traps Placed in the Tobacco field 

BIOLOGICAL APPROACH TO
PEST MANAGEMENT
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Bangladesh is vulnerable to natural disasters due to 
the frequency of extreme climate conditions and its 
high population density. BAT has been a steady 
partner to the country’s afforestation scheme for the 
past 35 years. The Company initiated a program in 
1980 to combat deforestation and so far contributed 
close to 90 million saplings. BATB  plays an active role 
on afforestation and community support program to 
help the tobacco farming communities. BAT takes 
pride taking such measures as it is one of the ways 
through which the Company is able toproudly 
participate in Bangladesh's continuous journey 
towards prosperity.



access to safe drinking water. So far, 65 water 
filtration plants have been installed, using 
government approved community based 
water filtration technology in particular 
districts across Bangladesh ensuring pure 
drinking water for almost 170,000 people 
every day. In 2015, 6 new water filtration plants 
were established in the communities. As a 
result of running this particular CSR 
Programme - Probaho, BAT Bangladesh won 
the ‘Asia Responsible Entrepreneurship Awards’ 
for best CSR project, in 2015.

Probaho: Stream of Purity

Millions of people in Bangladesh face scarcity 
of safe drinking water due to arsenic 
contamination. BAT Bangladesh has taken the 
initiative through a community project to 
provide approximately 350,000 litres of safe 
drinking water free from arsenic and other 
impurities to arsenic-prone rural communities 
every day. This initiative is aligned with the 
Government’s aim to achieve the Sustainable 
Development Goals of securing sustainable 

of the Company has already installed 1,801 units 
including 135 units only in 2015, in sixteen 
remote villages in Bandarban and Khagrachari 
districts, giving around 11,000 rural people their 
first access to electricity at home and to the use 
of mobile phones. This contribution to rural 
communities who are deprived of electricity is 
assumed as ray of hope & development.

Deepto: Beam of Development

To complement the Government of 
Bangladesh’s efforts in the renewable energy 
sector, BAT Bangladesh has undertaken a project 
to install solar home systems in village homes 
that are in remote, off-grid areas of Chittagong 
Hill Tracts districts of the country. This initiative 

The organisation is committed to continuing 
this programme in the wake of a global and 
national drive as well as to support the 
Government of Bangladesh’s initiative to 
combat the adverse effects of climate change. 
BAT Bangladesh received a number of national 
and international awards and accolades for the 
afforestation drive across the country. BAT 
Bangladesh received Asia’s top rank business 
award “Asia Responsible Entrepreneurship Award” 
on Green Leadership, for the largest afforestation 
project in the private sector of Bangladesh.

CSR Programmes

Bonayan: BAT Bangladesh’s Flagship CSR 
Programme

The flagship activity of our Company, the 
Afforestation Programme, began in 1980.  So 
far, BAT Bangladesh has distributed around 9 
crores free saplings in and around our 
operational areas. This relentless effort makes 
the programme the largest private sector 
driven afforestation programme in the country. 

British American Tobacco Bangladesh, over the years, has built its reputation and corporate brand 
image as one of the best organisations of Bangladesh in terms of people, process and practices. The 
organisation believes that the business has a key role to play in helping society to achieve the 
necessary sustainable balance of economic growth, environmental protection and social progress in 
ways that will build value for all our stakeholders. BAT Bangladesh is a contributor to society through 
its CSR initiatives, sustainable practices and regulated operations.

COMMITTED TO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
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access to safe drinking water. So far, 65 water 
filtration plants have been installed, using 
government approved community based 
water filtration technology in particular 
districts across Bangladesh ensuring pure 
drinking water for almost 170,000 people 
every day. In 2015, 6 new water filtration plants 
were established in the communities. As a 
result of running this particular CSR 
Programme - Probaho, BAT Bangladesh won 
the ‘Asia Responsible Entrepreneurship Awards’ 
for best CSR project, in 2015.

Probaho: Stream of Purity

Millions of people in Bangladesh face scarcity 
of safe drinking water due to arsenic 
contamination. BAT Bangladesh has taken the 
initiative through a community project to 
provide approximately 350,000 litres of safe 
drinking water free from arsenic and other 
impurities to arsenic-prone rural communities 
every day. This initiative is aligned with the 
Government’s aim to achieve the Sustainable 
Development Goals of securing sustainable 

of the Company has already installed 1,801 units 
including 135 units only in 2015, in sixteen 
remote villages in Bandarban and Khagrachari 
districts, giving around 11,000 rural people their 
first access to electricity at home and to the use 
of mobile phones. This contribution to rural 
communities who are deprived of electricity is 
assumed as ray of hope & development.

Deepto: Beam of Development

To complement the Government of 
Bangladesh’s efforts in the renewable energy 
sector, BAT Bangladesh has undertaken a project 
to install solar home systems in village homes 
that are in remote, off-grid areas of Chittagong 
Hill Tracts districts of the country. This initiative 

The organisation is committed to continuing 
this programme in the wake of a global and 
national drive as well as to support the 
Government of Bangladesh’s initiative to 
combat the adverse effects of climate change. 
BAT Bangladesh received a number of national 
and international awards and accolades for the 
afforestation drive across the country. BAT 
Bangladesh received Asia’s top rank business 
award “Asia Responsible Entrepreneurship Award” 
on Green Leadership, for the largest afforestation 
project in the private sector of Bangladesh.

CSR Programmes

Bonayan: BAT Bangladesh’s Flagship CSR 
Programme

The flagship activity of our Company, the 
Afforestation Programme, began in 1980.  So 
far, BAT Bangladesh has distributed around 9 
crores free saplings in and around our 
operational areas. This relentless effort makes 
the programme the largest private sector 
driven afforestation programme in the country. 
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SUSTAINABLE AGRICULTURE
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became more cautious about the use of 
chemicals as pesticide in farming. Improving 
soil fertility and conserving water are integral 
elements of good agricultural practices. BAT 
Bangladesh provides the know-how and bears 
full costs to install compost pits in the 
homesteads of our registered farmers. This 
significantly reduces dependence on the use of 
chemical fertilizers and also reduces the cost of 
production. As a water management programme, 
proper irrigation systems have been introduced 
which ensures that, only the required level of 
water is used and there is no wastage.

BAT Bangladesh acknowledges its impact as 
well as dependency on biodiversity and makes 
farming communities aware about the 
importance of different elements in nature and 
their contribution in the eco-system. So far, 64 
biodiversity corners have been established and 
they are located in Kushtia, Meherpur, 
Chuadanga, Jhenaidah, Rangpur, Manikganj, 
Bandarban, Khagrachari and Cox’s Bazar districts.

BAT Bangladesh has had a fruitful partnership 
with farmers across the country through its 
various programmes dedicated to improving 
agricultural practices and standards. The 
Company’s supply chain starts with the hard 
work of around 35,000 registered farmers 
within the village community. BAT 
Bangladesh’s contract farming model has been 
a proven and renowned model for years. It is 
ensured that the sources are sustainable and 
responsible by proactively setting high 
standards for agricultural practices. The 
initiatives include green manuring with 
Dhaincha (Sesbania Aculeata) - an effective 
approach to enrich soil health and fertility. 
Dhaincha is also promoted as alternate fuel in 
leaf growing areas. Moreover, Integrated Pest 
Management (IPM) Clubs have also been 
expanded to 70 (including 8 new IPM clubs 
established in 2015) in collaboration with the 
Department of Agricultural Extension to 
educate the farmers about the adoption of 
good agricultural practices. As a result of this 
continuous education programme farmers 



Bangladesh has long been spreading stories of 
success across the world, earning top positions in 
renowned organisations leading in business, 
development and finance. BAT Bangladesh is 
playing its part by developing competent leaders 
through highly competitive recruitment 
processes, regional and overseas training, and 
dynamic implementations that prepare its 
professionals for every global challenge. In 2015, 
18 individuals of BAT Bangladesh were given 
international assignments in different countries 
across 3 continents of the world, becoming a 
source of national pride for the organization. In 
recognition of benchmark practices in HR 
development, BATB has been awarded with the 
‘Best Employer Award’ three times in a row. In 
2015, BATB was awarded with the “RFL Inspiring 
Women Awards 2015” which honored the 
exemplary title of being the Most Female Friendly 
Organisation in Bangladesh.



applications from institutions all over the 
country. She went on to talk about the success 
BOM has granted its competitors in different 
professional sectors.

Anticipation reached its peak when the judges 
came on stage to announce the winners. 
Cheers and applause broke out when 2nd team 
of IBA was declared the winner. IUT was the 
first runner-up, while, 1st team of IBA bagged 
the second runner-up award. 

Managing Director, Mr. Shehzad Munim Mr.  
Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan, ndc, 
Independent Director, Mr. Jalal Ahmed, 
Non-Executive Director, Mr. Syed Nasim 
Manzur, President of Metropolitan Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry and Mr. Zafar Sobhan, 
Editor of Dhaka Tribune, presented the crests 
to the winning teams.

guest of the evening Syed Nasim Manzur, 
President of Metropolitan Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry, Dhaka and Director of 
Apex Investments Limited, said “If you aren’t 
passionate about what you do, then it isn’t 
worth doing. Passion needs to become our 
purpose. Only then can it become our 
profession too.” He proceeded to divulge the 
formula of success - “If you want to succeed, 
put in the hours, because I don’t know any 
other way of getting to the top.” Syed Nasim 
Manzur ended his speech by urging aspiring 
entrepreneurs to heed the importance of 
learning through communication with others, 
saying, “I’ve learnt more from conversations 
with people than I could have through fancy 
PowerPoint presentations.” Before the winners 
were announced, Rumana Rahman, Head of 
Human Resources, BATB, said a few words 
about how BOM had grown from one case 
study in a room with 16 students to over 2600 

round. Rezaul Islam, Head of Marketing, BATB, 
Rumana Rahman, Head of Human Resources, 
BATB, and Iftekhar Ahmed Khan, Restaurant 
Consultant, were to judge the ideas presented 
by the teams on certain criteria – originality, 
sustainability, and whether their proposed 
business plans were applicable on a national 
scale. The content, convenience and feasibility 
of the ideas held the highest value with the 
judges as all businesses have to produce results 
at the end of the day. After the 15-minute 
presentations, the teams would receive 2 
minutes to walk the judges through their 
design of the HungryNaki interface and finally 
entertain questions from the judges.

Before the teams presented, short videos 
depicting the experience of working in BATB, 
and the journey of BOM 2015 were shown. This 
was followed by a few words from the winners 
of BOM 2014 and present members of the BATB 
family - Tasnia Afrin, Management Trainee, 
Marketing, and Nahian Rahman Rochi, Management 
Trainee, Finance. They urged the finalists to 
present with enthusiasm and confidence.  

The judges then had the difficult task of 
ranking all the teams. As the judges 
deliberated, Shehzad Munim, Managing 
Director of BATB, took the stage. “BAT has 
been on the journey of developing talent for 
the last 12 years. It’s exciting to see students 
demonstrate their potential with such 
fearlessness.” He commended the finalists for 
their outstanding performances, and wished 
them the best of luck. Following suit, chief 

The world of corporate life remains a mystery 
to all university students. As the end nears in, a 
medley of thrill and anxiety takes over the 
soon-to-be-graduates. British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh (BATB) brings them an experience that 
recognizes and bridges the gap between 
university life and corporate life: “Battle of Minds”.

After a long, relentless journey starting from 
online applications, five teams – two from 
Institute of Business Administration (IBA) of 
Dhaka University, and the rest from Islamic 
university of Technology (IUT), North South 
University (NSU) and Bangladesh University of 
Engineering and Technology (BUET) - made it 
to the finals. The teams were instructed to 
propose a viable business model, including a 
user-friendly interface, for online food delivery 
service, HungryNaki. They were provided 15 
minutes to present their ideas in front of a 
panel of judges for the chance to win this 
prestigious title. 

Since its inception in 2004, BATB has recruited 
over 100 fresh graduates through this talent 
huntprogramme. Many of the recruits currently 
work in BATB, and other BAT operations 
around the globe. Under the theme “Bring your 
difference”, this year BOM received 
applications from 2687 final-year students 
from 18 universities across Bangladesh. Only 
170 applicants made it past the initial 
assessment of the online applications. Round 1 
was a Focused Group Discussion, out of which 
76 candidates proceeded to the semi-finals. 
Top 20 competitors qualified for the final 

BATTLE OF MINDS 2015
Tailoring Towards Eminence
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applications from institutions all over the 
country. She went on to talk about the success 
BOM has granted its competitors in different 
professional sectors.

Anticipation reached its peak when the judges 
came on stage to announce the winners. 
Cheers and applause broke out when 2nd team 
of IBA was declared the winner. IUT was the 
first runner-up, while, 1st team of IBA bagged 
the second runner-up award. 

Managing Director, Mr. Shehzad Munim Mr.  
Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan, ndc, 
Independent Director, Mr. Jalal Ahmed, 
Non-Executive Director, Mr. Syed Nasim 
Manzur, President of Metropolitan Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry and Mr. Zafar Sobhan, 
Editor of Dhaka Tribune, presented the crests 
to the winning teams.

guest of the evening Syed Nasim Manzur, 
President of Metropolitan Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry, Dhaka and Director of 
Apex Investments Limited, said “If you aren’t 
passionate about what you do, then it isn’t 
worth doing. Passion needs to become our 
purpose. Only then can it become our 
profession too.” He proceeded to divulge the 
formula of success - “If you want to succeed, 
put in the hours, because I don’t know any 
other way of getting to the top.” Syed Nasim 
Manzur ended his speech by urging aspiring 
entrepreneurs to heed the importance of 
learning through communication with others, 
saying, “I’ve learnt more from conversations 
with people than I could have through fancy 
PowerPoint presentations.” Before the winners 
were announced, Rumana Rahman, Head of 
Human Resources, BATB, said a few words 
about how BOM had grown from one case 
study in a room with 16 students to over 2600 

round. Rezaul Islam, Head of Marketing, BATB, 
Rumana Rahman, Head of Human Resources, 
BATB, and Iftekhar Ahmed Khan, Restaurant 
Consultant, were to judge the ideas presented 
by the teams on certain criteria – originality, 
sustainability, and whether their proposed 
business plans were applicable on a national 
scale. The content, convenience and feasibility 
of the ideas held the highest value with the 
judges as all businesses have to produce results 
at the end of the day. After the 15-minute 
presentations, the teams would receive 2 
minutes to walk the judges through their 
design of the HungryNaki interface and finally 
entertain questions from the judges.

Before the teams presented, short videos 
depicting the experience of working in BATB, 
and the journey of BOM 2015 were shown. This 
was followed by a few words from the winners 
of BOM 2014 and present members of the BATB 
family - Tasnia Afrin, Management Trainee, 
Marketing, and Nahian Rahman Rochi, Management 
Trainee, Finance. They urged the finalists to 
present with enthusiasm and confidence.  

The judges then had the difficult task of 
ranking all the teams. As the judges 
deliberated, Shehzad Munim, Managing 
Director of BATB, took the stage. “BAT has 
been on the journey of developing talent for 
the last 12 years. It’s exciting to see students 
demonstrate their potential with such 
fearlessness.” He commended the finalists for 
their outstanding performances, and wished 
them the best of luck. Following suit, chief 

The world of corporate life remains a mystery 
to all university students. As the end nears in, a 
medley of thrill and anxiety takes over the 
soon-to-be-graduates. British American Tobacco 
Bangladesh (BATB) brings them an experience that 
recognizes and bridges the gap between 
university life and corporate life: “Battle of Minds”.

After a long, relentless journey starting from 
online applications, five teams – two from 
Institute of Business Administration (IBA) of 
Dhaka University, and the rest from Islamic 
university of Technology (IUT), North South 
University (NSU) and Bangladesh University of 
Engineering and Technology (BUET) - made it 
to the finals. The teams were instructed to 
propose a viable business model, including a 
user-friendly interface, for online food delivery 
service, HungryNaki. They were provided 15 
minutes to present their ideas in front of a 
panel of judges for the chance to win this 
prestigious title. 

Since its inception in 2004, BATB has recruited 
over 100 fresh graduates through this talent 
huntprogramme. Many of the recruits currently 
work in BATB, and other BAT operations 
around the globe. Under the theme “Bring your 
difference”, this year BOM received 
applications from 2687 final-year students 
from 18 universities across Bangladesh. Only 
170 applicants made it past the initial 
assessment of the online applications. Round 1 
was a Focused Group Discussion, out of which 
76 candidates proceeded to the semi-finals. 
Top 20 competitors qualified for the final 
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has increased by 12 from that of 2014 which is 
greater than the increasing number of the 
previous period. This exhibits the growth rate 
is greater over the time.

BATB Female Leaders have also marked their 
footprints on Asia Pacific BAT Map. Two of our 
female talents -Amun Mustafiz, Senior 
Corporate Finance Manager and Adrita Datta, 
Talent Manager are now on International 
assignments in Tokyo, Japan. 

BAT Bangladesh has also made long strides in its 
initiative to ensure equal opportunities for women 
and has been recognised as the Most Female- friendly 
Organization in the country, in 2015 by Bangladesh 
Brand Forum (BBF). Along with that, Farah Zabeen –  
Secondary Manufacturing Department Manageralso 
received honourary award for ‘Progressing Women 
Leader’ from the same platform. 

pursuing their aspiration and acknowledges the 
remarkable contribution of women to the 
organisation. This enabling culture has 
developed many female talents over the 
years.For the first time, BAT Bangladesh has 2 
female members in the Leadership Team and 
has also been recognized for its achievements 
in ensuring gender equality in its factory and 
office premises. The chart of ‘Female 
Employees in BATB’ represents the yearly 
growth of female talents. It can be noticed 
that in 2015, the number of female employees 

exclusive arrangement with a Day Care Center, 
where both male and female employees can 
enroll their children for child care purpose. This 
gives another sense of security for the working 
mothers in the company.

Ensuring safe workplace for everyone 
especially women is a part of BAT Bangladesh’s 
policy. There are firm guidelines in the 
Company’s Standard of Business Conduct 
about harassment at workplace. This policy is 
very much aligned with the local law on sexual 
harassment. Not only this policy elaborately 
defines harassment of all kinds, but it also 
provides various channels for raising the 
concern so that, victims can choose their 
comfortable mode or individual for 
communication. Every individual in the 
organisation is bound to follow thispolicy to 
ensure safe and pleasant working environment 
for all irrespective of gender.

The organisation supports female employees 
by offering  congenial work environment for 

BAT Bangladesh strongly believes in workplace 
diversity as it is one of the four guiding principles 
the company follows. Ensuring equal opportunities 
for all regardless of gender and ethnicity has been 
common in the operations of BAT Bangladesh 
which makes it’s entity truly international and rich 
in blended differences of people.

As part of driving diversity, BAT Bangladesh 
ensures inclusion and proper nurturing of 
female talents in the company. For example, 
since 2006, company provides six months of 
maternity leave whereas government has 
ensured this provision of six months leave only 
from 2011 for the public sector offices. 
Provision for private sectors offices are still 4 
months. To facilitate transportation, company 
has provision of odd hour transport between 
10 pm to 6 am. For females working in factory, 
this odd hour transport is available in a monthly 
basis which is very crucial for the employees 
working during morning or night shift. On top 
of the odd hour transportation and 6 months 
of maternity leave, BAT Bangladesh has an 

EVOLVING AS THE MOST
FEMALE FRIENDLY ORGANISATION
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BAT Bangladesh’s women leaders celebrating International Women’s Day at office.
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is greater over the time.
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footprints on Asia Pacific BAT Map. Two of our 
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Talent Manager are now on International 
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initiative to ensure equal opportunities for women 
and has been recognised as the Most Female- friendly 
Organization in the country, in 2015 by Bangladesh 
Brand Forum (BBF). Along with that, Farah Zabeen –  
Secondary Manufacturing Department Manageralso 
received honourary award for ‘Progressing Women 
Leader’ from the same platform. 

pursuing their aspiration and acknowledges the 
remarkable contribution of women to the 
organisation. This enabling culture has 
developed many female talents over the 
years.For the first time, BAT Bangladesh has 2 
female members in the Leadership Team and 
has also been recognized for its achievements 
in ensuring gender equality in its factory and 
office premises. The chart of ‘Female 
Employees in BATB’ represents the yearly 
growth of female talents. It can be noticed 
that in 2015, the number of female employees 

exclusive arrangement with a Day Care Center, 
where both male and female employees can 
enroll their children for child care purpose. This 
gives another sense of security for the working 
mothers in the company.

Ensuring safe workplace for everyone 
especially women is a part of BAT Bangladesh’s 
policy. There are firm guidelines in the 
Company’s Standard of Business Conduct 
about harassment at workplace. This policy is 
very much aligned with the local law on sexual 
harassment. Not only this policy elaborately 
defines harassment of all kinds, but it also 
provides various channels for raising the 
concern so that, victims can choose their 
comfortable mode or individual for 
communication. Every individual in the 
organisation is bound to follow thispolicy to 
ensure safe and pleasant working environment 
for all irrespective of gender.

The organisation supports female employees 
by offering  congenial work environment for 

BAT Bangladesh strongly believes in workplace 
diversity as it is one of the four guiding principles 
the company follows. Ensuring equal opportunities 
for all regardless of gender and ethnicity has been 
common in the operations of BAT Bangladesh 
which makes it’s entity truly international and rich 
in blended differences of people.

As part of driving diversity, BAT Bangladesh 
ensures inclusion and proper nurturing of 
female talents in the company. For example, 
since 2006, company provides six months of 
maternity leave whereas government has 
ensured this provision of six months leave only 
from 2011 for the public sector offices. 
Provision for private sectors offices are still 4 
months. To facilitate transportation, company 
has provision of odd hour transport between 
10 pm to 6 am. For females working in factory, 
this odd hour transport is available in a monthly 
basis which is very crucial for the employees 
working during morning or night shift. On top 
of the odd hour transportation and 6 months 
of maternity leave, BAT Bangladesh has an 
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Rumana Rahman, Head of HR, receiving
‘RFL Inspiring Women Awards 2015’

Farah Zabeen, SMD Manager,
receiving ‘Progressing Women Leader’ award from BFF



facilitated with necessary hygiene & 
environment-friendly arrangements. There are 
rides like merry-go-round, nagordola etc, to 
the utmost delight of children.  Grown-ups are 
also entertained by the music shows and photo 
booths with cutouts of celebrated people and 
well-known tourist spots of the country for 
memorable family portraits to be taken 
together. Thus, the employees get a full day of 
extra-curricular activities for members of 
every age and genre to enjoy.

The Annual Picnic day is another day-long event 
dedicated to the employees’ contentment. The 
employees are encouraged to take a day off for 
playing instead of working and to participate in 
various sports and indoor games.

A half-day Kid’s Carnival is also arranged, when 
an amusement park is booked only for the 
amusement of the children of the employees. 
They are not only taken to enjoy the rides, but 
also to participate in other interesting and 
educational games such as essay writing 
contests. The yearly celebrations of the 
Company also include internal programmes on 
religious occasions such as Eid-e-Miladunnabi 
and Annual Iftar during the month of Ramadan.

What makes BAT Bangladesh one of the most 
responsible and law-abiding organisations 
among the globally recognised firms in  
Bangladesh is a number of excellent corporate 
practices, introduced and implemented by BAT 
Bangladesh that are yet to become benchmark 
for many corporate norms in the country. 
Employee welfare and development is such an 
attempt of the organisation that has long been 
partaking with full responsibility to ensure the 
safety and contentment of itsemployees.

With around 1400 people as direct employees and 
about 52,000 indirect ones as farmers, distributors 
and local suppliers, the thriving work culture of 
BAT Bangladesh has always been a source of its 
pride and one of the most preferred workplaces of 
every corporate-enthusiast in the country. By 
prioritizing the entire welfare of its employees, the 
organisation is always a step ahead in the social 
development of the country and in effect making 
the most out of untapped resources present in 
every corner. The result is always a big pool of 
passionate employees dedicated to bring in their 
best to their company and the country at large.

Work with Entertainment

Family Day is one of the most awaited events 
of BAT Bangladesh which is a day-long program  

Family Day 2015 Annual Picnic 2015

WELFARE TO PROGRESS
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Kids Carnival 2015

Kids Carnival 2015 Joyjatra Traning Program 2015

retired personnel who had given their lifelong 
services to BAT Bangladesh.

Safety Procedure

EHS (Environment, Health and Safety) and OHS 
(Occupational Health and Safety) implications 
are prominent among the Company’s 
authoritarian and educational measures that 
promote social and environmental well-being, 
by educating the employees about the basic 
benefits of maintaining a good health, a proper 
diet and practicing work place safety. Along 
with their well-equipped dispensary, we also 
have round the clock services via ambulance 
and pharmacists working in shifts. There are 
also options for employees to have their 
audiometry, spirometry, vision, hepatitis, 
vaccination and other tests carried out. 
Warning signs and slogans regarding 
occupational safety are also displayed in 
suitable spots to spread awareness. 

The EHS programmes on the other hand focus 
on the safety issues that can be brought upon 
by ensuring proper environment, and training 
sessions at the factory, namely “EHS Awareness 
Week,” “Show Your Hand” etc. Furthermore, 
warning signs regarding safety, such as being 
equipped in shoes, using of ear plugs, goggles, 
gloves when necessary and being careful about 
treading pathways dealing with conveners or 
blind corners are present in every corner of the 
organisation. To embed organizational values, 
soft-skilled development programmes are 
conducted across 9 sessions in 2015 with 360 
employees as participants. BAT Bangladesh 
believes in ‘Our People, Our Strength’, and 
accordingly nurtures its employees at its best.

Food & Health Services

BAT Bangladesh places great emphasis on 
employee welfare through the following 
initiatives such as: a fully-fledged canteen, 
serving healthy food and running free-of-cost 
campaigns on hygiene, has been built to cater 
to every nourishing need of the employees. For 
regular and emergency medical needs, the 
company facilitates hospital tests and 
admission, and also arranges for regular blood 
and pressure test facilities along with supply of 
medicines within the organisation. 

Supporting Education

BAT Bangladesh’s employee welfare 
programme is not limited within only 
recreational activities for the employees. Over 
the years, the organisation has patronised the 
educational successes of the meritorious 
children of its employees by providing 
scholarships for their outstanding results in 
S.S.C. /O Levels and H.S.C. /A Levels . The 
organisation has also been rewarding the 
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Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh, 
awarded BAT Bangladesh for its excellence in 
corporate governance. The Company topped 
the list in the manufacturing sector.

ICSB Award for Excellence
in Corporate Governance



As a recognition for benchmark practices in 
human resources development within the 
FMCG category in Bangladesh BATB  was 
awarded Best Employer Award in 2015.

Best Employer Award



The Industries Ministry awarded BATB for their 
significant contributions to the industrial sector 
through maintaining productivity and quality of 
products.

National Productivity and
Quality Excellence Award



BAT Bangladesh won the ‘Asia Responsible 
Entrepreneurship Awards’ for championing 
sustainable and responsible entrepreneurship 
through its CSR project Probaho.

Asia Responsible
Entrepreneurship Awards



RFL Inspiring Women Awards Awarded BATB as 
they acknowledge the remarkable contribution 
for adopting female friendly policy, supporting 
female employees in career path and offering a 
congenial work environment for pursing their 
aspiration.

Inspiring Women Awards



BATB IN MEDIA



SUPPLY CHAIN

LEGAL &
EXTERNAL AFFAIRS

SECURITY

MARKETING

PEOPLE BRINGING



FINANCE

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

HUMAN RESOURCES

CBA
REPRESENTATIVES

THE DIFFERENCE



Communications Day

JPGL Special Launching

Celebration of EPIC

Migration  

Annual General Meeting 

Records Management & SoBC Training

Annual Iftaar

SNAPSHOTS



Primary Manufacturing Department 

celebrates Passion for 

Excellence Award

JPGL 12s Smart Pack Launching

BATB Olympiad

Battle of Minds

Star Pack Upgrade Ceremony 

Training & Development



Securing the market as one of the top organisations within the 
country has always been among BAT Bangladesh’s constant 
achievements. The Company ranks second in market capitalization, 
owing to the 3500 investors and the Earning per Share valuing at 
97.43. The organisation is proud to have been enlisted among the 
Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges. Almost 35,000 registered 
BATB farmers are involved in production and supply of high quality 
tobacco. In the year 2015, the Company earned over US $ 26 million 
from tobacco leaf export which supports government export 
drive. The Company was awarded with AAA credit rating for long 
term maintenance of the highest credit and outstanding financial 
commitments to shareholders, further shaping its identity as a 
locally thriving organisation ready to tackle the next global challenge.
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Report on the Financial Statements

 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

 Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

 

Auditor's responsibility
 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

 

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
 

Opinion
 In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 

2015 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial 
Reporting Standards (BFRS).

 
Other Matter

 The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2014 were audited by another auditor who 
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 19 February 2015.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
 In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report the following:

 (a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

 
 (b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our 

examination of these books;
 
 (c) the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by the 

report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and
 
 (d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company's business.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 
of

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants
9 Mohakhali C/A (11th & 10 th Floors)
Dhaka 1212
Bangladesh

Telephone + 880 (2) 988 6450-2
Fax      + 880 (2) 988 6449
E- mail       dhaka@kpmg.com
Internet      www.kpmg.com/bd

Auditors

Dhaka, 22 February 2016
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position

     

In thousands of BDT Note  2015 2014

Assets          

Property, plant and equipment             5 13,665,015 12,018,576 

Non-current assets  13,665,015 12,018,576 

Inventories 6 8,553,377 9,098,197 

Trade and other receivables 7 940,758  1,153,571 

Advance, deposit and pre-payments 8 4,074,679  3,064,373 

Cash and cash equivalents 9  2,357,002  1,740,302 

Current assets  15,925,816 15,056,443 

Total assets    29,590,831  27,075,019

    

Equity
Share capital 10 600,000 600,000 

Capital reserve 11 64,896 64,896 

Retaind earnings 12  13,944,623 10,798,615 

Total equity attributable to owners of the company  14,609,519 11,463,511  

Liabilities:     

Gratuity 13  461,230 368,110 

Deferred tax liability 14  2,069,796 1,140,562 

Non-current liabilities  2,531,026 1,508,672 

Bank overdraft                                                                                                                                                       -                             347,610

Short term bank loans                                                                                           -   2,800,000 

Trade and other payables 15  7,842,726 7,152,166

Current tax liability 16  3,500,379  2,729,914 

Provisions for expenses 17 1,107,181  1,073,146 

Current liabilities  12,450,286 14,102,836 

Total liabilities  14,981,312 15,611,508 

Total equity and liabilities  29,590,831 27,075,019  

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

31 December 31 December

Shehzad Munim
Managing Director 

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants

Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan ndc
Director

William Francis Pegel
Finance Director

Golam Mainuddin
Chairman

Md. Azizur Rahman FCS 
Company Secretary

As per our report of same date

Dhaka, 22 February 2016
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

          

   

  Note 2015 2014

Gross turnover   143,711,664 126,725,499

Supplementary duty & VAT   (103,816,770) (91,163,512)

Net turnover 18  39,894,894 35,561,987

Cost of Sales 19  (21,212,511) (19,794,030)

Gross profit   18,682,383 15,767,957

Operating expenses 20  (5,481,856) (4,232,754)

Operating profit  13,200,527 11,535,203

Net financial Income/ (expenses) 21 (122,828) (157,807)

Non operating Income/ (expenses) 22  37,680 60,790

Profit before contribution to WPPF  13,115,379 11,438,186

Contribution to WPPF  (655,767) (571,909)

Profit before tax   12,459,612 10,866,277

Income tax expense 23 (6,585,538) (4,584,355) 

Net Profit for the Year  5,874,074 6,281,922

Other comprehensive income 24 (28,066) -

Total comprehensive income  5,846,008 6,281,922

   BDT  BDT

Earnings Per Share  97.43 104.70

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.  

31 December 31 DecemberIn thousands of BDT

Shehzad Munim
Managing Director 

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants

Md. Mosharraf Hossain Bhuiyan ndc
Director

William Francis Pegel
Finance Director

Golam Mainuddin
Chairman

Md. Azizur Rahman FCS 
Company Secretary

As per our report of same date

Dhaka, 22 February 2016
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

  Share Capital Retained Total 
  capital Reserve Earnings Equity

Balance at 1 January 2015 600,000 64,896 10,798,615 11,463,511

Profit for the year - - 5,874,074 5,874,074

Other comprehensive income - - (28,066) (28,066)

Total comprehensive income - - 5,846,008 5,846,008

Dividend paid:

 Final dividend for previous year - - (2,700,000) (2,700,000)

 Interim dividend during the year - - - -

Balance as at 31 December 2015 600,000 64,896 13,944,623 14,609,519

Balance at 1 January 2014 600,000 64,896 8,236,694 8,901,590

 Profit for the year - - 6,281,922 6,281,922

 Other comprehensive income - - - -

Total comprehensive income - - 6,281,922 6,281,922

Dividend paid: 

 Final dividend for previous year - - (3,120,000) (3,120,000)

 Interim dividend during the year - - (600,000) (600,000)

Balance as at 31 December 2014 600,000 64,896 10,798,615 11,463,511

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

In thousands of BDT
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 2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:   

Collection from distributors, leaf export and others  143,924,478 125,808,702

Payment for costs and expenses   (27,582,631) (24,171,635)

Supplementary duty and VAT paid   (102,249,859) (92,850,645)

Cash generated from operation     14,091,988 8,786,422

Income tax paid   (4,862,875) (3,864,539)

Interest paid     (128,394) (157,346)

Net cash flows from operating activities    9,100,719 4,764,537

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purehese of property, plant and equipment   (2,691,343) (4,406,253)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment    48,690 33,806

Net cash used in investing activities   (2,642,653) (4,372,447)

Cash flows from financing activities:    

Short term loan receipt  - 2,800,000

Short term loan payment  (2,800,000) -

Dividend paid   (2,693,756) (3,717,524)

Net cash used in financing activities   (5,493,756) (917,524)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  964,310 (525,434)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January    1,392,692 1,918,126

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December   2,357,002 1,392,692

Closing cash and cash equivalents have been arrived at as follows:

Cash and bank balances

Bank overdraft

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these �nancial statements.

2,357,002 1,392,692

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Statement of cash flows

2,357,002 1,740,302

- (347,610)

31 December 31 December
In thousands of BDT
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British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015

1 Reporting entity

1.1 Company profile

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited (the "Company") is a public limited company incorporated in Bangladesh and its 

shares are quoted in Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges. The address of the Company's registered office is New D.O.H.S. Road, 

Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206, Bangladesh.

1.2 Nature of business

The Company manufactures and markets brands including Benson & Hedges, John Player Gold Leaf, Pall Mall, Capstan, Star, Derby, Pilot 

and Hollywood. The Company has its head office and the cigarette factory in Dhaka, a green leaf threshing plant in Kushtia, a green leaf 

redrying plant in Manikganj and a number of leaf and sales offices throughout the country.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 

1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws in Bangladesh. Cash flows from operating activities are prepared 

under direct method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987.

2.2 Authorisation for issue

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 February 2016.

2.3 Reporting period

The financial period of the Company covers one year from 1 January to 31 December and is followed consistently.

Details of the Company's accounting policies including changes during the year are included in notes 38, 39 and 40.

3. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT), which is the Company's functional currency. All financial 

information is presented in BDT and has been rounded off to the nearest BDT unless otherwise indicated.

4. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with BFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may 

differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 

which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimates and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most 

significant effect on the amount recognised in these financial statements are stated in the following notes:

Note 5 - Property, plant and equipment

Note 6 - Inventories

Note 13 - Net defined benefit plan

Note 14 - Deferred tax liabilities

Note 16 - Current tax liabilities

Note 17 - Provisions and accruals

Note 35 - Contingent liabilities and commitments
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 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Inventories in hand 8,085,701 8,836,513 

  Inventories in transit 467,676 261,684 

      8,553,377 9,098,197

 Inventories in hand

 Leaf   5,093,475 4,609,094

 Wrapping materials 375,273 464,427

 Work in process 24,534 40,078

 Finished goods 2,147,529 3,218,884

 Consumable stores 444,890 504,030

      8,085,701 8,836,513 
                

 Inventories in transit:

 Leaf   134,929 64,000 

 Wrapping materials 317,922 166,588

 Consumable stores 14,825 31,096

      467,676 261,684

7. Trade and other receivables         
 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Trade receivables 817,017 1,105,198

 Intercompany receivables 113,091 33,609

 Sundry receivables 10,650 14,764

      940,758 1,153,571

 These are all unsecured and are considered good; as such no provision 
 was required to be made against these receivables.

8. Advances, deposits and pre-payments

 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014 

 Advances         

 Advance to suppliers 3,016,433 2,127,838

 Supplementary duty and VAT 834,673 781,538

 Advance to employees 17,919 23,254

      3,869,025 2,932,630

 Deposits

 Security deposit 99,598 19,933 

      99,598 19,933 

 Prepayments   

  Insurance 106,056 111,810

      106,056 111,810

      4,074,679 3,064,373

6. Inventories
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9. Cash and cash equivalents        
          

 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Cash in hand 969 1,938

 Cash at banks: 2,356,033 1,738,364 

  Dividend accounts 41,787 35,527

  Foreign currency accounts 754,798 818,226

  Current accounts 669,448 884,611

  Fixed and short term deposits 900,000 -

  Balance at 31 December 2,357,002 1,740,302 

9.1  Restricted cash balance   
 Dividend account is used only to pay dividends to the shareholders. The balance of this account moves with dividend   

 transactions only.

9.2  Banking facility arrangement
 Short term running funded facilities available with the banks amount to BDT 8,496 million (2014 : BDT 6,400 million).   

 No facilities were availed as at 31 December 2015 (2014: BDT 3,148 million).  Facilities are renewable on annual basis.

10. Share capital         

 BDT

 Authorised: 

 60,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 600,000,000 600,000,000 

   600,000,000 600,000,000

 Issued, subscribed and paid up: 

           Issued for cash:         

 3 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each  30 30

 Issued for consideration other than cash:        

 59,999,997 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 599,999,970 599,999,970

   600,000,000 600,000,000

10.1 Shareholding Position         

      2015    2014

Name of Shareholders  No. of shares Value (BDT)     Percentage       No. of shares    Value (BDT)     Percentage 

Raleigh Investment Co. Ltd., UK 43,745,358            437,453,580      72.91%                43,745,358           437,453,580 72.91%

Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 4,591,742           45,917,420 7.65%                 5,005,3921         500,539,210 8.34%

Shadharan Bima Corporation 1,694,047          16,940,470 2.82%                    1,694,047            16,940,470 2.82%

Bangladesh Shilpa Rin Shangstha 197,376             1,973,760 0.33%                       197,866               1,978,660 0.33%

Government of Bangladesh 386,824            3,868,240 0.64%                       386,824              3,868,240 0.64%

Others     9,384,653          93,846,530 15.64%                    8,970,513             89,705,130 14.95%

                                                          60,000,000       600,000,000 100.00%              60,000,000     600,000,000 100.00%

 2015                       2014
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10.2  Share distribution schedule
 A distribution schedule of the shares at the repoting date is given  below following the requirement of listing regulations:   
  

      

     No. of Total no. of      Percentage   No. of       Total no. of            Percentage

     shareholders shares of holding       shareholders shares of holding  

 Less than 501 shares 2,545            181,237 0.30% 2,701 186,006 0.31%

 501           to 5,000 shares 203           261,280 0.44% 215 273,975 0.46%

 5,001       to 10,000 shares 18           129,280 0.22% 17 115,534 0.19%

 10,001     to 20,000 shares 17          228,206 0.38% 11 156,378 0.26%

 20,001    to 30,000 shares 4             98,637 0.16% 11 285,425 0.48%

 30,001    to 40,000 shares  6          209,446 0.35% 1 35,000 0.06%

 40,001   to 50,000 shares 4           174,402 0.29% 5 231,250 0.39%

 50,001     to 100,000 shares 8          576,090 0.96% 9 662,450 1.10%

 100,001  to 1,000,000 shares  14       4,375,995 7.29% 14 4,360,953 7.27%

 Over  1,000,000 shares 6     53,765,427 89.61% 6 53,693,029 89.49%

                                                    2,825   60,000,000 100.00%       2,990 60,000,000 100.00%

11. Capital reserve

  Capital reserve represents non-remittable reserve of BDT 64,896 thousands which are 90% of the cumulative post   

 tax profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment as historically defined and directed by Bangladesh Bank.    

 The requirement to create such special reserve on profit from sale of property, plant and equipment has been    

 withdrawn since 1993.

2015 2014

12.  Retained earning         
          

 In thousands of BDT      2015   2014

 Balance as at 1 January      10,798,615   8,236,694

 Total comprehensive income for the year:

   Profit for the year      5,874,074   6,281,922

  Other comprehensive income      (28,066)   -

        16,644,623   14,518,616 

 Dividends during the year:

  Final dividend for previous year      (2,700,000)   (3,120,000)

  Interim dividend during the year      -   (600, 000)

  Balance as at 31 December      13,944,623   10,798,615

Shareholder's range
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13. Net defined benefit plans

  Gratuity                  Pension            Total   Gratuity Pension     Total
  fund  fund       fund fund

 Defined benefit         
 obligation (note 13.1) (448,320)  (226,810)      (675,130) (368,110) (201,970) (570,080)  

 Fair value of 
 plan assets (note 13.2)         -                             213,900         213,900 - 201,970 201,970  
 

 Net surplus/(deficit) (448,320)      (12,910)      (461,230)      (368,110)       -     (368,110)

13.1 Movement in defined benefit obligation

   Gratuity fund  Pension Fund Total 

  Defined benefit obligation as at 1 January 2015 368,110  201,970 570,080

  Current service cost 40,600  8,920 49,520

  Interest cost 35,730  20,600 58,330 

  Benefit paid by the fund -  (11,590) (11,590) 

  Benefit paid directly by the Company (34,200)  - (34,200)

  Actuarial (gain)/loss 38,080  6,910 44,990

  Defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 2015 448,320  226,810 675,130

13.2 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

   Gratuity fund  Pension Fund Total 

  Fair value of plan assets as at 1 January 2015 -  201,970 201,970

  Employer's contribution -  8,510 8,510

  Expected return on plan assets -  21,050 21,050 

  Benefits paid by the plan -  (11,590) (11,590)

  Actuarial gain/(loss) -  (6,040) (6,040)

 Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December 2015                213,900   213,900

13.3 Defined benefit plan charge to profit or loss and other comprehensive income in 2015

  In thousands of BDT Gratuity fund  Pension Fund Total 

  Profit or loss 

  Current service costs 40,600  8,920 49,520

  Interest accrued on defined benefit obligation 35,730  20,600 56,330

  Expected return on plan assets -  (21,050) (21,050) 

  Net finance expense/(income) for pension plan 35,730  (450) 35,280

   76,330  8,470 84,800

  Other comprehensive income 

  Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised directly in equity 38,080  12,950 51,030

   38,080  12,950 51,030 

In thousands of BDT

In thousands of BDT

2015 2014

In thousands of BDT

-
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 13.4 Actuarial assumptions
  
  The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date.

     Gratuity fund Pension Fund

  Discount rate   9% 9% 

  Salary escalation rate   11% 11%

14. Deferred tax liabilities

31 December 2015

   Carrying   Taxable/ (deductible)

   amount at   temporary

   reporting date  Tax base difference

Property, plant and equipment excluding land and AUC 10,708,353  5,565,429 5,142,924  

Provision for inventories (82,142)  - (82,142) 

Provision for gratuity (461,235)  - (461,235)  

 Net temporary difference    4,599,547  

 Applicable tax rate    45% 

Deferred tax liabilities    2,069,796

31 December 2014

   Carrying   Taxable/ (deductible)

   amount at   temporary

   reporting date  Tax base difference

Property, plant and equipment excluding land and AUC 6,945,972 3,639,968  3,306,004  

 Provision for inventories (86,483) -  (86,483) 

Provision for gratuity (368,112)  - (368,112)

Net temporary difference    2,851,409

Applicable tax rate    40%

Deferred tax liabilities    1,140,562

14.1 Deferred tax (expense)/income

      2015 2014

 Deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the year 1,140,562 883,377  

 Deferred tax liabilities at the end of the year 2,069,796 1,140,562  

      (929,234) (257,185)

 Deferred tax attributable to actuarial loss recognised directly in equity (22,964) -  

 Deferred tax (expense)/income recognised directly in profit (952,198) (257,185)

In thousands of BDT

In thousands of BDT

In thousands of BDT
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15. Trade and other payables 

 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Trade payables 3,405,933 3,388,452

 Intercompany payables 3,257,811 2,219,873 

 Workers' Profit Participation Fund 10,767 11,911

 Wages and other benefits 323,608 222,091

 Unclaimed dividend (note 26) 41,771 35,527

 Sundry payables 802,836 1,274,312

      7,842,726 7,152,166

16. Current tax liabilities
 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Balance as at 1 January 2,729,914 2,267,283

 Provision made during the year 5,633,340 4,327,170

      8,363,254   6,594,453

 Advance payment of corporate tax (4,862,875) (3,864,539)

 Balance as at 31 December 3,500,379  2,729,914 

17. Provisions and accruals
   In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

   Provision for expenses 235,504 249,555

   Accrued expenses 871,677 678,872

   VAT and duty related provisions - 144,719

      1,107,181 1,073,146

18. Net turnover
 

 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Gross turnover from domestic sale 141,638,593 124,003,186

 Supplementary duty and VAT (103,614,216) (90,884,752)  

      38,024,377 33,118,43

 Gross turnover from tobacco leaf export 2,073,071 2,722,313

 Export duty (202,554) (278,760)

      1,870,517 2,443,553

   Net turnover 39,894,894  35,561,987  

Unit Quantity

Million sticks 42,541

Million kg 9,907
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19. Cost of sales
 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Opening stock of raw materials 5,355,799 4,656,884  

 Purchase of raw materials 16,946,747 16,045,354  

  Raw materials available 22,302,546 20,702,238

 Closing stock of raw materials (5,964,254)  (5,355,799)  

 Raw materials consumption 16,338,292 15,346,439

 Manufacturing overhead (note 19.1) 4,652,582 4,015,323

 Total cost of goods manufactured 20,990,874 19,361,762

 Opening stock of finished goods 688,238 661,226

 Closing stock of finished goods  (924,009) (688,238)

 Total cost of goods sold excluding royalty 20,755,103  19,334,750

 Royalty  457,408  459,280

 Total cost of sales 21,212,511  19,794,030

19.1 Manufacturing overhead
 Salaries and wages  1,134,537 1,031,450  

 Depreciation 620,783 558,327

 Printing and stationary 17,965 16,140

 Utilities 435,983 391,408

 Repairs and maintenance 1,015,484 878,673

 Security and safety 120,576 78,791

 Rent, services and transportation 832,211 554,289

 Insurance 86,077 89,665

 Research and development 2,102 6,230

 Other expenses 386,864 410,350

        4,652,582    4,015,323

20. Operating expenses
 Salaries and wages      793,191    740,930

 Utilities      14,133    15,576

 Rent, services and transportation      235,187    175,491

 Repairs and maintenance      116,648    100,948

 Depreciation      186,950    208,987

 Travelling and training      236,571    218,602

 Printing and stationery      31,155    30,494

 Security and safety      40,165    32,626

 Social responsibility      21,472    11,920

 Legal, secretarial and professional fee      18,590    19,938

 Insurance      3,907    2,530

 Audit fee      800    800

 Information technology      311,083    423,739

 Technical assistance fee      9,781,92     892,964

 Brand marketing expenditure      1,937,730     1,752,286

 Other expenses      556,082     (395,097)

      5,481,856 4,232,754
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21. Net finance income/(expenses)
 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Interest income 19,733 30,158

 Interest expense (142,561) (187,965)

      (122,828) (157,807)

22. Non-operating income/(expenses)
 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Profit/ (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (5,168) 16,991

 Other income 42,848 43,799

      37,680 60,790

23.1 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

    2015  2014  

   % BDT'000 % BDT'000

 Profit before tax  12,459,612  10,866,277

 Current tax expense 45.21% 5,633,340 39.82% 4,327,170

 Deferred tax expense 7.64% 952,198 2.37% 257,185

 Total tax expense 52.86%  6,585,538 42.19% 4,584,355

 Expected income tax using applicable tax rate 45.00% 5,606,825 40.00% 4,346,511

  Prior Year adjustment 4.29% 534,952 0.44% 47,552

 Tax on non deductible expenses -4.08%  (508,437) -0.62% (66,893)

 Effective current tax 45.21% 5,633,340 39.82% 4,327,170

 Effective deferred tax 7.64% 952,198 2.37% 257,185

   52.86% 6,585,538  42.19%  4,584,355

23. Income tax expenses

 In thousands of BDT

 Current tax (note 16) 5,633,340 4,327,170

 Deferred tax expenses/(income) (note 14.1) 952,198 257,185

       6,585,538 4,584,355

22.1 Non current assets disposed during the year
 
        Cost Accumulated Written Sale Pro�t/  Purchaser/
   depreciation down value proceeds (loss) written o�
 
 Freehold building       36,895           (9,532)          27,363 - (27,363) Written o�
 Furniture and �xtures       76,236         (70,238)            5,998 102 (15,896) Third party
 Laboratory equipment       16,507         (16,499)                    8 - (8) Written o�
 IT Equipment       36,337         (33,974)            2,363 283 (2,080) Third party
 Leasehold building       32,719         (20,595)          12,124 - (12,124) Third party
 O�ce equipment       32,226         (31,182)            1,044 62 (982) Third party
 Plant and machinery       29,441         (26,444)            2,997 - (2,997) Written o�
 Vehicles    130,432       (128,471)            1,961 48,243 46,282 Employees of
      - the Company
 2015 Total 390,793  (336,935)    53,858 48,690 (5,168)

 2014 Total 207,368  (190,552)     16,816 33,807 16,991

All asset disposals were as per Company policy.

20142015

In thousands of BDT
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25. Earnings per share

25.1 Basic earnings per share

 Earnings Per Share (EPS) is calculated in accordance with the Bangladesh Accounting Standard BAS 33: Earnings Per    

 Share. The composition of EPS is given below:

 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Total profit attributable to shareholders (BDT'000) 5,846,008 6,281,922

 No of shares outstanding ('000) at 31 Dec 2015 60,000 60,000

 Earning per share 97.43 104.70

 
25.2 Diluted earnings per share

 No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during the year.

27. Remittances of foreign currency
 In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Royalty (after deduction of withholding tax as per law) 4,270 3,966

 Technical fee (after deduction of withholding tax as per law) 7,685 -

 Dividend 22,691 31,353

      34,646 35,319
 

 Royalty comprises amounts incurred for Bension & Hedges for the year 2013 and Pallmall for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013. 

 Technical fee comprises amounts incurred for the year 2013

28. Value of imports on Cost, Insurance and Freight (CIF) basis
  In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Raw and packing materials 3,083,141 2,470,556

 Spares and others 740,749 654,975 

 Capital goods 1,410,625 2,822,006

      5,234,515 5,947,537

26. Dividend paid
 
   Ageing analysis of unclaimed dividend
      
 In thousands of BDT Prior to    Total 2014 
  2013 2013 2014 2015  Total  
  
 Opening unclaimed dividend 30,887 2,165 2475 - 35,527 33,052

 Dividend declared:
 Final dividend for 2014/2013            -          -         - 2,700,000 2,700,000 3,120,000
 Interim dividend for 2015/2014            -          -         - - - 600,000
             -          -         - 2,700,000 2,700,000  3,720,000
 Closing unclaimed dividend 30,887 2,165 2,475 6,244 41,771 35,527

 Dividend paid     2,693,756 3,717,525

24. Other comprehensive income
  In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

 Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (51,030)  -  

 Deferred tax gain/(charge) for actuarial loss on defined benefit plans 22,964  -

      (28,066) -
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      2015 2014

29. Value of leaf export earnings received (USD'000)   26,595   35,122

30. Capacity
The Company works on continuous operation basis and given the current installed machine configurations and planned 
expansions, there is sufficient capacity to meet forecast future demand in a variety of specification (e.g. Filter) and packaging 
(e.g. Hinge Lid, Shell and Slide) configurations. The Directors regularly review the production capability of the Company and 
are satisfied that the current and future capacities are adequate. Plans are in place to meet any anticipated future demand.  

      2015 2014
Actual production of cigarettes (in million sticks)   43,046 39,098

31. Segment Reporting

The Company is domiciled in Bangladesh. The gross revenue from external customers is BDT 142,593 million (2014: BDT 126,125 
million). The Company does not have any non current assets that are located outside Bangladesh. There are also no revenue 
arising from transactions with a single external customer that comprises 10% or more of the Company's revenue for the years 
ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

The Company is a single product business primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sale of cigarettes in Bangladesh and this 
forms the focus of the Company's internal reporting system. While the Company has clearly differentiated brands, 
segmentation within a wide portfolio of brands is not part of the regular internally reported financial information to the chief 
operating decision maker. Therefore, it is not possible to segment the Company's results by brand without a high degree of 
estimation.

Apart from cigarette manufacturing, the Company exports leaf outside Bangladesh, which contributes less than 10% of gross 
and net turnover. However, the break up of cigarette and export sales has been provided in note 18.

32. Consumption of imported and local raw materials

 

  In thousands of BDT      

   Wrapping  Wrapping 
   material Leaf material Leaf

 Imported:
 Opening stock 591,808 479,096 474,807 462,996

 Purchases 2,104,357  962,252 2,550,137 1,319,044

 Consumption (2,451,027)  (1,110,041) (2,450,136) (1,302,945)

 Closing stock (a) 245,138  331,307 574,808 479,095

 Domestic:
 Opening stock 39,207 4,194,000 148,521 3,702,569

 Purchases 5,174,401  9,014,770 4,231,017 7,761,456

 Consumption (4,765,551)  (6,811,056) (4,323,331) (5,267,509)

 Export  - (1,200,617) - (2,002,517)

 Closing stock (b)  448,057 5,197,097 56,207 4,193,999

 Closing stock (a+b) 693,195 5,528,404 631,015 4,673,094

33. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values, where applicable, of financial assets and financial liabilities. It 
does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying 
amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

20142015
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    Carrying amount

                          Designated   Fair value    Other
    Held-for  at fair hedging Held to Loans and Available financial Total
(In thousands of BDT) Note trading value   instruments    maturity   receivables for sale liabilities amount 

31 December 2015

Financial assets not measured
at fair value
Trade and other receivables  - - - - 940,758        940,758
Deposits  - - - - 99,598          99,598
Cash at bank  - - - - 2,356,033    2,356,033
    - - - - 3,369,389    3,369,389
Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Trade and other payables  - - - - -                    7,842,726    7,842,726

Accrued expenses  - - - - -                        871,677  871,677

                            8,714,403    8,714,403 
31 December 2014

Financial assets not
measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables   - - - - 1,153,571         -        -                -

Deposits         19,933         -        -                -

Cash at bank        1,738,364         -        -                -

     - - - - 2,911,868          -        -                - 

Financial liabilities not

measured at fair value

Trade and other payables                      7,152,166  7,152,166 

Accrued expenses                         678,872   678,872

                        7,831,038 7,831,038

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments because their carrying amounts are a reasonable 

approximating of fair values.

B. Financial risk management
The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

I) Credit risk
II) Liquidity risk
III) Market risk

The Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management 
framework. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies, procedures 
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. This note presents 
information about the Company's exposure to each of the following risks, the Company's objectives, policies and processes 
for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital.

I)Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and other parties.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. In monitoring credit 
risk, receivables are grouped according to their risk profile, i.e. their legal status, financial condition, ageing profile etc. The 
Company's exposure to credit risk on receivables is mainly influenced by customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of 
financial position. 
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Note

7

8

9

 a) Exposure to credit risk
 
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk   
at the reporting date was:

In thousands of BDT 2015 2014
Trade and other receivables   940,758 1,153,571

Deposits    99,598 19,933

Cash at bank   2,356,033  1,738,364

                   3,396,389  2,911,868

b) Ageing of trade and other receivables

At 31 December, the ageing of trade and other receivables that were not impaired were as follows:

In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

Past due 30 days   821,920  674,398

Past due 31-90 days   102,114  218,631

Past due 91-180 days   16,724  61,289

Past due over 180 days    -    199,253

     940,758  1,153,571

II) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to 

ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and 

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Typically, the 

Company ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial 

obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, based on time line of payment of financial obligations and 

accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payments within due dates. Moreover, the Company 

has short term credit facilities with scheduled commercial banks to ensure payment of obligation in the event that there is 

insufficient cash to make the required payment. The requirement is determined in advance through cash flow projections and 

credit lines with banks are negotiated accordingly.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

31 December 2015

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly 

different amounts.

31 December 2014

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly 

different amounts.

Note

15

17

amount

7,842,726

8,714,403

871,677

7,842,726

8,714,403

871,677

6,407,126

7,278,803

871,677

1,435,600

1,435,600

-

Carrying
or less

Total 6 months
months

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6 - 12

Contractual cash flows

years
1 - 2

years
2 - 5

5 years
more thane

In thousands of BDT

Trade and other payables

Accrued expenses

Note

15

17

amount

7,152,166

7,831,038

678,872

7,152,166

7,831,038

678,872

5,845,850

6,524,722

678,872

1,306,316

1,306,316

-

Carrying
or less

Total 6 months
months

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6 - 12

Contractual cash flows

years
1 - 2

years
2 - 5

5 years
more thane

In thousands of BDT

Trade and other payables

Accrued expenses
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III) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that any changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the 
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage 
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising the return.

a) Currency risk/foreign exchange rate risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the 
United State Dollar (USD), Euro (EUR) and British Pound (GBP). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transac-
tions of recognized assets and liabilities. Management complies with the treasury policy to manage foreign exchange risk 
against their functional currency.

I) Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:

31 December 2015

In thousands of BDT USD  GBP EUR

Foreign currency denominated assets

Cash at bank 9,560  - -

Trade receivables 393  - -

Intercompany receivables 1,267  87 -

   11,220  87 - 

Foreign currency denominated liabilities

Trade payables 102  12 245

Intercompany payables 15,304  15,648 7

   15,406  15,660 252
Net exposure (4,186)  (15,573) (252)

31 December 2014

In thousands of BDT USD  GBP EUR

Foreign currency denominated assets

Cash at bank 10,500  - -

Trade receivables 124  - -

Intercompany receivable -  64 -

   10,624  64 -

Foreign currency denominated liabilities

Trade payables 4,461   18 12,819

Intercompany payables 13,830  4,829 6

   18,291   4,847 12,825

Net exposure (7,667)   (4,783) (12,825)

The following exchange rates are applied at reporting date:

      2015 2014

USD      78.95 77.93
GBP      118.11 121.50
EUR      87.49 94.29
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Strengthening

Strengthening

      Weakening

Weakening

ii) Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis for foreign currency expenditures

A strengthening or weakening of the Taka, as indicated below, against the USD, EUR and GBP at reporting date would have 
increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency 
exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the reporting date. The analysis assumes 
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

2015

In thousands of BDT profit or (loss) profit or (loss)

USD (5 percent movement) 16,524 (16,524)
GBP (5 percent movement) 91,966 (91,966)
EUR (5 percent movement) 1,102 (1,102)
      109,593 (109,593)

2014

In thousands of BDT profit or (loss) profit or (loss)

USD (5 percent movement) 29,873  (29,873)
GBP (5 percent movement) 29,058 (29,058)
EUR (5 percent movement) 60,465 (60,465)

      119,396 (119,396)

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. At present the Company has no 
borrowings which is subject to interest rate risk.
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34. Related party disclosures

i) Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel compensation comprised the following:

In thousands of BDT 2015 2014

Meeting attendance fee 80 79
Meeting expense 2,475 1,508
Remuneration  49,824 54,290
Retirement benefit scheme 4,124 3,757  
Medical and welfare 139 75
Housing    13,176 7,776

      69,818 67,485

 ii) Other related party transactions

The Company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of  business on arms length 
basis. The name of these related parties, nature of transactions and their total value have been set in accordance with the 
provisions of BAS 24: Related party disclosures.

In thousands of BDT Relationship 2015 2014 2015 2014

Income
a. Leaf export and sale of goods
The Company sold leaf to:
BAT (GLP) Limited BAT Group company 894,948 2,110,407 20,518 (30,373)
Pakistan Tobacco Company Limited BAT Group company 252,927 531,984 82,372 55,199
BAT Marketing Nigeria Ltd BAT Group company 261 - 261 -

  1,148,136 2,642,391 103,151 24,826
b. Management fee

Management Fee received/to be received from:
BAT AsPac Service Centre Sdn Bhd BAT Group company - - - 3,505
BAT Marketing (s) PTE Ltd BAT Group company - - - 830
BAT Holdings Limited Holding company - 15,546 - 3024
BAT Aspac Service Centre SDN BHD BAT Group company 9,940 5,9636 9,940 -
BAT Marketing Singapore BAT Group company - 874 - -

  9,940 76,056 9,940 73,59

Expenses
c. Procurement of products/services
Procurement of information technology, product and other services:

BASS GSD UK BAT Group company 390,694 543,973 (242,825) (473,885)
BAT Holdings Limited Holding company 507 1,672 (3,947) (4,063)
BAT Asia-Pacific Region Limited BAT Group company 5,861 24,093 (9,948) (14,654)
BAT Singapore BAT Group company 11,5178 21,227 (115,178) (66,337)
BAT AsPac Service Centre Sdn Bhd BAT Group company 140,610 297,853 (278,293) (138,678)
BAT Korea BAT Group company - 526 - (132)
BAT SAA Service (Private) Limited BAT Group company 37,370 6,706 (8,067) -
BAT Western Europe BAT Group company - 539 - (539)

  690,220 869,589 (685,258) (698,288)
d. Purchase of leaf & goods

Purchase of leaf and wrapping materials from:
BAT Singapore BAT Group company 93,884 112,886 - -
BAT (GLP) Limited* BAT Group company 371,023 1,113,252 140,593 65,721
BAT Marketing (s) PTE Ltd BAT Group company 12,465 - (3,053) (32,706)
BAT Singapore BAT Group company - - (13,838) (23,968)
BAT PT. Export Leaf Indonesia BAT Group company 250 - (250) -
BAT Supply Chain WE Ltd* BAT Group company 590 - 147 737

  487,212 1,226,138 123,599 9,784 

Transaction values for the
year ended 31 December

Receivable/ (Payable)
outstanding as at 31 December
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e. Royalty

In thousands of BDT Relationship 2015 2014 2015 2014

Royalty paid/payable to:
BAT Holdings Limited** Holding company 457,408 413,352 (828,490) (813,331)

  457,408 413,352 (828,490) (813,331)

f. Technical and advisory fee
Payment of fees for technical and advisory support services to:
BAT Investments Ltd** Holding company 978,192 892,964 (1,753,830) (671,117)

  978,192 892,964 (1,753,830) (671,117)

g. Purchase of equipment

Purchase of equipment from:
BAT Tobacco Importers and BAT Group company 91 470,032 - -
Manufacturers
BAT Manufacturing Australia* BAT Group company 55,438 - 4,486 - 
BAT Colombia Sas* BAT Group company - - 21,118 -
BAT Tabacalera Hondurena S.A.* BAT Group company - - 44,634 -
Tobacco Importers & Manufacturers BAT Group company - - (91) (46,923)

  55,529 470,032 70,147 (46,923)

h. Sale of property, plant and equipment to key management personnel - 275 - - 

  - 275 - -

*Advance paid
**Closing balance consists of royalty and technical fee of 2014 and 2015.

35. Contingent liabilities and commitments    

 There is commitment for capital expenditure as at 31 December 2015 which is authorised but not provided for in the 
financial statements amounting to BDT 435.75 million (2014: BDT 159.78 million).    
 

  Bank guarantees of BDT 42.16 million (2014: BDT 40.16 million) issued by the Company's scheduled bankers on counter 
indemnities given by the Company.     
 

 There are contingent liabilities on account of letter of credits issued by Company's banks in favour of the Company 
amounting to BDT 768.63 million (2014: BDT 363.45 million).   

35.1 Litigation    

 The Company is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of 
management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have any material impact on the financial statements

 
 In particular, in November 2013 the Company received a retrospective notice of imposition and realisation of VAT and 

Supplementary Duty on low price category brands (Pilot & Bristol) from the National Board of Revenue (NBR) for 
approximately BDT 19,240 million. The Company is alleged to have evaded tax by selling in the low price segments 
rather than the mid-tier segments.

 
 Whilst management believe that the claim is unfounded, it has been engaging with all of the parties concerned from 

the outset. Based on legal opinion, no provision has been made for this claim. Litigation and further engagement has 
proceeded during 2015. The issue is currently awaiting outcome from the High Court, which may still result in further 
appeals by BAT Bangladesh. A 10% deposit may have to be paid in 2016 in order to pursue any such an appeal.

36. Number of employees

 The Company had 1,400 permanent employees as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 1,353) and a varying number of seasonal 
and temporary workers as required. 

 

Transaction values for the
year ended 31 December

Receivable/ (Payable)
outstanding as at 31 December
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37. Events after the reporting period
 
 The Board of Directors of the Company recommended 550% (BDT 55 per share) cash dividend amounting to BDT 

3,300,000,000 for 2015 at the board meeting held on 22 February 2016. The dividend is subject to final approval by the 
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. 

38. Basis of measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost convention.

39. New accounting standards not yet adopted
 
 Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 

2015 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company.

 BFRS 15 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 This standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a 
customer, this notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard is mandatory for 
reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Company is currently assessing the implications and 
consequences of this standard.

 BFRS 9 : Financial Instruments

 This standard addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 
and introduces new rules for hedge accounting. The standard is mandatory for reporting periods commencing on or 
after 1 January 2018. The Company is currently assessing the implications and consequences of this standard.

40 Significant accounting policies   
 

 The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial 
statements.

 
 Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on the following 

pages:
 
 Note Particulars
 40.1 Property, plant and equipment
 40.2 Financial instruments
 40.3 Share capital
 40.4 Impairment
 40.5 Operating lease
 40.6 Inventories
 40.7 Employee  benefits
 40.8 Provisions
 40.9 Contingencies
 40.10 Revenue   

40.11 Income tax expense   
40.12 Foreign currency transactions  
40.13 Finance income and expenses  
40.14 Earnings per share (EPS)   
40.15 Statement of cash flows   
40.16 Dividends   
40.17 Comparatives and rearrangement   
40.18 Materiality and aggregation   
40.19 Events after the reporting period   
40.20 Going concern

40.1  Property, plant and equipment

40.1.1 Recognition and measurement
 
 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any.
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 Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other costs directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing 
the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Assets under construction represents the cost incurred for 
acquisition and/or construction of items of property, plant and equipment that are not ready for use which is measured 
at cost

 
 Buildings constructed by the Company on leasehold land are capitalised and included under the category of leasehold 

property.

40.1.2 Subsequent costs

 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item 
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can 
be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

40.1.3 Depreciation
 
 Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the 

estimated useful life of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated.
 
 Depreciation on newly acquired asset is charged from the month of acquisition. On deletion/disposal of an asset, 

depreciation is charged up to the month prior to the deletion/disposal.
 
 The rates of depreciation vary according to the estimated useful lives of each particular class of property, plant and 

equipment, as follows:

  
    

40.1.4 Retirements and disposals   
 

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no further economic benefits are 
expected from its use. Gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference of net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment and is 
recognised as gain or loss from disposal of asset under other income/expense in the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income.

Category Useful life in years

40

Maximum 40 years, depreciation
rates based on a case by case basis

14.3/4

10

'5/10

'3/5/10

'4/5

3

1%

0%

0%/1%

0%

0%

0%

1%

0%

Residual value

Freehold building

Leasehold building

Plant and machinery

Laboratory equipment

Office equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

IT equipment

 Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted as appropriate.
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40.2 Financial instruments
 
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. Accounting policies relating to different type of financial instruments are described 
below

40.2.1 Financial assets
 
 The Company initially recognises receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated.  All other financial 

assets are recognised initially on the date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
transaction.

 
 The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the cash flows 

from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a 
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

 
 Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and deposits.
 

 i) Cash and cash equivalents  
 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash at banks and fixed deposits receipt which are held and available for 

use by the Company without any restriction except for the dividend account. For the purposes of the cash flow 
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at financial institutions and short-term 
highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a cmponent of cash 
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

 ii) Trade and other receivables   
 

 Trade and other receivables consist of unpaid bills receivable from customers and other parties. Trade and other 
receivables are recognised initially at original invoice amount and subsequently measured at the remaining amount less 
allowances for doubtful receivables at the year end, which is made at the discretion of the management.

 iii) Deposits 
 

 Deposits are measured at payment value.

40.2.2 Financial liability
 

 The Company recognises a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the liability. The Company 
recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are 
certain and when settlement thereof is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of 
economic benefits.

 

 The Company derecognises a financial liability, when its contractual obligations are discharged 
or cancelled or expired.

 Financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

 i) Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are recognised when its contractual obligations arising from past 
events are certain and the� settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the 
Company of resources embodying economic benefits. Trade and other payable are recognised 
initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables are stated at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

40.2.3 Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the 
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset 
the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.
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40.3 Share capital

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

 Paid up capital represents total amount contributed by the shareholders and bonus shares, if 
any, issued by the Company to the ordinary shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are 
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to vote at 
shareholders' meetings. In the event of a winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders 
rank after all other shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any residual proceeds of 
liquidation.

40.4 Impairment
 

 i) Recognition

 Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss and receivables are assessed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that any particular asset 
is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect 
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

 The carrying value of the non-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised 
whenever the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses, if any, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income.

 ii) Calculation of recoverable amount

 The recoverable amount of asset is the greater of its net selling price or its value in use. The 
latter is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows to a present value using a 
discount rate which reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and risk 
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate significantly independent cash 
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset 
belongs.

 ii) Reversal of impairment

 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

4.5 Operating lease

 All leases other than those which meet the definition of finance lease are treated as operating 
lease and are not recognised in the statement of financial position. Payments made under 
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

4.6 Inventories

 Raw materials and finished goods inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Spare parts are valued at cost. 
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 The cost of inventories, except goods in transit, is measured based on the weighted average 
method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or 
conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and 
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in process, cost includes an 
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

 Net realisable value is defined as the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 
less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 Goods that are in transit are valued at cost including related charges.

40.7 Employee  benefits

40.7.1 Short-term benefits

 Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related services are provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected 
to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present 
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

40.7.2 Defined benefits plans

 Management Gratuity Scheme

 The Company operates  a unfunded gratuity scheme for the management employees  who 
joined the Company up to February 2013. Members of this scheme become eligible to receive 
gratuity on completion of 5 years of continuous services with the Company.

 Management Pension Fund
 
 The Company operates a funded pension scheme for the management employees who joined 

the company from 1 January 1987 to 31 August 2007.  Members of this fund become eligible to 
receive pension on completion of 5 year of continuous service with the Company. The fund is 
managed by a Board of Trustees.

 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets were 

determined by professional actuary  for both the funds. Projected Unit Credit method is used 
to measure the present value of defined benefit obligations and related current and past 
service cost and mutually compatible actuarial assumptions about demographic and financial 
variables were used. The difference between fair value of the plan assets and present value of 
obligation is recognised as a liability or an asset in the statement of financial position. In respect 
of any actuarial gains or losses  arising from actuarial valuation, is fully recognised in the other 
comprehensive income.

40.7.3 Defined contributions plan

 Management Gratuity Scheme

 The Company operates  a funded gratuity scheme for the management employees who joined 
the Company from 1 March 2013 onwards. The Company contributes 15% of basic salary as 
contribution to the fund for the management employees from the date of joining. The fund is 
managed by a Board of Trustees. Members of this fund become eligible to receive gratuity on 
completion of 5 years of continuous services with the Company.
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 Employee Gratuity Scheme

 The Company operates funded gratuity scheme for the non-management employees whereby 
the Company contributes 15% of basic salary as contribution to the fund for the non 
management employees from the date of joining. The Fund is managed by a Board of Trustees. 
Members of this fund become eligible to receive gratuity on completion of 5 years of 
continuous services with the Company.

 Provident Fund

 The Company operates a provident fund for all the employees irrespective of date of joining 
the Company. Members, on confirmation, in regular employment of the Company, are required 
by the Company  to join the provident fund to which members contribute 10% of their basic 
salaries and the Company makes a matching contribution. The Fund is managed by a Board of 
Trustees.  Members become eligible to receive the Company's contribution on completion of 5 
years of continuous services with the Company.

 Worker's Profit Participation Fund

 The Company provides 5% of its profit before charging such expense to Worker's Profit 
Participation Fund (WPPF) in accordance with "The Bangladesh Labour Act 2006" as amended in 2013.

 The Company recognises a contribution to the defined contribution plan as an expense when 
an employee has rendered services in exchange for the contribution. The legal and constructive 
obligation is limited to the amount it agrees to contribute to the fund. 

40.8 Provisions

 A provision is recognised on the reporting date if, as a result of a past event, the Company  has 
a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that 
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

 Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current  
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits are required to settle the obligation, the provision are reversed.

40.9 Contingencies

4.9.1 Contingent liability

 Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events, the existence of which 
can be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the entity.

 Contingent liability should not be recognised in the financial statements, but may require 
disclosure. A provision should be recognised in the period in which the recognition criteria of 
provision have been met.

40.9.2 Contingent asset

 Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, the existence of which can be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the entity.
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 A contingent asset must not be recognised. Only when the realisation of the related economic 
benefits is virtually certain should recognition take place provided that it can be measured 
reliably because, at that point, the asset is no longer contingent.

4.10 Revenue

 Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration  received or 
receivable, net of Value Added Tax (VAT), Supplementary Duty (SD), Export Duty and Health 
Surcharge. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have 
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs 
can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods and 
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

 Gross turnover comprise domestic sales of cigarettes, export of leaf and includes SD, VAT, 
Export Duty and Health Surcharge paid to the Government of Bangladesh.

40.11 Income tax expense

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

 Current tax

 Current tax is expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax 
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years. The Company is liable to pay tax at the rate 45 % currently.

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the  carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax is measured at  the tax  rates  that are  
expected to be applied to the  temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are reduced  to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 
will be realised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority but they intend 
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or there tax assets and liabilities will be realised 
simultaneously.

40.12 Foreign currency transactions

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Bangladesh Taka at the rates ruling on the 
transaction date. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting 
date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate prevalent at that date. Resulting 
exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at 
the end of the reporting period are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income as per BAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.
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40.13 Finance income and expenses

 Finance income comprises interest on financial deposits with banks. Finance income is recognised on 
an accrual basis and shown under statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
Finance costs comprise interest expense on overdraft and bank charges.

40.14 Earnings per share (EPS)

 The Company represents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

 Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the affects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares. However, dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial statements as there was 
no potential dilutive ordinary shares at the reporting date.

40.15 Statement of cash flows

 Cash flows from operating activities have been presented under direct method as per BAS 7: 
Statement of Cash Flows.

40.16 Dividends

 Final dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the 
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's 
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, while interim dividend distributions are 
recognised in the period in which the dividends are declared and paid.

40.17 Comparatives and rearrangement

 Comparative information has been disclosed  for all numerical information in the financial 
statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for 
understanding of the current financial statements.

 To facilitate comparison, certain relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been 
rearranged and reclassified whenever considered necessary to conform to current year's 
presentation.

40.18 Materiality and aggregation

 Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of 
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.

40.19 Events after the reporting period

 Amounts recognised in the financial statements are adjusted for events after the reporting 
period that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period. No 
adjustment is given in the financial statements for events after the reporting period that are 
indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period. Material non-adjusting events are 
disclosed in the financial statements.

40.20 Going concern

 The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For 
this reason going concern basis is adopted in preparing the financial statements. The current 
resources of the Company provide sufficient funds and attributable credit facilities to meet 
the present requirements of its existing business. 



SHAREHOLDERS





43 Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvi weÁwß
GZØviv Rvbv‡bv hv‡”Q †h, weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW-Gi 43 Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv wbgœwjwLZ 
Av‡jvP¨m~Px m¤úv`bK‡í AvMvgx 12 GwcÖj, 2016 †ivR g½jevi mKvj 10:30 wgwb‡U †mvbviMuvI †nv‡Uj, 107 KvRx bRiæj 
Bmjvg GwfwbD, KviIqvb evRvi XvKv-1215-Gi ejiæ‡g AbywôZ n‡e:

 1. wW‡m¤^i 31, 2015 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Avw_©K weeiYx, cwiPvjKgÐjxi cÖwZ‡e`b Ges wbix¶Ke„‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b MÖnY,   
  we‡ePbv I Aby‡gv`b|

 2. wW‡m¤^i 31, 2015 Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii bM` jf¨vsk Aby‡gv`b|

 3. cwiPvjKgÐjxi wbe©vPb Ges ¯^Zš¿ (BwÛ‡c‡Û›U) cwiPvjK wb‡qv‡Mi Aby‡gv`b|

 4. 2016 mv‡ji Rb¨ wewae× wbix¶K wb‡qvM Ges Zv‡`i cvwikªwgK wba©viY|

                                                                                                      †ev‡W©i wm×všÍµ‡g

21 gvP© 2016                                                                               †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb GdwmGm
                                                                                                          †Kv¤úvwb mwPe

`ªóe¨:

  †h mKj †kqvi‡nvìviM‡Yi bvg †Kv¤úvwbi m`m¨ ewn wKsev wW‡cvwRUwi ewn‡Z †iKW© †W‡U (14 gvP©, 2016) ˆeafv‡e   
 wjwce× _vK‡e, D³ †kqvi‡nvìviMY 43Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq †hvM`vb Ges jf¨vsk cÖvwßi †hvM¨ e‡j we‡ewPZ n‡eb|

  hw` †Kv‡bv †kqvi‡nvìvi cÖwZwbwa wb‡qvM Ki‡Z Pvb, Z‡e D³ †kqvi‡nvìvi‡K Aek¨B ÷¨v¤úmn cÖwZwbwacÎ †Kv¤úvwbi   
 †iwR÷vW©  Awd‡m 10 GwcÖj, 2016 ZvwiL mKvj 10:30 wgwb‡Ui g‡a¨ Rgv w`‡Z n‡e|

  ïaygvÎ †kqvi‡nvìviMY A_ev Zv‡`i AvBbvbyM g‡bvbxZ cÖwZwbwaivB GB mfvq Ask wb‡Z cvi‡eb|

  weÁwßi mv‡_ cvVv‡bv nvwRiv w¯øc cÖ`k©‡bi ci mfvq cÖ‡e‡ki AwaKvi †`qv n‡e|

  mfvq wkï‡`i cÖ‡ekvwaKvi †bB|
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
  

†kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i cÖwZ wbix¶Ke„‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b

Avgiv weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW-Gi Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n wbixÿv K‡iwQ hvi g‡a¨ D‡jøL i‡q‡Q 31 wW‡m¤^i 
2015 Zvwi‡L Avw_©K Ae¯’v, mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx, gvwjKvbv ¯^‡Z¡i cwieZ©b weeiYx I mgvß eQ‡ii bM` A_© cÖevn weeiYx Ges 
¸iæZ¡c~Y© wnmveiÿY bxwZi mvivsk I Ab¨vb¨ e¨vL¨vg~jK Z_¨|

Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„c‡ÿi `vwqZ¡
evsjv‡`k dvBb¨vwÝqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛvW©m (weGdAviGm), †Kv¤úvwb AvBb 1994, wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ iæj&m 1987 Ges AvBb 
I weav‡bi mv‡_ m½wZ †i‡L Gme Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b cÖ¯‘ZKiY I myôzfv‡e Dc¯’vcb e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„c‡ÿi ̀ vwqZ¡| GQvovI e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„cÿ 
Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿‡Yi gva¨‡g e¯‘MZ ÎæwUwePz¨wZ gy³ Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b Dc¯’vcbv wbwðZ K‡i|

wbixÿK‡`i `vwqZ¡
Avgv‡`i `vwqZ¡ n‡”Q, Avgv‡`i wbixÿvi Ici wfwË K‡i cÖ¯‘ZK…Z GB Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi Ici gZvgZ cÖKvk Kiv| Avgv‡`i GB wbixÿv, 
evsjv‡`k ÷¨vÛvW©m Ab AwWwUs (weGmG) Gi bxwZgvjv Abymv‡i cwiPvjbv Kiv n‡q‡Q| GB mKj Avek¨Kxq Pvwn`vi g‡a¨ ¸iæZ¡c~Y© n‡jv 
bxwZgvjv †g‡b Pjv Ges wbixÿvwU Ggbfv‡e cwiKíbv Ges cwiPvjbv Kiv †hb Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b †Kv‡bviƒc e¯‘MZ Am½wZ ˆZwi bv nq|

GKwU wbixÿvi cÖavb Kvh©vewji g‡a¨ i‡q‡Q Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi A‡_©i AsK msµvšÍ DcvËmg~‡ni h‡_ó cÖgvbvw` msMÖn Kiv| wbixÿvi cš’v 
wba©vi‡Yi `vwqZ¡ wbixÿ‡Ki Ici Awc©Z, hvi g‡a¨ i‡q‡Q B”QvK…Z ev Awb”QvK…Zfv‡e m„ó e¯‘MZ Am½wZi SzuwK wbY©q Kiv| GB mKj SzuwK 
wba©vi‡Yi †ÿ‡Î cwiw¯’wZi Ici wfwË K‡i Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b cÖ¯‘Z Kiv nq Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿‡Yi Ici wbf©i K‡i| Z‡e G‡ÿ‡Î Af¨šÍixY 
wbqš¿‡Yi h_v_©Zv wb‡q gZvgZ cÖKvk Kiv Gi D‡Ïk¨ bq| wbixÿvq, wnmveiÿ‡Y e¨eüZ cš’vmg~‡ni h_v_©Zv Ges e¨e¯’vcbv KZ©„K 
wba©viYK…Z AvbygvwbKZvi †hŠw³K Askmg~n wbwðZ Kiv nq Ges Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi cÖKvkbvi gvb`Ð wePvi Kiv nq|

Avgv‡`i wek¦vm, GB wbixÿvi Ici Avgv‡`i gZvgZ cÖKv‡ki Rb¨ Avgiv h‡_ó I h_v_© Z_¨vw` AR©b K‡iwQ|

gZvgZ
Avgv‡`i g‡Z, evsjv‡`k dvBb¨vwÝqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛvW©m (weGdAviGm) Abyhvqx ˆZwi Avw_©K weeiYxmg~n 31 wW‡m¤^i, 2015 Zvwi‡L 
†Kv¤úvwbi Avw_©K Ae¯’vb I †mB Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Kg©Kv‡Ði djvdj I bM` A_© cÖev‡ni mZ¨ I h_v_© wPÎ cÖ`vb K‡i Ges †Kv¤úvwb 
AvBb 1994, wmwKDwiwUR A¨vÛ G·‡PÄ iæj&m 1987 Ges Ab¨vb¨ AvBb I weav‡bi mv‡_ m½wZ iv‡L|

Avgiv AviI D‡jøL KiwQ †hÑ
K) Avgv‡`i Rvbv g‡Z GB wbixÿvKv‡h©i Rb¨ hveZxq Z_¨vw` I e¨vL¨vmg~n Avgiv †c‡qwQ Ges h_vh_fv‡e hvPvB K‡iwQ|
L) Avgv‡`i AwfgZ I cixÿY Abyhvqx, †Kv¤úvwb wnmveiÿ‡Yi Rb¨ AvBb Abyhvqx h_vh_ eB msiÿY Kiv n‡q _v‡K|

  M) †Kv¤úvwbi Avw_©K Ae¯’vi weeiYx Ges mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx wnmveiÿY eB‡qi mv‡_ m½wZc~Y© Ges 
  N) hveZxq e¨q msNwUZ n‡q‡Q †Kv¤úvwbi e¨emvwqK D‡Ï‡k¨|

ingvb ingvb nK 

wbixÿK

XvKv, 22 †deªæqvwi 2016  

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants
9 Mohakhali C/A (11th & 10 th Floors)
Dhaka 1212
Bangladesh

Telephone + 880 (2) 988 6450-2
Fax      + 880 (2) 988 6449
E- mail       dhaka@kpmg.com
Internet      www.kpmg.com/bd
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
Avw_©K Ae¯’vi weeiYx

    

UvKv Õ000 UxKv   31 wW‡m¤^i 2015 31 wW‡m¤^i 2014

m¤ú`          

m¤úwË, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZ             5 13,665,015 12,018,576 

¯’vqx m¤ú`:  13,665,015 12,018,576 

gRy` 6 8,553,377 9,098,197 

evwYR¨ I Ab¨vb¨ cÖvc¨ 7 940,758  1,153,571 

AwMÖg, Rgv I AwMÖg cwi‡kva 8 4,074,679  3,064,373 

bM` A_© I mgZzj¨ 9  2,357,002  1,740,302 

†gvU PjwZ m¤ú`  15,925,816 15,056,443 

†gvU m¤ú`    29,590,831  27,075,019

    

gvwjKvbv¯^Z¦
†kqvi g~jab 10 600,000 600,000 

msiw¶Z g~jab Znwej 11 64,896 64,896 

msiw¶Z gybvdv Znwej 12  13,944,623 10,798,615 

†Kv¤úvwbi ¯^Z¦vaxKvix Ici Av‡ivwcZ gvwjKvbv¯^Z¡:  14,609,519 11,463,511  

`vq:     

MÖ¨vPzBwU 13  461,230 368,110 

wejw¤^Z Ki `vq 14  2,069,796 1,140,562 

†gvU A-PjwZ `vq  2,531,026 1,508,672 

e¨vsK RgvwZwi³                                                                                                                                                       -                             347,610

¯^í †gqvw` e¨vsK †jvb                                                                                           -   2,800,000 

e¨emv I Ab¨vb¨ `vq 15  7,842,726 7,152,166

PjwZ AvqKi Gi `vq 16  3,500,379  2,729,914 

msiw¶Z e¨q 17 1,107,181  1,073,146 

†gvU PjwZ `vq  12,450,286 14,102,836 

†gvU `vq  14,981,312 15,611,508 

†gvU gvwjKvbv¯^Z¡ I `vq  29,590,831 27,075,019  

ms‡hvwRZ 1-40 UxKvmg~n GB wnmv‡ei Awe‡”Q`¨ Ask|

 †kn&Rv` gywbg
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK

ingvb ingvb nK
PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›U

 †gvt †gvkviid †nv‡mb fuyBqv Gb wW wm
cwiPvjK

DBwjqvg d«vwÝm †c‡Mj
A_© cwiPvjK

†Mvjvg gBb DwÏb
†Pqvig¨vb

 †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb Gd wm Gm
†Kv¤úvwb mwPe

Avgv‡`i GKB Zvwi‡Li cÖwZ‡e`b Abyhvqx cÖ¯‘ZK…Z|
XvKv, 22 †deªæqvwi 2016
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
jvf I ÿwZ Ges Ab¨vb¨ mw¤§wjZ Av‡qi weeiYx

          

UvKv Õ000 UxKv                     31 wW‡m¤^i Zvwi‡L mgvß eQ‡ii Rb¨

weµqjä A_©   143,711,664 126,725,499

ïé I g~j¨ ms‡hvRb Ki   (103,816,770) (91,163,512)

†bU weµqjä A_ 18  39,894,894 35,561,987

weµq msµvšÍ e¨q 19  (21,212,511) (19,794,030)

†gvU gybvdv   18,682,383 15,767,957

cwiPvjb e¨q 20  (5,481,856) (4,232,754)

cwiPvjb gybvdv  13,200,527 11,535,203

†bU Avw_©K Avq/ (e¨q) 21 (122,828) (157,807)

A-cwiPvjb Avq/ (e¨q) 22  37,680 60,790

kªwg‡Ki AskMÖnY Znwej c~e© gybvdv  13,115,379 11,438,186

kªwg‡Ki AskMÖnY Znwej  (655,767) (571,909)

AvqKi c~e© gybvdv   12,459,612 10,866,277

AvqKi msµvšÍ e¨q    23 (6,585,538)                (4,584,355) 

eQ‡ii †bU gybvdv  5,874,074 6,281,922

Ab¨vb¨ mw¤§wjZ Avq 24 (28,066) -

me©‡gvU mw¤§wjZ evrmwiK Avq  5,846,008 6,281,922

   UvKv  UvKv 

†kqvi cÖwZ Avq  97.43 104.70

ms‡hvwRZ 1-40 UxKvmg~n GB wnmv‡ei Awe‡”Q`¨ Ask|  

2015 2014

 †kn&Rv` gywbg
e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK

ingvb ingvb nK
PvU©vW© GKvD›U¨v›U

 †gvt †gvkviid †nv‡mb fuyBqv Gb wW wm
cwiPvjK

DBwjqvg d«vwÝm †c‡Mj
A_© cwiPvjK

†Mvjvg gBb DwÏb
†Pqvig¨vb

 †gvt AvwRRyi ingvb
†Kv¤úvwb mwPe

Avgv‡`i GKB Zvwi‡Li cÖwZ‡e`b Abyhvqx cÖ¯‘ZK…Z|
XvKv, 22 †deªæqvwi 2016
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weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
gvwjKvbv ¯^‡Z¡i cwieZ©b weeiYx

  †kqvi msiw¶Z msiw¶Z †gvU 
  g~jab g~jab Znwej gybvdv Znwej 

1 Rvbyqvwi 2015 mv‡ji e¨v‡jÝ 600,000 64,896 10,798,615 11,463,511

mw¤§wjZ evrmwiK Avq 2015 - - 5,874,074 5,874,074

Ab¨vb¨ mw¤§wjZ Avq - - (28,066) (28,066)

me©‡gvU mw¤§wjZ evrmwiK Avq - - 5,846,008 5,846,008

cwi‡kvaK…Z jf¨vsk

 P‚ovšÍ jf¨vsk 2014 - - (2,700,000) (2,700,000)

 AšÍe©Zx©Kvjxb jf¨vsk 2015 - - - -

31 wW‡m¤^i 2015 mv‡ji e¨v‡jÝ 600,000 64,896 13,944,623 14,609,519

1 Rvbyqvwi 2014 mv‡ji e¨v‡jÝ 600,000 64,896 8,236,694 8,901,590

 mw¤§wjZ evrmwiK Avq 2014 - - 6,281,922 6,281,922

 Ab¨vb¨ mw¤§wjZ Avq - - - -

me©‡gvU mw¤§wjZ evrmwiK Avq - - 6,281,922 6,281,922

cwi‡kvaK…Z jf¨vsk 

 P‚ovšÍ jf¨vsk 2013 - - (3,120,000) (3,120,000)

 AšÍe©Zx©Kvjxb jf¨vsk 2014 - - (600,000) (600,000)

31 wW‡m¤^i 2014 mv‡ji e¨v‡jÝ 600,000 64,896 10,798,615 11,463,511

ms‡hvwRZ 1-40 UxKvmg~n GB wnmv‡ei Awe‡”Q`¨ Ask|

UvKv Õ000
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15.    e¨emv I Ab¨vb¨ `vq 

 UvKv Õ000 2015 2014  

  evwYwR¨K cÖ‡`q 3,405,933 3,388,452

 AvšÍt‡Kv¤úvwb cÖ‡`q 32,57,811 2,219,873 

 gybvdvq kªwgK‡`i Askx`vwiZ¡ Znwej 10,767 11,911

 gRywi Ges Ab¨vb¨ myweav 323,608 222,091

 A`vexK…Z jf¨vsk (UxKv 26) 41,771 35,527

 wewea cÖ‡`q 802,836 1,274,312

      7,842,726 7,152,166

16.    PjwZ AvqKi `vq
 UvKv Õ000 2015 2014

 cÖviw¤¢K †Ri 2,729,914 2,267,283

 PjwZ eQ‡ii msiÿb 5,633,340 4,327,170

      8,363,254   6,594,453

 AwMÖg K‡c©v‡iU Ki cwi‡kva (4,862,875) (3,864,539)

 mgvcbx †Ri 3,500,379  2,729,914 

17. msiÿb I mwÂwZ
 UvKv Õ000 2015 2014

   msiwÿZ e¨q 235,504  249,555

   e¨q mwÂwZ  871,677  678,872

   g~j¨ ms‡hvRb Ki I ïé m¤úwK©q mwÂwZ -  144,719

      1,107,181 1,073,146

18. bxU weµqjä A_©

 UvKv Õ000 2015 2014

 †gvU weµq jä A_© 141,638,593 124,003,186

 m¤ú~iK ïé Ges g~j¨ ms‡hvRb Ki (103,614,216) (90,884,752)  

      38,024,377 33,118,434

 ZvgvK cvZv ißvwb †_‡K Avq 2073071 2,722,313

 ißvwb Ki (202,554) (278,760)

      1,870,517 2,443,553

  bxU weµqjä A_© 39,894,894  35,561,987  

cwigvYGKK
wgwjqb w÷K 42,541

wgwjqb †KwR 9907
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19.   weµq msµvšÍ e¨q
  UvKv Õ000 2015 2014  

  cÖviw¤¢K KvuPvgvj gRy` 5,355,799 4,656,884  

  KvuPvgvj µq 16,946,747 16,045,354  

 KvuPvgv‡ji mnRjf¨Zv 22,302,546 20,702,238

 mgvcbx KvuPvgvj gRy` (5,964,254)  (5,355,799)  

 e¨eüZ KvuPvgvj 16,338,292 15,346,439

 Drcv`b Dcwi e¨q (UxKv 19.1) 4,652,582 4,015,323

 cb¨ Drcv`‡bi me©‡gvU LiP 20,990,874 19,361,762

 cÖviw¤¢K ‰ZixK…Z cY¨ gRy` 688,238 661,226

 mgvcbx  ‰ZixK…Z cY¨ gRy`  (924,009) (688,238)

 iq¨vjwU ev‡` weµq jä c‡Y¨i LiP 20,755,103  19,334,750

 iq¨vjwU  457,408  459,280

 me©‡gvU weµq msµvšÍ e¨q 21,212,511  19,794,030

19.1 Drcv`b Dcwi e¨q
  UvKv Õ000 2015 2014 

 †eZb I gRyix  1,134,537 1,031,450  

 AePq  620,783 558,327

 wcÖw›Us GÛ †÷kbvix 17,965 16,140

 we`y¨r I R¡vjvbx 435,983 391,408

 i¶Yv‡e¶Y I †givgZ 1,015,484 878,673

 wbivcËv †mev 120,576 78,791

 fvov,†mev I wecYb LiP 832,211 554,289

 exgv   86,077 89,665

 M‡elbv  2,102 6,230

 Ab¨vb¨ e¨q 386,864 410,350

      4,652,582  4,015,323

20.   cwiPvjb e¨q
  UvKv Õ000 2015 2014 

 †eZb I gRyix      793,191    740,930

 we`y¨r I R¡vjvbx      14,133    15,576

 fvov,†mev I wecYb LiP      235,187    175,491

 i¶Yv‡e¶Y I †givgZ      116,648    100,948

 AePq      186,950    208,987

 hvbevnb Lv‡Z e¨q      236,571    218,602

 wcÖw›Us I †÷kbvix      31,155    30,494

 wbivcËv †mev      40,165    32,626

 mvgvwRK `vqe×Zv      21,472    11,920

 AvBb I †Kv¤úvwb †m‡µUvwiqvj      18,590    19,938

 exgv      3,907    2,530

 wbix¶Y wd      800    800

 Z_¨ cÖhyw³      311,083    423,759

 KvwiMix mnvqZv wd      978,192    892,964

 eª¨vÛ evRviRvZ LiP      1,937,730    1,752,286

 Ab¨vb¨ e¨q      556,082    (395,097)

        5,481,856   4,232,754
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21. bxU Avw_©K Avq/ (e¨q)

 UvKv Õ000 2015 2014

 my‡` Avq 19,733 30,158

 my‡` e¨q  (142,561) (187,965)

                       (122,828) (157,807)

22. A-cwiPvjb Avq/ (LiP)
 UvKv Õ000 2015 2014

 m¤úwË, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZi weµq jä jvf ev (ÿwZ) (5,168) 16,991

 Ab¨vb¨ Avq 42,848 43,799

      37,680 60,790

23.1 Kvh©Kwi Ki mgš^q

    2015  2014  

   % UvKv Õ000 % UvKv Õ000

 Ki c~e© jvf  12,459,612  10,866,277

 PjwZ Ki e¨q 45.21% 5,633,340 39.82% 4,327,170

 wejw¤^Z Ki e¨q 7.64% 952,198 2.37% 257,185

 †gvU Ki e¨q 52.86%  6,585,538 42.19% 4,584,355

 cÖ‡hvR¨ Ki nvi Abyhvqx m¤¢ve¨ AvqKi 45.00% 5,606,825 40.00% 4,346,511

  c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii mgš^q 4.29% 534,952 0.44% 47,552

 A-KZ©b †hvM¨ e¨‡qi Dci Ki -4.08%  (508,437) -0.62% (66,893)

 Kvh©Kwi PjwZ Ki 45.21% 5,633,340 39.82% 4,327,170

 Kvh©Kwi wejw¤^Z Ki 7.64% 952,198 2.37% 257,185

   52.86% 6,585,538  42.19%  4,584,355

23. AvqKi LiP

 UvKv Õ000  2015  2014

 PjwZ Ki (wUKv 16) 5,633,340 4,327,170

 wejw¤^Z Ki cª`vb/ (cÖvwß) 952,198 257,185

       6,585,538 4,584,355

22.1 PjwZ eQ‡ii ¯’vqx m¤úwË weµq
 

  LiP mwÂZ AePq AewjwLZ g~j¨ weµq (jvf)/ ÿwZ  †µZv/weµq

 jv‡LivR feb 36,895    (9,532) 27,363 - - weµq

 AvmevecÎvw` 76,236 (70,238) 5,998 102 (27,363) Z…Zxq cÿ

 j¨ve‡iUwi miÄvg 16,507  (16,499) 8 - (5,896) weµq

 AvB. wU. miÄvg 36,337 (33,974) 2,363 283 (8) Z…Zxq cÿ

 BRvivaxb feb 32,719 (20,595) 12,124 - (2,080) Z…Zxq cÿ

 Awdm miÄvg 32,226 (31,182) 1,044 62 (12,124) Z…Zxq cÿ

 KviLvbv I hš¿vw` 29,441 (26,444) 2,997 - (982) weµq

 hvbevnb 130,432       (128,471) 1,961 48,243 (2,997) ‡Kv¤úvwbi 

      46,282 Kg©Pvix e„›`

 2015 me©‡gvU 390,793 (336,935) 53,858 48,690 (5,168)

 2014 me©‡gvU 207,368 (190,552) 16,816 33,807 16,991

†Kv¤úvwbi cwjwm Abyhvqx mKj m¤úwË weµq Kiv nq
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25.  cÖwZ †kqv‡i Avq

25.1 cÖwZ †kqv‡i †gŠwjK Avq
 cÖwZ †kqv‡i †gŠwjK Avq wnmve Kiv n‡q‡Q 31  wW‡m¤^i 2015 ZvwiL ch©šÍ Bmy¨K…Z 10 UvKv cÖwZ †kqvi  wn‡m‡e  60,000,000    
 mvaviY †kqv‡ii wfwË‡Z|

      2015 2014

 PjwZ eQ‡ii †gvU mw¤§wjZ Avq 5,846,008 6,281,922

 31 wW‡m¤^i 2015 Gi †kqvi msL¨v 60,000 60,000

 †kqvi cÖwZ Avq 97.43 104.70

 

25.2  cÖwZ †kqv‡i wgkª Avq
 G eQ‡i wgkª‡Yi †Kv‡bv my‡hvM wQj bv e‡j †kqvi cÖwZ wgkª Avq wnmve Kivi cÖ‡qvRb †bB|

27.    cÖZ¨c©Y‡hvM¨ ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv
 UvKv Õ000 2015 2014

 iq¨vjwU (AvBb Abyhvqx AcÖ`Ë Ki ev` w`‡q) 4,270 3,966

 KvwiMwi wd (AvBb Abyhvqx AcÖ`Ë Ki ev` w`‡q) 7,685 -

 jf¨vsk  22,691 31,353

      34,646 35,319
 

iq¨vjwU Li‡Pi wfZi 2013 mv‡ji †ebmb GÛ †n‡Rm-  Ges cvj gvj Gi 2011, 2012, 2013 Gi UvKv AšÍf©³ i‡q‡Q | KvwiMwi 

mn‡hvMxZv wd 2013 mv‡j cÖ`vb Kiv n‡q‡Q

28.    Avg`vbx Li‡Pi g~j¨ exgv Ges cb¨ enb 
 UvKv Õ000 2015 2014

 KvPuvgvj I c¨v‡KwRs Dcv`vb 3,083,141 2,470,556

 AwZwi³ I Abvb¨ 740,749 654,975 

 cÖavb cb¨ 1,410,625 2,822,006

      5,234,515 5,947,537

26. cÖ`Ë jf¨vsk
 
   A`vexK…Z jf¨vs‡ki Kvj wfwËK ch©v‡jvPbv
      
 UvKv Õ000 c~e©eZ©x    me©‡gvU 2014 
  2013 2013 2014 2015  me©‡gvU   

 A`vexK…Z jf¨vs‡ki cÖviw¤¢K †Ri 30,887 2,165 2,475 - 35,527 33,052

 †hvM: †NvlYvK…Z jf¨vsk
 2013 mv‡ji P~ovšÍ jf¨vsk            -          -         - 2,700,000 2,700,000 3,120,000
 2014 mv‡ji AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb jf¨vsk            -          -         - - - 600,000
             -          -         - 2,700,000 2,700,000  3,720,000

 A`vexK…Z jf¨vs‡ki mgvcbx †Ri 30,887 2,165 2,475 6,244 41,771 35,527

 cÖ`Ë jf¨vsk     2,693,756 3,717,525

24. Ab¨vb¨ mw¤§wjZ Avq

 UvKv Õ000 2015 2014

 cwiKwíZ wba©vwiZ †ewbwd‡Ui G¨vKPzwiqvj jvf / (ÿwZ) (51,030)  -  

 cwiKwíZ wba©vwiZ †ewbwdU cø¨v‡bi Rb¨ wejw¤^Z K‡ii jvf / (ÿwZ) 22,964  -

      (28,066) -
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      2015 2014

29.   ißvwb †_‡K AwR©Z Avq BDGm wW     26,595   35,122

30.   Drcv`b ¶gZv
 †Kv¤úvwb‡Z Ae¨vnZ Drcv`‡bi wfwË‡Z KvR nq Ges eZ©gv‡b ¯’vwcZ wewfbœ ai‡bi †gwkb me ai‡bi Drcv`b ÿgZv (†hgb: wdëvi) 

Ges c¨v‡KwRs mvgMÖx (†hgb: wnb&R wjW, †kj I ¯øvBW) Av‡Q| fwel¨‡Zi Pvwn`v †gUv‡bvi j‡ÿ¨ cwiPvjKMY wbqwgZ Drcv`b ¶gZv 
ch©v‡jvPbv K‡i _v‡Kb|

      2015 2014

wmMv‡i‡Ui cÖK…Z Drcv`b (wgwjqb w÷K)  43,046 39,098

31.   wef³ cÖwZ‡e`b

 cÖwZôvbwUi Kvh©µg evsjv‡`kwfwËK| ewng©yLx MÖvnK‡`i KvQ †_‡K msM„nxZ Av‡qi cwigvY 14,259.30 †KvwU UvKv (2014: 

12,612.5 †KvwU UvKv)| evsjv‡`‡ki evB‡i cÖwZôvbwUi †Kv‡bv ¯’vqx m¤úwË †bB| 31 wW‡m¤^i 2015 Ges 31 wW‡m¤^i 2014 Zvwi‡L 

eQi †k‡l MÖæ‡ci †gvU Av‡qi 10% ev Gi †ewk †Kv‡bv GKwU ewng©yLx MÖvn‡Ki KvQ †_‡K AvewZ©Z nqwb|

 cÖwZôvbwUi cÖv_wgK Kg©Kv‡Ði AvIZvq i‡q‡Q evsjv‡`‡k wmMv‡iU Drcv`b Ges weµq| Gi AvIZvq cÖwZôvbwUi Af¨šÍixY cÖwZ‡e`b 

cÖKvwkZ nq| hw`I cÖwZôvbwUi eª¨vÛmg~‡ni g‡a¨ cv_©K¨ Kiv nq, cÖavb wbe©vnx wm×všÍMÖnYKvixi Kv‡Q cwi‡ewkZ Af¨šÍixY cÖwZ‡e`‡b 

GB cv_©K¨ D‡jøL Kiv _v‡K bv| †m‡nZz, D”P ch©v‡qi cÖv°jb Qvov eª¨v‡Ûi Ici wfwË K‡i cÖwZôv‡bi djvdj fvM Kiv m¤¢e bq|

 wmMv‡iU Drcv`b QvovI  cÖwZôvbwU evsjv‡`‡ki evB‡i wjd ißvwb K‡i| GB ißvwb †gvU Ges bxU Av‡qi 10% GiI Kg Ae`vb iv‡L| 

Z‡e wmMv‡iU Ges ißvwbi wek` weeiYx UxKv 18 G cÖ`Ë i‡q‡Q|

32.  Avg`vwbK…Z Ges ¯’vbxq KuvPvgv‡ji e¨envi

 

 UvKv Õ000 2015  2014   

   †gvoK mvgMÖx wjd †gvoK mvgMÖx wjd  

 Avg`vwbK…Z:

 cÖviw¤¢K gRy` 591,808 479,096 474,807 462,996

 µq 2,104,357  962,252 2,550,137 1,319,044

 e¨envi (2,451,027)  (1,110,041) (2,450,136) (1,302,945)

 mgvcbx gRy` (K) 245,138  331,307 574,808 479,095

 ¯’vbxq:

 cÖviw¤¢K gRy` 39,207 4,194,000 148,521 3,702,569

 µq 5,174,401  9,014,770 4,231,017 7,761,456

 e¨envi (4,765,551)  (6,811,056) (4,323,331)                (5,267,509)                  

 ißvwb  - (1,200,617) - (2,002,517)

 mgvcbx gRy` (L)  448,057 5,197,097 56,207 4,193,999

 mgvcbx gRy` (K+L) 693,195 5,528,404 631,015 4,673,094

33. Avw_©K Dcv`vbmgyn- †dqvi f¨vjyR Ges SuzwK e¨e¯’vcbv

K. wnmveweÁvb †kÖYxwefvM Ges †dqvi f¨vjyR

wb‡Pi †Uwe‡j †hLv‡b cÖ‡hvR¨ †mLv‡b Avw_©K m¤ú` Ges Avw_©K `v‡qi PjwZ cwigvb Ges †dqvi f¨vjyR †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q| GLv‡b Avw_©K m¤ú` 

I `v‡qi †ÿ‡Î †dqvi f¨vjy Bbdi‡gkb AšÍf©y³ K‡ibv †dqvi f¨vjy‡Z g~j¨ cwigvc Kiv bv n‡j hw` PjwZ cwigvb †dqvi f¨vjyi b¨vh¨ Abygvb 

n‡q _v‡K|
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            Pjgvb cwigvb

                                                  †dqvi f¨vjz‡Z    Ab¨vb¨

    †UªwWs‡qi  †dqvi f¨vjz‡Z †nwRs cwic°Zv  avi Ges weµ‡qi Avw_©K me©‡gvU

UvKvÕ000 †bvU Rb¨ M„nxZ g‡bvwbZ   BÝUªy‡g›U    ch©šÍ M„nxZ   cvIbvmgyn Rb¨ jf¨ `vqmgyn cwigvb 

31 wW‡m¤^i 2015

†dqvi f¨vjy‡Z wnmve bv Kiv Avw_©K m¤ú`

evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖvc¨ mgyn 7 - - - - 940,758     940,758

AvgvbZ mgyn 8 - - - - 99,598        99,598

e¨vs‡K bM` A_© 9 - - - - 2,356,033                    2,356,033
    - - - - 3,369,389                   3,369,389

†dqvi f¨vjy‡Z wnmve bv Kiv 

Avw_©K `vq

evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖ‡`qmgyn 15 - - - - -                    7,842,726  7,842,726

e‡Kqv LiP 17 - - - - -                        871,677  871,677

                            8,714,403    8,714,403 

31 wW‡m¤^i 2014

†dqvi f¨vjy‡Z wnmve bv Kiv Avw_©K m¤ú`

evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖvc¨ mgyn 7  - - - - 1,153,571           -        -                        -

AvgvbZ mgyn  8                    -        -                -

e¨vs‡K bM` A_©  9      1,738,364         -        -                -

     - - - - 2,911,868          -        -                - 

†dqvi f¨vjy‡Z wnmve bv Kiv 

Avw_©K `vq

evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖ‡`qmgyn 15                     7,152,166  7,152,166 

e‡Kqv LiP   17                       678,872    678,872

                       7,831,038 7,831,038

Avw_©K m¤ú‡`i †ÿ‡Î †Kv¤úvbx Zv‡`i †dqvi f¨vjy cÖKvk K‡iwb Kvib Zv‡`i Pjgvb cwigvbmgynB †dqvi f¨vjyi b¨vh¨ Abygvb

L. Avw_©K SuzwK e¨e¯’vcbv

Avw_©K BÝUªy‡g›U e¨env‡ii †ÿ‡Î †Kv¤úvbx wb¤œ³ SuzwKi m¤§ywLb n‡Z cv‡i

I) AvgvbZ SzuwK
II) Zvij¨ SzuwK
III) evRvi SzuwK

†Kv¤úvbxi mvwe©K SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv AeKvVv‡gv wbg©vb Ges cwi`k©‡bi `vwqZ¡ †evW© Ae wW‡i±‡ii Kv‡Q _v‡K| †Kv¤úvbxi SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv bxwZgvjv cÖwZôv Kiv nq 
†Kv¤úvbx †hme SzuwKi gy‡LvgywL nq Zv wPwýZ Ges we‡kølb Kiv, h_vhZ SzuwKi gvÎv Ges wbqš¿b cªwZôv Kiv Ges cwimxgv SzuwK I AvbyMZ¨ wbixÿb Ki‡Z| SzuwK 
e¨e¯’vcbv bxwZgvjv, cªwµqv Ges e¨e¯’v wbqwgZ wbixÿv Kiv nq evRvi e¨e¯’v Ges †Kv¤úvbx Kvh©µg hvPvB Kivi D‡Ï‡k¨| GB †bvU †Kv¤úvwbi wb‡¤œv³ SzuwK¸‡jv, 
†Kv¤úvbxi D‡Ïk¨, bxwZgvjv Ges SzuwK cwigvc I e¨e¯’vcbv  Ges †Kv¤úvbxi cyuwR e¨e¯’vcbv m¤ú‡K©¨ Z_¨ cÖ`vb K‡i|

I) AvgvbZ SzuwK

AvgvbZ SzuwK nj †Kv¤úvbxi †mB RvZxq Avw_©K ÿwZi SzuwK hw` †Kv‡bv Kv÷gvi A_ev Avw_©K DcKi‡bi wecÿ †Kv‡bv cvwU© Zv‡`i Pzw³i eva¨evaKZvmgyn c~iY 
Ki‡Z e¨_© nq Ges gyjZ ˆZwi nq Kv÷gvi Ges Ab¨vb¨ cvwU©i Kv‡Q †_‡K cªvc¨ mgyn †_‡K| e¨e¯’vcbvi wKQz AvgvbZ bxwZgvjv i‡q‡Q Ges AvgvbZ SzuwK‡Z 
covi m¤¢vebvi welqwU wbqwgZ ch©‡eÿb Kiv nq| AvgvbZ SzuwK ch©‡eÿ‡bi †ÿ‡Î cÖvc¨mgyn Zv‡`i wi¯‹ †cÖvdvBj Abymv‡i †kÖYxfz³ Kiv nq, Zv‡`i AvBbx 
Ae¯’v, Avw_©K cwiw¯’wZ, GwRs †cÖvdvBj BZ¨vw`| †Kv¤úvbxi cÖvc¨ mgy‡ni Dci AvgvbZ SzuwK‡Z covi m¤¢vebv A‡bKvs‡kB Kv÷gvi‡`i Øviv cÖfvweZ| AvgvbZ 
SzuwK‡Z covi m‡ev©”P m¤¢vebv cÖKvwkZ nq cÖ‡Z¨KwU Avw_©K m¤ú‡`i PjwZ cwigvbmgyn hv Avw_©K cwRk‡bi †÷U‡g‡›U D‡jøL Kiv nq|

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-

-

-

------

------

------

------

19,933
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†bvU
7
8
9

K) AvgvbZ SzuwK‡Z covi m¤¢vebv
 
 Avw_©K m¤ú‡`i PjwZ cwigv‡bB m‡ev©”P AvgvbZ SzuwKi welqwU cÖKvwkZ nq| wi‡cvwUs †W‡U m‡ev©”P AvgvbZ SuywKi cwigvb wQj:

UvKv Õ000   2015 2014
evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖvc¨mgyn   940,758 1,153,571

AvgvbZmgyn    99,598 19,933
e¨vs‡K _vKv A_©   2,356,033  1,738,364
     3,396,389  2,911,868
L. evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖvc¨mgy‡ni c°Zv

 31 wW‡m¤^i Zvwi‡L †hme evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖvc¨mgy‡ni c°Zv evavMÖ¯’ nqwb †m¸‡jv wb‡P D‡jøL Kiv nj:

UvKv Õ000   2015 2014

AZxZKvjxb evwK 30 w`b   821,920  674,398
AZxZKvjxb evwK  31-90 w`b   102,114  218,631
AZxZKvjxb evwK 91-180 w`b   16,724  61,289
AZxZKvjxb evwK 180 w`‡bi †ewk    -    199,253
     940,758  1,153,571

II) Zvij¨ SzuwK

Zvij¨ SuywK nj †mB mg¯Í SzuwK hLb †Kv¤úvwb Zvi Avw_©K `vq mgyn cyib Ki‡Z Amyweavi m¤§ywLb n‡e †h¸‡jv cyiY Kiv nq A_© A_ev Ab¨vb¨ Avw_©K m¤ú` 
cÖ`v‡bi gva¨‡g| Zvij¨ e¨e¯’vcbvq †Kv¤úvwbi A¨v‡cÖvP GUv wbwðZ Kiv †h hZ`yi m¤¢e Zvi Kv‡Q h‡_ó cwigvb Zij A_© _vK‡e Zvi hLb `vq evwK _vK‡e Zv cyib 
Kivi Rb¨ †h‡Kv‡bv mvaviY Ges wec¾bK Ae¯’vq †Kv‡bv ai‡bi MÖnbA‡hvM¨ ÿwZ ˆZix A_ev †Kv¤úvbxi mybv‡gi †ÿ‡Î †Kv‡bv ai‡bi cÖfve bv †d‡j| 
mvaviYfv‡e †Kv¤úvbx wbwðZ K‡i †h Zv‡`i Kv‡Q h‡_ó cwigvb A_© Ges A_© mgcwigv‡bi m¤ú` i‡q‡Q cwiPvjbv e¨q wbev©‡ni Rb¨ Avw_©K eva¨evaKZvmn K¨vk 
†d¬v c~e©vfvm ‰Zix K‡i UvBg jvBb Ae †c‡g‡›Ui wfwË‡Z Avw_©K eva¨evaKZv cÖ`vb Ges †mB Abymv‡i h‡_ó cwigv‡b Zvij¨/dvÛ †hvMvo Kiv n‡e hv‡Z wWD †W‡Ui 
†fZi cÖZ¨vwkZ †c‡g›U Kiv hv‡e| Zvi Ici †Kv¤úvwbi wewfbœ evwbwR¨K e¨vs‡Ki mv‡_ m¦íKvjxb Fb myweav i‡q‡Q †c‡g›U Ae Aewj‡Mkb cÖ`vb Kivi Rb¨ †mB 
mg‡q hLb †Kv¤úvwbi ¯^í cwigvb A_© i‡q‡Q cÖ‡qvRbxq †c‡g‡›Ui Rb¨| Zvij¨ cÖevn Abygv‡bi gva¨‡g Av‡MB cÖ‡qvRb mgyn wba©viY Kiv nq Ges e¨s‡Ki mv‡_ 
†µwWU jvBb m¤ú‡K©¨ Av‡jvPbv Kiv nq|

wb‡P D‡jøL¨ welq¸‡jv nj Avw_©K `v‡qi Pzw³wfwËK cwic°Zvmgyn:

31 wW‡m¤^i 2015

GUv Avkv Kiv hvqbv †h bM` cÖevn hv cwic°Zv we‡køl‡b AšÍf©y³ †mUv h‡_ó Av‡M NU‡Z cv‡i A_ev h‡_ó Avjv`v cwigv‡b n‡Z cv‡i|

31 wW‡m¤^i 2014

GUv Avkv Kiv hvqbv †h bM` cÖevn hv cwic°Zv we‡køl‡b AšÍf©y³ †mUv h‡_ó Av‡M NU‡Z cv‡i A_ev h‡_ó Avjv`v cwigv‡b n‡Z cv‡i|

†bvU

15

17

cwigvb

7,842,726

8,714,403
871,677

7,842,726

8,714,403
871,677

6,407,126

7,278,803
871,677

1,435,600

1,435,600
-
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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7,152,166

7,831,038
678,872

7,152,166

7,831,038
678,872

  5,845,850

  6,524,722
  678,872

1,306,316

1,306,316
-
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6 - 12 gvm

Pzw³wfwËK bM` cªevn

1 - 2 eQi 2 - 5 eQi
†_‡K †ewk

5 eQi 
UvKv Õ000

evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖ‡`qmgyn

Rgv LiPmgyn
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III) evRvi SzuwK

evRvi SzuwK n‡”Q †mB ai‡bi SzuwK hv evRvi g~‡j¨i †Kv‡bv ai‡bi cwieZ©b †hgb ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvi wewbgq nvi Ges my‡`i nvi †Kv¤úvwbi Avq A_ev Zvi Avw_©K 
DcKibmgy‡ni †nvwìs g~‡j¨i Dci cÖfve †dj‡e| evRvi SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbvi D‡Ïk¨ nj gybvdv evov‡bvi cvkvcvwk evRvi SzuwK‡Z covi m¤¢vebv Kwg‡q MÖn‡hvM¨ 
gvÎvq ivLv|

K. gy`ªv SzuwK/ ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbgq nvi SzuwK

†Kv¤úvbx wewfbœ †`‡kigy`ªvi cÖfv‡e ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbgq nvi SzuwKi gy‡LvgywL n‡Z cv‡i, cÖv_wgKfv‡e BDbvB‡UW †÷U Wjvi (BDGmwW), BD‡iv (BBDAvi)G-
es weªwUk cvDÛ(wRwewc)| ‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbgq nvi SzuwKi m„wó nq fwel¨Z ¯^xK…Z m¤ú` Ges `v‡qi wewbg‡qi gva¨‡g| e¨e¯’vcbv †UªRvix bxwZgvjv †g‡b P‡j 
‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbgq SzuwK Zv‡`i dvskbvj Kv‡iwÝi wecix‡Z e¨e¯’vcbvi D‡Ï‡k¨|

L. gy`ªv SzuwKi gy‡LvgywL

†Kv¤úvbxi ‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv SzuwKi gy‡LvgywL nIqvi welqUv wQj wb‡P D‡jøwLZ cwigv‡bi Abyiæc:

31 wW‡m¤^i 2015

UvKv 000 BDGmwW (Wjvi)  wRwewc (cvDÛ) BBDAvi (BD‡iv)

‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv AvL¨vZ m¤ú`

e¨vs‡K _vKv bM` A_© 9,560  - -

evwYR¨ cvIbvmgyn 393  - -

AvšÍ‡Kv¤úvbx cvIbvmgyn 1,267  87 -

   11,220  87 - 

‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv AvL¨vZ `vqmgyn

evwbwR¨K cÖ‡`qmgyn 102  12 245
AvšÍ‡Kv¤úvbx cÖ‡`qmgyn 15,304  15,648 7
   15,406  15,660 252
†bU G·‡cvRvi (4,186)  (15,573) (252)

31 wW‡m¤^i 2014

UvKv 000 BDGmwW (Wjvi)  wRwewc (cvDÛ) BBDAvi (BD‡iv)

‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv AvL¨vZ m¤ú`

e¨vs‡K _vKv bM` A_© 10,500  - -

evwYR¨ cvIbvmgyn 124  - -

AvšÍ‡Kv¤úvbx cvIbvmgyn -  64 -

   10,624  64 -
‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv AvL¨vZ `vqmgyn

evwbwR¨K cÖ‡`qmgyn 4,461   18 12,819
AvšÍ‡Kv¤úvbx cÖ‡`qmgyn 13,830  4,829 6
   18,291   4,847 12,825
†bU G·‡cvRvi (7,667)   (4,783) (12,825)

wb‡P D‡jøwLZ wewbgq nvi¸‡jv wi‡cvwU©s †W‡U cÖ‡qvM Kiv n‡q‡Q:

      2015 2014

BD.Gm.wW (Wjvi)  78.95 77.93
wR.we.wc(cvDÛ)  118.11 121.50
B.BD.Avi(BD‡iv) 87.49 94.29
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kw³kvjx

kw³kvjx

`~e©j

`~e©j

2.  ‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv Li‡Pi †ÿ‡Î ˆe‡`wkK wewbgq nvi ms‡e`bkxjZv we‡kølb

wb‡P cÖ`wk©Z cwigvb Abyhvqx cÖwZ‡e`‡bi Zvwi‡L BD.Gm.wW(Wjvi), wR.we.wc(cvDÛ), B.BD.Avi(BD‡iv)-Gi wecix‡Z UvKv kw³kvjx A_ev `ye©j Kiv BKyBwU 
Ges jvf A_ev ÿwZ evovq/Kgvq| GB we‡kølb Kiv n‡q‡Q ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbgq nv‡ii ZviZ‡g¨i wfwË‡Z hv †Kv¤úvwb Zvi wi‡cvwU©s †W‡U hyw³m¤§Zfv‡e m¤¢e 
e‡j g‡b K‡iwQj| GB we‡kølb Abygvb K‡i †h Ab¨ mKj PjK, we‡klZ my‡`i nvi AcwieZ©bxq _v‡K| GB we‡kølb 2014 mv‡ji R‡b¨I GKB wfwË‡Z Kiv 
n‡q‡Q|

2015

UvKv 000    jvf A_ev (ÿwZ) jvf A_ev (ÿwZ)

BD.Gm.wW (5 kZvsk gyf‡g›U) 16,524 (16,524)
wR.we.wc, (5 kZvsk gyf‡g›U) 91,966 (91,966)
B.BD.Avi (5 kZvsk gyf‡g›U) 1,102 (1,102)
      109,593 (109,593)

2014

UvKv 000    jvf A_ev (ÿwZ) jvf A_ev (ÿwZ)

BD.Gm.wW (5 kZvsk gyf‡g›U) 29,873  (29,873)
wR.we.wc, (5 kZvsk gyf‡g›U) 29,058 (29,058)
B.BD.Avi (5 kZvsk gyf‡g›U) 60,465 (60,465)
      119,396 (119,396)

L. my‡`i nvi SzuwK

my‡`i nvi SzuwK †mB ai‡bi SzuwK hv ˆZix nq av‡ii Dci my‡`i nv‡ii cwieZ©‡bi Kvi‡b| eZ©gv‡b †Kv¤úvwbi †Kv‡bv ai‡bi avi †bB hvi d‡j my‡`i nvi ‰Zix n‡e|
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34.   mswkøó cvwU©i mv‡_ †jb‡`b

i) cÖavb Kg©KZ©v‡`i mnxZ †jb‡`b

cÖavb Kg©KZ©v‡`i mnxZ †jb‡`b wb¤œiƒc:

UvKvÕ 000   2015 2014

Dcw¯’wZ m¤§vbx  80 79

wgwUs eve` e¨q  2,475 1,508

†eZb       49,824 54,290

AemiKvjxb fvZv 4,124 3,757  

wPwKrmv Ges Kj¨vYg~jK fvZv 139 75

M„nms¯’vb    13,176 7,776
      69,818 67,485

 ii) Ab¨vb¨ cvwU©i mv‡_ †jb‡`b

†Kv¤úvwb mswkøó cvwU©mg~‡ni mv‡_ e¨emvi cÖ‡qvR‡b wewfbœ †jb‡`b cwiPvjbv K‡i‡Q| G mg¯Í cvwU©i bvg, †jb‡`‡bi cÖK…wZ Ges Zv‡`i cÖK…Z 
g~j¨ weGGm 24: mswkøó cvwU© Z_¨vw` Gi AvIZvq †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q:

UvKvÕ 000 m¤úK© 2015 2014 2015 2014
Avq

K. wjd ißvwb Ges cb¨ weµq
µqKvwi cÖwZôvb
weGwU (wRGjwc) wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 894,948 2,110,407 20,518 (30,373)
cvwK¯Ívb †Uve¨v‡Kv †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 252,927 531,984 82,372 55,199
weGwU gv‡K©wUs bvB‡Rwiqv wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 261 - 261 -

  1,148,136 2,642,391 103,151 24,826

L. g¨v‡bR‡g›U wd
weGwU G¨vm‡cK mvwf©m †m›Uvi Gm Gb wW we GBP wW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb - - - 3,505
weGwU gv‡K©wUs wc wU B wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb - - - 830
weGwU †nvwìsm wjwg‡UW †nvwìs †Kv¤úvwb - 15,546 - 3,024
weGwU G¨vm‡cK mvwf©m †m›Uvi Gm Gb wW we GBP wW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 9,940 5,9636 9,940 -

weGwU gv‡K©wUs wmsMvcyi weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb - 874 - -

  9,940 76,056 9,940 7,359

e¨q

M . cY¨ AvniY

Z_¨ cÖhyw³, cY¨ I Ab¨vb¨ †mev AvniY:

weGGmGm wRGmwW BD‡K weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 390,694 543,973 (242,825) (473,885)
weGwU †nvwìsm wjwg‡UW †nvwìs †Kv¤úvwb 507 1,672 (3,947) (4,063)
weGwU Gwkqv c¨vwmwdK wiwRqb wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 5,861 24,093 (9,948) (14,654)
weGwU wmsMvcyi weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 11,5178 21,227 (115,178) (66,337)
weGwU G¨vm‡cK mvwf©m †m›Uvi Gm Gb wW we GBP wW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 140,610 297,853 (278,293) (138,678)
weGwU †Kvwiqv weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb - 526 - (132)
weGwU Gm Gm G mvwf©m (cÖvB‡fU) wjt weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 37,370 6,706 (8,067) -
weGwU I‡q÷©vb BD‡ivc weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb - 539 - (539)
  690,220 896,589 685,258 698,288

†jb‡`‡bi cwigvY
31 †k wW‡m¤^i

cÖvc¨/(cÖ‡`q) e‡Kqv
31 †k wW‡m¤^i
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UvKvÕ 000 m¤úK© 2015 2014 2015 2014

N. ZvgvK I cY¨ µq

wjd I †gvoK mvgMÖx µq:

weGwU wmsMvcyi weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 93,884 112,886 - -
weGwU (wRGjwc) wjwg‡UW* weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 371,023 1,113,252 140,593 65,721
weGwU gv‡K©wUs wc wU B wjwg‡UW weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 12,465 - (3,053) (32,706)
weGwU wmsMvcyi weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb - - (13,838) (23,968)
weGwU wc wU G·‡cvU© wjd B‡›`v‡b‡kqv weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 250 - (250) -

weGwU mvcøvB †PBb WvweøD B wjwg‡UW* weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 590 - 147 737
  478,212 1,226,138 123,599 9,784 

O. iq¨vjwU

iq¨vjwU cÖvc¨/cÖ‡`q:

weGwU †nvwìsm wjwg‡UW** †nvwìs †Kv¤úvwb 457,408 413,352 (828,490) (813,331)

  457,408 413,352 (828,490) (813,331)

P. KvwiMwi I Dc‡`óv wd

KvwiMwi I Dc‡`óv †mev MÖnY wd:

weGwU Bb‡fm‡g›U wjwg‡UW** †nvwìs †Kv¤úvwb 978,192 892,964 (1,753,830) (671,117)

  978,192 892,964 (1,753,830) (671,117)

Q. hš¿cvwZ µq

hš¿cvwZ µq:

weGwU †Uve¨v‡Kv Bg‡cvU©vi Ges   weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 91 470,032 - -
g¨vbyd¨vKPvivi  

weGwU g¨vbyd¨vKPvwis A‡÷ªwjqv* weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb 55,438 - 4,486 - 

weGwU Kjw¤^qv Gm G Gm* weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb - - 21,118 -
weGwU †Uvev‡K¨‡iiv †nv‡Ûvwibv Gm G* weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb - - 44,634 -

†Uve¨v‡Kv Bg‡cvU©vi Ges g¨vbyd¨vKPvivi weGwU MÖæc †Kv¤úvwb - - (91) (46,923)

  55,529 470,032 70,147 (46,923)

R. ¸iæZ¡c~Y© e¨e¯’vcbv Kgx©i wbKU ¯’vqx m¤úwË weµq - 275 - - 

  - 275 - -

*AwMÖg cÖ`vb
** mgvcbx e¨‡jÝwU‡Z 2014 I 2015 mv‡ji iq¨vjwU KvwiMwi mn‡hvwMZv wd

†jb‡`‡bi cwigvY
31 †k wW‡m¤^i

cÖvc¨/(cÖ‡`q) e‡Kqv
31 †k wW‡m¤^i
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35. m¤¢ve¨ `vq Ges Aw½Kvimgyn    

 31 wW‡m¤^i 2015 ch©šÍ cªwZkÖyZ 435.75 wgwjqb UvKv gyjab e¨q wn‡m‡e Aby‡gvw`Z wKš‘ Avw_©K wee„wZi Rb¨ Dcjä bq| (2014: 159.78 
wgwjqb UvKv)

 42.16 wgwjqb UvKvi e¨vsK M¨vivw›U †Kv¤úvwbi gva¨‡g †Kv¤úvwb wba©vwiZ e¨vsKvi `¦viv cvëv ÿwZcyib wn‡m‡e †`qv n‡q‡Q| (2014: 40.16 
wgwjqb UvKv)

 †Kv¤úvwbi c‡ÿ e¨vsK †jUvi Ae †µwWU Abymv‡i 768.63 wgwjqb UvKv mgcwigvb m¤¢ve¨ `vq Av‡Q| (2014: 363.45 wgwjqb UvKv) 

35.1 gvgjv    

 e¨emv‡qi mvavib cÖwµqvq †Kv¤úvwb wewfbœ `vex `vIqv Ges AvBbx wel‡q RwoZ| wKš‘ g¨v‡bR‡g‡›Ui wm×všÍ Abymv‡i, GB mg¯Í wel‡qi PzovšÍ 
web¨vm †Kv¤úvwbi Avw_©K wee„wZ‡Z †Kv‡bv ai‡bi cÖfve †dj‡e bv|

 
 we‡klZ b‡f¤^i 2013 †Z †Kv¤úvwb RvZxq ivR¯^ †ev‡W©i †_‡K Zv‡`i Kg`vgx K¨vUvMixi eª¨vÛ¸‡jvi Ici cÖvq 19,240 wgwjqb UvKv f¨vU 

Ges AwZwi³ Ki avh© Kievi †bvwUk cvq| †Kv¤úvwbi weiæ‡× gvSvix g~‡j¨i †mM‡g‡›Ui Zzjbvq mí g~‡j¨i †mM‡g‡›U wewµ K‡i Ki duvwKi 
Awf‡hvM Av‡Q|

 
 hw`I g¨v‡bR‡g‡›Ui wek¦vm †h GB `vex wfwËnxb, †Mvov †_‡KB Zviv msw¯øó mKj c‡ÿi mv‡_ †hvMv‡hvM K‡i Avm‡Q| AvBbx gZvg‡Zi Dci wfwË 

K‡i †Kvb weavb GB `vexi c‡ÿ ˆZix Kiv nqwb|  gvgjv I Ab¨vb¨ welq 2015 mvj ch©šÍ P‡j‡Q| welqwU eZ©gv‡b nvB‡Kv‡U©i AvIZvaxb hvi 
wec‡ÿ weGwU evsjv‡`k cieZ©x‡Z Avwcj Ki‡Z cv‡i| 2016 mv‡j GB Avwcj Ki‡Z n‡j 10% wW‡cvwRU cÖ`vb Kivi `iKvi n‡Z cv‡i |

36. Kg©Pvixi msL¨

 31 wW‡m¤^i 2015 ch©šÍ †Kv¤úvwbi ¯’vqx Kg©Pvix wQj 1400 Ges cÖ‡qvRb Abymv‡i wmRbvj I A¯’vqx Kg©Pvix †bqv n‡q‡Q| (2014: 1,353)

37. cÖwZ‡e`‡bi cieZ©x NUbvejx
 
 2016 mv‡ji 22 †deªæqvwi AbywôZ †evW© mfvq cwiPvjK cl©` 550% A_©vr cÖwZ †kqv‡i 55 UvKv nv‡i me©‡gvU 3,300,000,000 UvKv bM` 

jf¨vsk wn‡m‡e cÖ`vb Kivi mycvwik K‡ib, hv †Kv¤úvwbi 43Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Aby‡gv`‡bi Rb¨ mycvwik Kiv n‡e| 
 
38. cwigv‡ci wfwË

 evwl©K Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b ‰Zix Kiv n‡q‡Q HwZnvwmK LiP mgš^‡qi wfwË‡Z Ab †Mvwqs Kbmvb© Abymv‡i|

39. A¨vKvDw›Us‡qi bZzb AM„nxZ wbqgvejx
 
 A¨vKvDw›U‡qi bZzb wKQz gvb Ges e¨vL¨v cÖKvwkZ n‡q‡Q †h¸‡jv cÖwZ‡e`b cªKv‡ki mgqKvj 31 wW‡m¤^i 2015 ch©šÍ cÖ‡qvRbxq bq †m¸‡jv 

†Kv¤úvwb e¨envi K‡iwb|

weGdAviGm 15: MÖvnK‡`i mv‡_ Pzw³ †_‡K ivR¯^
 
 GB gvb`Û †mB wbqgvejxi Dci wfwË K‡i ˆZix Kiv n‡q‡Q †hLv‡b ejv n‡q‡Q †h ZLbB ivR¯^ AwR©Z nq hLb †Kvb cY¨ ev †mev MÖvn‡Ki 

Kv‡Q n¯ÍvšÍwiZ nq| wbqš¿‡bi GB avibv cÖPwjZ SuywK I cyi®‹v‡ii avibv‡K cªwZ¯’vcb K‡i| GB gvb`Û 1 Rvbyqvix 2018 A_ev Gi cieZ©x 
wi‡cvwUs wcwiq‡Wi Rb¨ Aek¨ cÖ‡hvR¨| †Kv¤úvwb eZ©gv‡b GB gvb`‡Ûi e¨envi I Kvh©Kvib wel‡q g~j¨vqb Ki‡Q|

weGdAviGm 9: A_©‰bwZK KjKvwV
  GB gvb`Û A_©‰bwZK m¤ú` I `v‡qi †kÖYxweb¨vm, cwigvc Ges wWwiKMwbkb‡K ¯^xKvi K‡i Ges †nR A¨vKvDw›Us‡qi †ÿ‡Î bZzb wbqg cÖeZ©b 

K‡i| GB gvb`Û Rvbyqvwi 1, 2018 A_ev Gi cieZ©x wi‡cvwUs wcwiq‡Wi Rb¨ Aek¨B cÖ‡hvR¨| †Kv¤úvwb eZ©gv‡b GB gvb`‡Ûi e¨envi I 
cwibwZi wel‡q g~j¨vqb Ki‡Q|

40. D‡jøL‡hvM¨ wnmveiÿb wbqgvejx

 GLv‡b D‡jøwLZ wnmveiÿb wbqgvejx Avw_©K wee„wZi mKj mgqKv‡ji Rb¨ †Kv¤úvwb avivevwnKfv‡e cÖ‡qvM K‡i‡Q| 
 wb‡P D‡jøL‡hvM¨ wnmveiÿb wbqgvejx Bb‡W· AvKv‡i †`qv n‡q‡Q hvi we¯ÍvwiZ weeib cieZ©x †cR¸‡jv‡Z cvIqv hv‡e|
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†bvU weeib
40.1 m¤ú`, KviLvbv, hš¿cvwZ
40.2 Avw_©K miÄvg
40.3 fvM Kiv cywR
40.4 †jvKmvb
40.5 cwiPvjb BRviv
40.6 ZvwjKvfz³ wRwblcÎ
40.7 Kg©Pvix myweavmgyn
40.8 wbqgvejx
40.9 weKímgyn
40.10 ivR¯^
40.11 AvqKi LiP
40.12 ‰e‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbgq mgyn
40.13 cuywR Avq I e¨q
40.14 †kqvi cÖwZ Avq (BwcGm)
40.15 bM` cÖevn wee„wZ
40.16 jf¨vsk
40.17 Kgc¨v‡iwUfm Ges wiA¨v‡iÄ‡g›U
40.18 g¨v‡UwiqvwjwU Ges A¨vMwi‡Mmb
40.19 cÖwZ‡e`b cÖ¯‘Z cieZ©x NUbvejx
40.20 PjwZ Kvievi

40.1 m¤ú`, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZ

40.1.1¯^xK…wZ Ges cwigvc
 
 m¤ú`, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZi g~j¨ wba©vib Kiv nq cywÄfzZ AePq Ges cywÄfzZ Bg‡cqvi‡g›U jm hw` _v‡K †m¸‡jv ev` †`qvi ci|

 g~‡j¨i †fZi †Kv‡bv m¤ú` AR©b Ki‡Z Ges †mB m¤ú`‡K †h Kv‡Ri Rb¨ Avbv n‡qwQj †mB Kv‡Ri Dc‡hvMx K‡i †Zvjv, †mMy‡jv Ly‡j †djv I 
Acmvib Kiv Ges †jv‡KkbUv‡K Avevi c~‡e©i Ae¯’vq †bqvi Rb¨ cÖ‡qvRbxq mKj LiP AšÍf©y³| wbg©vbvaxb m¤ú‡`i †fZi †h m¤ú`, 
KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZ GLbI e¨envi Dc‡hvMx bq †m¸‡jv AR©b A_ev wbg©v‡bi LiP AšÍf©y³ †h¸‡jv g~‡j¨i †fZ‡iI AšÍf©y³|

 wjR Kiv Rwgi Ici †Kv¤úvwb wbwg©Z feb g~jab wn‡m‡e MY¨ Kiv nq Ges wjR‡nvì cÖcvwU©I K¨vUvMwi‡Z Mb¨ Kiv nq|

40.1.2 cieZ©x/ DËiKvjxb LiPmgyn
 †Kv‡bv m¤ú`, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZi †Kv‡bv Ask cwieZ©‡bi LiP †m¸‡jv cwien‡bi/Pjgvb Li‡Pi †fZi AšÍf©y³ _v‡K hw` H cwiewZ©Z 

As‡ki m¤¢ve¨ fwel¨Z A_©‰bwZK myweav mgyn †Kv¤úvwbi Kv‡Q Av‡m Ges Zvi LiP wek¦¯Ífv‡e cwigvc Kiv hvq| m¤ú`, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZ 
cªwZw`b mvwf©wms‡qi LiP Ges Ab¨vb¨ Avq jvf ÿwZ wee„wZ‡Z D‡jøL Kiv nq|

40.1.3 AePq

 AePq jvf-ÿwZ Ges Ab¨vb¨ Kw¤úª‡nbwmf BbKvg/ me©vw½b Avq weeiYx‡Z †÷ªBU jvBb †ewm‡m m¤ú`, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZi cªwZwU As‡ki 
AvbygvwbK e¨envi‡hvM¨ mgq a‡i ¯^xK…Z nq| fzwg AePwqZ nqbv|

 
 bZzb hš¿cvwZi Dci AePq avh© Kiv nq Zv †h gvm †_‡K e¨envi ïiæ Kiv n‡q‡Q ZLb †_‡K| †Kvb m¤ú` aŸsm/evwZj Kiv n‡j †m‡ÿ‡Î 

AePq avh© Kiv nq †h gv‡m Zv aŸsm/evwZj Kiv n‡q‡Q Zvi Av‡Mi gvm ch©šÍ|

 AePq nv‡ii ZviZg¨ nq cÖ‡Z¨K †kÖYxi m¤ú`, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZi AvbygvwbK e¨envi‡hvM¨ RxebKvj Abymv‡i| 
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40.1.4 Aemi Ges n¯ÍvšÍi/evwZj/wW‡¯úvRvj    

 G †Kvb m¤ú`, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZ evwZj †Nvlbv Kiv nq/wW‡¯úvRv‡j wWwiKMbvBR Kiv nq hLb †mUv †_‡K fwel¨Z †Kv‡bv A_©‰bwZK 
myweav jv‡fi Avkv Avi _v‡Kbv| evwZj‡hvM¨ †Kvb m¤ú`, KviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZi Dci jvf ev ÿwZ wnmve Kiv nq †bU wWm‡cvRvj cÖwmWm& 
Ges †Kv‡bv cÖcvwU©, KviLvbv, hš¿cvwZi K¨vwiwqs A¨vgvD‡›Ui cv_©‡K¨i Ici wfwË K‡i Ges evwZjK…Z m¤úwË †_‡K jvf A_ev ÿwZ wn‡m‡e D‡jøL 
Kiv nq Ab¨vb¨ Avq/e¨‡qi wfZi jvf-ÿwZ wnmv‡e| 

40.2 Avw_©K DcKibmgyn  
 
 Avw_©K DcKib mgyn nj †h‡Kv‡bv K›Uªv± hv GKc‡ÿi A_©‰bwZK m¤ú` Ges Aci c‡ÿi A_©‰bwZK `vq A_ev e¨w³MZ gvwjKvbv ‰Zix K‡i| 

Avw_©K DcKib m¤ú‡K©¨ wnmveweÁv‡bi bvbvwea cwjwm wb‡P eb©bv Kiv nj|

40.2.1Avw_©K m¤ú`mgyn
 
 †Kv¤úvwb cÖv_wgKfv‡e cªvc¨mgyn ¯^xKvi K‡i Ges †mB Abyhvqx wW‡cvwRU K‡i †mB w`‡b †hw`b G¸‡jv ˆZix n‡qwQj| Ab¨vb¨ mKj Avw_©K 

m¤ú`mgyn cªv_wgKfv‡e †mB w`b ¯^xK…Z nq †hw`b †Kv¤úvwb Av`vb cÖ`v‡bi K›UªvKPzqvj †cªvwfkb Abymv‡i GKwU cvwU© wn‡m‡e Mb¨ n‡qwQj|
 
 †Kv¤úvwb †Kv‡bv Avw_©K m¤ú`‡K ¯^xKvi Ki‡Z A¯^xK…wZ Rvbvq hLb Pzw³wfwËK AwaKvi A_ev †mB m¤ú` †_‡K K¨vk †d¬v/ bM` Zij cÖev‡ni 

m¤¢vebv †kl n‡q hvq, A_ev hw` Pzw³wfwËKfv‡e K¨vk †d¬v/ bM` Zij cÖevn cvIqvi AwaKvi n¯ÍvšÍi Kiv nq †mB Uªvb‡RKk‡bi gva¨‡g 
†hLv‡b h‡_ó cwigv‡b m¤ú‡`i gvwjKvbv m¤úwK©Z SzuwK I cyi®‹vi UªvÝdvi Kiv nq| 

 Avw_©K m¤ú‡`i †fZi AšÍf©y³ A_© Ges A_© mgg~‡j¨i wRwblcÎ, †UªW Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖvc¨ Ges AvgvbZmgyn|

i. A_© Ges A_© mgg~‡j¨i wRwblcÎ
 A_© Ges A_© mgg~‡j¨i wRwblc‡Îi †fZi i‡q‡Q nv‡Z _vKv bM` A_©, e¨vs‡K _vKv A_©, wWwf‡W›U A¨vKvD›U Qvov Ab¨vb¨ wd•W wW‡cvwR‡Ui 

wiwmU †h¸‡jv †Kvb mxgve×Zv QvovB †Kv¤úvwbi e¨env‡ii Rb¨ _v‡K| K¨vk †d¬v †÷U‡g‡›Ui Rb¨ A_© Ges A_© m¤úwK©Z welq¸‡jvi g‡a¨ Av‡Q  
nv‡Z bM` A_©, wewfbœ dvBb¨wÝqvj BÝwUwUD‡U _vKv wW‡cvwRU/Rgv‡bv UvKv, ¯^í †gqvw` bM` wewb‡qvM †h¸‡jvi g¨vPzwiwUi †gqv` †WU Ae 
A¨vKzBwRkb †_‡K wZb gvm A_ev Kg|  e¨vsK IfviWªvdU †h¸‡jv `vex Abymv‡i cÖ`vb‡hvM¨ Avi †h¸‡jv †Kv¤úvwbi K¨vk g¨v‡bR‡g‡›Ui 
¸iyZ¡c~b© Ask †m¸‡jv bM` A_© Ges bM` A_© mggv‡bi wRwblcÎ wn‡m‡e hy³ nq †Kv¤úvwbi K¨vk †d¬v †÷U‡g‡›Ui mv‡_| 

†kÖYx e¨envi‡hvM¨ RxebKvj (eQ‡i)

40

m‡ev©”P 40 eQi, AeP‡qi nvi †Km evB
†Km †ewm‡m wba©vwiZ nq|

14.3/4

10

5/10

3/5/10

'4/5

3

1%

0%

0%1%/

0%

0%

0%

1%

0%

Aewkô gvb/ †iwmwWDqvj f¨vjy

Awb®‹i feb

wVKv feb/ wjR‡nvì feb

KjKviLvbv Ges hš¿cvwZ

cixÿvMv‡ii DcKib

Awdm DcKib

AvmevecÎvw`

hvbevnb

AvBwU DcKib

AeP‡qi c×wZ, e¨envi‡hvM¨ RxebKvj Ges †iwmwWDqvj f¨vjy/ Aewkô gvb cÖ‡Z¨K wi‡cvwUs †W†U wiwfD Ges h_vh_ mgš^q Kiv nq| 
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II. evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cvIbv
 

 evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cvIbvi †fZi i‡q‡Q Kv÷gvi Ges Ab¨vb¨ c‡ÿi KvQ †_‡K cvIbv Acwi‡kvwaZ wejmgyn| evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cvIbv 
mgyn cÖv_wgKfv‡e gyj Pvjvbc‡Îi cwigv‡bi Dci Ges ciewZ©Kv‡j eQi †k‡l g¨v‡bR‡g‡›Ui AÁv‡Z m‡›`nhy³ cvIbv mgyn ev` †`qvi ci 
Aewkô cwigv‡bi Dci wfwË‡Z wnmve Kiv nq

III. AvgvbZ
 AvgvbZ †c‡g‡›Ui gvb Abymv‡i wnmve Kiv nq|

40.2.2 Avw_©K `vq
 

 †Kv¤úvwb Zvi wdb¨vwÝqvj †÷U‡g‡›U ZLbB †Kv‡bv Avw_©K `vq ¯^xKvi K‡i hLb †Kv¤úvwb †mB Pzw³ wfwËK Avw_©K `v‡qi bvbv weavb Abymv‡i 
GKwU cÿ wn‡m‡e Mb¨ nq| †Kv¤úvwb †Kv‡bv Avw_©K `vq ¯^xKvi K‡i hLb c~‡e© N‡U hvIqv NUbvi Pzw³wfwËK bvbvb eva¨evaKZv wbwðZ nq Ges 
ZLbKvi †m‡Uj‡g‡›U Avw_©Kfv‡e jvfevb GKc‡ÿi †_‡K A_© evB‡i KviI Kv‡Q cÖevwnZ nq|

 †Kv¤úvwb Zvi Avw_©K `vq A¯^xKvi K‡i hLb Pzw³wfwËK eva¨evaKZv ¸‡jv evwZj A_ev †gqv` †kl nq|

 Avw_©K `v‡qi †fZi evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cwi‡kva‡hvM¨mgyn AšÍf©y³|

I. evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cwi‡kva‡hvM¨mgyn
 evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cwi‡kva‡hvM¨mgyn ¯^xKvh© nq hLb c~‡e© N‡U hvIqv NUbvi Pzw³wfwËK eva¨evaKZvmgyn wbwðZ nq Ges hvi †m‡Uj‡g‡›Ui 

djvdj wn‡m‡e GUv Avkv Kiv hvq †h m¤ú`kvjx †Kv¤úvwb †_‡K m¤ú` AvDU‡d¬v n‡e| evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cwi‡kva‡hvM¨ mgyn cªv_wgKfv‡e 
†dqvi f¨vjy‡Z ¯^xKvh©/ wnmve Kiv nq| cÖv_wgKfv‡e ¯^xKvh©/wnmve nIqvi ci evwbR¨ Ges Ab¨vb¨ cwi‡kva‡hvM¨ mgyn B‡dKwUf B›Uv‡i÷ 
†g_W e¨envi K‡i A¨vgiUvBRW& K‡÷ †`Lv‡bv nq|

40.2.3 Avw_©K m¤ú` Ges `vq Ad‡mU Kiv
 Avw_©K m¤ú` I `vq Ad‡mU Kiv nq Ges wdb¨vwÝqvj cwRk‡bi †÷U‡g‡›U †bU A¨vgvD›U D‡jøL Kiv nq ZLbB Ges ïaygvÎ ZLbB hLb 

†Kv¤úvwbi AvBbMZ AwaKvi Av‡Q †mB cwigvb A_© Ad‡mU Kivi Ges †bU †ewm‡m mgvav‡b m¤§Z nq A_ev m¤ú` wiq¨vjvBR/ wbiæcb Ges 
GKB mg‡q `vqI wb¯úwË K‡i|

40.3 †kqvi K¨vwcUvj
 mvaviY †kqvi‡K BKzBwU wn‡m‡e K¬vwmdvB/ †kÖYxfz³ Kiv nq| mvaviY †kqv‡ii †ÿ‡Î µgea©gvb LiP‡K BKzBwU †_‡K ev` †`qv †bU Ad U¨v· 

B‡d± wn‡m‡e †`Lv nq| †cBW Avc K¨vwcUvj nj †Kv¤úvwbi Øviv †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i Rb¨ Bmy¨ Kiv me †kqvi  (†evbvm †kqvi mn) eve` cª`Ë 
mgy`q A_©| mvaviY †kqvi †nvìviiv gv‡S gv‡S †Nvlbv Kiv wWwf‡W›U cvIqvi Ges †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i wgwUs‡q †fvU †`qvi AwaKvi iv‡Lb| 
†Kv‡bv †Kv¤úvwb fvOvi mgq mvaviY †kqvi †nvìvi‡`i Ae¯’vb Ab¨ me †kqvi †nvìvi I cvIbv`vi‡`i c‡i nq Ges Zviv wjKzB‡Wk‡bi cieZ©x 
Aewkô Avq cvIqvi AwaKvwi nb|

40.4 Bg‡cqvi‡g›U
I. ¯^xK…wZ
  Avw_©K m¤ú`mgyn jvf-ÿwZ Ges cvIbvmgyn cÖ‡Z¨K wi‡cvwUs †W‡U A¨v‡mm Kiv nq †Kv‡bv m¤ú` B‡¤úqviW&wKbv Zvi †Kv‡bv e¯‘wbô cÖgvb †ei 

Kivi Rb¨| †Kv‡bv Avw_©K m¤ú` Bg‡cqviW nq hw` †Kv‡bv e¯‘wbô cÖgvb _v‡K †h Avw_©K m¤ú‡`i cÖv_wgK ¯^xK„wZi ci †Kv‡bv ÿwZKi NUbv 
N‡U‡Q Ges GUv wek¦̄ Ífv‡e Abygvb Kiv hvq †h †mB ÿwZKi NUbv IB Avw_©K m¤ú‡`i fwel¨Z K¨vk †d¬v‡Z/ bM` Zij cÖev‡n †bwZevPK cÖfve †i‡L‡Q|

 gRy`K…Z cY¨ e¨vwZZ Ab¨vb¨ Ab_©‰bwZK/ Abvw_©K m¤ú‡`i K¨vwiwqs f¨vjy/Pjgvb g~j¨ cÖ‡Z¨K wi‡cvwU©s †W‡U wiwfD Kiv nq †Kv‡bv ai‡bi 
Bg‡cqvi‡g›U Av‡Q wKbv Zv †evSvi Rb¨| †Zgb †Kv‡bv jÿb cvIqv †M‡j m¤ú‡`i cybj©f¨ g~j¨ Abygvb Kiv nq| Bg‡cqvi‡g›U jm wnmve Kiv 
nq hLb †Kv‡bv m¤ú‡`i K¨vwiwqs A¨vgvD›U/ Pjgvb cwigvb A_ev Zvi bM` Drcv`b BDwbU Zvi cybj©f¨ g~j¨‡K Qvwo‡q hvq| hw` †Kv‡bv 
Bg‡cqvi‡g›U jm †_‡K _v‡K Zv jvf-ÿwZ Ges Ab¨vb¨ KgwcÖ‡nbwmf BbKvg †÷U‡g‡›U wnmve Kiv nq|

II. cybj©f¨ g~‡j¨i wnmve

 †Kv‡bv m¤ú‡`i Av`vq‡hvM¨ cwigvb Zvi †bU weµqg~j¨ A_ev Zvi e¨envi g~‡j¨i Zyjbvq †ewk| e¨envi g~j¨/ f¨vjy Bb BDR †Kv‡bv wbw`©ó 
m¤ú‡`i AbywgZ fwel¨Z bM` cÖevn wWmKvD›U K‡i eZ©gvb g~‡j¨ wb‡q Avmv GKwU wWmKvD›U †iU e¨envi K‡i hv IB wbw`©ó m¤ú‡`i wi¯‹ Ges 
UvBg f¨vjy Ae gvwb hvPvB K‡i eZ©gvb evRvi g~j¨vqb K‡i| Ggb †Kv‡bv m¤ú` hv ¯^vaxbfv‡e †Kv‡bv A_© Bb‡d¬v/AšÍtcÖevn ‰Zix K‡ibv, K¨vk 
†Rbv‡iwUs BDwb‡Ui Rb¨ Av`vq‡hvM¨ g~j¨ wbav©ib Kiv nq †mB m¤ú` hvi AwaKvifz³|         
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III. wifvm©vj Ae Bg‡cqvi‡g›U
 

 Bg‡cqvi‡g›U jm wifvm© nq hw` Av`vq‡hvM¨ cwigvb wba©vi‡bi Rb¨ e¨eüZ Abygvb mgy‡ni cwieZ©b N‡U| Bg‡cqvi‡g›U jm ïaygvÎ †mB 
ch©šÍ wecixZ nq nq hLb †mB m¤ú‡`i K¨vwiwqs A¨vgvD›U AePq A_ev µg‡kv‡ai cieZ©x‡Z wba©vwiZ K¨vwiwqs A¨vgvD‡›Ui PvB‡Z †ewk bvnq 
hw` †Kv‡bv Bg‡cqvi‡g›U jm ¯^xK…Z bv nq|

40.5 PjwZ BRviv

 dvBb¨vwÝqvj wjR/BRviv e¨wZZ Ab¨ me wjR/ BRviv Acv‡iwUs wjR/ BRviv wn‡m‡e Mb¨ nq Ges dvBb¨vwÝqvj cwRk‡bi †÷U‡g‡›U ¯^xK…Z/Mb¨ 
nqbv| Acv‡iwUs wj‡Ri/ BRvivi Aax‡b mKj cwi‡kvwaZ g~j¨ jvf-ÿwZ I Ab¨vb¨ KgwcÖ‡nbwmf/me©e¨vwc/me©v½xb/ Av‡qi †÷U‡g‡›U D‡jøL 
Kiv nq|

40.6 gRy`mgyn

 KuvPvgvj Ges ‰Zix c‡Y¨i gRy` LiP¯^í Ges Av`vq‡hvM¨ g~‡j¨i †P‡q K‡g wnmve Kiv nq| LyPiv hš¿vs‡ki g~j¨ Li‡Pi Dci wba©vib Kiv nq| 
 UªvbwR‡U _vKv cb¨ e¨vwZZ Ab¨vb¨ gRyZK…Z c‡b¨i LiP I‡qB‡UW A¨vfv‡iR †g_‡W wba©vib Kiv nq Ges Gi †fZi cb¨wU AR©b, Drcv`b 

A_ev cwieZ©b Ges eZ©gvb ¯’vb I Ae¯’vq cb¨¸‡jvwb‡q Avmvi mg¯Í LiP AšÍf©y³ _v‡K|
 
 †bU Av`vq‡hvM¨ g~j¨ wba©vib Kiv nq e¨emv‡qi mvavib cÖK…qvq AbywgZ weµqg~j¨ †_‡K weµq cªwµqvq ¸iæZ¡c~b© Ges weµq †kl Ki‡Z hZ 

Li‡Pi cÖ‡qvRb i‡q‡Q Zv ev` w`‡q|
 UªvbwR‡U _vKv cb¨mgy‡ni g~j¨ mKj mswkøó LiP mn wnmve Kiv nq|

40.7 Kg©Pvix myweavejx
40.7.1   ¯^í †gqvw` myweavejx

 ¯^í‡gqv`x Kg©Pvix myweav cªwZkÖæwZmgyn AvbwWmKvD›U †ewm‡m wnmve Kiv nq Ges LiP Kiv nq hLb GRvZxq †mev cÖ`vb Kiv nq| ¯^í‡gqv`x 
K¨vk †evbvm A_ev cÖwdU †kqvwis cø¨v‡bi Aax‡b †Kv‡bv `vq ¯^xKvi Kiv nq  hw` †Kv¤úvwbi eZ©gvb mg‡q †Kv‡bv AvBwb A_ev MVbgyjK 
eva¨evaKZv _v‡K GB A_© cÖ̀ v‡bi Rb¨ hw` †mB Kg©Pvix AZx‡Z †mev cÖ̀ vb K‡i _v‡K Ges †mB `vwqZ¡ cvj‡bi K_v wek¦̄ Ífv‡e Abygvb Kiv hvq|

40.7.2   wba©vwiZ myweavejxi cwiKíbv
    g¨v‡bR‡g›U MÖ¨vPzBwU w¯‹g

 †Kv¤úvwb AwbwnZ GKwU MÖ¨vPzBwU w¯‹g cwiPvjbv K‡i g¨v‡bR‡g›U Kg©Pvix‡`i Rb¨ hviv †deªæqvix 2013-i †fZi wb‡qvMcÖvß n‡q‡Q| GB 
Mª¨vPzBwU w¯‹‡gi †g¤^viiv MÖ¨vPzBwU cvevi Rb¨ Dchy³ nq Uvbv 5 eQi †Kv¤úvwb‡Z mvwf©m †`qvi ci|   

 †Kv¤úvwb Zvi g¨v‡bR‡g›U Kg©Pvix‡`i Rb¨ GKwU dv‡ÛW †cbkb w¯‹g cwiPvjbv K‡i hviv 1 Rvbyqvix 1987 †_‡K 31 AvMó 2007-Gi 
†fZi †Kv¤úvwb‡Z †hvM`vb K‡i‡Q| GB dv‡Ûi m`m¨iv 5 eQi †Kv¤úvwb‡Z Uvbv mvwf©m †`qvi ci GB dv‡Ûi Rb¨ Dchy³ nq| †evW© Ae Uªvw÷i 
Øviv GB dvÛ cwiPvwjZ nq| 

 
 `yBwU dv‡Ûi †ÿ‡ÎB wWdvBÛ †ewbwdU Aewj‡Mk‡bi eZ©gvb g~j¨ Ges cø¨vb A¨v‡m‡Ui †dqvi f¨vjy †ckv`vix exgv ciZvj‡Ki `¦viv wba©vwiZ 

Kiv n‡q‡Q| †cÖv‡RK‡UW BDwbU †µwWU †g_W e¨envi Kiv n‡q‡Q wWdvBÛ †ewbwdU Aewj‡Mk‡bi eZ©gvb g~j¨ wba©vi‡bi Rb¨ Ges Pjgvb 
Ges AZxZ †mevi LiP Ges cvi¯úwiK mvgÄm¨c~b© exgvi Abygv‡bi †ÿ‡Î †W‡gvMÖvwdK Ges Avw_©K wewfbœ PjK e¨envi Kiv n‡q‡Q| cø¨vb 
A¨v‡m‡Ui †dqvi f¨vjy Ges Aewj‡Mk‡bi eZ©gvb f¨vjyi cv_©K¨‡K `vq A_ev m¤ú` wn‡m‡e wdb¨vwÝqvj cwRk‡bi †÷U‡g‡›U †`Lv‡bv nq| 
exgvi gvbwbb©‡q jvf A_ev ÿwZi wnmv‡ei †ÿ‡Î Ab¨vb¨ Kw¤úª‡nbwmf BbKvg wnmv‡e cwic~b©fv‡e ¯^xKvh© nq|

40.7.3 msÁvwqZ Ae`vb cwiKíbv
g¨v‡bR‡g›U MÖ¨vPzBwU w¯‹g
 †Kv¤úvwb g¨v‡bR‡g›U Ggcøwq‡`i Rb¨ GKwU dv‡ÛW Mª¨vPzwqwU w¯‹g cwiPvjbv K‡i hviv 1 gvP© 2013-i cieZ©x‡Z †Kv¤úvwb‡Z †hvM`vb K‡i‡Q| 

†Kv¤úvwb g¨v‡bR‡g›U Ggcøwq‡`i †ewmK m¨vjvwii 15% GB dv‡Û Rgv iv‡L Zv‡`i †hvM`v‡bi w`b †_‡K| †evW© Ae Uªvw÷i Øviv GB dvÛ 
cwiPvwjZ nq| GB dv‡Ûi m`m¨iv GB dv‡Ûi UvKv 5 eQi Uvbv †Kv¤úvwb‡Z KvR Kivi ci cvevi Dchy³ nq| 

 
 Ggcøwq MÖ¨vPzwqwU w¯‹g
 bb-g¨v‡bR‡g›U G¤úøwq‡`i †ÿ‡Î †Kv¤úvwb GB dvÛ cwiPvjbv K‡i †hLv‡b †Kv¤úvwb Zv‡`i †ewmK m¨vjvwii 15% G¤úøwq‡`i †hvM`v‡bi w`b 

†_‡K Rgv iv‡L| †evW© Ae Uªvw÷i Øviv GB dvÛ cwiPvwjZ nq| GB dv‡Ûi m`m¨iv GB dv‡Ûi UvKv 5 eQi Uvbv †Kv¤úvwb‡Z KvR Kivi ci 
cvevi Dchy³ nq| 
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cÖwf‡W›U dvÛ
 †Kv¤úvbx Zvi Kg©Pvix‡`i †ÿ‡ÎB Zv‡`i †hvM`v‡bi Zvwi‡Li wnmve bv K‡iB cÖwf‡W›U dvÛ cwiPvjbv K‡i| PvKzix wbwðZ nevi ci mKj 

Kg©Pvix‡`iB †Kv¤úvbxi wbqg Abymv‡i GB dv‡Û †hvM`vb K‡i Zv‡`i †ewmK m¨vjvwii 15% Rgv ivL‡Z nq Avi †Kv¤úvbxI †mB Abyhvqx dv‡Û 
A_© Rgv iv‡L| †evW© Ae Uªvw÷i Øviv GB dvÛ cwiPvwjZ nq| GB dv‡Ûi m`m¨iv GB dv‡Ûi UvKv 5 eQi Uvbv †Kv¤úvbx‡Z KvR Kivi ci 
cvevi Dchy³ nq|

Kg©Pvix‡`i gybvdvi AskMÖnb Znwej
 
 2013 mv‡j ms‡kvwaZ Òevsjv‡`k †jevi A¨v± 2006Ó Abymv‡i †Kv¤úvbx Zvi cÖwd‡Ui 5% Kg©Pvix‡`i cÖwdU cviwUwm‡ckb dv†Û Rgv iv‡L 

Zvi Kg©Pvix‡`i KvQ †_‡K †mB LiP `vex Kivi Av‡M| †Kv¤úvbx GB dv‡Û Rgv‡K LiP wn‡m‡e we‡ePbv K‡i hLb †Kv‡bv Kg©Pvix GB Rgvi 
wecix‡Z Zvi cÖ‡qvRbxq KvR K‡i| AvBwb Ges KÝUªvKwUf Aewj‡Mkb †hB cwigvb †m GB dv‡Û Rgv ivL‡Z B”QzK †mB cwigvb ch©šÍ wbw ©̀÷ _v‡K|

40.8 weavbmgyn

 wi‡cvwU©s †W‡U †Kv‡bv weavb m¦xKvi Kiv nq hw` †Kv‡bv c~e©eZ©x NUbvi Kvi‡b †Kv¤úvbxi eZ©gv‡b †Kv‡bv AvBbx A_ev MVbgyjK `vqe×Zv, hv 
wek¦̄ Ífv‡e Abygvb Kiv hvq Ges GUv m¤¢ve¨ †h `vq wb¯úwËi Rb¨ A_©‰bwZK myweav mgy‡ni ewntM©gb cÖ‡qvRbxq n‡Z cv‡i|

 cÖ‡Z¨K wi‡cvwU©s wcwiq‡Wi †k‡l cÖwfkbm&/weavbmgyn ch©‡jvPbv Kiv nq Ges eZ©gvb Abygv‡bi mv‡_ A¨vWRv÷ Kiv nq|

40.9 m¤¢ve¨ NUbv
40.9.1 m¤¢ve¨ `vq

 AZx‡Z NUv †Kv‡bv NUbvi Dci wfwË K‡i m¤¢ve¨ `vq wba©vwiZ nq hvi Aw Í̄Z¡ wbwðZ Kiv m¤¢e ïaygvÎ †Kv‡bv fwel¨Z NUbv NUv ev bv NUvi Dc‡i 
hvi wbqš¿b me‡ÿ‡Î †Kv‡bv GK wbw ©̀ó c‡ÿi nv‡Z _v‡Kbv| m¤¢ve¨ `vq Avw_©K †÷U‡g‡›U D‡jøL Kiv DwPZ bv n‡jI Zv cÖKvk Kiv `iKvi n‡Z 
cv‡i| †Kv‡bv weavb/bxwZgvjv †mB mg‡qi †fZ‡iB ¯̂xK…Z nIqv DwPZ †hB mg‡qi gv‡S wewagvjv ¯̂xK…Z nIqvi gvb`Û M„nxZ n‡q‡Q|

40.9.2 m¤¢ve¨ m¤ú`

 AZx‡Z NUv †Kv‡bv NUbvi Dci wfwË K‡i m¤¢ve¨ m¤ú` wba©vib nq hvi Aw Í̄Z¡ wbwðZ Kiv m¤¢e ïaygvÎ †Kv‡bv fwel¨Z AwbwðZ NUbv NUv ev bv 
NUvi Dc‡i hvi wbqš¿b me‡ÿ‡Î †Kv‡bv wbw ©̀ó GK c‡ÿi nv‡Z _v‡Kbv|

 
 m¤¢ve¨ m¤ú` ¯̂xKvh© nq bv| hLb †Kv‡bv Avw_©K m¤ú‡`i Av`vq m¤úyb©iæ‡c wbwðZ nq ZLbB ïaygvÎ GB m¤ú` ¯̂xKv‡ii cÖkœ Av‡m hw`wKbv GUv 

wbwðZfv‡e cwigvc Kiv hvq †Kbbv ZLb †mB m¤ú` Avi m¤¢ve¨ m¤ú` wn‡m‡e Mb¨ nq bv|

40.10 ivR¯^

 cY¨ weµq †_‡K AwR©Z ivR¯̂ we‡eP¨ jvf ev cÖvc¨ wnmv‡e †dqvi f¨vjy‡Z, †bU Ae f¨vU, m¤ú~iK ïé,   idZvwb ïé, ¯̂v ’̈̄  mviPvR© hy³ K‡i 
wnmve Kiv nq| MÖm Uvb©Ifv‡ii †fZi AšÍf©y³ Avf¨šÍixb wewµZ wmMv‡iU, cvZv idZvwb Ges m¤úyiK ïé,  idZvwb ïé, Ges ¯̂v ’̈̄  mviPvR© hv 
evsjv‡`k Mfb©‡g›U‡K cª̀ vb Kiv nq|

40.11 AvqKi e¨q

AvqKi e¨‡qi †fZi eZ©gvb Ges wejw¤̂Z ïé AšÍf©y³| AvqKi LiP jvf-ÿwZ Ges Ab¨vb¨ Kw¤úª‡nbwmf Av‡qi wnmv‡e AšÍf©y³ nq|
eZ©gvb ïé
 
 eZ©gvb ïé nj †mB eQ‡ii Rb¨ cÖZ¨vwkZ cÖ‡`q A_ev cÖvc¨ U¨v‡•ej Avq A_ev ÿwZ, wi‡cvwU©s †W‡U cÖwZcvw`Z U¨v• †iU Ges weMZ eQ‡ii 

mv‡c‡ÿ cÖ‡`q U¨v‡•i mv‡_ †Kv‡bv A¨vWRv÷‡g›U Kivi cieZx©‡Z _vKv A_©| eZ©gv‡b †Kv¤úvbx 45% nv‡i Ki cÖ`v‡b eva¨|  
wejw¤^Z ïé
 
 wejw¤^Z ïé m¦xKvh© nq Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi Rb¨ m¤ú` Ges `v‡qi K¨vwiwqs K‡÷i/Pjgvb LiP A¯’vqx cv_©‡K¨i mv‡c‡ÿ| wejw¤^Z ïé †mB Ki 

†i‡U wnmve Kiv nq †h¸‡jv e¨eüZ n‡e A¯’vqx cv_©K¨ ¸‡jv hLb wifvm© n‡e †hMy‡jv wi‡cvwU© †W‡Ui †fZi Pvjy nIqv †mB me AvB‡bi Ici 
wbf©ikxj| wejw¤^Z ïé m¤ú` †mB ch©šÍ ¯^xKvh© nq hLb GUv m¤¢ve¨ nq †h fwel¨Z Ki‡hvM¨ jvf mnR‡jvf¨ n‡e hvi wecix‡Z A¯’vqx 
cv_©K¨¸‡jv e¨envi‡hvM¨ n‡e| wejw¤^Z ïé m¤ú` cÖ‡Z¨K wi‡cvwUs †W‡U wiwfD Kiv nq Ges †mB ch©šÍ Kwg‡q †djv nq hLb GUv †Kv‡bvfv‡eB 
m¤¢ve¨ n‡e bv †h kyé myweav ¯^xKvh© n‡e| wejw¤^Z ïé m¤ú` Ges `vq Ad‡mU Kiv nq hw` AvBbZ cÖ‡qvM‡hvM¨ †Kv‡bv AwaKvi _v‡K eZ©gvb Ki 
`vq Ges m¤ú` Ad‡mU Kivi Ges †m¸‡jv †mB U¨v• KZ…c‡ÿi gva¨‡g Ki Av‡iv‡ci mv‡_ RwoZ wKš‘ Zviv †bU †ewm‡m eZ©gvb ïé `vq Ges 
m¤ú` †mUj K‡i A_ev ïé m¤ú` Ges `vq GK‡hv‡M ¯^xKvh© n‡e
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40.12 ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv wewbgq

 ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvq wewbgq mgyn evsjv‡`kx UvKvq Abyw`Z nq †mB †i‡U hv Uªvb‡RKkb †i‡U hv Uvb‡RKkb †W‡U iæwjs Kiv n‡q‡Q| mKj Avw_©K 
m¤ú` Ges `vq †h¸‡jv wi‡cvwU©s †W‡U ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvq AvL¨vZ/UªvÝ‡j‡UW n‡q‡Q †m¸‡jv cybivq AvL¨vZ/wiUªvÝ‡j‡UW nq dvskbvj Kv‡iwÝ‡Z 
IBw`b we`¨gvb wewbgq g~‡j¨i Ici wfwË K‡i| wi‡cvwUs wcwiq‡Wi †k‡l Avw_©K cY¨ †m‡Uj‡g›U A_ev UªvÝ‡jk‡bi †ÿ‡Î †h cv_©K¨ m„wó nq 
†m¸‡jv weGGm 21: `¨v B‡d± Ae †P‡Äm Bb d‡ib G•‡PÄ †iU Abymv‡i jvf-ÿwZ I Ab¨vb¨ we¯Í…Z Avq wnmv‡e AšÍf©y³ nq|

40.13 Avw_©K Avq Ges ÿwZ
 e¨vs‡K mwÂZ Avw_©K Avgvb‡Zi my` wb‡q Avw_©K Avq MwVZ nq| Avw_©K Avq A¨vKiæqvj †ewm‡m ¯^xK…Z Ges jvf-ÿwZ I Ab¨vb¨ we¯Í…Z Avq 

wnmv‡e †`Lv‡bv nq| Avw_©K Li‡Pi †fZi e¨vsK PvR© Ges IfviWªvd‡Ui Ici my‡`i LiP AšÍf©y³|

40.14 †kqvi cªwZ Avq (BwcGm)

 †Kv¤úvbx Zvi mvaviY †kqv‡ii †ÿ‡Î †kqvi cÖwZ Avq‡K cª`k©b K‡i| †ewmK †kqvi cÖwZ Avq wnmve Kiv nq mvaviY †kqvi †nvìvi‡`i cªwZ 
Av‡ivc¨ jvf ev ÿwZ †K †mB eQ‡ii Acwi‡kvwaZ mvaviY †kqv‡ii I‡qB‡UW A¨vfv‡iR bv¤^vi Øviv fvM K‡i|

 ZijxK…Z bM` A_© †kqvi cÖwZ Avq wba©vwiZ nq mvaviY †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i jvf A_ev ÿwZ Ges Acwi‡kvwaZ †kqv‡ii I‡qB‡UW A¨vfv‡i‡Ri 
g‡a¨ mgš̂q K‡i, mKj ZijK…Z mvaviY †kqv‡ii cÖfv‡ei Rb¨| hw`I †kqvicÖwZ Avq ZijxKib GB Avw_©K cªwZ‡e`‡bi Rb¨ cÖ‡hvR¨ n‡e bv 
Kvib wi‡cvwUs †W‡U †Kv‡bv m¤¢ve¨ ZijxK…Z mvaviY †kqvi wQ‡jv bv|

40.15 bM` cªevn cÖwZ‡e`b

 cwiPvjbv Kvh©µg †_‡K bM` cÖevn weGGm 7: †÷U‡g›U Ae K¨vk †døv Abyhvqx wW‡i± †g_‡Wi Aax‡b †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q|

40.16 jf¨vsk

 Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b PzovšÍ jf¨vsk weZib `vq wn‡m‡e †`Lv‡bv nq †mB mgqKv‡ji Rb¨ hLb evwl©K mvaviY mfvq jf¨vs‡ki Aby‡gv`b †`qv 
n‡q‡Q, Aciw`‡K AšÍe©Z©x jf¨vsk weZib ¯^xK…Z nq †mB mgqKv‡j hLb jf¨vsk †Nvlbv Ges cÖ`vb Kiv nq| 

40.17 Kgc¨v‡iwUfm& Ges wiA¨v‡iÄ‡g›U
 
 msL¨vMZ Z‡_¨i †ÿ‡Î mKj ZzjbvgyjK Z_¨ GB Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges AvL¨vbag©x Ges eb©bvgyjK Z‡_¨i †ÿ‡ÎI †h¸‡jv 

cÖvmw½K eZ©gvb Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b †evSvi †ÿ‡Î Riæix †m¸‡jvI cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q|

 Zzjbvi m¦v‡_© weMZ eQ‡ii wKQz Riæix cÖvmw½K e¨vjvÝ cybwe©b¨¯Í I cyb‡k©ÖYxwefvRb Kiv n‡q‡Q hLbB G¸‡jv eZ©gvb eQ‡ii †cÖ‡R‡›Uk‡bi 
†ÿ‡Î Riæix e‡j g‡b Kiv n‡q‡Q|

40.18 g¨v‡UwiqvwjwU Ges A¨vMwi‡Mkb

 cÖ‡Z¨K Abyiæc c`v‡_©i g¨v‡Uwiqvj †kÖYxwefvM Avjv`vfv‡e Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q| Avjv`v †kÖYxi c`v_© Avjv`vfv‡e †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q 
hw` bv Zviv Bgg¨v‡Uwiqvj nq|

40.19 wi‡cvwUs mgqKv‡ji cieZ©x NUbvejx
 
 Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b D‡jøL¨ A‡_©i cwigvbmgyn wi‡cvwU©s wcwiqW †kl nIqvi cieZ©x NUbvejxi Rb¨ A¨vWRv÷ Kiv nq †h¸‡jv cÖgvb †`q †mB 

Ae¯’v m¤ú‡K©¨ hv wi‡cvwU©s wcwiq‡Wi †k‡l wQj| †mBme NUbvejxi Rb¨ Avw_©K cªwZ‡e`‡b †Kv‡bv G¨vWRv÷‡g›U †`qv nqbv †h¸‡jv Ggb †Kv‡bv 
cwiw¯’wZ m¤ú‡K©¨ e‡j hv wi‡cvwUs wcwiq‡Wi †k‡l N‡U‡Q|

40.20 PjwZ D‡ØM

 †Kv¤úvbxi Kv‡Q my`yi fwel¨Z ch©šÍ Kvh©µg Pvjvevi gZ m¤ú` Av‡Q| GB Kvi‡b †Mvwqs Kbmvb© †ewmm e¨envi Kiv n‡q‡Q Avw_©K cªwZ‡e`b 
cÖ¯‘Z Ki‡Z| †Kv¤úvbxi PjwZ m¤ú` ch©vcÍ dvÛ Ges we‡klbxq Fbmyweav eZ©gvb e¨emvi mKj cÖ‡qvRb cyi‡b mÿg|

 



Proxy Form
I/We.................................................................................................................................................................................................................

of......................................................................................................................................................................................................................

being a Member of British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited, do hereby appoint

Mr./Mrs...........................................................................................................................................................................................................

of......................................................................................................................................................................................................................

either of them may, in writing, appoint anyone to act as my proxy at the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held on Tuesday, 12 April 2016 and at any adjournment thereof

As witness my/our hand this ............................................................................ day of ................................................. 2016.

Revenue
Stamp
Tk. 20

Notes:

Attendance Slip

...........................................

(Signature of Proxy)

................................................

(Signature of Share Holder)

................................................

Signature of Shares Holder(s)/Proxy

Folio / BO ID No. of Share Holder:  

No. of Shares held: .........................................................................

Folio / BO ID No.

No. of Shares held: ..........................................................................................

Note: Please present this attendance slip at the registration counter on or before 10:30 a.m on the AGM date.

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
New DOHS. Road, Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206, PO Box 6069, Bangladesh

British American Tobacco Bangladesh Company Limited
New DOHS. Road, Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206, PO Box 6069, Bangladesh

1. A member entitled to attend and vote in the AGM may appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. 
2. The Proxy Form, duly filed and stamped must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, by 10.30 a.m of 10 April 2016.
3. Signature of the Member(s) must be in accordance with the Specimen Signature recorded with the Company.

I/We do hereby record my/our attendance at the 43rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company being held on 12 
April 2016 at 10.30 a.m at Pan Pacific Sonargaon, 107 Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Dhaka 1215, Bangladesh

Name of the Shares Holder(s)/Proxy:..........................................................................................................................................................................



cÖwZwbwacÎ
Avwg/Avgiv ...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

wVKvbv ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW-Gi m`m¨ wn‡m‡e 

K. Rbve/†eMg .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

wVKvbv ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

L. Rbve/†eMg .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

wVKvbv .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 

†K ev Zv‡`i †h‡Kv‡bv GKRb‡K Avgvi/Avgv‡`i cÖwZwbwa wn‡m‡e Avgvi/Avgv‡`i Abycw¯’wZ‡Z g½jevi, 12 GwcÖj 2016 Zvwi‡L 
AbywôZe¨ †Kv¤úvwbi 43Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Ges Zvi g~jZwe †NvwlZ mfvq Dcw¯’Z nIqv I †fvU`v‡bi Rb¨ wbhy³ Kijvg|

...........................................

 †kqvi msL¨v : ..................................................................

†dvwjI / weI b¤^i :

  

(cÖwZwbwai ¯^vÿi)
...........................................

(†kqvi †nvìv‡ii ¯^v¶i)

...........................................

(†kqvi †nvìv‡ii ¯^v¶i)

Avwg/Avgiv AvMvgx 12 GwcÖj 2016 †ivR g½jevi mKvj 10:30 wgwb‡U †mvbviMuvI †nv‡Uj, 107 KvRx bRiæj Bmjvg GwfwbD, 

XvKv-1215 Gi ejiæ‡g AbywôZe¨ †Kv¤úvwbi 43Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Avgvi/Avgv‡`i Dcw¯’wZ wjwce× KiwQ|

†kqvi †nvìvi/cÖwZwbwai bvg: .........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

weI/†dvwjI AvBwW bs:

†kqv‡ii msL¨v: ..........................................................................................................................

`ªóe¨ 1: AbyMÖnc~e©K, GwRGg-Gi w`b mKvj 10.30 wgwb‡U ev Zvi Av‡M †iwR‡÷ªkb KvD›Uv‡i GB Dcw¯’wZcÎwU †`Lv‡eb|

Dcw¯’wZcÎ

`ªóe¨: 

1. Awbevh©KviYekZt, †Kv‡bv m`m¨ Zvi Abycw¯’wZ‡Z g‡bvbxZ cÖwZwbwa‡K Zvi cÿ †_‡K †fvU cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ cvVv‡Z cvi‡eb

2. cÖwZwbwacÎ mwVKfv‡e c~iY I ÷¨v¤ú mshy³ K‡i †Kv¤úvwbi wbewÜZ Awd‡m 10 GwcÖj mKvj 10:30 wgwb‡Ui g‡a¨ Rgv w`‡Z n‡e

3. †Kv¤úvwbi bw_fz³ bgybv ¯^vÿi I m`‡m¨i ¯^vÿi GKB n‡Z n‡e|

†iwfwbD

÷¨v¤ú

20/=  

weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
wbD wWIGBPGm †ivW, gnvLvjx, XvKv-1209, wcI e· 6069 evsjv‡`k

weªwUk Av‡gwiKvb †Uve¨v‡Kv evsjv‡`k †Kv¤úvwb wjwg‡UW
wbD wWIGBPGm †ivW, gnvLvjx, XvKv-1209, wcI e· 6069 evsjv‡`k
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